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 1                       P R O C E E D I N G S
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  It's a little bit past 8:30.
 3            If we can get Tripp to sit down --
 4                 MS. PERRY:  That was my fault.
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I'm just teasing Tripp.  I
 6            always have to give Tripp a hard time.  So we'll
 7            begin with our first item and I do not have a report
 8            from the chair, so I'll take up the Consent Agenda,
 9            the minutes of the April 16, 2014 board meeting.  Do
10            you have any questions or adjustments on that?
11            There's only one item on the consent.  If not, I'll
12            entertain a motion.
13                 MR. HOY:  Motion to approve.
14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a motion to approve
15            by Mister --
16                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Second.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hoy, and second by Mr.
18            Hernandez.  All those in favor?
19                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All those opposed like sign.
21            Motion passes, so the Consent Agenda passes.
22  A-1:  HEARING FOR OPEN-ENROLLMENT PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL: SCHOOL
23  FOR INTEGRATED ACADEMICS & TECHNOLOGIES LITTLE ROCK (SIATech)
24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  So we'll move to Action Item
25            A-1, Hearing for the Open-Enrollment Public Charter
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 1            School: School for Integrated Academics and
 2            Technologies Little Rock (SIATech).  Mr. Lasiter.
 3                 MR. LASITER:  Thank you, Commissioner Kimbrell,
 4            Members of the Panel.  I want to walk you through the
 5            hearing procedures that apply for the purposes of
 6            this agenda item and take you through some of the
 7            legal considerations.  I know that we have people
 8            from both the Department of Education and from the
 9            charter school who will want to address you on this
10            issue.  But A-1 is a hearing for the open-enrollment
11            public charter school, School for Integrated
12            Academics and Technologies in Little Rock, or S-I-A-
13            Tech.  Your procedures are found in Section 6.24 of
14            the ADE rules governing charter schools and I'll
15            briefly take you through those procedures.
16                 The hearing procedures require 20 days prior
17            notice.  The ADE provided a notice letter concerning
18            this hearing to the charter school on April 24, 2014.
19            That notice letter is in your materials.  In a moment
20            I will walk through that notice letter as well
21            because it contains some important things that you'll
22            need to consider for the purposes of this hearing.
23            But in a moment all persons, with exception of the
24            attorneys representing the parties, who plan to give
25            testimony must be sworn by a certified court
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 1            reporter.  At that point Arkansas Department of
 2            Education staff will have up to 20 minutes to present
 3            their findings to the Panel.  Mr. Commissioner, you
 4            can agree to allow them longer if that time is
 5            needed.  After the 20 minutes is over, the open-
 6            enrollment public charter school shall have 20
 7            minutes to present its case to the authorizer.  And
 8            as with the ADE presentation, Mr. Commissioner, you
 9            can certainly allow more time if that time is needed.
10            After the presentation by both the ADE and the
11            Charter Authorizing Panel [sic], that's when you go
12            into your discussion of the issues and your
13            questions, if any, to any of the representatives from
14            either the Department of Education or the charter
15            school.  And then at the conclusion of the hearing
16            you may issue a final decision or take the matter
17            under advisement until a future scheduled meeting.
18                 I now want to refer you to Arkansas Code 6-23-
19            105 because that statute gives you your options for
20            the hearing today.  Certainly, your first option is
21            not to take any action.  You always have that.  There
22            are not mandatory actions that need to be taken
23            today.  So you can decide, first of all, to do
24            nothing at all.  But you may also place the public
25            charter school on probation or you may modify or
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 1            revoke the charter if you determine that the persons
 2            operating the public charter school, one, committed a
 3            material violation of the charter, including failure
 4            to satisfy accountability provisions prescribed by
 5            the charter; two, failed to satisfy generally-
 6            accepted accounting standards of fiscal management;
 7            three, failed to comply with this chapter, meaning in
 8            the Arkansas code or other applicable law or
 9            regulation; or, four, failed to meet academic or
10            fiscal performance criteria deemed appropriate and
11            relevant for the public charter school by the
12            authorizer.  The law does also set forth the criteria
13            for how do you arrive at these decisions.  It says
14            that any action the authorizer may take shall be
15            based on the best interest of the public charter
16            school students, the severity of the violation, and
17            any previous violation the public charter school may
18            have committed.  So, again, on the spectrum of things
19            that you can do in this hearing is on one side take
20            no action, all the way up to revocation of the
21            charter.
22                 Now I want to refer you, before I sit down, to
23            the notice letter that went out to the charter school
24            on April 24, 2014.  And that notice letter put the
25            charter school on notice of two potential findings in
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 1            this case.  The first is the allegation that the
 2            curriculum was not aligned to the Common Core State
 3            Standards, and the second was inconsistencies in
 4            student records that impact official transcripts.
 5            Those are the two items that the charter school has
 6            notice of and that's why they're here today.
 7            Certainly, during the course of your questions and
 8            discussions other questions may arise that you want
 9            to pose to the charter.  But any action that you take
10            today as a panel needs to be focused on those two
11            items that the charter school received notice of.
12            So, again, those were curriculum that's not aligned
13            to the Common Core State Standards and, two,
14            inconsistencies in student records that impact
15            official transcripts.  Ms. Clay and I will both be
16            here for the duration of this hearing, if you have
17            further questions.
18                 If there aren't any questions at this time, then
19            we'll need to swear everyone in and then we'll
20            proceed with the Department of Education's 20
21            minutes.
22                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Panel Members, any questions
23            of Mr. Lasiter?  If not, I would ask that all those
24            that will be giving testimony, with the exception of
25            those attorneys that may be representing either the
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 1            Department or the charter, please rise.  Raise your
 2            right hand, please.  Do you swear or affirm to tell
 3            the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?
 4               (ALL WITNESSES ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY)
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
 6                 MR. LASITER:  Mr. Commissioner, I believe Ms.
 7            Perry will begin the Department's 20 minutes.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Ms. Perry.
 9                 MS. PERRY:  Good morning.  I'm just going to
10            give you a little bit of background that led to the
11            standards visit and review.  After receiving
12            information in November that all teachers at SIATech
13            were not highly qualified, I looked at the state
14            performance data from the two years that the charter
15            had been in operation and noted a few students who
16            had demonstrated proficiency on and the low
17            percentage of students who actually took the state
18            assessments.  So on December 3rd, Lisa Crook and I
19            held a scheduled meeting with SIATech leaders.  In
20            the meeting I asked questions about student
21            performance and was told about the ability levels of
22            students.  I also asked questions about the number of
23            SIATech graduates, the curriculum being used at the
24            charter, and the qualifications of the teachers.  I
25            requested a list of the 2011-2012 and 2012-2013
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 1            graduates with their ID numbers and clarification
 2            about teacher qualifications.  I first received a
 3            list of graduates and later a list of graduates with
 4            ID numbers.  I then reviewed transcripts,
 5            information, and Triand for SIATech graduates and
 6            identified many transcript issues.  I shared the
 7            information with my supervisor, who requested that I
 8            share the information with the Commissioner.  The
 9            Commissioner directed the Standards Unit to conduct a
10            review.  The review report is in the Panel packet, as
11            well as the signed visit form that was completed at
12            the review on April 2nd.  Mr. Johnie Walters, who led
13            the Standards Review Team, will discuss the report.
14            Anthony Owen, a Standards Review Team member, is also
15            present this morning should you have questions for
16            him.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you, Ms. Perry.  Mr.
18            Walters, I guess you're up next.
19                 MR. WALTERS:  On March 27th, we received a
20            letter -- I received a letter from Dr. Kimbrell
21            authorizing our unit to do an on-site review visit to
22            SIATech charter school.  We made that visit on April
23            2nd of 2014.  We had my self as a facilitator and we
24            had team members Roy Causbie, who's a Standards
25            Assurance Specialist; Mari Beth Nokes, a Standards
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 1            Assurance Specialist; Randall Lawrence, a Standards
 2            Assurance Specialist; Maggie Herrick, who is a Social
 3            Studies Language Arts Specialist from Curriculum
 4            Instruction; and Mr. Anthony Owen from Curriculum
 5            Instruction, who is a Math Specialist.  At that time
 6            the team reviewed numerous documents, handbooks.  We
 7            reviewed transcripts; we reviewed curriculum
 8            documents.  Different team members had different
 9            assignments at a time.  Upon completion of the review
10            the team determined, in talking with Ms. Tatum, that
11            the transcripts were not in alignment with e-school
12            and Triand transcripts.  There were discrepancies
13            between credits, number of credits, types of credits,
14            things of that nature.  And Ms. Tatum had at the time
15            asked if they could attempt to make some corrections
16            and bring us updated copies the following day, which
17            they did.  But the corrections were not accurate; the
18            transcripts still were not in alignment.
19                 With regard to curriculum, we had several team
20            members visit classrooms and look at various parts of
21            the curriculum and it was determined that the
22            Language Arts curriculum, Social Studies curriculum
23            portions, Science were not at the time aligned with
24            the current Common Core State Standards.  And there
25            were percentages of alignment with some math courses.
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 1            And Mr. Owen is here and he has -- can speak more
 2            correctly to that.  At the time of exit we wrote our
 3            findings up and I believe you have copies of that in
 4            your folder where we had three pages of findings from
 5            different individuals.  And we noted on there that
 6            the curriculum did not meet the standards and we were
 7            notified that currently that was accurate but that in
 8            the 14-15 school year the curriculum should be
 9            aligned with the Common Core curriculum that the
10            State has approved.  At this time we've not seen any
11            evidence to the contrary.  We did receive some
12            documents from SIATech that was forwarded to me by
13            Ms. Perry.  I've not had an opportunity to completely
14            review those, so -- but at the time of the visit they
15            basically told us that it would be aligned in the 14-
16            15 school year.  And math was the one content area
17            that was most closely aligned with the current Common
18            Core State Standards.  And, again, the transcripts
19            were not consistent with each other when they were
20            run, and these were on the day of the visit nor when
21            they were brought -- they were attempted to be
22            corrected and brought to us on the 3rd.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And that's all you have?
24                 MR. WALTERS:  Yes, sir.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Is there anything
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 1            else from the Department to be presented?  Mr.
 2            Lasiter, do you have something else?
 3                 MR. LASITER:  No, sir.
 4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Okay.  So
 5            representatives from SIATech -- who would like to
 6            begin that?  Again, we'll have 20 minutes and I know
 7            that we've sworn in a lot of people, so have y'all
 8            got this organized how you want to do this?
 9                 DR. DAWSON:  We hope so.
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  I'll try to keep you
11            kind of abreast of how much time you have.  If you
12            want to know, you can just ask me and I'll try to
13            keep you up-to-date.
14                 DR. DAWSON:  Thank you.  Good morning, Dr.
15            Kimbrell, Members of the Panel.  My name is Linda
16            Dawson.  I'm the superintendent and CEO of SIATech,
17            Incorporated.  I'm very pleased to be here this
18            morning to talk to you a little bit about SIATech.
19            And with me I have members of our team, strong
20            members of our Learning Support Team responsible for
21            curriculum alignment and the transition that we all
22            have to make in public education to the Common Core
23            over the last several years.  And you will be meeting
24            each of those members as we explain our curriculum.
25            I want to just let the board and panel know a little
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 1            bit about us.  Breaking the cycle of poverty is the
 2            number one goal of our organization.  We do dropout
 3            recovery.  We take students that are the most at-risk
 4            of not being successful in life and try to get them
 5            re-engaged with education and back into the
 6            mainstream and give them the hope that they can have
 7            a fulfilling life with the academic skills necessary
 8            to compete in a very competitive work world.  Our
 9            network of charter schools has been in existence for
10            15 years.  We have over 14,000 graduates that are now
11            participating in life with a college -- or a high
12            school diploma.  Well, 38% of our students are in
13            college within the first two years of graduating.
14            We've been recognized by the National Dropout
15            Recovery network, as well as in California, as a
16            California Distinguished School, the first dropout
17            recovery school to get that designation.  What we
18            know is that dropout recovery isn't easy and that by
19            no means is an excuse.  We absolutely understand what
20            we do.  We also know that with a concentrated student
21            population, predominantly students in poverty, that
22            those students take longer to get back into the
23            mainstream.  Research shows that we have students
24            that are presenting symptoms of post-traumatic stress
25            syndrome because of their situation.  It's not an
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 1            excuse, and we believe we have methods, we have the
 2            people, and we have the program that can get these
 3            students back on track.  We are certainly not trying
 4            to shirk any duties or say that we are perfect in any
 5            way; we are not.  We are absolutely willing and able
 6            and committed to fixing any type of concerns that the
 7            board would have.  We believe strongly in
 8            accountability.  We believe in a broader range of
 9            accountability.  But we were certainly making every
10            effort -- our expectation is that our school leaders
11            will make that effort to meet the accountability
12            standards of the states that we're operating in, most
13            certainly here in Arkansas.  So I would like to say
14            that from a corporate standpoint we believe that we
15            have the leader in place that can make these changes
16            that you are requiring, that we can move forward in a
17            very positive way as a partner in education, and that
18            our program is our kids' best hope to participate
19            fully in the life of the community.  So with that,
20            I'd like to introduce our next speaker.
21                 MS. BELZMAN:  Good morning.  My name is Lori
22            Belzman.  I'm a curriculum coordinator for SIATech
23            and I will be speaking about the curriculum for both
24            ELA and Social Studies.  We wanted to start off
25            though by saying that all SIATech curriculum has a
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 1            comprehensive alignment with the Common Core
 2            Standards; it always has, it always will, because
 3            it's a requirement.  And one of the ways it allows us
 4            to do this so easily is our curriculum delivery model
 5            and our Learning Management System.  It allows for
 6            continuous updates and revisions.  And as a result of
 7            that, our alignments are done at a minimum once a
 8            year but more realistically periodically to reflect
 9            these continuous updates and revisions of our
10            curriculum on the spot.  My clicker is not working.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Freeman, can you help?
12                 MS. BELZMAN:  That's okay.  So as far as ELA
13            goes, looking at our digital curriculum as well as
14            our English resources, we are one-hundred percent
15            compliant with the ADE Common Core State Standards
16            and our current crosswalk for 2013-2014 reflects this
17            and that has been submitted to you.  As far as the
18            ELA reading passages not being at high school level,
19            we had every reading passage through Readability
20            Score-dot-com and as expected we found that the
21            results varied.  All reading passages were anywhere
22            from middle school to college level.  But we do want
23            to point out one key concept when you're looking at
24            task complexity, especially in terms of the Common
25            Core.  Reading level is definitely one component of
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 1            text complexity but you also have to look at the
 2            complexity of the task that is associated with the
 3            test.  For example, in 11th grade American Lit
 4            students typically read short stories by Edgar Allen
 5            Poe or O. Henry.  These are actually middle school
 6            reading passages but the task that they have to
 7            complete with the reading passage is typically
 8            higher.  Students are analyzing, they're evaluating,
 9            so they're answering questions on the higher end of
10            knowledge as well as Webb's Cognitive Rigor Matrix.
11            So we would urge that you look at both components,
12            not just the reading level itself but the task which
13            students have to complete associated with that piece
14            of task.
15                 As far as the writing assignments, we have
16            several measures of criteria to show that they are at
17            high school level.  They were created using, of
18            course, the Common Core Standards as a guideline but
19            we also looked at all the questions we ask of our
20            students the part question types in order to prepare
21            them for the upcoming assessment for next year.  We
22            also use Webb's Depth of Knowledge, as well as Hess's
23            Cognitive Rigor Matrix to make sure that we were not
24            asking all lower-end questions but that we were
25            asking our students to answer questions and complete
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 1            writing assignments at those higher levels of Webb's
 2            Depth of Knowledge, as well as the cognitive rigor
 3            matrix.
 4                 As far as the Oral Communications framework not
 5            being updated, we simply updated that to show that we
 6            are currently meeting the framework.  And that
 7            current bit of alignment was submitted to you as
 8            well.
 9                 For Social Studies, again, if you look at our --
10            both of our digital curriculum online in our Learning
11            Management System and our Social Studies resources,
12            we are one-hundred percent compliant with the Common
13            Core State Standards in both literacy and writing for
14            History and Social Studies.  And, again, that
15            document was submitted for you.  And all of our
16            current crosswalk showed this current alignment with
17            those standards.
18                 As far as the depth and rigor issue that was
19            brought up for our Social Studies, I think World
20            History was specifically mentioned.  The current
21            units have been revised to meet that required depth
22            and rigor.  We also have additional plans to develop
23            more units so that we have a more comprehensive World
24            History curriculum and that will be in the 2014-2015
25            school year.  Another good example of our depth and
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 1            rigor is in our Economics and our Government courses.
 2            Both were recently approved as college and career
 3            ready courses for our students.  And, finally, U.S.
 4            History has had significant revisions just in the
 5            digital curriculum.  It doesn't appear in our paper
 6            framework; it's all online since August of 2013.
 7            Again, just examples to show you that our curriculum
 8            is constantly being updated and revised.
 9                 MS. HOCKER:  Hello.  My name is Tami Hocker.
10            I'm the Curriculum Coordinator/Math Specialist for
11            SIATech.  I've been in secondary education for 30
12            years.  I've taught the whole gamut of mathematics
13            from foundational math, algebra I, geometry, algebra
14            II, pre-calculus, trigonometry, and AP calculus.  The
15            year before I joined SIATech my AP calculus pass rate
16            for students was 89%.  So I'm very aware of what
17            students need to be college and career ready for the
18            21st century.
19                 So some of the documents and items that I wanted
20            to share with you that if someone walked into the
21            classroom and they're only looking at paper-based
22            documents, we have, as Lori mentioned, an online
23            program.  We have the ANGEL Learning Management
24            System.  And the courses that we deliver, as well as
25            the additional resources, are housed through our
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 1            ANGEL management system, very similar to Blackboard.
 2            So you have been sent the updated crosswalks to
 3            reflect what's currently in the classroom.  As with
 4            any lesson plan or any good teaching practice, we
 5            look at student data and outcomes and teacher input
 6            and we are constantly making revisions.  So what is
 7            available for these courses we did send to you what's
 8            in the digital and it's fully aligned to the Arkansas
 9            Department of Education Common Core State Standards
10            for those courses.
11                 Up on the screen -- I know it's very small but
12            there's a screen shot of the algebra III.  There are
13            six different units; inside each of those units there
14            are several assignments.  On each of them it does
15            tell which of the Common Core State Standards is
16            addressed, and I'll show you a sample lesson in just
17            a minute.  Additional resources that we have
18            available, we do individual learning plans for
19            students, not just their traditional curriculum.
20            Some of our students need scaffolding, they need
21            review, and some of them need enrichment.  So through
22            the PLATO Learning Management System, in addition to
23            our curriculum, we have everything from foundational
24            math up through calculus.  Up on the screen this is a
25            sample lesson for our algebra III that we did use
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 1            that came from the NROC Developmental Math
 2            Curriculum, which was designed for adult learners to
 3            take any individual that needs basic math up through
 4            college readiness.  And you can see this is a
 5            mathematics modeling with exponential functions; it's
 6            in the first unit of the algebra III.  We also have
 7            additional online resources available to all students
 8            in one click.  We can add anything on there very
 9            quickly.  There are two different graphing
10            calculators; there's PARCC practice tests and
11            resources; algebra EOC specific to Arkansas; there's
12            virtual manipulatives.  But up on the top right-hand
13            corner I would like to draw your attention -- we have
14            a help button where we have credentialed teachers
15            available to our students outside of the classroom
16            and during class hours where we have credentialed
17            math teachers that are highly qualified.  We have
18            auto-cad specialists available, as well as other
19            credentialed teachers.   We have 20-plus different
20            math lessons that students are doing in our
21            curriculum where they apply mathematics through
22            technology.  This is an example of a lesson that a
23            student would complete if they do our geometry
24            curriculum.  They're doing linear measurement,
25            they're doing ANGEL measurement, and they are
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 1            converting it into polar coordinates and then they
 2            are going onto an auto-cad program and recreating the
 3            star that you see there and you can see a sample of
 4            the screen shot.  So those are additional resources
 5            that we use and some examples of things we have in
 6            our curriculum.  Thank you.
 7                 MS. MALLORY:  I'd like to share with you a
 8            little bit about some of our accountability methods
 9            to evaluate -- have students not only --
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Would you go ahead and tell
11            us your name?
12                 MS. MALLORY:  Oh.  Kris Mallory, I'm sorry, from
13            SIATech and I'm the Chief Instructional Officer and I
14            have the privilege of working with the ladies that
15            are sitting here today.  One of the things we do at
16            SIATech is we do -- we use a computer adapted
17            assessment that's nationally normed and we assess the
18            students -- it's not a test, they don't pass or fail;
19            it's an assessment of progress.  And the students
20            take this assessment in math and reading when they
21            first come in and then they're given it again six to
22            ten weeks later and again six to ten weeks later so
23            they can evaluate their growth.  And what I've given
24            you is these little tiny things.  The dots are
25            children and their growth.  And I have the results
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 1            here for reading from the first year we were open and
 2            at the end of the year we have an external evaluation
 3            that looks -- and see did the students actually meet
 4            or exceed growth.  You think of grade level.  If the
 5            student is in 11.1, that would be the first month of
 6            the 11th grade year.  The evaluation is much more
 7            technical and uses a scale score so the kids can
 8            understand that.  We have students come in anywhere
 9            from 2nd grade reading level and math level up to
10            12.9, so we have a wide range of ability.  And it's a
11            little lower in math -- I mean, in reading; they
12            average about 6th grade and up to about 6.9 for math.
13            So on this first screen is reading and it shows only
14            28% of the students were exceeding expected growth.
15            And if you go to the next slide, that's the next
16            year; that's a year ago, and it increased from 28% to
17            44% of the students being proficient.  We go to math,
18            the next slide.  The first year we were open it
19            showed 45% of the students exceeding growth and then
20            a year ago it showed 62%.  So those were gains of 16%
21            and 17% in kids exceeding expected growth.  And if
22            you go to the next slide, you can see the comparison
23            between the two years.  On one -- on the left side is
24            the reading, on the right side is math and that
25            horizontal line shows what is expected.  And you can
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 1            see that on the math the majority of our kids are now
 2            exceeding what's expected and that's because the
 3            teachers learned how to use the reports with the
 4            students so they can engage and use that information
 5            to help them drive their own instruction.  They have
 6            to take control, and we're getting better at it and I
 7            know we're going to continue to get better at it.
 8                 The slide on your paper has an error, that was
 9            my error, but those are the percentages that shift
10            from the first year to the second year, and you can
11            see that the students exceeding expected growth went
12            from 28 to 44 in reading and then in math they went
13            from 45 to 62.  So we're very happy with that and we
14            predict and we know that our growth will continue to
15            move forward in that direction.
16                 MS. GILBERT:  Well, hi.  My name is Beverly
17            Gilbert; I'm the Professional Development Director
18            for SIATech.  I have the privilege of working
19            actually with two teams along with all our members
20            here in Arkansas at your site.  We have a
21            professional development team and we also have a
22            Learning Support Team who work with the content.  I
23            deal specifically with the teachers and so does my
24            team.
25                 Our goal in professional development is to make


Sharon Hill Court Reporting







Page 24


 1            sure that our teachers receive relevant training.  It
 2            is research-based and we really, really incorporate
 3            best practices.  We think it's very important for us
 4            to learn from our own experiences, as well as the
 5            research that's out there by professionals.  Also, we
 6            want to make sure that especially working with our
 7            population that we customize our professional
 8            development for our schools, our type of schools, and
 9            with students.  It's very relevant to our students to
10            be taught by teachers who understand their learning
11            needs and their predicaments in life.
12                 Next, it's very important for us to make sure
13            that we bring research-based knowledge in here.  Some
14            examples of what we teach our teachers and work with
15            our teachers on: transformative learning and also
16            multiple intelligence.  Those two forms the basis of
17            some of the training that we do with our students.
18            We really want to make sure that our students receive
19            transforming opportunities and learn about how they
20            can become people who can go out in the -- use their
21            academics and go out and be very worthy of the
22            workforce.  Also, our multiple intelligence students
23            learn different ways and we want to make sure our
24            teachers understand that.  Getting to Got It!, that
25            is mediated learning.  Mediated learning is where we
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 1            teach our teachers how to mediate the learning, the
 2            needs at the moment.  Whatever they may not
 3            understand, especially we have a lot of learning
 4            needs with our students, we want to make sure our
 5            teachers are able to access and understand those.
 6            Visible learning is something we're very excited
 7            about.  John Heady's recent research on this is very
 8            important but he has learned about doing better
 9            cognitive studies to understand exactly the type of
10            things that are needed in schools.  And so we've
11            ordered that and we teach our teachers about that
12            research.
13                 Next, also we provide training -- what types of
14            trainings do we do?  Before we open a site we do a
15            New Staff Academy.  We meet 45 days with our teachers
16            and our staff.  They learn about curriculum, about
17            pedagogy, about the culture that they're going to be
18            working with and the students specifically.  We also
19            provide monthly ilincs.  Our Learning Support Team
20            that you've already heard from, they provide ilincs
21            which is the digital professional development we
22            provide monthly.  We share every single month Common
23            Core strategies -- and, again, monthly means every
24            week.  So math is one week, ELA is the next week, et
25            cetera.  We also go over best practices and we also
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 1            do updates on content that may have been made during
 2            that time.  Because as you heard, our curriculum is
 3            constantly updated, especially with the Common Core
 4            and especially with the strategies that we need to
 5            implement.  We also do onsite professional
 6            development.  I personally was here and just did a
 7            professional development -- a two-day seminar with
 8            the teachers.  We worked specifically on things that
 9            they had asked for with the needs of their students,
10            also instructional strategies very specific to the
11            Common Core and also classroom environment, which is
12            also necessary.
13                 Finally, next in the Common Core focus you can
14            see that we work with the content standards,
15            specifically college and career standards.  We also
16            do a lot of work in the visible and observable
17            application of the types of strategies needed to
18            implement Common Core.  And the three practices
19            specifically that we have just worked with our
20            teachers on, opening activities to help them do in-
21            depth critical thinking with our students; more
22            opportunities to really have them speaking and
23            listening and learning, which the Common Core really,
24            really emphasizes; and also having our teachers learn
25            how to question more, critical, deep thinking so
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 1            they're not just giving answers in their
 2            facilitation; they're pulling from the students what
 3            they know already.
 4                 And, finally, the trainings that we do -- and
 5            that's it.  Sorry.  Thank you.  Next.
 6                 MS. REYNOLDS:  My name is Debra Reynolds; I'm
 7            Registrar for SIATech Charter High School.  In the
 8            spring 2013, the APSCN program first made me aware
 9            that our original e-school set-up would not allow
10            Triand to pull our grades into -- from e-school into
11            Triand.  And so at the year-end rollover, which was
12            shortly thereafter, I worked with our APSCN rep and
13            we revised our set-up and it was my understanding
14            that we had everything set so our grades would pull
15            correctly as we started this past school year.  But
16            it turned out that our grades did not pull
17            reliability into Triand.  And just over a week ago
18            they opened up another screen for me and our grades
19            are now pulling reliably into Triand, so at this
20            point all of our 2013 to 14 grades for our graduates
21            have pulled reliably into Triand.  All of our current
22            students' grades are pulling correctly into Triand
23            and APSN programming is working to correct our
24            previous two years where our set-up wouldn't allow
25            Triand to pull the grades in.  Thank you.
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 1                 MS. TATUM:  Good morning, Dr. Kimbrell and Board
 2            Members.  I'm Katie Tatum, the principal, and I would
 3            just like to summarize the findings of fact.  As Mr.
 4            Walters stated, the handbook is now updated to
 5            reflect our homework policy.  An appeal for parents
 6            -- I was unable to find a local handbook, so I relied
 7            on an ally who told me -- and that was Andrew Tolbert
 8            who told me what I was -- what you were specifically
 9            looking for with regard to appeal for parents.  So
10            that was updated and everything that deals with the
11            handbook issues were updated.  And as stated by the
12            Learning Support Team, our curriculum is fully
13            aligned at this time.
14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Dawson, anyone else?
15                 DR. DAWSON:  I think that's it.
16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  All right.  Well, we
17            did go over a few minutes but that's okay.  I saw
18            that you were trying to do the best that you could to
19            get all that in.  So, Mr. Lasiter, there was no
20            additional time for either one after that; it was
21            just 20 minutes per side.  Correct?
22                 MR. LASITER:  That's correct.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
24                 MR. LASITER:  It's just discussion and
25            questions.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  I'll turn it over to
 2            the Panel now for discussion and questions.  Please,
 3            if you would, ask specifically who you'd like to
 4            answer the question, if you know who would answer the
 5            question, or direct your question to the Department
 6            of Education, probably Ms. Perry, or to Ms. Dawson
 7            and they can choose who they would like to answer
 8            your particular question.  So we can go around the
 9            table or we can just pop up as we go.  Who's ready?
10            Cody, are you ready?
11                 MR. DECKER:  Yes, sir.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All right, Mr. Decker,
13            Thank you.
14                 MR. DECKER:  I'm not sure who would be most
15            appropriate to answer this, but I'd like more insight
16            -- we've heard, I guess, from the state leadership
17            team or the national leadership team about some of
18            the corrected actions and/or resources available.
19            I'd like to learn more about how this is going to
20            continuously occur and hopefully address the issue of
21            how do we keep this from happening in the future
22            where there's an extended period of time and then
23            there's a visit and then it appears that corrective
24            actions were made.  I'd just like to learn more about
25            that process.
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 1                 MS. BELZMAN:  Are you asking specifically in
 2            terms of the curriculum or all of the issues that
 3            were brought up?
 4                 MR. DECKER:  Well, I think all of the issues,
 5            but specifically with the curriculum and professional
 6            development pieces.
 7                 MS. TATUM:  Can I say one thing?  I just want to
 8            let the board members know when the review team came
 9            my teachers were very afraid and I don't think they
10            provided the team with all of our curriculum docs.
11            And as you can see, I think math was the only team
12            that actually looked through all the models.  I don't
13            think they did for English or Social Studies or
14            Science, so -- and that's why I wanted to make sure
15            the curriculum team provided all the online resources
16            and curriculum alignment that was already in place,
17            and that they can look and tell they updated.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Tatum, did they -- did
19            any of the teams talk to you about curriculum?
20                 MS. TATUM:  Oh, no, sir.
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So none of the --
22                 MS. TATUM:  Only at the end at the exit
23            interview.
24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So did you have those
25            documents and be able to provide the evidence?
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 1                 MS. TATUM:  No.  The teachers did.  So I wasn't
 2            sure what they had provided because I didn't look
 3            through all the documents.  They left with a box.
 4            The English teacher, who's the lead teacher, and the
 5            math teacher -- and I guess both English teachers
 6            came from Social Studies and English.
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
 8                 MS. TATUM:  But I have taken steps to have those
 9            documents in my office in binders, readily
10            accessible.
11                 MS. HOCKER:  I'll address some of the curriculum
12            concerns.  So as you saw in our presentation, a great
13            deal of our curriculum lives in the Learning
14            Management System, which is an online version of the
15            curriculum.  There are some supporting documentation
16            that are paper and pencil.  The PARCC exam that the
17            students are going to be basing is going to be a
18            digital exam.  We're very aware of that.  To be a
19            21st Century learner they need to be able to access
20            things through the computer.  In order for us to
21            deliver the individual learning plans, we need to
22            have the students one-on-one.  Each student has a
23            computer.  When they came onto our campus they did go
24            into the math classroom and spend a little bit of
25            time and they were aware that we did have a digital
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 1            curriculum.  It's my understanding they did not have
 2            a chance to look at very much of that, except over
 3            some of the students' shoulders, so they did get to
 4            see just a small snapshot.  So they did look at some
 5            of the paper documents.  To give you an example, for
 6            one of our modules which has 22 different lessons
 7            that have multiple components to it, there is two
 8            pages of written documents that go with that and
 9            that's just a student's learning plan that the
10            teacher documents and marks when the student shows
11            80% mastery of a certain standard.  So you would not
12            get a very big picture, other than just titles of
13            what some of those lessons are doing.  They would not
14            get to see that things with the auto-cad and Excel
15            and different things that are going on -- wouldn't
16            get to see what Common Core State Standards
17            activities are available for the student, but there
18            is a line that says Common Core State Standards
19            Activity that the teacher signs off on.  So we meet
20            on a regular basis, to give you an example, as a math
21            team.  So we meet on a regular basis the first
22            Wednesday of every month.  The teachers also have my
23            cell phone; they're able to call me at any time.
24            They call me in the evening; they call me during
25            class if they have a question.  I also do individual


Sharon Hill Court Reporting







Page 33


 1            ilincs with those teachers.  We have the ability for
 2            me to see their screen, them to see my screen, and
 3            with the Arkansas teacher, which is Ms. McIntire, I
 4            have done that on several occasions and we went
 5            through that.  We've done some individual things on
 6            learning auto-cad because I think there aren't very
 7            many teachers that could walk in and be able to teach
 8            not only all the gamut of the mathematics, but also
 9            auto-cad.  And we have tutorials for the staff that
10            are available for them to learn that on their own
11            time, in addition to what's available to the
12            students.  So we have a variety of resources.  We are
13            as-needed; we're on-call 24/7.  We have our science
14            specialist here who you have not heard from.  She has
15            been working with the science teacher here in
16            Arkansas on an ongoing basis too.  We -- they know
17            our home numbers, they know us, and we're available
18            24/7.  So -- and I'll let Lori pick up from there on
19            the additional things that maybe I didn't address.
20            The one thing that you did notice, we also have the
21            virtual teachers that are available to students
22            during school hours as well as after hours.  So
23            whatever it takes we are -- we're professionals that
24            have been in the curriculum for a long time.  I've
25            already told you my background.  We know what it
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 1            takes to be successful and we know when our students
 2            are coming in they are behind in credits or they're
 3            former dropouts and the system was not working with
 4            them for whatever reason.  And it doesn't always get
 5            fixed with the first thing we try, so we are working
 6            with this.  I've been with the organization now for
 7            nine years and so I'm still learning.  I learn with
 8            every site that I come to and every teacher I work
 9            with and every student that I go in and work with.
10            And it's an ongoing thing.  But we are trying our
11            best to meet their needs.
12                 MS. BELZMAN:  We have two additional issues.
13            One is that because we house our curriculum in our
14            Learning Management System that allows us to pretty
15            much instantaneously update or make any revisions
16            right there on the spot.  We can add things, we can
17            change things, we can revise things as needed in our
18            Learning Management System, and we often do that,
19            whether it be lesson plans or additional resources,
20            additional standards that we want to address.  It
21            allows instantaneous access.
22                 The second thing is that I know many of the
23            documents that were primarily taken on the site visit
24            were outdated documents.  All of our current
25            documents are also housed in our Learning Management
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 1            System so at any time we can pull up any of the
 2            current curriculum alignments.  In our Learning
 3            Management System we can print them off and have
 4            instant access to that.  I think Tami covered
 5            everything else.
 6                 MS. GILBERT:  And I'd like just to say as far as
 7            professional development, we want to be able to
 8            respond that the problems are here and we recognize
 9            what they are and hear what they.  And one thing that
10            we'll make sure to do as a department and working
11            with the Learning Support Team is make sure that the
12            teachers understand what they need to do.  Updated
13            documents right at their fingertips, making sure they
14            have the most recent and that they understand the
15            most recent information curriculum that they're
16            delivering for the teachers -- to the students.  And
17            we also know how important it is, not only the
18            curriculum itself that it's aligned to the Common
19            Core but they under -- that the teachers understand
20            how to teach with Common Core strategies, having the
21            students think deeply, do questioning and thinking
22            and listening in a whole different way, going across
23            the nation, of course.  So we intend to make sure
24            that's happening and to make sure our teachers are
25            prepared.  It will happen in the ilincs, as they said
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 1            -- the monthly ilincs, which are actually weekly with
 2            the different content but also through my programs
 3            when I go out and speak with the teachers and provide
 4            professional development.  I can make sure that they
 5            understand and that they have these things at their
 6            fingertips and they understand that as well.  Thank
 7            you.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Decker, does that answer
 9            your question?
10                 MR. DECKER:  I was going to follow-up but I'll
11            save it for later.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Be sure you use your
13            microphone, Cody.
14                 MR. DECKER:  Yes, sir.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez?
16                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  This is maybe to -- maybe it
17            will help with your follow-up question, Mr. Decker.
18            But I guess from my understanding we had this on-site
19            review.  When questions were asked maybe not very
20            clear and understandable answers were given and
21            materials presented in being able to show what needed
22            to be there.  So we have this hearing and we have a
23            group that came in -- and I assume this is a national
24            organization group that are speaking here -- that
25            come in and give us all the bells and whistles.  And
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 1            I think for Mr. Decker's point is how is there --
 2            there's this great curriculum and resources that are
 3            available but as far as how that's being implemented
 4            at the local level -- you know -- how can we insure
 5            that we're getting quality instruction?  And what
 6            gives me a little bit of concern is that, you know,
 7            looking at last year's literacy scores, you know, we
 8            had -- you know -- last year there was about three-
 9            and-a-half percent kids that were proficient on our
10            end-of-course testing.  And then over a three-year
11            average there's roughly a little over one percent.
12            And so how that -- you know -- it's great that all
13            these things are available and there and, you know,
14            come and answer these questions and show us all the
15            stuff.  But how are we insuring that on a local level
16            that there is, you know, continuous improvement and
17            growth and those things are being implemented?  And
18            so if somebody -- one of those people can -- whether
19            that would be Ms. Tatum or Ms. Dawson or whoever can
20            kind of answer that?
21                 MS. TATUM:  Speaking for the national charter
22            office from California that came, Mr. Hernandez, when
23            we were made aware of the issues I asked for help
24            locally.  So APSRC was working closely with them to
25            identify some concerns and those are -- and some of
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 1            the concerns were with testing because our ESA report
 2            was not corrected.  Well, math, I'm going to just be
 3            honest, I didn't know what the numbers were saying,
 4            so I asked Dr. Cox and Ms. Campbell for help.  They
 5            provided a report that showed where we tested more --
 6            they came on-site and did a desk audit.  And so we
 7            tested four more students than the report reflected.
 8            And I have a -- you said we were only 1% on growth in
 9            -- was it algebra?  I didn't hear you.
10                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  In literacy.
11                 MS. TATUM:  Literacy.  Mr. Smith was talking to
12            me.  But I'd like to share this with the board, if
13            you don't mind, and go through our testing data.  If
14            we could start at the top with algebra, you can see
15            our school average -- our first two years in
16            existence we were on the Little Rock Job Corp campus,
17            so we were just given free office space and
18            classrooms in hope to have these students get a high
19            school diploma.  We were not involved with
20            scheduling.  They were on an A/B schedule, so we
21            didn't have a chance to -- we went through EOC boot
22            camp test prep in preparation for the test and there
23            we could -- this past year we were able to implement
24            that and our test scores looked significantly better.
25            But in literacy it's basically kind of remained the
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 1            same but you can look at our school average; it was
 2            up in '12, went down in '13, but then back up again
 3            in March '14.  And also in literacy we had a student,
 4            you know, score advanced.  Biology, we had a couple
 5            of proficient, and I know biology is tough across the
 6            state.  And algebra and geometry this year we've had
 7            students scoring proficient.  So if you can look at
 8            the numbers students tested and look at the school
 9            average that can kind of give some insight on
10            assessment.  And I did make a copy of this that I
11            gave each board member.  But when students enroll
12            with us a lot of our students have already tested.
13            So we keep this tracking document and it's ongoing
14            and it shows students' names -- you know -- the ones
15            who tested are highlighted in all yellow so we don't
16            have to worry about testing them.  We pull that off
17            Triand transcript information.  But if it's not on
18            there then we, you know, we test once they're
19            enrolled in classes.  So that's another reason why it
20            looks like we're not testing all the students, which
21            we're not because most have tested, but we're just
22            filling in the gaps with assessments.  Some schools
23            have tested them because they were probably enrolled
24            a semester, so they had the test but then dropped
25            out.  So they come to us and they're needing a
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 1            semester credit or they may have failed, you know.
 2                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  I don't know if there's somebody
 3            from the national group that was going to kind of
 4            maybe answer about the checking in on the local
 5            group?
 6                 MS. MALLORY:  I just want to share that one of
 7            the reasons we use the other assessment is because we
 8            have new kids enrolled.  I said to Ms. Tatum, "Is it
 9            fair to say that we have new kids enrolled every
10            week?"  And she said, "Every day."  So a lot of the
11            kids that take these once-a-year tests, time and
12            place, it's only offered at this time on this date,
13            it doesn't really present a good picture of what is
14            happening in the school when you have a constant
15            change in enrollment.  So, but the students that take
16            the assessment maybe haven't been there since the
17            fall or even the previous three months ago.
18                 MS. DAYTON:  Good morning, Ladies and Gentlemen.
19            My name is Marti Dayton.  I'm the Science Specialist,
20            and I want to address your question with respect to
21            what are we doing at the national level and try to
22            support our teachers and make sure they're
23            implementing critical thinking skills.  As was
24            mentioned, we have monthly ilincs and it goes math,
25            English, science, social studies, and then the
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 1            elective courses.  So like, for instance, in science,
 2            they meet every month and I know they do this at each
 3            of the ilincs.  The teachers are supposed to come
 4            with a best practice, something that they've
 5            implemented to try and show the integration of Common
 6            Core or the Next Generation science standards for
 7            their specific state standards.  They come, they talk
 8            about -- they have a choice; they can either talk
 9            about something that they actual tried or something
10            that they're going to try.  And then what is really
11            awesome about that is as a team we talk about it.
12            They talk about the weaknesses, what went wrong, what
13            could've been done better, if they've already tried
14            it.  If they haven't tried it yet, we talk as a team,
15            "Okay, you want to make sure" -- you know -- "What
16            are the takeaways?  What is it that you want the
17            students to master?  How are they going to
18            demonstrate mastery?"  So as a team we give them the
19            guidance that they need and so-forth, and the
20            teachers come back and give us feedback on how those
21            lessons went.  And that's one of the main reasons for
22            the ilincs.  Does that answer that question?
23                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.
24                 MS. DAYTON:  Thank you.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  On this document that was
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 1            handed out, if you don't mind -- and, Mr. Hoy, this
 2            may be a question for you -- if these students are
 3            highly mobile, then they don't count towards your
 4            percentage proficient anyway?
 5                 MR. HOY:  Dr. Kimbrell, on this document I have
 6            to assume that this is not the benchmark assessment
 7            and, therefore, highly mobile would not be a part of
 8            it.  This is --
 9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So this isn't -- what
10            assessment is this?
11                 MS. TATUM:  This is end-of-course assessment.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  These are end-of-course?
13                 MS. TATUM:  Yes.
14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
15                 MS. TATUM:  Yeah.  But it's highly mobile; it's
16            just a school average.  You know, that doesn't count
17            against us but we include them in the school average.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So this is your
19            school average.  But when we look at the actual
20            report of the number of students who are proficient I
21            think is what --
22                 MS. TATUM:  Oh, yes.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- is part of --
24                 MS. TATUM:  Yes.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- part of the concern, I
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 1            think, brought -- when we look at report cards.
 2                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  You know, the EOC report
 4            cards and the AMO statuses, when we look at those the
 5            number of students who are actually showing growth
 6            and proficiency help generate these curiosities that
 7            we have about success.
 8                 MS. TATUM:  Oh, yes, sir.
 9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Okay.  Who -- where
10            did we get to?  Then we'll skip and let Ms. -- Dr.
11            Walters catch up.  Mr. Hoy.
12                 MR. HOY:  Then I do have a question.  And I'm
13            not certain who this question would be directed to
14            but it would be something to help clear up my initial
15            confusion on SIATech.  Being in Accountability, one
16            of the things that I noticed was that over the past
17            couple of years the percent of students proficient or
18            advanced on SIATech has been very, very low and that
19            caused me to have some concerns.  But I also had some
20            concerns in terms of my initial assessment of the low
21            scores because it is an alternative school.  And I
22            know that that can be an issue because the population
23            is concentrated.  So I was seeking some answers --
24            and I know that the National Charter School
25            Authorizers put out this document called Anecdotes
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 1            Are Not Enough.  I don't know if you've seen this,
 2            but specifically in the document it mentioned SIATech
 3            in terms of what they have put in place to measure
 4            growth.  And in looking at it what I notice is that
 5            they said that all SIATech schools would do an annual
 6            summary that would be provided to each respective
 7            charter authorizer.  Now I don't know how long ago it
 8            was but sometime ago I asked Ms. Perry to see if she
 9            could collect that for me 'cause I wanted to see if
10            that would be helpful for us.  Now I know this is
11            long but there is eventually a question.  The thing
12            is I'm assuming that based on that, when I went back
13            to actually read the approved charter authorization,
14            you guys never did set a goal -- benchmark exams,
15            anyway.  You set I believe your Renaissance Learn.
16            The specific wording is, "For this reason,
17            assessments are not available throughout the year and
18            are not included in the school's performance-based
19            measurable goals.  Instead, SIATech has chosen to
20            focus on distance, travel, point-in-time assessments
21            results."  So you are using this growth model from
22            Renaissance Learn, I believe, and I suspect that
23            that's what your data summary is but I have not seen
24            it to this point.  If you guys have it, I would love
25            to see it.  The thing is, there's still a concern --
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 1            and here's the concern, and I would like for some of
 2            you to address it: even if at some point when we
 3            authorize this charter we allowed you to not have the
 4            benchmark results and end-of-course results as a goal
 5            in your charter, it is what the state of Arkansas
 6            uses to measure how effective schools are in terms of
 7            educating children.  And if you're showing 65%
 8            proficient which was your target for year-two -- and
 9            you're pretty close at 60% and 62% in reading and
10            match -- I didn't see your writing percentage.  But
11            if you're showing that, and we're showing proficiency
12            rates around 2%, 3%, 4%, 5%, there seems to be a
13            disconnect between what's in your curriculum that you
14            measure and what's in the state's curriculum.  So the
15            question is: is there that disconnect between
16            curriculum?  And that's specifically one of the
17            things that Standards Assurance Unit seemed to have
18            found when they visited.  Now I know you're saying,
19            "Well, they gave us [sic] the old documents and not
20            the online version; we gave them that."  But even if
21            you consider -- you take out the whole what written
22            documents were handed out, not the written curriculum
23            but the taught and learned curriculum, there still
24            seems to be a significant gap between your 65% and
25            the State's less than 10% proficiency in literacy and
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 1            math.  So I was wondering if you could address that?
 2                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, there are definitely some
 3            discrepancies there.  And what we know and what we've
 4            learned over the last 15 years is that establishing a
 5            new school, especially for this population, it takes
 6            three years to start seeing growth, in the best of
 7            situations.  And I by no means want this to sound as
 8            if -- as an excuse, because it's not.  It's not meant
 9            that way.  But we had a significant change; in year-
10            two we moved from the Job Corp Center to a location
11            off of the Job Corp Center.  It creates tremendous
12            disruptions.  The other thing that we found is that
13            one of the things that we hoped to do over the term
14            of the charter is to stabilize the teaching staff a
15            lot quicker than we have been able to.  Teaching in
16            this environment with this population is not easy and
17            it doesn't portend some of these highly qualified
18            that they're going to be able to teach in this
19            environment.  There are so many more factors that
20            have to be addressed, in addition -- not instead of,
21            but in addition to the academic standards and that
22            has to do with the re-engagement of students who have
23            previously dropped out of school.  It's important for
24            us to do things simultaneously.  It's not like one,
25            then the other.  So we have to re-engage students,
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 1            show them that there's a way to get to where they
 2            need to be; at the same time to bring their academic
 3            abilities up.  That's why we concentrate on a growth
 4            toward standard -- a growth to standard, and we see
 5            improvements.  Are the improvements that we've seen
 6            and we've alluded to fast enough?  Are we satisfied?
 7            Absolutely not.  Absolutely not.  But we believe
 8            we've done our stabilization.  We're off of the
 9            center.  We're working on making sure that our
10            teachers are engaged, that we can stabilize our
11            teaching staff.  We have teachers that are
12            comfortable in working with our population, that are
13            happy working with our population in addition to
14            being competent and caring teachers.  So we're
15            working on that.  But we believe the growth towards
16            standard will increase exponentially as we move
17            forward.  We are committed from the national office,
18            whatever it takes.  If we have a turnover in teachers
19            and we don't have a math teacher, we will put a math
20            teacher from our national office here until we can
21            get the appropriate teacher that's helpful for
22            Arkansas, and we are committed to doing that.  But we
23            believe that this school and what we're doing has
24            tremendous potential here to help change kids' lives,
25            not just their lives but their families' lives as
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 1            well, and we are committed to doing that.
 2                 MR. HOY:  Follow-up?
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yes.  But I would caution
 4            the Panel to remember we're really concerned about
 5            their curriculum and their transcripts.  Those are
 6            the reasons -- that's why we're here.
 7                 MR. HOY:  Right.  And this is akin to curriculum
 8            in terms of we assess the curriculum with our
 9            benchmark exams.  So I guess a couple of questions,
10            and this may be a question for the Panel.  In terms
11            of their charter they don't seem to have benchmark
12            results as a target of their curriculum assessment,
13            and I suspect that at some point we were comfortable
14            with that.  So the question is: are we still
15            comfortable with that?  And I guess the question for
16            the charter is if they reach a hundred-percent
17            proficiency on their assessment, but there is no
18            similar growth in terms of the Arkansas benchmark or
19            the PARCC assessments is that going to be
20            satisfactory with the charter?
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Before someone tries to
22            answer that from them, again, I think the concern
23            that we have here is: their charter doesn't call for
24            any kind of expectation on that.  That may be
25            something in their renewal we'll have to look at, but
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 1            at some point the State Board approved their charter
 2            because it was the authorizer at that time and they
 3            were comfortable.  And the internal group -- and I
 4            don't remember specifics -- either recommended
 5            approval or not; I can't remember how specific it
 6            was.  But that issue is not before us today.
 7                 MS. TATUM:  Dr. Kimbrell, may I ask Dr. Cox to
 8            address -- sorry.  May I ask Dr. Cox to address the
 9            Panel?
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  If you so choose.
11                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.
12                 DR. COX:  And I was not sworn in.
13                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Well, if you'll raise your
14            right hand I'll swear you in.  Do you swear to -- or
15            affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing
16            but the truth?
17                 DR. COX:  I do.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
19                 DR. COX:  Thank you.  Barbara Hunter Cox,
20            Director of Teaching and Learning at the Arkansas
21            Public School Resource Center.  I think that the
22            essence of Dr. Hoy's initial question about the
23            accountability, and in particular the national report
24            that he referred to, currently in our state we just
25            had 32 schools put on an academic distress list.  And
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 1            when you examine the schools on that list I think
 2            many of the findings in the national report could be
 3            highlighted by doing an analysis of those schools.
 4            There are a large number of high schools; there were
 5            also a large number of schools that are doing
 6            alternative learning or dropout prevention.  And so
 7            as we were pulled in to give some assistance to
 8            SIATech and we looked at their assessment across the
 9            board, we looked at their assessment and how they
10            were performing on state assessment.  We looked at
11            their alignment to Common Core.  I think that
12            SIATech, like many high schools in our state, are
13            assessing on end-of-course when they're trying to
14            prepare for PARCC.  And this has been a concern not
15            just at high schools, but schools that are heavily
16            trying to transition aren't doing as well on the
17            benchmark and I think that's a fact that we need to
18            put on the table.  I also saw in my assessment of
19            what was going on the level of entry of the students
20            at SIATech and how that growth to a standard was
21            something that they were focusing on.  On the
22            academic distress list, which you can pull up, you'll
23            notice that some of the recovery schools, the
24            alternative schools, their percent of proficient was
25            as low as less than 3%.  Again, those are unique


Sharon Hill Court Reporting







Page 51


 1            settings where students come with significant delays.
 2            I think that there should be some discussion about
 3            how the assessment and accountability program takes
 4            into consideration maybe these individual concerns
 5            that you've expressed on behalf of SIATech.
 6                 The other thing I would like to say is that when
 7            we went in and reviewed with the desk audit what we
 8            found was that SIATech wasn't aware of the process to
 9            get the extra assistance that they needed.  And we do
10            want to compliment Dr. Barnes, Christopher Barnes,
11            who helped us figure out what was happening and why
12            APSCN was not even pulling the correct testing list.
13            And so there have been some anomalies within the
14            system that, you know, different people with ADE have
15            assisted in SIATech handling.  But they're a unique
16            environment.  They're a unique environment because of
17            the students they serve, because of their mission,
18            and because they're attempting to meet all of the
19            requirements and expectations.
20                 And the last thing I would like to say is I
21            think they have a dedication to this particular
22            student population.  And I think their commitment is
23            backed up with a lot of resources.  Some of those
24            resources don't mesh totally with our accountability
25            or our data systems.  So in my mind much of the
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 1            problems have been communication issues between
 2            what's happening within the system and how their
 3            reports are pulled.  I appreciate this time.  Thank
 4            you.
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Coffman?
 6                 MS. COFFMAN:  My question is for the ADE staff.
 7            Do you believe -- and, Mary, you can direct to the
 8            appropriate person -- after review of the documents
 9            that have been submitted, does the ADE curriculum
10            instruction staff believe now that the curriculum
11            issues have been resolved?
12                 MS. PERRY:  I'm not sure that the curriculum
13            staff has had the time to go through every issue
14            there.  You do have Anthony Owen here; he can speak
15            to some of the curriculum pieces.  But I'm not sure
16            he looked at every one of those documents.  I think
17            we were focused on what was going on at the time of
18            the visit.  Would you like Anthony to --
19                 MS. COFFMAN:  Yes.
20                 MR. OWEN:  Commissioner Kimbrell, Panel -- Ms.
21            Coffman, regarding your question Ms. Perry is
22            correct.  I did not receive those documents until
23            late yesterday afternoon.  I have looked through the
24            math documents on a cursory basis.  Whenever we went
25            in -- I want to, if I may, give the Panel some
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 1            information of exactly how I reviewed the curriculum
 2            whenever I went in to SIATech.  I reviewed with the
 3            same protocol with which we approach any course that
 4            is submitted to Curriculum Instruction for review of
 5            a tested subject, which means that we don't look
 6            necessarily at what the in-class instruction is; we
 7            can't, obviously.  We look at what the school has
 8            assured us that they are teaching on paper.  We look
 9            at the standards that they have aligned to the
10            courses and how those standards match up to what our
11            standards are.  I did take a chance -- I did actually
12            go beyond what we typically do by looking at the
13            online computer system and simply seeing was what
14            they had on paper aligned to a couple of the random
15            modules that the teacher in the classroom chose to
16            demonstrate for me.  And I found that they were.
17            What they said on paper was what was -- was what I
18            encountered on the online system.  At no time -- I do
19            want to say, at no time did I say that I do not like
20            electronically-based instructional materials.  I
21            think that they have their place and I think they're
22            wonderful materials.  I simply stated that day that I
23            have to evaluate based on paper.  So the teacher who
24            was in the classroom -- the math teacher who was in
25            the classroom at that point pulled up our system, the
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 1            curriculum that was in her electronic ANGEL system at
 2            that point, and printed out a listing of the high
 3            school CCSS mathematics frameworks and which modules
 4            that their ANGEL system had aligned to it.  I took
 5            that printout that she had, compared it to our
 6            algebra I, geometry and algebra II documents and came
 7            up with the percentages of those alignments which
 8            were what was submitted through Mr. Walters' report
 9            or within Mr. Walters' report.  At no time was my
10            percentages indicative of the quality of
11            instructional materials, because that is not our job
12            within Curriculum Instruction to evaluate
13            instructional materials.  Regarding the curriculum
14            that was amended and submitted within this report, I
15            have not had a chance to verify that the document
16            contained all of the standards within each of those
17            courses, that none were removed.  However, as a
18            cursory glance through it they do have a module
19            aligned to every standard that is within that
20            document.  So if they have every standard that we
21            require within those documents, if those are true
22            documents or true representations of our documents,
23            then I would assign a hundred-percent alignment at
24            this point.
25                 MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you.
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 1                 MR. OWEN:  Regarding social studies and science
 2            -- social studies and ELA, I have no idea.
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Decker?
 4                 MR. DECKER:  Thank you, Dr. Kimbrell.  I have a
 5            question concerning the transcripts.  I looked up on
 6            the ADE data center and noticed there are 44 12th
 7            graders enrolled.  And simple question is: have the
 8            transcripts, the electronic transcripts been reviewed
 9            for each of these?  And are they now correct?
10                 MS. REYNOLDS:  Is your question 44 currently
11            enrolled or 44 graduates?  I'm sorry, I didn't hear.
12                 MR. DECKER:  I noticed there are 44 12th graders
13            as of October 1.
14                 MS. REYNOLDS:  Okay.  Of those 12th graders who
15            have graduated their credits are absolutely correct
16            in Triand for the 13-14 year.  If those students are
17            currently enrolled with us -- I only got this system
18            corrected on May 5th and I focused on getting all of
19            our graduates corrected.  So our current students, I
20            am still going back and double-checking to be sure
21            those credits are in there.  The system is now in
22            place that they will be in there correctly, but I
23            have to manually enter those grades.
24                 MR. DECKER:  Thank you.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez?
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 1                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  No.
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Dr. Walters?
 3                 DR. WALTERS:  Thank you, Dr. Kimbrell.  I want
 4            to apologize to the SIATech group.  I had to go to
 5            another meeting, so I apologize for having to leave
 6            for a moment.  I have a question for Ms. Tatum.  And
 7            I understand the reasons that we're here today.  I
 8            have a related issue to what I believe may be related
 9            to the curriculum issue in math.  And I did speak
10            with Ms. Tatum about this on the phone and some
11            documentation that my office has just received in the
12            last couple of weeks, and that involves highly
13            qualified.  As we spoke, Ms. Tatum, you know, you
14            have a waiver for licensure, however, teachers are to
15            be highly qualified.  And my understanding is that
16            your only secondary math teacher that's been employed
17            with you since November has not taken the Praxis
18            exam.  They cannot meet highly qualified status if
19            they have not attempted the exam.  I'm not talking
20            about passed; they have not even attempted to take
21            the Praxis exam; they had an elementary degree.  In
22            looking at their transcript they've had college
23            algebra as their only math course in college.  Am I
24            correct in that?
25                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.
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 1                 DR. WALTERS:  I guess from what Dr. Dawson --
 2            I'm sorry, is that correct, the superintendent's
 3            name?
 4                 MS. TATUM:  Correct.
 5                 DR. WALTERS:  From she said earlier, she had
 6            said that if you were having trouble getting a math
 7            teacher that they would send one from the national
 8            office.  So I guess my question is: why did that not
 9            happen?
10                 MS. TATUM:  To be honest -- let me go back, Dr.
11            Walters, to -- I know math is a critical shortage
12            area for Arkansas, and the teacher that we had in
13            place was a retired school teacher who taught math 33
14            years, Ms. Floyd.  She let me know in January she's
15            going to finish out the semester to go ahead and
16            start trying to actively recruit a math teacher.  So
17            I spoke with some people at Henderson State, where I
18            graduated.  I have emails from Dr. Fetterly who gave
19            me the name of Dawn Jackson who wanted the job and
20            start in the fall.  So January 14th she emailed me,
21            "I want to come interview, I want the job."  You
22            know, I have copies if the board would like to see.
23            And so as I was setting up the interview, January
24            24th she emailed back and turned down the job for
25            some personal reasons.  So from that time, from
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 1            January on, we'd advertised.  Now with regards to a
 2            math specialist coming from California, because they
 3            come when we open, we had teacher shortages.  Once we
 4            realized that a teacher only had to be highly
 5            qualified -- like I explained to you on the phone, if
 6            you don't ask the right questions you don't really
 7            get the right answers.  And I should have listed the
 8            current math teacher as a sub since we have HQ
 9            teachers virtually online all day that she referred
10            to.  And so I just filled out a form to let her take
11            the Praxis in the spring.  And I stated she would
12            take it in February but like I said, she had an
13            immediate death.  And, you know, I don't have an
14            excuse for her not even attempting to take it.  I do
15            know she was trying to study, brush up on calculus
16            and trigonometry, and she was set to take it.  But
17            she was made well aware that her contract would not
18            be renewed if she had not attempted to take the test
19            and pass.  I should've asked Dr. Dawson or Ms.
20            Mallory to send a teacher from one of our other
21            schools.  And I try not to do that because it causes
22            the school that the teacher has left problems with a
23            teacher missing.  But the teacher that I hired, I
24            hired her because she had demonstrated proficiency in
25            secondary math.  Like I stated, I worked with her two
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 1            years at the Little Rock Job Corp Center.  She had
 2            the highest score with the population that we're
 3            dealing with.  And she was on Camp Robinson at -- it
 4            was like a boot camp for kids that get in trouble and
 5            they go and graduate, and she had the highest scores
 6            there, after speaking to some of the instructors
 7            there.  And so I felt that with Ms. Hocker's help,
 8            and the virtual team, that if she had any issues she
 9            had immediate assistance.  If I had known I could've
10            listed her as a long-term sub for math, that's what I
11            would've done.  But she did register to take the test
12            on June 16th, which is not helpful now, and I'm
13            hoping she passes it by June 30th or she doesn't get
14            renewed.  Oh, yeah -- and the math position is posted
15            once again with hopes of getting somebody.  I
16            contacted Marie Harness [ps] to get -- you know --
17            even last year to try to get a list of teachers who
18            were going through the Pathwise program to see if we
19            had any close math applicants.  There are some down
20            in the Arkadelphia area that was at Dawson but, you
21            know, nobody wants to commute that far, you know, to
22            teach.  And I had a couple of people walk through the
23            school and then once I explain our population -- and
24            matter of fact, our population the day of the team's
25            visit I was at 10th District juvenile court with
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 1            Judge Warren because she had sent about seven people
 2            to our school from her court, so I had to sit in on
 3            court hearings and I was a few minutes late -- and I
 4            apologize to Mr. Walters and the team.  I wasn't at
 5            Starbucks; I was actually at the court, you know,
 6            dealing with our juveniles.  But even when teachers
 7            come in just to walk through the school and, you
 8            know, they see kids -- you know -- they have on ankle
 9            monitors, you know, that's kind of scary for them,
10            you know, especially a brand-new teacher.  When I
11            took this job I was at Warren with Mr. Tolbert for
12            seven years as assistant principal and when I looked
13            at the model and I looked at the waivers then I told
14            Mr. Tolbert, I said, "I'm not going to take that job
15            because it's so hard," as in the population, but we
16            are just a large ALE.  Having metal detectors set up,
17            armed guards and all with the population is not easy.
18            But that's the story on the math teacher.
19                 DR. WALTERS:  And I understand, as we said --
20            when we talked on the phone.
21                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.
22                 DR. WALTERS:  I know in November it would be
23            very difficult to find, you know, a highly qualified
24            math teacher in November.
25                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.
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 1                 DR. WALTERS:  But I guess my concern is once you
 2            hired her and you didn't hire her as a long-term sub
 3            -- you know -- you could've hire her as a long-term
 4            sub, and said, "Okay, we've got to know that you know
 5            math if you're going to be teaching math to our
 6            students."  And as you've said, you have a very
 7            unique population; they need different instruction;
 8            they don't all have the same needs.  And so I guess
 9            my concern is that this is an elementary person
10            coming in that probably didn't know the math
11            curriculum.  That may be some of the issues why we've
12            seen what we've seen.  But also, you know, to say to
13            her, "If you want to be hired long-term, you're going
14            to have to -- you're going to have to, you know, sign
15            up.  And if you don't have it passed by the end of
16            January, then we're going to have to let you go," and
17            to continue to look for someone.  Like I said, you
18            have a waiver from license so you're not having to
19            worry about the license.
20                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.
21                 DR. WALTERS:  But it's someone that you know --
22            'cause you really at this point have no idea that she
23            really knows the math content.  She's your only math
24            teacher.
25                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Dr. Walters, let me --
 2                 MS. TATUM:  But the --
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- let me get us back on
 4            track.  Again, we're here because of curriculum
 5            alignment and we're here for the issue of
 6            transcripts.  So let's keep our questions focused on
 7            those areas.
 8                 DR. WALTERS:  I understand.
 9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
10                 DR. WALTERS:  I just think that the teacher goes
11            back to the alignment, so --
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I understand.  Thank you,
13            ma'am.  Okay.
14                 MS. TATUM:  And, Doctor [sic], can I say one
15            thing -- Mr. Kimbrell -- Dr. Kimbrell?
16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  If you want to, but --
17                 MS. TATUM:  To Dr. Walters, what she --
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Sure.
19                 MS. TATUM:  With teaching, she's teaching a
20            small group; the model is different.  But Ms. Hocker
21            trained her when she was first hired and the training
22            that she provided let her know that she knew, you
23            know, all of her math, except --
24                 MS. HOCKER:  She's very strong in mathematics
25            through algebra II, no questions asked, and she's
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 1            transitioning into that trigonometry/calculus,
 2            there's no doubt.  And that's something that I have
 3            offered to work with her for her to practice for the
 4            test because she has not taught that level and she
 5            would not be ready to teach that.  We don't have
 6            students that are at the pre-calculus/calculus level
 7            at this time that she's instructing.  The math
 8            teacher that is on the virtual link is very capable
 9            of assisting those students on an individual basis,
10            as well as myself.  And I have actually -- I've
11            worked with a few students in situations where we
12            needed to.  So it's an ongoing situation.  We have
13            four individuals in this room today that are highly
14            qualified math teachers.  I am more than willing to
15            get my credentials in Arkansas and come here and help
16            support until we get a fully credentialed teacher, if
17            needed.  And my coworkers, if you'll stand up if
18            you're fully qualified in mathematics?  And we will
19            make that happen if Ms. McIntire does not pass that
20            exam.  Those students need that and I would agree
21            with you.
22                 MS. TATUM:  But she only had two years of
23            teaching in elementary and she's been in secondary
24            education since.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  She was at the Youth
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 1            Challenge is what you're saying?
 2                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.  Yeah, and it's the same
 3            group of kids we're dealing with.
 4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yeah.  It's the same
 5            students.  You're right.
 6                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.
 7                 MS. PIANKO:  Hi, I'm Laurie Pianka, Director of
 8            Education.  I just wanted to add that Ms. McIntire's
 9            contract, when she was hired, stated that she must
10            make progress toward proficiency and licensure with
11            the State of Arkansas.  So was aware of that from
12            day-one.  And we have notified her as well, so --
13            with the ongoing progress that it is our expectation
14            that before the end of the school year that she will
15            pass the Praxis exam.  And if she doesn't, her
16            contract will not be renewed.  But I would like to
17            say or point out that our math scores under Ms.
18            McIntire have improved this year.  She instituted a
19            boot camp for the students to prepare them for the
20            end-of-course exams and she has a dynamic way of
21            managing her classroom, builds professional, caring
22            relationships with students, and has made a huge
23            difference in our program in regards to how our
24            classroom environment is in math.  So we commend her
25            for that, while we still have the expectation that
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 1            she will make progress and be highly qualified by the
 2            end of the school year.  Thank you.
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Mr. Hoy?
 4                 MR. HOY:  My question is for ADE staff; I
 5            believe Mr. Johnie Walters would be the appropriate
 6            person to answer this.  Mr. Walters, on your onsite
 7            review your findings on SIATech, did you -- those
 8            findings, are they probationary findings or are they
 9            cited findings?
10                 MR. WALTERS:  Probationary.
11                 MR. HOY:  And what are the next steps on
12            probationary findings if they hold true for SIATech?
13                 MR. WALTERS:  SIATech received an annual
14            accreditation report, annual final accreditation
15            report.  We mailed those out last week, in April.  I
16            don't know exactly what date they received theirs but
17            they were all sent out certified mail.  At that time
18            on their annual accreditation report it noted that
19            they were placed on probationary status for
20            curriculum, as well as transcript irregularities.
21            And at that time -- when a school district is placed
22            on probation we send them forms as to how to appeal
23            if they are in disagreement with their recommended
24            status.  We recommend the status to the State Board
25            of Education and the State Board of Education will
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 1            hear our recommendations at the June board meeting,
 2            and that's when we recommend all final end-of-the-
 3            year accreditation statuses for all schools in the
 4            state of Arkansas to the State Board for
 5            certification.  And if the State Board certifies that
 6            recommendation, then they would be placed on
 7            probationary status for the 2013-14 school year.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Do you have a follow-up?
 9                 MR. HOY:  I do have a follow-up.  Did SIATech
10            file an appeal?
11                 MR. WALTERS:  They have not.  As to this date I
12            have not received one.
13                 MS. TATUM:  We never received the form.
14                 MR. BERRY:  This is Mitch Berry, attorney for
15            SIATech.  The deadline for filing an appeal has not
16            yet expired.
17                 MR. WALTERS:  It's not till the 15th of May,
18            tomorrow.  Tomorrow is the deadline.
19                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Right.  I did hear in the
20            audience someone say they -- Ms. Dawson, have you
21            received that letter?
22                 DR. DAWSON:  We received the letter but there
23            were no forms or --
24                 MR. WALTERS:  It was a letter with the
25            instructions on how to appeal the finding.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
 2                 MS. TATUM:  No, we never received that.  I got
 3            this but no -- because I was going to have to call
 4            somebody at ADE to ask how.
 5                 MS. PIANKA:  We did not receive the
 6            instructions.
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Do we have a copy of the
 8            letter?
 9                 MR. WALTERS:  I can have one in just a few
10            minutes.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Let's get a copy of
12            the letter.
13                 MR. WALTERS:  Anything else before I --
14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I've got a couple of
15            questions but go ahead and get that done --
16                 MR. WALTERS:  Okay.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- so we'll have a copy of
18            that letter that was sent and make sure that
19            everybody is on the same page.  Ms. Coffman, do you
20            have a question of someone besides Mr. Walters?
21                 MS. COFFMAN:  I do have a question for Dr.
22            Dawson.  Dr. Dawson, I don't know if you're familiar
23            with the term "consciously competent," but it is a
24            term that basically means that "I know what I'm
25            doing, I do it well enough to know when I do it well
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 1            or when I'm not doing it well."  So as I think about
 2            your organization, and I would consider they are
 3            probably consciously competent, there were items that
 4            have been highlighted today and were highlighted in
 5            the report -- transcripts, curriculum, the policy,
 6            teachers that are HQT.  What procedures are being
 7            changed in your organization to insure that those
 8            things don't linger, that they're solved in an
 9            earlier weight of time?  How are those being reported
10            instead of someone from the outside having to come in
11            and tell you that these things are not being done
12            properly?
13                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, most certainly we have
14            noticed very specific things that needed to be
15            corrected and we've already taken the steps in terms
16            of the curriculum to make sure that the alignments
17            are correctly reflected and the teachers are aware of
18            that.  We will increase our contact with content area
19            teachers to make sure on a regular basis that they
20            are aware of any changes to the curriculum, to
21            further update and align and move with the changing
22            requirements of Common Core implementation.  The
23            other thing that we're going to do -- and this is not
24            just here; it's across our network -- is we have
25            beefed up, to use a colloquial, the hiring process
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 1            and are questioning at a much deeper level, asking
 2            teachers that are applying for positions with us to
 3            perform different types of tasks that show us that
 4            they're really capable of moving the students that
 5            are incredibly behind quickly or more quickly than a
 6            traditional setting would allow.  That's not always
 7            evident in an interview process, so the consciously
 8            competent -- I have written that term -- and that's
 9            -- it was an important starting point.  It certainly
10            isn't enough.  Specifics have to be put in place and
11            teachers must do specific things in order to be
12            effective.  They must be competent in their subject
13            areas.  They must meet the qualifications in the
14            state of being highly qualified.  But they also have
15            to have that belief that our students have promise to
16            succeed.  So blending those two things together is
17            important.  So we've changed some procedures in our
18            hiring, not just here but across the board.  As a
19            charter school we have the ability to assess teachers
20            to help them to try to engage with our program.  But
21            if it's not the right fit we want to make a change as
22            quickly as we possibly can.  We can't have that
23            churning where we're constantly replacing teachers,
24            and we've seen a bit of that here and some of our
25            other sites.  But when we have a stable staff we see
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 1            the improvement and growth to standard increase
 2            exponentially over time; we would expect that to
 3            happen here and we're committed to make that happen.
 4                 MS. COFFMAN:  Can I have just a follow-up?
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yes.
 6                 MS. COFFMAN:  Dr. Dawson, how long has your
 7            organization been an organization?
 8                 DR. DAWSON:  We've been in operation with this
 9            population for 15 years.  We started in California,
10            and then in partnership with Job Corp.  In the last
11            couple of years we've seen a change in our -- in the
12            expectations of our Job Corp.  Job Corp is
13            concentrating on an older population.  We have moved
14            our schools -- we have begun to move over the last
15            couple of years into the communities.  As a public
16            school we're very committed to open access and to
17            enrolling every student that is eligible for school
18            that wants to be in our school.  We couldn't do that
19            with Job Corp with their changing roles, which is why
20            we moved off the center.  And so we are morphing and
21            changing as we go; we're reinventing ourselves, so-
22            to-speak, as a community-based school.  We've done
23            that effectively and we're stable in Florida; we're
24            doing that in California, as well.
25                 MS. COFFMAN:  And to finish my question, I
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 1            wanted to know when did you align your curriculum to
 2            Common Core and when did you note that it was not
 3            fully aligned?
 4                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, I'm not saying that it wasn't
 5            fully aligned.  I think it wasn't -- the
 6            documentation was not evident.  But I believe that
 7            we've shown in our follow-up that the curriculum was
 8            fully aligned to Common Core.  And we started this
 9            process several years ago.
10                 MS. COFFMAN:  That answers my question.
11                 DR. DAWSON:  That does?
12                 MS. COFFMAN:  Yes.
13                 DR. DAWSON:  We've been committed to this as it
14            happened because it is a much better way to get at
15            what kids know and it aligns with our teaching
16            philosophy and our strategies with this particular
17            popular.
18                 MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you.
19                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Decker?
20                 MR. DECKER:  No questions.
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez?
22                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Just one clarification.  This
23            question is for Carmen Jordan.
24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Jordan.  Ms. Jordan, you
25            were sworn in, weren't you?


Sharon Hill Court Reporting







Page 72


 1                 MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir, I was.
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
 3                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  I just wanted to make sure I
 4            understood.  Since S-I-A-Tech or SIATech -- since
 5            they're not on a semester basis and they had -- was
 6            that the main issue why there wasn't that pulled from
 7            the transcript?  The transcript issue, was that
 8            basically because they're not necessarily designed
 9            like every other school?
10                 MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir.  Initially, when the
11            database was set up when they first started, based on
12            the information that we received from the school
13            during the set-up process, they said that they did
14            not issue semester grades, that they issued final
15            grades.  So that's the way that we set them up.  Once
16            they started doing state reporting was when we found
17            out that they did not have semester grades and Ms.
18            Reynolds was informed that she needed to start
19            entering semester grades.  So once they opened up the
20            semester grade slots, she has to manually key those
21            grades in along with the final grade so that the
22            semester grade pulls to state reported and also to
23            Triand for the official electronic transcript.
24                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  When did that happen?  What
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 1            you just talked about, when -- you said that when
 2            they gave you the set-up they informed you that it
 3            would only be year-end grades?
 4                 MS. JORDAN:  Uh-huh.  That was --
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And so --
 6                 MS. JORDAN:  -- the initial set-up when they
 7            started in the 11-12 school year.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So in the 11-12
 9            school year we set them up as just year-end grades?
10                 MS. JORDAN:  Uh-huh.  Yes, sir.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And then when did they
12            decide that they had to put in semester grades and
13            who informed them that they'd have to put in semester
14            grades?
15                 MS. JORDAN:  That was cycle seven, June of 2013
16            --
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
18                 MS. JORDAN:  -- was when we were -- when I
19            notified Ms. Reynolds that she needed to start
20            entering semester grades.
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  And that was because
22            -- I mean, why would we set them up with year-end
23            grades if we knew they had to have semester grades?
24                 MS. JORDAN:  Well, because initially we set up
25            the district based on what they tell us that they
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 1            need for their district.  So that's what we did.  We
 2            did not realize that they really needed semester
 3            grades until she attempted to do her cycle seven and
 4            pulled an error that she did not have any student
 5            grades with four-semester grades.
 6                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So when we began
 7            looking at these transcripts where did that problem
 8            get generated?
 9                 MS. JORDAN:  I don't know.  I didn't know that
10            they weren't pulling the transcript for Triand.
11            Nobody notified me of that.  How I got involved was
12            when she had issues with her cycle seven.  And then
13            when I started looking and let her know that because
14            there were no semester grades that there would be no
15            data pulled to Triand for her students and that her
16            students would not be able to qualify for a
17            scholarship because there were no grades in Triand.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Thank you.
19                 MS. JORDAN:  All right.
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any other questions for Ms.
21            Jordan while she's up there?
22                 MR. HOY:  I do.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay, Mr. Hoy.
24                 MR. HOY:  So are the transcript irregularities
25            related to programming more so than anything else?
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 1                 MS. JORDAN:  No, sir.  It was basically related
 2            to set-up --
 3                 MR. HOY:  Set-up.
 4                 MS. JORDAN:  -- initially.  Uh-huh.  And then
 5            once we got this set-up corrected, which was opening
 6            the semester grade slot so that she could enter the
 7            semester grades, now since she's able to do that the
 8            transcripts in Triand will now be correct.
 9                 MR. HOY:  Okay.  So when did the fix happen?
10                 MS. JORDAN:  This year.  I think in October I
11            had conversation via email with Ms. Reynolds about
12            making sure that she got her semester grade slot
13            opened and to start entering the semester grades.
14            I'm not sure at what point that she actually got that
15            done.  I think I heard her say in her testimony that
16            she's been working on getting her seniors' grades
17            updated so that they are correct in Triand.
18                 MR. HOY:  So the set-up was fixed in October?
19                 MS. JORDAN:  In October.
20                 MR. HOY:  Okay.  And, Mr. Walters, when was the
21            visit?
22                 MS. REYNOLDS:  April 2nd.
23                 MR. HOY:  Okay.  Thank you.
24                 MS. TATUM:  Can we speak about the transcript?
25            And Carmen is correct in what she said.  But Ms.
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 1            Reynolds had to solicit help.  They suggested that we
 2            bring in Sarah Cox to help and I don't remember
 3            Vanessa's last name.  So they worked closely with Ms.
 4            Reynolds, you know, to get this updated.  So, you
 5            know, Carmen did help us with the semester but it
 6            wasn't until Sarah Cox emailed her and I think the
 7            email is maybe in your paperwork.
 8                 MS. REYNOLDS:  There's just a little bit of
 9            confusion here.  There were actually two screens
10            open.  So last spring, 2013, when Carmen first
11            identified this problem for us I think before that
12            when we were set-up I think no one ever thought about
13            our grades having to pull into Triand.  And I think
14            that's -- you were asking why we were set up on the
15            finals.  I think e-school was brand-new.  We were one
16            of the first of two schools to start an e-school and
17            I think just no one really realized the impact that
18            setting us up on final grades would have.  So I think
19            that's why that initial decision was made.  So then
20            last spring Carmen told me I needed semester grades
21            and I sat -- when I did year-end rollover my field
22            rep opened one screen that allowed me to enter
23            semester grades.  However -- and so I started
24            entering semester grades.  However, it would not
25            allow me to enter -- our students enter and leave
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 1            throughout the year, so which means a student might
 2            enter with us in August and they complete English I
 3            in October.  They immediately enroll in English II.
 4            Well, I could not put in a semester final grade for
 5            English I and reschedule through e-school, which has
 6            to be done for state reporting.  We schedule that
 7            student into English II.  So there was no way for us
 8            to keep a rolling kind of total of our students'
 9            grades that would pull into Triand.  I had to go back
10            in, in January, at semester's end and manually go
11            back and try to re-enter all the grades that our
12            students had earned during that previous term.  So
13            they still -- even with my doing that, they still
14            were not pulling reliably into Triand.  Sometimes we
15            would get the correct credit and the correct course
16            but more often than not, we'd either -- it would
17            either skip a course or give double credits,
18            sometimes it would only give a half-credit.  It
19            wasn't reliable and it was -- and so I did start
20            working with my field rep and then we had all of the
21            evaluations and everything in that.  It was not until
22            May 5th that my field rep actually opened yet another
23            semester grade screen, different from the one.  So
24            I'm actually on my second semester grade screen now.
25            And it is at this point that now our grades will pull
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 1            correctly and all of our 2013-14 grades will now pull
 2            correctly.  APSCN is working on the fix for the
 3            previous years.  So maybe that clears that up.
 4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  And I remember
 5            this conversation and I think you may have been the
 6            only one that was in the meeting, Dr. Walters, when
 7            we had our internal review with this.  And we talked
 8            specifically about the difficulty we were going to
 9            have with APSCN with this particular school with
10            students entering and exiting classes throughout the
11            year and wouldn't be in the traditional period, and
12            how that was going to happen.  And sorry about this,
13            Carmen, and sorry about this, Mr. Hernandez and Mr.
14            Decker but the assistant commissioners at that time
15            said, "We'll work it out.  We'll find a way to make
16            APSCN work."  So I think that's been part of the
17            problem, is that it was a very unique situation with
18            a system that we weren't changing at the time.  So
19            I've got a better understanding now of what happened
20            there because I remember that conversation about how
21            difficult that was going to be and the decision was
22            we would just have to find ways to work around it.
23            So that helps me remember that conversation.
24                 Okay.  Mr. Walters, if you would help us with
25            communication about standards violations with
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 1            SIATech.
 2                 MR. WALTERS:  Whenever we mail we send Certified
 3            mail, the final -- not the preliminary but the final
 4            report.  And in those we include -- we have a stack
 5            of memos and the specialist puts the Commissioner's
 6            memo for the final report, a copy of that, in the
 7            packet with the final report.  As well as if a school
 8            district has been identified as a probationary --
 9            with a probationary violation we have another memo
10            that we put in the file, in the folder, and mail and
11            it is the instructions on how to file a appeal if the
12            district so chooses.  I want to give those to Ms.
13            Tatum.  And while I was up there, the Certified mail
14            receipt states that it was -- the packet was signed
15            -- the final accreditation packet was signed for on
16            May 1, so that's --
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Tatum, may I ask you a
18            question?
19                 MR. WALTERS:  And Ms. Tatum said that they
20            weren't in her packet --
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I'll ask Ms. Tatum.  Ms.
22            Tatum, did you receive the letter?
23                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.  My security guard signed
24            for it; it's on the receipt.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
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 1                 MS. TATUM:  But these two documents were not in
 2            the envelope and I should've brought the original
 3            instead of making a copy.  Because Dr. Dawson and Ms.
 4            Pianka wanted to know how to file an appeal and I
 5            told her, you know, we were working on the
 6            presentation, that I would find it before -- I knew
 7            May 15th was the deadline, so that's what I explained
 8            to Mr. Walters.  We did receive the report from all
 9            the schools that was listed on there but this memo
10            was not in there.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Okay.  Mr.
12            Walters, while you're close to the stand can I ask a
13            couple of questions?
14                 MR. WALTERS:  Yes, sir.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  In the report that was --
16            the preliminary report that was provided -- and I
17            think it was the on-site report -- when it comes to
18            the curriculum issue, in that there was a statement
19            that there's no alignment to a fourth credit course
20            for Smart Core students.  So there was no course or
21            there was no alignment to a course that would meet
22            that requirement?
23                 MR. WALTERS:  I'll let Mr. Owen address that.
24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
25                 MR. OWEN:  Dr. Kimbrell, whenever I was present
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 1            and looked through the different modules that they
 2            offer, the alignment that they gave as far as to our
 3            courses that we have within our system were to
 4            algebra I, geometry, algebra II.  And at that point
 5            they were still indicating that one of their -- or a
 6            combination of the sections out of the modules were
 7            aligned to an algebraic connections course which was
 8            no longer a valid course.  They have since realigned
 9            the document, their internal system, to bridge the
10            algebra II which is not a fourth year course.  It
11            does count as one full credit toward graduation but
12            there was no indication that there were any alignment
13            -- there was any alignment to a course beyond the
14            algebra II.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Still no evidence of that?
16                 MR. OWEN:  No, sir.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Also -- and, Mr.
18            Walters, this will be for you 'cause I see the notes
19            that we have on algebra -- Mr. Anthony, your report
20            says 96% algebra I.  This was on-site algebra II,
21            76%; geometry, 83%.  But you've now received but
22            haven't had an opportunity to completely review that.
23            Is that correct?
24                 MR. OWEN:  Yes, sir.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Now, as far as
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 1            English Language Arts, did we have an English
 2            Language Arts specialist --
 3                 MR. WALTERS:  Maggie Herrick.
 4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Is she here?
 5                 MR. WALTERS:  No, sir.  She is in -- at a
 6            conference with Dr. Tucker --
 7                 MS. FRENO:  Dr. Witonski.
 8                 MR. WALTERS:  -- and Dr. Witonski.  Where?
 9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Then I'm not -- oh,
10            she's not here?
11                 MR. WALTERS:  Not here.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  So has -- have they
13            submitted -- I mean, all it tells me is that it does
14            not appear to align to the current Common Core State
15            Standards.
16                 MR. WALTERS:  When we were there Randall
17            Lawrence and Ms. Herrick -- Randall went with Ms.
18            Lawrence [sic] -- I mean, Ms. Herrick and they
19            observed the curriculum.  And from the information we
20            were given by Ms. Herrick that is the data that we
21            have and the information we have.  The information
22            that was received from SIATech was forwarded to Dr.
23            Tucker for Ms. Herrick to look at.  Now I don't know
24            where it's gone from there.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  That was done yesterday?
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 1                 MR. WALTERS:  Yesterday.
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Fine.  So to your
 3            knowledge there's not been any review of that?
 4                 MR. WALTERS:  No, sir.
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  Mr.
 6            Walters, before you sit down let me ask one other
 7            question and I don't mean to -- I just wanted to go
 8            around and let y'all ask questions and --
 9                 MR. WALTERS:  That's okay.
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- y'all may have some
11            follow-up questions.  So in terms of the transcripts
12            themselves -- and I think we've heard some
13            conversation about those transcripts, but was there
14            any evidence that the transcripts were wrong, that
15            students were given credit for courses that they
16            hadn't completed?  I don't --
17                 MR. WALTERS:  No.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
19                 MR. WALTERS:  As far as were there manufactured
20            courses and manufactured grades, no.  The problem was
21            you have e-school here, you have Triand over here;
22            ne'er the two ever met.  And they attempted when we
23            were there -- they came to the office the next day;
24            there was genuine frustration on the part of the
25            school that they couldn't get it to match, and I had
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 1            suggested that they work with Carmen's group.  But
 2            the fact was what you could see in APSCN and what you
 3            could see in Triand were completely different and
 4            there was not the indication that courses were being
 5            manufactured and put on here.  The issue was the
 6            accuracy with which a school district is required to
 7            report student data, student grades, and reports in
 8            general.  So if a student were to list its -- to
 9            qualify for a Challenge Scholarship or something
10            along that line, apply for a position, for a job,
11            that transcript -- the accuracy of that transcript
12            was so in question that you couldn't tell exactly
13            what was what.  But we do not believe that there were
14            manufactured courses for grades applied to either
15            side of the transcript.
16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Ms. Jordan, a
17            question for you please.  Do you feel like we've got
18            that problem resolved now or on our way to a
19            resolution of that problem?
20                 MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir, we are.
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  Questions
22            of the Panel?  Okay.  We'll start with Dr. Walters.
23            She's got her hand up first.
24                 DR. WALTERS:  I have a question for Dr. Dawson.
25            And if you answered this while I was out, my
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 1            apologies.  But can you tell me how many times this
 2            current school year has staff from the national
 3            organization been on campus, on the Little Rock
 4            campus?
 5                 DR. DAWSON:  At individual times, multiple -- I
 6            can't give you an exact number.
 7                 DR. WALTERS:  Less than 10, more than 10?
 8                 DR. DAWSON:  More than 10.  We have -- our
 9            director was there almost every month, if not more
10            than once a month.  Chris Mallory is there every
11            month for a board meeting.  Our Learning Support are
12            available and have come out periodically on request
13            to train teachers when we've been able to do that, so
14            --
15                 MS. PIANKA:  Yeah.  And I can add to that.
16                 DR. WALTERS:  Sure.
17                 MS. PIANKA:  I'm here so often I don't need a
18            map anymore of Little Rock.  I can find my way around
19            or drive the rest of the team around.  We identified
20            -- I think Ms. Tatum and I identified early, probably
21            in November and December, that since we had some new
22            staff we wanted some refresher courses and support
23            with classroom management.  And so we had our
24            Learning Support Team out for a week in February for
25            training.  As has already been stated by the Learning
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 1            Support Team, they provide monthly ilincs in every
 2            subject area.  And along with being on campus to
 3            train individual teachers as they are hired and
 4            anyone that's in need of additional support they'll
 5            work for us.  It's been my privilege to work with Ms.
 6            Tatum for the past three years and we kind of got
 7            baptized together in APSCN by attending, starting in
 8            2011, probably five weeks of training.  And we were
 9            part of the team that said, "We don't do semester
10            grades," and we were assured that somehow it would
11            work out; "We'll just do the final grade."  So we
12            were very upfront with how our system works and
13            what's to be expected.  But we probably I would say
14            at least every month, sometimes twice a month
15            depending -- Ms. Mallory and I kind of tag-team and
16            both provide oversight and support to the site to
17            make sure that they have what they need.  We do
18            classroom observations, we do audits, we do whatever
19            is needed or support the principal in any way with
20            something that she identifies that is needed for her
21            site.  So, yes, we are here frequently.
22                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez?
23                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  My question is for Jeremy or
24            Kendra, either one.  As far as there being
25            probationary notification given to them for
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 1            standards, they have a way to appeal that --
 2                 MR. LASITER:  Yes.
 3                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  -- and there will be a hearing
 4            and that's in front of the State Board.  Is that
 5            correct?
 6                 MR. LASITER:  That's correct.
 7                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  That was one question.
 8            The second question, if we decide to take no action
 9            does that require a motion or how does that work as
10            far as what we're able to do?
11                 MR. LASITER:  Certainly, I would ask that
12            anything that you do, do it in a motion so it's
13            formalized and we can put it in the minutes.  So if
14            you decide to take no action it would be better and
15            cleaner if you did it just through a motion.
16                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Other questions?  Mr. Owen?
18                 MR. OWEN:  Yes, Dr. Kimbrell.  I have a point of
19            clarification for my previous answer, if it can be
20            allowed.  I pulled back up the email that I received
21            yesterday and looked back through it and not only has
22            SIATech presented within this documentation an
23            updated curriculum for algebra two, they have also
24            aligned to an algebra III curriculum document of
25            ours.  That would count as a "beyond algebra II"


Sharon Hill Court Reporting







Page 88


 1            credit under Smart Core, if it is properly aligned.
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you, sir.  Thanks for
 3            that clarification.
 4                 MS. HOCKER:  Can I just add to that?  There are
 5            two different digital math curriculums in our math
 6            teachers' folder.  The one from 2012-2013 is our
 7            teacher (inaudible); she showed him that when you
 8            were in there.  We haven't filed one for 2013-2014
 9            that has those courses.  And if you go in and look,
10            it's on their -- on her teacher log-in, so -- for
11            both.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Other questions
13            by the Panel?  I do have one question and, Ms.
14            Dawson, it may be you to answer this or whomever.
15            But you use the ANGEL Learning Management System?
16                 DR. DAWSON:  Yes, that's correct.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Everybody keeps referring to
18            it in this document that's been provided, talk about
19            -- it talks about the curriculum delivery model and
20            its ability to be real fluid and updated throughout
21            the year.  What curriculum model is this?  Is it
22            something that your organization or the organization
23            you run has created or is it a digital piece that is
24            a third-party vendor?
25                 DR. DAWSON:  I think the answer to that would be
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 1            it's a combination of both of those.  There are
 2            certain things within our curriculum that we've
 3            developed and we know that they're successful.  We've
 4            also added additional programs.  For instance, a lot
 5            of our math curriculum is based with PLATO content,
 6            which is customizable; therefore, we add to that.
 7            And we've created a hybrid type of system that's a
 8            combination of both off the shelf, which doesn't work
 9            for our population by itself, and what we've created
10            internally.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And so the states that
12            you're in that I've looked at I believe are also
13            Common Core states?
14                 DR. DAWSON:  Correct.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I saw --
16                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, Florida isn't but --
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Well, yeah.  Up until --
18            well --
19                 DR. DAWSON:  They may be soon.  We don't know.
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yeah.  I also saw that three
21            of the course states -- well, all the states besides
22            Arkansas your schools are accredited by a third-party
23            accreditation system?
24                 DR. DAWSON:  That's correct.  We have -- in
25            California, we have two accreditations.  We have the
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 1            WASC, the Western Association accreditation, plus the
 2            Advanced Ed. Trans Regional Accreditation for both
 3            our schools as well as our corporate office.  In
 4            Florida, we have the AdvancED with SACS and in New
 5            Mexico also we have both the AdvancED and the North
 6            Central accreditation.
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any -- and this is not on
 8            the subject and I apologize -- any --
 9                 DR. WALTER:  Can I get onto you?
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And you can get onto me.
11            Any plans for looking at the -- an accreditation for
12            your school here?
13                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, we are accredited under
14            AdvancED.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Here?
16                 DR. DAWSON:  Here, in Arkansas.  Absolutely.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Your school has an AdvancED
18            --
19                 DR. DAWSON:  Accreditation.  Absolutely.
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  I just didn't
21            see it listed on a website.
22                 DR. DAWSON:  I'll have to check that.  It should
23            be.  It must be.  I can't imagine it not being.  But
24            I'll check that.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Arizona, California,
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 1            Florida, New Mexico are the only ones listed as
 2            having accreditation from a separate accrediting --
 3            right there on your home page.
 4                 DR. DAWSON:  We have the certificate.
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  You might want to update
 6            that.
 7                 MS. REYNOLDS:  We'll update the website.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any other questions?
 9                 MS. COFFMAN:  Do you know when that
10            accreditation review occurred?
11                 DR. DAWSON:  11-12, I believe.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
13                 DR. DAWSON:  Excuse me.  Next year we'll be
14            having the follow-up accreditation.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I do want to make one
16            statement to -- is it Dr. Dawson?
17                 DR. DAWSON:  Yes.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Dr. Dawson, to you and your
19            staff.  These are not uncommon reviews.  There are
20            times and we've done a couple this year where I've
21            asked Mr. Hoy to go into traditional public schools
22            and to do very similar, unannounced reviews when
23            there are things that are brought to our attention
24            that we believe need to be reviewed and maybe need to
25            be reviewed in a way in which we need to just show


Sharon Hill Court Reporting







Page 92


 1            up.  And I apologize, and if it put people at unease
 2            and made them feel uncomfortable that's not our
 3            intention whatsoever.  It's not our intention to,
 4            quote, "catch people" but it's our intention to go
 5            into a school to see a school operate as a school and
 6            we don't want to go in with everybody prepared for
 7            someone to come in, you know.  And if you're -- and
 8            I've run schools and run organizations for 30-
 9            something years in this business; if you're doing
10            what you're supposed to be doing, you don't have to
11            worry about those things.  But I also know that when
12            the Department of Ed. or an accrediting agency or
13            anything comes in there's those concerns.  So I do
14            want to say it was never our intention to put people
15            on edge or to make them feel uneasy.  And we've done
16            these before and most, if not all -- this is the
17            first time I remember getting a report back that
18            anyone felt that the questioning was -- and I think
19            the report says -- maybe it was the degree at which
20            the questions were -- or the manner in which
21            questions were asked.  And I've not heard that about
22            our staff and I hope that maybe it was just an unease
23            and not our staff being in any way derogatory or
24            accusatory in their questioning.  I don't think the
25            staff would do that, so I hope that that's not what
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 1            happened and maybe it was just some unease that was
 2            experienced by the staff.
 3                 DR. DAWSON:  I appreciate that and I'm sure that
 4            that's it.  I think Dr. Cox brought up a very
 5            important point, is that -- especially when you have
 6            a school like ours that's not a traditional school
 7            and has a different way of approaching, we expect and
 8            we get a lot of scrutiny; we're used to that.  So
 9            we're able and we're willing and wanting to talk
10            about that.  I think we can do a better job, both in
11            the corporate office and we'll work with our site
12            staff, in communicating as players change within the
13            office what exactly we do.  It doesn't -- telling it
14            once doesn't make it transferable as people change or
15            as our program changes.  So I think all of us
16            included in our partnership can work on our
17            communication and we'll definitely make that a
18            priority.
19                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Panel, I would
20            suggest since we really don't have a full review of
21            the math yet -- I know that Anthony has that
22            information and I have all confidence that he can do
23            that for us.  I know that our English Language Arts
24            staff that were there haven't had an opportunity to
25            review that.  It does seem to me that the Triand
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 1            issue and the transcript issues, if not completely
 2            resolved, are being resolved and are resolvable.  We
 3            may still run into some problems.  A mind is a
 4            terrible thing to lose and over the last five years
 5            mine is slowly but surely being -- it's about gone.
 6            But I remember that conversation well with the
 7            internal group and having that conversation about
 8            "this is going to be hard, this is not going to work
 9            with our current system, and we're just going to have
10            to make it work."  So I don't know about your
11            feelings but I just think with what is going to come
12            before the State Board I would rather us have answers
13            for them about those curriculum issues.  I think we
14            can answer the questions for ourselves about the
15            Triand and the transcripts.  But for the curriculum
16            issues I think there's time for our staff to work
17            with their staff to see if those things are actually
18            in place before we make some kind of decision.  And
19            I'd welcome any discussion, comment you may have.
20            Mr. Hoy?
21                 MR. HOY:  Motion at the proper time.
22                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I'll accept a motion.
23                 MR. HOY:  A motion that we take no action at
24            this time, Dr. Kimbrell.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a motion from Mr. Hoy
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 1            to take no action at this time.
 2                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Second.
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a second from Mr.
 4            Hernandez.  Any discussion?  If not, all those in
 5            favor of the motion say "aye."
 6                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All those opposed?  Motion
 8            passes.  Thank y'all.  Thank you, Panel.  Thank you,
 9            SIATech and we'll be back in touch and we'll continue
10            to work on insuring that that is aligned.  Mr.
11            Walters, I hope you will work with Ms. Tatum to make
12            sure that everything is lined up for their appeal, if
13            they choose.
14                 MR. WALTERS:  We will hold a slot open for the
15            State Board meeting in the event that they choose to
16            appeal.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you very much.
18  A-2:  CONSIDERATION OF 2014 DISTRICT CONVERSION PUBLIC CHARTER
19  SCHOOL APPLICATION
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So we'll move to
21            Action Item A-2, Consideration of the 2014 District
22            Conversion Public Charter School Application.  Ms.
23            Perry.  And if you'd like, Ms. Perry, we can let the
24            room kind of clear, if you want to.
25                 MS. PERRY:  I'm good.  You are --
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Except Tripp is bothering
 2            everybody.
 3                 MS. PERRY:  This document should look fairly
 4            familiar to you.  Last meeting we brought you the
 5            Open-Enrollment Charter Application for your review.
 6            The Board, as you know, allowed it to release last
 7            week.  So this week we're bringing to you the
 8            District Conversion Application.  You will note that
 9            we made the appropriate changes to the District
10            Conversion Application that we made to the Open-
11            Enrollment where that made sense.  You'll notice
12            things like we pulled the budget piece out, as when
13            we had our meeting back in January you directed us
14            and you felt that was appropriate for District
15            Conversion Applications.  So it looks very similar.
16            We did completely drop "limited charter" from it.
17            Again, we talked about it that day.  We've had no one
18            ever ask to submit an application for a limited
19            charter school.  If we get that request, we'll see
20            about putting in a couple of questions because that's
21            all it would take to revise this and let someone do
22            that.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any questions from the
24            Panel?  Ms. Coffman, you don't have a question?
25                 MS. COFFMAN:  No.  It looks good.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  All right.  If not,
 2            I'll entertain a motion.  If the crowd out there will
 3            hold it down, we'll get this done.
 4                 MS. COFFMAN:  I make a motion we approve these
 5            documents.
 6                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Second.
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Coffman makes a motion
 8            and Mr. Hernandez quickly makes a second.  All those
 9            in favor say "aye."
10                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All those opposed like sign.
12            Motion passes.  Thank you, Ms. Perry, for your work
13            and the rest of the staff and attorneys for their
14            work.  I'll entertain a motion to adjourn.
15                 DR. WALTERS:  Motion.
16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a motion to adjourn.
17                 MS. COFFMAN:  Second.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Second from Ms. Coffman.
19            And we are adjourned.
20
21      (The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:35 a.m.)
22
23
24
25
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 1                       P R O C E E D I N G S
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: It's a little bit past 8:30.
 3            If we can get Tripp to sit down --
 4                 MS. PERRY: That was my fault.
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I'm just teasing Tripp.  I


 6            always have to give Tripp a hard time.  So we'll
 7            begin with our first item and I do not have a report
 8            from the chair, so I'll take up the Consent Agenda,
 9            the minutes of the April 16, 2014 board meeting.  Do
10            you have any questions or adjustments on that?
11            There's only one item on the consent.  If not, I'll
12            entertain a motion.
13                 MR. HOY: Motion to approve.
14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I have a motion to approve


15            by Mister --
16                 MR. HERNANDEZ: Second.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Mr. Hoy, and second by Mr.


18            Hernandez.  All those in favor?
19                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: All those opposed like sign.


21            Motion passes, so the Consent Agenda passes.
22  A-1: HEARING FOR OPEN-ENROLLMENT PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL: SCHOOL


23  FOR INTEGRATED ACADEMICS & TECHNOLOGIES LITTLE ROCK (SIATech)


24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: So we'll move to Action Item


25            A-1, Hearing for the Open-Enrollment Public Charter
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 1            School: School for Integrated Academics and
 2            Technologies Little Rock (SIATech).  Mr. Lasiter.
 3                 MR. LASITER: Thank you, Commissioner Kimbrell,


 4            Members of the Panel.  I want to walk you through the
 5            hearing procedures that apply for the purposes of
 6            this agenda item and take you through some of the
 7            legal considerations.  I know that we have people
 8            from both the Department of Education and from the
 9            charter school who will want to address you on this
10            issue.  But A-1 is a hearing for the open-enrollment
11            public charter school, School for Integrated
12            Academics and Technologies in Little Rock, or S-I-A-
13            Tech.  Your procedures are found in Section 6.24 of
14            the ADE rules governing charter schools and I'll
15            briefly take you through those procedures.
16                 The hearing procedures require 20 days prior
17            notice.  The ADE provided a notice letter concerning
18            this hearing to the charter school on April 24, 2014.
19            That notice letter is in your materials.  In a moment
20            I will walk through that notice letter as well
21            because it contains some important things that you'll
22            need to consider for the purposes of this hearing.
23            But in a moment all persons, with exception of the
24            attorneys representing the parties, who plan to give
25            testimony must be sworn by a certified court
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 1            reporter.  At that point Arkansas Department of
 2            Education staff will have up to 20 minutes to present
 3            their findings to the Panel.  Mr. Commissioner, you
 4            can agree to allow them longer if that time is
 5            needed.  After the 20 minutes is over, the open-
 6            enrollment public charter school shall have 20
 7            minutes to present its case to the authorizer.  And
 8            as with the ADE presentation, Mr. Commissioner, you
 9            can certainly allow more time if that time is needed.
10            After the presentation by both the ADE and the
11            Charter Authorizing Panel [sic], that's when you go
12            into your discussion of the issues and your
13            questions, if any, to any of the representatives from
14            either the Department of Education or the charter
15            school.  And then at the conclusion of the hearing
16            you may issue a final decision or take the matter
17            under advisement until a future scheduled meeting.
18                 I now want to refer you to Arkansas Code 6-23-
19            105 because that statute gives you your options for
20            the hearing today.  Certainly, your first option is
21            not to take any action.  You always have that.  There
22            are not mandatory actions that need to be taken
23            today.  So you can decide, first of all, to do
24            nothing at all.  But you may also place the public
25            charter school on probation or you may modify or
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 1            revoke the charter if you determine that the persons
 2            operating the public charter school, one, committed a
 3            material violation of the charter, including failure
 4            to satisfy accountability provisions prescribed by
 5            the charter; two, failed to satisfy generally-
 6            accepted accounting standards of fiscal management;
 7            three, failed to comply with this chapter, meaning in
 8            the Arkansas code or other applicable law or
 9            regulation; or, four, failed to meet academic or
10            fiscal performance criteria deemed appropriate and
11            relevant for the public charter school by the
12            authorizer.  The law does also set forth the criteria
13            for how do you arrive at these decisions.  It says
14            that any action the authorizer may take shall be
15            based on the best interest of the public charter
16            school students, the severity of the violation, and
17            any previous violation the public charter school may
18            have committed.  So, again, on the spectrum of things
19            that you can do in this hearing is on one side take
20            no action, all the way up to revocation of the
21            charter.
22                 Now I want to refer you, before I sit down, to
23            the notice letter that went out to the charter school
24            on April 24, 2014.  And that notice letter put the
25            charter school on notice of two potential findings in


Page 7


 1            this case.  The first is the allegation that the
 2            curriculum was not aligned to the Common Core State
 3            Standards, and the second was inconsistencies in
 4            student records that impact official transcripts.
 5            Those are the two items that the charter school has
 6            notice of and that's why they're here today.
 7            Certainly, during the course of your questions and
 8            discussions other questions may arise that you want
 9            to pose to the charter.  But any action that you take
10            today as a panel needs to be focused on those two
11            items that the charter school received notice of.
12            So, again, those were curriculum that's not aligned
13            to the Common Core State Standards and, two,
14            inconsistencies in student records that impact
15            official transcripts.  Ms. Clay and I will both be
16            here for the duration of this hearing, if you have
17            further questions.
18                 If there aren't any questions at this time, then
19            we'll need to swear everyone in and then we'll
20            proceed with the Department of Education's 20
21            minutes.
22                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Panel Members, any questions


23            of Mr. Lasiter?  If not, I would ask that all those
24            that will be giving testimony, with the exception of
25            those attorneys that may be representing either the
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 1            Department or the charter, please rise.  Raise your
 2            right hand, please.  Do you swear or affirm to tell
 3            the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?
 4               (ALL WITNESSES ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY)
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.
 6                 MR. LASITER: Mr. Commissioner, I believe Ms.
 7            Perry will begin the Department's 20 minutes.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Ms. Perry.
 9                 MS. PERRY: Good morning.  I'm just going to
10            give you a little bit of background that led to the
11            standards visit and review.  After receiving
12            information in November that all teachers at SIATech
13            were not highly qualified, I looked at the state
14            performance data from the two years that the charter
15            had been in operation and noted a few students who
16            had demonstrated proficiency on and the low
17            percentage of students who actually took the state
18            assessments.  So on December 3rd, Lisa Crook and I
19            held a scheduled meeting with SIATech leaders.  In
20            the meeting I asked questions about student
21            performance and was told about the ability levels of
22            students.  I also asked questions about the number of
23            SIATech graduates, the curriculum being used at the
24            charter, and the qualifications of the teachers.  I
25            requested a list of the 2011-2012 and 2012-2013
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 1            graduates with their ID numbers and clarification
 2            about teacher qualifications.  I first received a
 3            list of graduates and later a list of graduates with
 4            ID numbers.  I then reviewed transcripts,
 5            information, and Triand for SIATech graduates and
 6            identified many transcript issues.  I shared the
 7            information with my supervisor, who requested that I
 8            share the information with the Commissioner.  The
 9            Commissioner directed the Standards Unit to conduct a
10            review.  The review report is in the Panel packet, as
11            well as the signed visit form that was completed at
12            the review on April 2nd.  Mr. Johnie Walters, who led
13            the Standards Review Team, will discuss the report.
14            Anthony Owen, a Standards Review Team member, is also
15            present this morning should you have questions for
16            him.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you, Ms. Perry.  Mr.


18            Walters, I guess you're up next.
19                 MR. WALTERS: On March 27th, we received a
20            letter -- I received a letter from Dr. Kimbrell
21            authorizing our unit to do an on-site review visit to
22            SIATech charter school.  We made that visit on April
23            2nd of 2014.  We had my self as a facilitator and we
24            had team members Roy Causbie, who's a Standards
25            Assurance Specialist; Mari Beth Nokes, a Standards
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 1            Assurance Specialist; Randall Lawrence, a Standards
 2            Assurance Specialist; Maggie Herrick, who is a Social
 3            Studies Language Arts Specialist from Curriculum
 4            Instruction; and Mr. Anthony Owen from Curriculum
 5            Instruction, who is a Math Specialist.  At that time
 6            the team reviewed numerous documents, handbooks.  We
 7            reviewed transcripts; we reviewed curriculum
 8            documents.  Different team members had different
 9            assignments at a time.  Upon completion of the review
10            the team determined, in talking with Ms. Tatum, that
11            the transcripts were not in alignment with e-school
12            and Triand transcripts.  There were discrepancies
13            between credits, number of credits, types of credits,
14            things of that nature.  And Ms. Tatum had at the time
15            asked if they could attempt to make some corrections
16            and bring us updated copies the following day, which
17            they did.  But the corrections were not accurate; the
18            transcripts still were not in alignment.
19                 With regard to curriculum, we had several team
20            members visit classrooms and look at various parts of
21            the curriculum and it was determined that the
22            Language Arts curriculum, Social Studies curriculum
23            portions, Science were not at the time aligned with
24            the current Common Core State Standards.  And there
25            were percentages of alignment with some math courses.
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 1            And Mr. Owen is here and he has -- can speak more
 2            correctly to that.  At the time of exit we wrote our
 3            findings up and I believe you have copies of that in
 4            your folder where we had three pages of findings from
 5            different individuals.  And we noted on there that
 6            the curriculum did not meet the standards and we were
 7            notified that currently that was accurate but that in
 8            the 14-15 school year the curriculum should be
 9            aligned with the Common Core curriculum that the
10            State has approved.  At this time we've not seen any
11            evidence to the contrary.  We did receive some
12            documents from SIATech that was forwarded to me by
13            Ms. Perry.  I've not had an opportunity to completely
14            review those, so -- but at the time of the visit they
15            basically told us that it would be aligned in the 14-
16            15 school year.  And math was the one content area
17            that was most closely aligned with the current Common
18            Core State Standards.  And, again, the transcripts
19            were not consistent with each other when they were
20            run, and these were on the day of the visit nor when
21            they were brought -- they were attempted to be
22            corrected and brought to us on the 3rd.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: And that's all you have?


24                 MR. WALTERS: Yes, sir.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Is there anything
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 1            else from the Department to be presented?  Mr.
 2            Lasiter, do you have something else?
 3                 MR. LASITER: No, sir.
 4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Okay.  So
 5            representatives from SIATech -- who would like to
 6            begin that?  Again, we'll have 20 minutes and I know
 7            that we've sworn in a lot of people, so have y'all
 8            got this organized how you want to do this?
 9                 DR. DAWSON: We hope so.
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  I'll try to keep you


11            kind of abreast of how much time you have.  If you
12            want to know, you can just ask me and I'll try to
13            keep you up-to-date.
14                 DR. DAWSON: Thank you.  Good morning, Dr.
15            Kimbrell, Members of the Panel.  My name is Linda
16            Dawson.  I'm the superintendent and CEO of SIATech,
17            Incorporated.  I'm very pleased to be here this
18            morning to talk to you a little bit about SIATech.
19            And with me I have members of our team, strong
20            members of our Learning Support Team responsible for
21            curriculum alignment and the transition that we all
22            have to make in public education to the Common Core
23            over the last several years.  And you will be meeting
24            each of those members as we explain our curriculum.
25            I want to just let the board and panel know a little
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 1            bit about us.  Breaking the cycle of poverty is the
 2            number one goal of our organization.  We do dropout
 3            recovery.  We take students that are the most at-risk
 4            of not being successful in life and try to get them
 5            re-engaged with education and back into the
 6            mainstream and give them the hope that they can have
 7            a fulfilling life with the academic skills necessary
 8            to compete in a very competitive work world.  Our
 9            network of charter schools has been in existence for
10            15 years.  We have over 14,000 graduates that are now
11            participating in life with a college -- or a high
12            school diploma.  Well, 38% of our students are in
13            college within the first two years of graduating.
14            We've been recognized by the National Dropout
15            Recovery network, as well as in California, as a
16            California Distinguished School, the first dropout
17            recovery school to get that designation.  What we
18            know is that dropout recovery isn't easy and that by
19            no means is an excuse.  We absolutely understand what
20            we do.  We also know that with a concentrated student
21            population, predominantly students in poverty, that
22            those students take longer to get back into the
23            mainstream.  Research shows that we have students
24            that are presenting symptoms of post-traumatic stress
25            syndrome because of their situation.  It's not an
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 1            excuse, and we believe we have methods, we have the
 2            people, and we have the program that can get these
 3            students back on track.  We are certainly not trying
 4            to shirk any duties or say that we are perfect in any
 5            way; we are not.  We are absolutely willing and able
 6            and committed to fixing any type of concerns that the
 7            board would have.  We believe strongly in
 8            accountability.  We believe in a broader range of
 9            accountability.  But we were certainly making every
10            effort -- our expectation is that our school leaders
11            will make that effort to meet the accountability
12            standards of the states that we're operating in, most
13            certainly here in Arkansas.  So I would like to say
14            that from a corporate standpoint we believe that we
15            have the leader in place that can make these changes
16            that you are requiring, that we can move forward in a
17            very positive way as a partner in education, and that
18            our program is our kids' best hope to participate
19            fully in the life of the community.  So with that,
20            I'd like to introduce our next speaker.
21                 MS. BELZMAN: Good morning.  My name is Lori
22            Belzman.  I'm a curriculum coordinator for SIATech
23            and I will be speaking about the curriculum for both
24            ELA and Social Studies.  We wanted to start off
25            though by saying that all SIATech curriculum has a
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 1            comprehensive alignment with the Common Core
 2            Standards; it always has, it always will, because
 3            it's a requirement.  And one of the ways it allows us
 4            to do this so easily is our curriculum delivery model
 5            and our Learning Management System.  It allows for
 6            continuous updates and revisions.  And as a result of
 7            that, our alignments are done at a minimum once a
 8            year but more realistically periodically to reflect
 9            these continuous updates and revisions of our
10            curriculum on the spot.  My clicker is not working.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Ms. Freeman, can you help?


12                 MS. BELZMAN: That's okay.  So as far as ELA
13            goes, looking at our digital curriculum as well as
14            our English resources, we are one-hundred percent
15            compliant with the ADE Common Core State Standards
16            and our current crosswalk for 2013-2014 reflects this
17            and that has been submitted to you.  As far as the
18            ELA reading passages not being at high school level,
19            we had every reading passage through Readability
20            Score-dot-com and as expected we found that the
21            results varied.  All reading passages were anywhere
22            from middle school to college level.  But we do want
23            to point out one key concept when you're looking at
24            task complexity, especially in terms of the Common
25            Core.  Reading level is definitely one component of
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 1            text complexity but you also have to look at the
 2            complexity of the task that is associated with the
 3            test.  For example, in 11th grade American Lit
 4            students typically read short stories by Edgar Allen
 5            Poe or O. Henry.  These are actually middle school
 6            reading passages but the task that they have to
 7            complete with the reading passage is typically
 8            higher.  Students are analyzing, they're evaluating,
 9            so they're answering questions on the higher end of
10            knowledge as well as Webb's Cognitive Rigor Matrix.
11            So we would urge that you look at both components,
12            not just the reading level itself but the task which
13            students have to complete associated with that piece
14            of task.
15                 As far as the writing assignments, we have
16            several measures of criteria to show that they are at
17            high school level.  They were created using, of
18            course, the Common Core Standards as a guideline but
19            we also looked at all the questions we ask of our
20            students the part question types in order to prepare
21            them for the upcoming assessment for next year.  We
22            also use Webb's Depth of Knowledge, as well as Hess's
23            Cognitive Rigor Matrix to make sure that we were not
24            asking all lower-end questions but that we were
25            asking our students to answer questions and complete
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 1            writing assignments at those higher levels of Webb's
 2            Depth of Knowledge, as well as the cognitive rigor
 3            matrix.
 4                 As far as the Oral Communications framework not
 5            being updated, we simply updated that to show that we
 6            are currently meeting the framework.  And that
 7            current bit of alignment was submitted to you as
 8            well.
 9                 For Social Studies, again, if you look at our --
10            both of our digital curriculum online in our Learning
11            Management System and our Social Studies resources,
12            we are one-hundred percent compliant with the Common
13            Core State Standards in both literacy and writing for
14            History and Social Studies.  And, again, that
15            document was submitted for you.  And all of our
16            current crosswalk showed this current alignment with
17            those standards.
18                 As far as the depth and rigor issue that was
19            brought up for our Social Studies, I think World
20            History was specifically mentioned.  The current
21            units have been revised to meet that required depth
22            and rigor.  We also have additional plans to develop
23            more units so that we have a more comprehensive World
24            History curriculum and that will be in the 2014-2015
25            school year.  Another good example of our depth and
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 1            rigor is in our Economics and our Government courses.
 2            Both were recently approved as college and career
 3            ready courses for our students.  And, finally, U.S.
 4            History has had significant revisions just in the
 5            digital curriculum.  It doesn't appear in our paper
 6            framework; it's all online since August of 2013.
 7            Again, just examples to show you that our curriculum
 8            is constantly being updated and revised.
 9                 MS. HOCKER: Hello.  My name is Tami Hocker.
10            I'm the Curriculum Coordinator/Math Specialist for
11            SIATech.  I've been in secondary education for 30
12            years.  I've taught the whole gamut of mathematics
13            from foundational math, algebra I, geometry, algebra
14            II, pre-calculus, trigonometry, and AP calculus.  The
15            year before I joined SIATech my AP calculus pass rate
16            for students was 89%.  So I'm very aware of what
17            students need to be college and career ready for the
18            21st century.
19                 So some of the documents and items that I wanted
20            to share with you that if someone walked into the
21            classroom and they're only looking at paper-based
22            documents, we have, as Lori mentioned, an online
23            program.  We have the ANGEL Learning Management
24            System.  And the courses that we deliver, as well as
25            the additional resources, are housed through our


Page 19


 1            ANGEL management system, very similar to Blackboard.
 2            So you have been sent the updated crosswalks to
 3            reflect what's currently in the classroom.  As with
 4            any lesson plan or any good teaching practice, we
 5            look at student data and outcomes and teacher input
 6            and we are constantly making revisions.  So what is
 7            available for these courses we did send to you what's
 8            in the digital and it's fully aligned to the Arkansas
 9            Department of Education Common Core State Standards
10            for those courses.
11                 Up on the screen -- I know it's very small but
12            there's a screen shot of the algebra III.  There are
13            six different units; inside each of those units there
14            are several assignments.  On each of them it does
15            tell which of the Common Core State Standards is
16            addressed, and I'll show you a sample lesson in just
17            a minute.  Additional resources that we have
18            available, we do individual learning plans for
19            students, not just their traditional curriculum.
20            Some of our students need scaffolding, they need
21            review, and some of them need enrichment.  So through
22            the PLATO Learning Management System, in addition to
23            our curriculum, we have everything from foundational
24            math up through calculus.  Up on the screen this is a
25            sample lesson for our algebra III that we did use
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 1            that came from the NROC Developmental Math
 2            Curriculum, which was designed for adult learners to
 3            take any individual that needs basic math up through
 4            college readiness.  And you can see this is a
 5            mathematics modeling with exponential functions; it's
 6            in the first unit of the algebra III.  We also have
 7            additional online resources available to all students
 8            in one click.  We can add anything on there very
 9            quickly.  There are two different graphing
10            calculators; there's PARCC practice tests and
11            resources; algebra EOC specific to Arkansas; there's
12            virtual manipulatives.  But up on the top right-hand
13            corner I would like to draw your attention -- we have
14            a help button where we have credentialed teachers
15            available to our students outside of the classroom
16            and during class hours where we have credentialed
17            math teachers that are highly qualified.  We have
18            auto-cad specialists available, as well as other
19            credentialed teachers.   We have 20-plus different
20            math lessons that students are doing in our
21            curriculum where they apply mathematics through
22            technology.  This is an example of a lesson that a
23            student would complete if they do our geometry
24            curriculum.  They're doing linear measurement,
25            they're doing ANGEL measurement, and they are
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 1            converting it into polar coordinates and then they
 2            are going onto an auto-cad program and recreating the
 3            star that you see there and you can see a sample of
 4            the screen shot.  So those are additional resources
 5            that we use and some examples of things we have in
 6            our curriculum.  Thank you.
 7                 MS. MALLORY: I'd like to share with you a
 8            little bit about some of our accountability methods
 9            to evaluate -- have students not only --
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Would you go ahead and tell


11            us your name?
12                 MS. MALLORY: Oh.  Kris Mallory, I'm sorry, from
13            SIATech and I'm the Chief Instructional Officer and I
14            have the privilege of working with the ladies that
15            are sitting here today.  One of the things we do at
16            SIATech is we do -- we use a computer adapted
17            assessment that's nationally normed and we assess the
18            students -- it's not a test, they don't pass or fail;
19            it's an assessment of progress.  And the students
20            take this assessment in math and reading when they
21            first come in and then they're given it again six to
22            ten weeks later and again six to ten weeks later so
23            they can evaluate their growth.  And what I've given
24            you is these little tiny things.  The dots are
25            children and their growth.  And I have the results
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 1            here for reading from the first year we were open and
 2            at the end of the year we have an external evaluation
 3            that looks -- and see did the students actually meet
 4            or exceed growth.  You think of grade level.  If the
 5            student is in 11.1, that would be the first month of
 6            the 11th grade year.  The evaluation is much more
 7            technical and uses a scale score so the kids can
 8            understand that.  We have students come in anywhere
 9            from 2nd grade reading level and math level up to
10            12.9, so we have a wide range of ability.  And it's a
11            little lower in math -- I mean, in reading; they
12            average about 6th grade and up to about 6.9 for math.
13            So on this first screen is reading and it shows only
14            28% of the students were exceeding expected growth.
15            And if you go to the next slide, that's the next
16            year; that's a year ago, and it increased from 28% to
17            44% of the students being proficient.  We go to math,
18            the next slide.  The first year we were open it
19            showed 45% of the students exceeding growth and then
20            a year ago it showed 62%.  So those were gains of 16%
21            and 17% in kids exceeding expected growth.  And if
22            you go to the next slide, you can see the comparison
23            between the two years.  On one -- on the left side is
24            the reading, on the right side is math and that
25            horizontal line shows what is expected.  And you can
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 1            see that on the math the majority of our kids are now
 2            exceeding what's expected and that's because the
 3            teachers learned how to use the reports with the
 4            students so they can engage and use that information
 5            to help them drive their own instruction.  They have
 6            to take control, and we're getting better at it and I
 7            know we're going to continue to get better at it.
 8                 The slide on your paper has an error, that was
 9            my error, but those are the percentages that shift
10            from the first year to the second year, and you can
11            see that the students exceeding expected growth went
12            from 28 to 44 in reading and then in math they went
13            from 45 to 62.  So we're very happy with that and we
14            predict and we know that our growth will continue to
15            move forward in that direction.
16                 MS. GILBERT: Well, hi.  My name is Beverly
17            Gilbert; I'm the Professional Development Director
18            for SIATech.  I have the privilege of working
19            actually with two teams along with all our members
20            here in Arkansas at your site.  We have a
21            professional development team and we also have a
22            Learning Support Team who work with the content.  I
23            deal specifically with the teachers and so does my
24            team.
25                 Our goal in professional development is to make
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 1            sure that our teachers receive relevant training.  It
 2            is research-based and we really, really incorporate
 3            best practices.  We think it's very important for us
 4            to learn from our own experiences, as well as the
 5            research that's out there by professionals.  Also, we
 6            want to make sure that especially working with our
 7            population that we customize our professional
 8            development for our schools, our type of schools, and
 9            with students.  It's very relevant to our students to
10            be taught by teachers who understand their learning
11            needs and their predicaments in life.
12                 Next, it's very important for us to make sure
13            that we bring research-based knowledge in here.  Some
14            examples of what we teach our teachers and work with
15            our teachers on: transformative learning and also
16            multiple intelligence.  Those two forms the basis of
17            some of the training that we do with our students.
18            We really want to make sure that our students receive
19            transforming opportunities and learn about how they
20            can become people who can go out in the -- use their
21            academics and go out and be very worthy of the
22            workforce.  Also, our multiple intelligence students
23            learn different ways and we want to make sure our
24            teachers understand that.  Getting to Got It!, that
25            is mediated learning.  Mediated learning is where we
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 1            teach our teachers how to mediate the learning, the
 2            needs at the moment.  Whatever they may not
 3            understand, especially we have a lot of learning
 4            needs with our students, we want to make sure our
 5            teachers are able to access and understand those.
 6            Visible learning is something we're very excited
 7            about.  John Heady's recent research on this is very
 8            important but he has learned about doing better
 9            cognitive studies to understand exactly the type of
10            things that are needed in schools.  And so we've
11            ordered that and we teach our teachers about that
12            research.
13                 Next, also we provide training -- what types of
14            trainings do we do?  Before we open a site we do a
15            New Staff Academy.  We meet 45 days with our teachers
16            and our staff.  They learn about curriculum, about
17            pedagogy, about the culture that they're going to be
18            working with and the students specifically.  We also
19            provide monthly ilincs.  Our Learning Support Team
20            that you've already heard from, they provide ilincs
21            which is the digital professional development we
22            provide monthly.  We share every single month Common
23            Core strategies -- and, again, monthly means every
24            week.  So math is one week, ELA is the next week, et
25            cetera.  We also go over best practices and we also
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 1            do updates on content that may have been made during
 2            that time.  Because as you heard, our curriculum is
 3            constantly updated, especially with the Common Core
 4            and especially with the strategies that we need to
 5            implement.  We also do onsite professional
 6            development.  I personally was here and just did a
 7            professional development -- a two-day seminar with
 8            the teachers.  We worked specifically on things that
 9            they had asked for with the needs of their students,
10            also instructional strategies very specific to the
11            Common Core and also classroom environment, which is
12            also necessary.
13                 Finally, next in the Common Core focus you can
14            see that we work with the content standards,
15            specifically college and career standards.  We also
16            do a lot of work in the visible and observable
17            application of the types of strategies needed to
18            implement Common Core.  And the three practices
19            specifically that we have just worked with our
20            teachers on, opening activities to help them do in-
21            depth critical thinking with our students; more
22            opportunities to really have them speaking and
23            listening and learning, which the Common Core really,
24            really emphasizes; and also having our teachers learn
25            how to question more, critical, deep thinking so
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 1            they're not just giving answers in their
 2            facilitation; they're pulling from the students what
 3            they know already.
 4                 And, finally, the trainings that we do -- and
 5            that's it.  Sorry.  Thank you.  Next.
 6                 MS. REYNOLDS: My name is Debra Reynolds; I'm
 7            Registrar for SIATech Charter High School.  In the
 8            spring 2013, the APSCN program first made me aware
 9            that our original e-school set-up would not allow
10            Triand to pull our grades into -- from e-school into
11            Triand.  And so at the year-end rollover, which was
12            shortly thereafter, I worked with our APSCN rep and
13            we revised our set-up and it was my understanding
14            that we had everything set so our grades would pull
15            correctly as we started this past school year.  But
16            it turned out that our grades did not pull
17            reliability into Triand.  And just over a week ago
18            they opened up another screen for me and our grades
19            are now pulling reliably into Triand, so at this
20            point all of our 2013 to 14 grades for our graduates
21            have pulled reliably into Triand.  All of our current
22            students' grades are pulling correctly into Triand
23            and APSN programming is working to correct our
24            previous two years where our set-up wouldn't allow
25            Triand to pull the grades in.  Thank you.
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 1                 MS. TATUM: Good morning, Dr. Kimbrell and Board


 2            Members.  I'm Katie Tatum, the principal, and I would
 3            just like to summarize the findings of fact.  As Mr.
 4            Walters stated, the handbook is now updated to
 5            reflect our homework policy.  An appeal for parents
 6            -- I was unable to find a local handbook, so I relied
 7            on an ally who told me -- and that was Andrew Tolbert
 8            who told me what I was -- what you were specifically
 9            looking for with regard to appeal for parents.  So
10            that was updated and everything that deals with the
11            handbook issues were updated.  And as stated by the
12            Learning Support Team, our curriculum is fully
13            aligned at this time.
14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Ms. Dawson, anyone else?


15                 DR. DAWSON: I think that's it.
16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  All right.  Well, we


17            did go over a few minutes but that's okay.  I saw
18            that you were trying to do the best that you could to
19            get all that in.  So, Mr. Lasiter, there was no
20            additional time for either one after that; it was
21            just 20 minutes per side.  Correct?
22                 MR. LASITER: That's correct.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.
24                 MR. LASITER: It's just discussion and
25            questions.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  I'll turn it over to
 2            the Panel now for discussion and questions.  Please,
 3            if you would, ask specifically who you'd like to
 4            answer the question, if you know who would answer the
 5            question, or direct your question to the Department
 6            of Education, probably Ms. Perry, or to Ms. Dawson
 7            and they can choose who they would like to answer
 8            your particular question.  So we can go around the
 9            table or we can just pop up as we go.  Who's ready?
10            Cody, are you ready?
11                 MR. DECKER: Yes, sir.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: All right, Mr. Decker,
13            Thank you.
14                 MR. DECKER: I'm not sure who would be most
15            appropriate to answer this, but I'd like more insight
16            -- we've heard, I guess, from the state leadership
17            team or the national leadership team about some of
18            the corrected actions and/or resources available.
19            I'd like to learn more about how this is going to
20            continuously occur and hopefully address the issue of
21            how do we keep this from happening in the future
22            where there's an extended period of time and then
23            there's a visit and then it appears that corrective
24            actions were made.  I'd just like to learn more about
25            that process.
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 1                 MS. BELZMAN: Are you asking specifically in
 2            terms of the curriculum or all of the issues that
 3            were brought up?
 4                 MR. DECKER: Well, I think all of the issues,
 5            but specifically with the curriculum and professional
 6            development pieces.
 7                 MS. TATUM: Can I say one thing?  I just want to
 8            let the board members know when the review team came
 9            my teachers were very afraid and I don't think they
10            provided the team with all of our curriculum docs.
11            And as you can see, I think math was the only team
12            that actually looked through all the models.  I don't
13            think they did for English or Social Studies or
14            Science, so -- and that's why I wanted to make sure
15            the curriculum team provided all the online resources
16            and curriculum alignment that was already in place,
17            and that they can look and tell they updated.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Ms. Tatum, did they -- did


19            any of the teams talk to you about curriculum?
20                 MS. TATUM: Oh, no, sir.
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  So none of the --
22                 MS. TATUM: Only at the end at the exit
23            interview.
24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  So did you have those


25            documents and be able to provide the evidence?
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 1                 MS. TATUM: No.  The teachers did.  So I wasn't
 2            sure what they had provided because I didn't look
 3            through all the documents.  They left with a box.
 4            The English teacher, who's the lead teacher, and the
 5            math teacher -- and I guess both English teachers
 6            came from Social Studies and English.
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.
 8                 MS. TATUM: But I have taken steps to have those
 9            documents in my office in binders, readily
10            accessible.
11                 MS. HOCKER: I'll address some of the curriculum
12            concerns.  So as you saw in our presentation, a great
13            deal of our curriculum lives in the Learning
14            Management System, which is an online version of the
15            curriculum.  There are some supporting documentation
16            that are paper and pencil.  The PARCC exam that the
17            students are going to be basing is going to be a
18            digital exam.  We're very aware of that.  To be a
19            21st Century learner they need to be able to access
20            things through the computer.  In order for us to
21            deliver the individual learning plans, we need to
22            have the students one-on-one.  Each student has a
23            computer.  When they came onto our campus they did go
24            into the math classroom and spend a little bit of
25            time and they were aware that we did have a digital
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 1            curriculum.  It's my understanding they did not have
 2            a chance to look at very much of that, except over
 3            some of the students' shoulders, so they did get to
 4            see just a small snapshot.  So they did look at some
 5            of the paper documents.  To give you an example, for
 6            one of our modules which has 22 different lessons
 7            that have multiple components to it, there is two
 8            pages of written documents that go with that and
 9            that's just a student's learning plan that the
10            teacher documents and marks when the student shows
11            80% mastery of a certain standard.  So you would not
12            get a very big picture, other than just titles of
13            what some of those lessons are doing.  They would not
14            get to see that things with the auto-cad and Excel
15            and different things that are going on -- wouldn't
16            get to see what Common Core State Standards
17            activities are available for the student, but there
18            is a line that says Common Core State Standards
19            Activity that the teacher signs off on.  So we meet
20            on a regular basis, to give you an example, as a math
21            team.  So we meet on a regular basis the first
22            Wednesday of every month.  The teachers also have my
23            cell phone; they're able to call me at any time.
24            They call me in the evening; they call me during
25            class if they have a question.  I also do individual
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 1            ilincs with those teachers.  We have the ability for
 2            me to see their screen, them to see my screen, and
 3            with the Arkansas teacher, which is Ms. McIntire, I
 4            have done that on several occasions and we went
 5            through that.  We've done some individual things on
 6            learning auto-cad because I think there aren't very
 7            many teachers that could walk in and be able to teach
 8            not only all the gamut of the mathematics, but also
 9            auto-cad.  And we have tutorials for the staff that
10            are available for them to learn that on their own
11            time, in addition to what's available to the
12            students.  So we have a variety of resources.  We are
13            as-needed; we're on-call 24/7.  We have our science
14            specialist here who you have not heard from.  She has
15            been working with the science teacher here in
16            Arkansas on an ongoing basis too.  We -- they know
17            our home numbers, they know us, and we're available
18            24/7.  So -- and I'll let Lori pick up from there on
19            the additional things that maybe I didn't address.
20            The one thing that you did notice, we also have the
21            virtual teachers that are available to students
22            during school hours as well as after hours.  So
23            whatever it takes we are -- we're professionals that
24            have been in the curriculum for a long time.  I've
25            already told you my background.  We know what it
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 1            takes to be successful and we know when our students
 2            are coming in they are behind in credits or they're
 3            former dropouts and the system was not working with
 4            them for whatever reason.  And it doesn't always get
 5            fixed with the first thing we try, so we are working
 6            with this.  I've been with the organization now for
 7            nine years and so I'm still learning.  I learn with
 8            every site that I come to and every teacher I work
 9            with and every student that I go in and work with.
10            And it's an ongoing thing.  But we are trying our
11            best to meet their needs.
12                 MS. BELZMAN: We have two additional issues.
13            One is that because we house our curriculum in our
14            Learning Management System that allows us to pretty
15            much instantaneously update or make any revisions
16            right there on the spot.  We can add things, we can
17            change things, we can revise things as needed in our
18            Learning Management System, and we often do that,
19            whether it be lesson plans or additional resources,
20            additional standards that we want to address.  It
21            allows instantaneous access.
22                 The second thing is that I know many of the
23            documents that were primarily taken on the site visit
24            were outdated documents.  All of our current
25            documents are also housed in our Learning Management
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 1            System so at any time we can pull up any of the
 2            current curriculum alignments.  In our Learning
 3            Management System we can print them off and have
 4            instant access to that.  I think Tami covered
 5            everything else.
 6                 MS. GILBERT: And I'd like just to say as far as
 7            professional development, we want to be able to
 8            respond that the problems are here and we recognize
 9            what they are and hear what they.  And one thing that
10            we'll make sure to do as a department and working
11            with the Learning Support Team is make sure that the
12            teachers understand what they need to do.  Updated
13            documents right at their fingertips, making sure they
14            have the most recent and that they understand the
15            most recent information curriculum that they're
16            delivering for the teachers -- to the students.  And
17            we also know how important it is, not only the
18            curriculum itself that it's aligned to the Common
19            Core but they under -- that the teachers understand
20            how to teach with Common Core strategies, having the
21            students think deeply, do questioning and thinking
22            and listening in a whole different way, going across
23            the nation, of course.  So we intend to make sure
24            that's happening and to make sure our teachers are
25            prepared.  It will happen in the ilincs, as they said
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 1            -- the monthly ilincs, which are actually weekly with
 2            the different content but also through my programs
 3            when I go out and speak with the teachers and provide
 4            professional development.  I can make sure that they
 5            understand and that they have these things at their
 6            fingertips and they understand that as well.  Thank
 7            you.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Mr. Decker, does that answer


 9            your question?
10                 MR. DECKER: I was going to follow-up but I'll
11            save it for later.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Be sure you use your
13            microphone, Cody.
14                 MR. DECKER: Yes, sir.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Mr. Hernandez?
16                 MR. HERNANDEZ: This is maybe to -- maybe it
17            will help with your follow-up question, Mr. Decker.
18            But I guess from my understanding we had this on-site
19            review.  When questions were asked maybe not very
20            clear and understandable answers were given and
21            materials presented in being able to show what needed
22            to be there.  So we have this hearing and we have a
23            group that came in -- and I assume this is a national
24            organization group that are speaking here -- that
25            come in and give us all the bells and whistles.  And
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 1            I think for Mr. Decker's point is how is there --
 2            there's this great curriculum and resources that are
 3            available but as far as how that's being implemented
 4            at the local level -- you know -- how can we insure
 5            that we're getting quality instruction?  And what
 6            gives me a little bit of concern is that, you know,
 7            looking at last year's literacy scores, you know, we
 8            had -- you know -- last year there was about three-
 9            and-a-half percent kids that were proficient on our
10            end-of-course testing.  And then over a three-year
11            average there's roughly a little over one percent.
12            And so how that -- you know -- it's great that all
13            these things are available and there and, you know,
14            come and answer these questions and show us all the
15            stuff.  But how are we insuring that on a local level
16            that there is, you know, continuous improvement and
17            growth and those things are being implemented?  And
18            so if somebody -- one of those people can -- whether
19            that would be Ms. Tatum or Ms. Dawson or whoever can
20            kind of answer that?
21                 MS. TATUM: Speaking for the national charter
22            office from California that came, Mr. Hernandez, when
23            we were made aware of the issues I asked for help
24            locally.  So APSRC was working closely with them to
25            identify some concerns and those are -- and some of
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 1            the concerns were with testing because our ESA report
 2            was not corrected.  Well, math, I'm going to just be
 3            honest, I didn't know what the numbers were saying,
 4            so I asked Dr. Cox and Ms. Campbell for help.  They
 5            provided a report that showed where we tested more --
 6            they came on-site and did a desk audit.  And so we
 7            tested four more students than the report reflected.
 8            And I have a -- you said we were only 1% on growth in
 9            -- was it algebra?  I didn't hear you.
10                 MR. HERNANDEZ: In literacy.
11                 MS. TATUM: Literacy.  Mr. Smith was talking to
12            me.  But I'd like to share this with the board, if
13            you don't mind, and go through our testing data.  If
14            we could start at the top with algebra, you can see
15            our school average -- our first two years in
16            existence we were on the Little Rock Job Corp campus,
17            so we were just given free office space and
18            classrooms in hope to have these students get a high
19            school diploma.  We were not involved with
20            scheduling.  They were on an A/B schedule, so we
21            didn't have a chance to -- we went through EOC boot
22            camp test prep in preparation for the test and there
23            we could -- this past year we were able to implement
24            that and our test scores looked significantly better.
25            But in literacy it's basically kind of remained the
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 1            same but you can look at our school average; it was
 2            up in '12, went down in '13, but then back up again
 3            in March '14.  And also in literacy we had a student,
 4            you know, score advanced.  Biology, we had a couple
 5            of proficient, and I know biology is tough across the
 6            state.  And algebra and geometry this year we've had
 7            students scoring proficient.  So if you can look at
 8            the numbers students tested and look at the school
 9            average that can kind of give some insight on
10            assessment.  And I did make a copy of this that I
11            gave each board member.  But when students enroll
12            with us a lot of our students have already tested.
13            So we keep this tracking document and it's ongoing
14            and it shows students' names -- you know -- the ones
15            who tested are highlighted in all yellow so we don't
16            have to worry about testing them.  We pull that off
17            Triand transcript information.  But if it's not on
18            there then we, you know, we test once they're
19            enrolled in classes.  So that's another reason why it
20            looks like we're not testing all the students, which
21            we're not because most have tested, but we're just
22            filling in the gaps with assessments.  Some schools
23            have tested them because they were probably enrolled
24            a semester, so they had the test but then dropped
25            out.  So they come to us and they're needing a
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 1            semester credit or they may have failed, you know.
 2                 MR. HERNANDEZ: I don't know if there's somebody


 3            from the national group that was going to kind of
 4            maybe answer about the checking in on the local
 5            group?
 6                 MS. MALLORY: I just want to share that one of
 7            the reasons we use the other assessment is because we
 8            have new kids enrolled.  I said to Ms. Tatum, "Is it
 9            fair to say that we have new kids enrolled every
10            week?"  And she said, "Every day."  So a lot of the
11            kids that take these once-a-year tests, time and
12            place, it's only offered at this time on this date,
13            it doesn't really present a good picture of what is
14            happening in the school when you have a constant
15            change in enrollment.  So, but the students that take
16            the assessment maybe haven't been there since the
17            fall or even the previous three months ago.
18                 MS. DAYTON: Good morning, Ladies and Gentlemen.


19            My name is Marti Dayton.  I'm the Science Specialist,
20            and I want to address your question with respect to
21            what are we doing at the national level and try to
22            support our teachers and make sure they're
23            implementing critical thinking skills.  As was
24            mentioned, we have monthly ilincs and it goes math,
25            English, science, social studies, and then the
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 1            elective courses.  So like, for instance, in science,
 2            they meet every month and I know they do this at each
 3            of the ilincs.  The teachers are supposed to come
 4            with a best practice, something that they've
 5            implemented to try and show the integration of Common
 6            Core or the Next Generation science standards for
 7            their specific state standards.  They come, they talk
 8            about -- they have a choice; they can either talk
 9            about something that they actual tried or something
10            that they're going to try.  And then what is really
11            awesome about that is as a team we talk about it.
12            They talk about the weaknesses, what went wrong, what
13            could've been done better, if they've already tried
14            it.  If they haven't tried it yet, we talk as a team,
15            "Okay, you want to make sure" -- you know -- "What
16            are the takeaways?  What is it that you want the
17            students to master?  How are they going to
18            demonstrate mastery?"  So as a team we give them the
19            guidance that they need and so-forth, and the
20            teachers come back and give us feedback on how those
21            lessons went.  And that's one of the main reasons for
22            the ilincs.  Does that answer that question?
23                 MR. HERNANDEZ: Yes.
24                 MS. DAYTON: Thank you.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: On this document that was
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 1            handed out, if you don't mind -- and, Mr. Hoy, this
 2            may be a question for you -- if these students are
 3            highly mobile, then they don't count towards your
 4            percentage proficient anyway?
 5                 MR. HOY: Dr. Kimbrell, on this document I have
 6            to assume that this is not the benchmark assessment
 7            and, therefore, highly mobile would not be a part of
 8            it.  This is --
 9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  So this isn't -- what


10            assessment is this?
11                 MS. TATUM: This is end-of-course assessment.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: These are end-of-course?


13                 MS. TATUM: Yes.
14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.
15                 MS. TATUM: Yeah.  But it's highly mobile; it's
16            just a school average.  You know, that doesn't count
17            against us but we include them in the school average.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  So this is your
19            school average.  But when we look at the actual
20            report of the number of students who are proficient I
21            think is what --
22                 MS. TATUM: Oh, yes.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: -- is part of --
24                 MS. TATUM: Yes.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: -- part of the concern, I


Page 43


 1            think, brought -- when we look at report cards.
 2                 MS. TATUM: Yes, sir.
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: You know, the EOC report


 4            cards and the AMO statuses, when we look at those the
 5            number of students who are actually showing growth
 6            and proficiency help generate these curiosities that
 7            we have about success.
 8                 MS. TATUM: Oh, yes, sir.
 9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Okay.  Who -- where


10            did we get to?  Then we'll skip and let Ms. -- Dr.
11            Walters catch up.  Mr. Hoy.
12                 MR. HOY: Then I do have a question.  And I'm
13            not certain who this question would be directed to
14            but it would be something to help clear up my initial
15            confusion on SIATech.  Being in Accountability, one
16            of the things that I noticed was that over the past
17            couple of years the percent of students proficient or
18            advanced on SIATech has been very, very low and that
19            caused me to have some concerns.  But I also had some
20            concerns in terms of my initial assessment of the low
21            scores because it is an alternative school.  And I
22            know that that can be an issue because the population
23            is concentrated.  So I was seeking some answers --
24            and I know that the National Charter School
25            Authorizers put out this document called Anecdotes
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 1            Are Not Enough.  I don't know if you've seen this,
 2            but specifically in the document it mentioned SIATech
 3            in terms of what they have put in place to measure
 4            growth.  And in looking at it what I notice is that
 5            they said that all SIATech schools would do an annual
 6            summary that would be provided to each respective
 7            charter authorizer.  Now I don't know how long ago it
 8            was but sometime ago I asked Ms. Perry to see if she
 9            could collect that for me 'cause I wanted to see if
10            that would be helpful for us.  Now I know this is
11            long but there is eventually a question.  The thing
12            is I'm assuming that based on that, when I went back
13            to actually read the approved charter authorization,
14            you guys never did set a goal -- benchmark exams,
15            anyway.  You set I believe your Renaissance Learn.
16            The specific wording is, "For this reason,
17            assessments are not available throughout the year and
18            are not included in the school's performance-based
19            measurable goals.  Instead, SIATech has chosen to
20            focus on distance, travel, point-in-time assessments
21            results."  So you are using this growth model from
22            Renaissance Learn, I believe, and I suspect that
23            that's what your data summary is but I have not seen
24            it to this point.  If you guys have it, I would love
25            to see it.  The thing is, there's still a concern --
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 1            and here's the concern, and I would like for some of
 2            you to address it: even if at some point when we
 3            authorize this charter we allowed you to not have the
 4            benchmark results and end-of-course results as a goal
 5            in your charter, it is what the state of Arkansas
 6            uses to measure how effective schools are in terms of
 7            educating children.  And if you're showing 65%
 8            proficient which was your target for year-two -- and
 9            you're pretty close at 60% and 62% in reading and
10            match -- I didn't see your writing percentage.  But
11            if you're showing that, and we're showing proficiency
12            rates around 2%, 3%, 4%, 5%, there seems to be a
13            disconnect between what's in your curriculum that you
14            measure and what's in the state's curriculum.  So the
15            question is: is there that disconnect between
16            curriculum?  And that's specifically one of the
17            things that Standards Assurance Unit seemed to have
18            found when they visited.  Now I know you're saying,
19            "Well, they gave us [sic] the old documents and not
20            the online version; we gave them that."  But even if
21            you consider -- you take out the whole what written
22            documents were handed out, not the written curriculum
23            but the taught and learned curriculum, there still
24            seems to be a significant gap between your 65% and
25            the State's less than 10% proficiency in literacy and
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 1            math.  So I was wondering if you could address that?
 2                 DR. DAWSON: Well, there are definitely some
 3            discrepancies there.  And what we know and what we've
 4            learned over the last 15 years is that establishing a
 5            new school, especially for this population, it takes
 6            three years to start seeing growth, in the best of
 7            situations.  And I by no means want this to sound as
 8            if -- as an excuse, because it's not.  It's not meant
 9            that way.  But we had a significant change; in year-
10            two we moved from the Job Corp Center to a location
11            off of the Job Corp Center.  It creates tremendous
12            disruptions.  The other thing that we found is that
13            one of the things that we hoped to do over the term
14            of the charter is to stabilize the teaching staff a
15            lot quicker than we have been able to.  Teaching in
16            this environment with this population is not easy and
17            it doesn't portend some of these highly qualified
18            that they're going to be able to teach in this
19            environment.  There are so many more factors that
20            have to be addressed, in addition -- not instead of,
21            but in addition to the academic standards and that
22            has to do with the re-engagement of students who have
23            previously dropped out of school.  It's important for
24            us to do things simultaneously.  It's not like one,
25            then the other.  So we have to re-engage students,
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 1            show them that there's a way to get to where they
 2            need to be; at the same time to bring their academic
 3            abilities up.  That's why we concentrate on a growth
 4            toward standard -- a growth to standard, and we see
 5            improvements.  Are the improvements that we've seen
 6            and we've alluded to fast enough?  Are we satisfied?
 7            Absolutely not.  Absolutely not.  But we believe
 8            we've done our stabilization.  We're off of the
 9            center.  We're working on making sure that our
10            teachers are engaged, that we can stabilize our
11            teaching staff.  We have teachers that are
12            comfortable in working with our population, that are
13            happy working with our population in addition to
14            being competent and caring teachers.  So we're
15            working on that.  But we believe the growth towards
16            standard will increase exponentially as we move
17            forward.  We are committed from the national office,
18            whatever it takes.  If we have a turnover in teachers
19            and we don't have a math teacher, we will put a math
20            teacher from our national office here until we can
21            get the appropriate teacher that's helpful for
22            Arkansas, and we are committed to doing that.  But we
23            believe that this school and what we're doing has
24            tremendous potential here to help change kids' lives,
25            not just their lives but their families' lives as
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 1            well, and we are committed to doing that.
 2                 MR. HOY: Follow-up?
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Yes.  But I would caution


 4            the Panel to remember we're really concerned about
 5            their curriculum and their transcripts.  Those are
 6            the reasons -- that's why we're here.
 7                 MR. HOY: Right.  And this is akin to curriculum
 8            in terms of we assess the curriculum with our
 9            benchmark exams.  So I guess a couple of questions,
10            and this may be a question for the Panel.  In terms
11            of their charter they don't seem to have benchmark
12            results as a target of their curriculum assessment,
13            and I suspect that at some point we were comfortable
14            with that.  So the question is: are we still
15            comfortable with that?  And I guess the question for
16            the charter is if they reach a hundred-percent
17            proficiency on their assessment, but there is no
18            similar growth in terms of the Arkansas benchmark or
19            the PARCC assessments is that going to be
20            satisfactory with the charter?
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Before someone tries to
22            answer that from them, again, I think the concern
23            that we have here is: their charter doesn't call for
24            any kind of expectation on that.  That may be
25            something in their renewal we'll have to look at, but
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 1            at some point the State Board approved their charter
 2            because it was the authorizer at that time and they
 3            were comfortable.  And the internal group -- and I
 4            don't remember specifics -- either recommended
 5            approval or not; I can't remember how specific it
 6            was.  But that issue is not before us today.
 7                 MS. TATUM: Dr. Kimbrell, may I ask Dr. Cox to
 8            address -- sorry.  May I ask Dr. Cox to address the
 9            Panel?
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: If you so choose.
11                 MS. TATUM: Yes, sir.
12                 DR. COX: And I was not sworn in.
13                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Well, if you'll raise your
14            right hand I'll swear you in.  Do you swear to -- or
15            affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing
16            but the truth?
17                 DR. COX: I do.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.
19                 DR. COX: Thank you.  Barbara Hunter Cox,
20            Director of Teaching and Learning at the Arkansas
21            Public School Resource Center.  I think that the
22            essence of Dr. Hoy's initial question about the
23            accountability, and in particular the national report
24            that he referred to, currently in our state we just
25            had 32 schools put on an academic distress list.  And
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 1            when you examine the schools on that list I think
 2            many of the findings in the national report could be
 3            highlighted by doing an analysis of those schools.
 4            There are a large number of high schools; there were
 5            also a large number of schools that are doing
 6            alternative learning or dropout prevention.  And so
 7            as we were pulled in to give some assistance to
 8            SIATech and we looked at their assessment across the
 9            board, we looked at their assessment and how they
10            were performing on state assessment.  We looked at
11            their alignment to Common Core.  I think that
12            SIATech, like many high schools in our state, are
13            assessing on end-of-course when they're trying to
14            prepare for PARCC.  And this has been a concern not
15            just at high schools, but schools that are heavily
16            trying to transition aren't doing as well on the
17            benchmark and I think that's a fact that we need to
18            put on the table.  I also saw in my assessment of
19            what was going on the level of entry of the students
20            at SIATech and how that growth to a standard was
21            something that they were focusing on.  On the
22            academic distress list, which you can pull up, you'll
23            notice that some of the recovery schools, the
24            alternative schools, their percent of proficient was
25            as low as less than 3%.  Again, those are unique
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 1            settings where students come with significant delays.
 2            I think that there should be some discussion about
 3            how the assessment and accountability program takes
 4            into consideration maybe these individual concerns
 5            that you've expressed on behalf of SIATech.
 6                 The other thing I would like to say is that when
 7            we went in and reviewed with the desk audit what we
 8            found was that SIATech wasn't aware of the process to
 9            get the extra assistance that they needed.  And we do
10            want to compliment Dr. Barnes, Christopher Barnes,
11            who helped us figure out what was happening and why
12            APSCN was not even pulling the correct testing list.
13            And so there have been some anomalies within the
14            system that, you know, different people with ADE have
15            assisted in SIATech handling.  But they're a unique
16            environment.  They're a unique environment because of
17            the students they serve, because of their mission,
18            and because they're attempting to meet all of the
19            requirements and expectations.
20                 And the last thing I would like to say is I
21            think they have a dedication to this particular
22            student population.  And I think their commitment is
23            backed up with a lot of resources.  Some of those
24            resources don't mesh totally with our accountability
25            or our data systems.  So in my mind much of the
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 1            problems have been communication issues between
 2            what's happening within the system and how their
 3            reports are pulled.  I appreciate this time.  Thank
 4            you.
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Ms. Coffman?
 6                 MS. COFFMAN: My question is for the ADE staff.
 7            Do you believe -- and, Mary, you can direct to the
 8            appropriate person -- after review of the documents
 9            that have been submitted, does the ADE curriculum
10            instruction staff believe now that the curriculum
11            issues have been resolved?
12                 MS. PERRY: I'm not sure that the curriculum
13            staff has had the time to go through every issue
14            there.  You do have Anthony Owen here; he can speak
15            to some of the curriculum pieces.  But I'm not sure
16            he looked at every one of those documents.  I think
17            we were focused on what was going on at the time of
18            the visit.  Would you like Anthony to --
19                 MS. COFFMAN: Yes.
20                 MR. OWEN: Commissioner Kimbrell, Panel -- Ms.
21            Coffman, regarding your question Ms. Perry is
22            correct.  I did not receive those documents until
23            late yesterday afternoon.  I have looked through the
24            math documents on a cursory basis.  Whenever we went
25            in -- I want to, if I may, give the Panel some
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 1            information of exactly how I reviewed the curriculum
 2            whenever I went in to SIATech.  I reviewed with the
 3            same protocol with which we approach any course that
 4            is submitted to Curriculum Instruction for review of
 5            a tested subject, which means that we don't look
 6            necessarily at what the in-class instruction is; we
 7            can't, obviously.  We look at what the school has
 8            assured us that they are teaching on paper.  We look
 9            at the standards that they have aligned to the
10            courses and how those standards match up to what our
11            standards are.  I did take a chance -- I did actually
12            go beyond what we typically do by looking at the
13            online computer system and simply seeing was what
14            they had on paper aligned to a couple of the random
15            modules that the teacher in the classroom chose to
16            demonstrate for me.  And I found that they were.
17            What they said on paper was what was -- was what I
18            encountered on the online system.  At no time -- I do
19            want to say, at no time did I say that I do not like
20            electronically-based instructional materials.  I
21            think that they have their place and I think they're
22            wonderful materials.  I simply stated that day that I
23            have to evaluate based on paper.  So the teacher who
24            was in the classroom -- the math teacher who was in
25            the classroom at that point pulled up our system, the
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 1            curriculum that was in her electronic ANGEL system at
 2            that point, and printed out a listing of the high
 3            school CCSS mathematics frameworks and which modules
 4            that their ANGEL system had aligned to it.  I took
 5            that printout that she had, compared it to our
 6            algebra I, geometry and algebra II documents and came
 7            up with the percentages of those alignments which
 8            were what was submitted through Mr. Walters' report
 9            or within Mr. Walters' report.  At no time was my
10            percentages indicative of the quality of
11            instructional materials, because that is not our job
12            within Curriculum Instruction to evaluate
13            instructional materials.  Regarding the curriculum
14            that was amended and submitted within this report, I
15            have not had a chance to verify that the document
16            contained all of the standards within each of those
17            courses, that none were removed.  However, as a
18            cursory glance through it they do have a module
19            aligned to every standard that is within that
20            document.  So if they have every standard that we
21            require within those documents, if those are true
22            documents or true representations of our documents,
23            then I would assign a hundred-percent alignment at
24            this point.
25                 MS. COFFMAN: Thank you.
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 1                 MR. OWEN: Regarding social studies and science
 2            -- social studies and ELA, I have no idea.
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Mr. Decker?
 4                 MR. DECKER: Thank you, Dr. Kimbrell.  I have a
 5            question concerning the transcripts.  I looked up on
 6            the ADE data center and noticed there are 44 12th
 7            graders enrolled.  And simple question is: have the
 8            transcripts, the electronic transcripts been reviewed
 9            for each of these?  And are they now correct?
10                 MS. REYNOLDS: Is your question 44 currently
11            enrolled or 44 graduates?  I'm sorry, I didn't hear.
12                 MR. DECKER: I noticed there are 44 12th graders
13            as of October 1.
14                 MS. REYNOLDS: Okay.  Of those 12th graders who


15            have graduated their credits are absolutely correct
16            in Triand for the 13-14 year.  If those students are
17            currently enrolled with us -- I only got this system
18            corrected on May 5th and I focused on getting all of
19            our graduates corrected.  So our current students, I
20            am still going back and double-checking to be sure
21            those credits are in there.  The system is now in
22            place that they will be in there correctly, but I
23            have to manually enter those grades.
24                 MR. DECKER: Thank you.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Mr. Hernandez?
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 1                 MR. HERNANDEZ: No.
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Dr. Walters?
 3                 DR. WALTERS: Thank you, Dr. Kimbrell.  I want
 4            to apologize to the SIATech group.  I had to go to
 5            another meeting, so I apologize for having to leave
 6            for a moment.  I have a question for Ms. Tatum.  And
 7            I understand the reasons that we're here today.  I
 8            have a related issue to what I believe may be related
 9            to the curriculum issue in math.  And I did speak
10            with Ms. Tatum about this on the phone and some
11            documentation that my office has just received in the
12            last couple of weeks, and that involves highly
13            qualified.  As we spoke, Ms. Tatum, you know, you
14            have a waiver for licensure, however, teachers are to
15            be highly qualified.  And my understanding is that
16            your only secondary math teacher that's been employed
17            with you since November has not taken the Praxis
18            exam.  They cannot meet highly qualified status if
19            they have not attempted the exam.  I'm not talking
20            about passed; they have not even attempted to take
21            the Praxis exam; they had an elementary degree.  In
22            looking at their transcript they've had college
23            algebra as their only math course in college.  Am I
24            correct in that?
25                 MS. TATUM: Yes, ma'am.
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 1                 DR. WALTERS: I guess from what Dr. Dawson --
 2            I'm sorry, is that correct, the superintendent's
 3            name?
 4                 MS. TATUM: Correct.
 5                 DR. WALTERS: From she said earlier, she had
 6            said that if you were having trouble getting a math
 7            teacher that they would send one from the national
 8            office.  So I guess my question is: why did that not
 9            happen?
10                 MS. TATUM: To be honest -- let me go back, Dr.
11            Walters, to -- I know math is a critical shortage
12            area for Arkansas, and the teacher that we had in
13            place was a retired school teacher who taught math 33
14            years, Ms. Floyd.  She let me know in January she's
15            going to finish out the semester to go ahead and
16            start trying to actively recruit a math teacher.  So
17            I spoke with some people at Henderson State, where I
18            graduated.  I have emails from Dr. Fetterly who gave
19            me the name of Dawn Jackson who wanted the job and
20            start in the fall.  So January 14th she emailed me,
21            "I want to come interview, I want the job."  You
22            know, I have copies if the board would like to see.
23            And so as I was setting up the interview, January
24            24th she emailed back and turned down the job for
25            some personal reasons.  So from that time, from
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 1            January on, we'd advertised.  Now with regards to a
 2            math specialist coming from California, because they
 3            come when we open, we had teacher shortages.  Once we
 4            realized that a teacher only had to be highly
 5            qualified -- like I explained to you on the phone, if
 6            you don't ask the right questions you don't really
 7            get the right answers.  And I should have listed the
 8            current math teacher as a sub since we have HQ
 9            teachers virtually online all day that she referred
10            to.  And so I just filled out a form to let her take
11            the Praxis in the spring.  And I stated she would
12            take it in February but like I said, she had an
13            immediate death.  And, you know, I don't have an
14            excuse for her not even attempting to take it.  I do
15            know she was trying to study, brush up on calculus
16            and trigonometry, and she was set to take it.  But
17            she was made well aware that her contract would not
18            be renewed if she had not attempted to take the test
19            and pass.  I should've asked Dr. Dawson or Ms.
20            Mallory to send a teacher from one of our other
21            schools.  And I try not to do that because it causes
22            the school that the teacher has left problems with a
23            teacher missing.  But the teacher that I hired, I
24            hired her because she had demonstrated proficiency in
25            secondary math.  Like I stated, I worked with her two
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 1            years at the Little Rock Job Corp Center.  She had
 2            the highest score with the population that we're
 3            dealing with.  And she was on Camp Robinson at -- it
 4            was like a boot camp for kids that get in trouble and
 5            they go and graduate, and she had the highest scores
 6            there, after speaking to some of the instructors
 7            there.  And so I felt that with Ms. Hocker's help,
 8            and the virtual team, that if she had any issues she
 9            had immediate assistance.  If I had known I could've
10            listed her as a long-term sub for math, that's what I
11            would've done.  But she did register to take the test
12            on June 16th, which is not helpful now, and I'm
13            hoping she passes it by June 30th or she doesn't get
14            renewed.  Oh, yeah -- and the math position is posted
15            once again with hopes of getting somebody.  I
16            contacted Marie Harness [ps] to get -- you know --
17            even last year to try to get a list of teachers who
18            were going through the Pathwise program to see if we
19            had any close math applicants.  There are some down
20            in the Arkadelphia area that was at Dawson but, you
21            know, nobody wants to commute that far, you know, to
22            teach.  And I had a couple of people walk through the
23            school and then once I explain our population -- and
24            matter of fact, our population the day of the team's
25            visit I was at 10th District juvenile court with
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 1            Judge Warren because she had sent about seven people
 2            to our school from her court, so I had to sit in on
 3            court hearings and I was a few minutes late -- and I
 4            apologize to Mr. Walters and the team.  I wasn't at
 5            Starbucks; I was actually at the court, you know,
 6            dealing with our juveniles.  But even when teachers
 7            come in just to walk through the school and, you
 8            know, they see kids -- you know -- they have on ankle
 9            monitors, you know, that's kind of scary for them,
10            you know, especially a brand-new teacher.  When I
11            took this job I was at Warren with Mr. Tolbert for
12            seven years as assistant principal and when I looked
13            at the model and I looked at the waivers then I told
14            Mr. Tolbert, I said, "I'm not going to take that job
15            because it's so hard," as in the population, but we
16            are just a large ALE.  Having metal detectors set up,
17            armed guards and all with the population is not easy.
18            But that's the story on the math teacher.
19                 DR. WALTERS: And I understand, as we said --
20            when we talked on the phone.
21                 MS. TATUM: Yes, ma'am.
22                 DR. WALTERS: I know in November it would be
23            very difficult to find, you know, a highly qualified
24            math teacher in November.
25                 MS. TATUM: Yes, ma'am.
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 1                 DR. WALTERS: But I guess my concern is once you
 2            hired her and you didn't hire her as a long-term sub
 3            -- you know -- you could've hire her as a long-term
 4            sub, and said, "Okay, we've got to know that you know
 5            math if you're going to be teaching math to our
 6            students."  And as you've said, you have a very
 7            unique population; they need different instruction;
 8            they don't all have the same needs.  And so I guess
 9            my concern is that this is an elementary person
10            coming in that probably didn't know the math
11            curriculum.  That may be some of the issues why we've
12            seen what we've seen.  But also, you know, to say to
13            her, "If you want to be hired long-term, you're going
14            to have to -- you're going to have to, you know, sign
15            up.  And if you don't have it passed by the end of
16            January, then we're going to have to let you go," and
17            to continue to look for someone.  Like I said, you
18            have a waiver from license so you're not having to
19            worry about the license.
20                 MS. TATUM: Yes, ma'am.
21                 DR. WALTERS: But it's someone that you know --
22            'cause you really at this point have no idea that she
23            really knows the math content.  She's your only math
24            teacher.
25                 MS. TATUM: Yes, ma'am.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Dr. Walters, let me --
 2                 MS. TATUM: But the --
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: -- let me get us back on
 4            track.  Again, we're here because of curriculum
 5            alignment and we're here for the issue of
 6            transcripts.  So let's keep our questions focused on
 7            those areas.
 8                 DR. WALTERS: I understand.
 9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.
10                 DR. WALTERS: I just think that the teacher goes
11            back to the alignment, so --
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I understand.  Thank you,


13            ma'am.  Okay.
14                 MS. TATUM: And, Doctor [sic], can I say one
15            thing -- Mr. Kimbrell -- Dr. Kimbrell?
16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: If you want to, but --
17                 MS. TATUM: To Dr. Walters, what she --
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Sure.
19                 MS. TATUM: With teaching, she's teaching a
20            small group; the model is different.  But Ms. Hocker
21            trained her when she was first hired and the training
22            that she provided let her know that she knew, you
23            know, all of her math, except --
24                 MS. HOCKER: She's very strong in mathematics
25            through algebra II, no questions asked, and she's
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 1            transitioning into that trigonometry/calculus,
 2            there's no doubt.  And that's something that I have
 3            offered to work with her for her to practice for the
 4            test because she has not taught that level and she
 5            would not be ready to teach that.  We don't have
 6            students that are at the pre-calculus/calculus level
 7            at this time that she's instructing.  The math
 8            teacher that is on the virtual link is very capable
 9            of assisting those students on an individual basis,
10            as well as myself.  And I have actually -- I've
11            worked with a few students in situations where we
12            needed to.  So it's an ongoing situation.  We have
13            four individuals in this room today that are highly
14            qualified math teachers.  I am more than willing to
15            get my credentials in Arkansas and come here and help
16            support until we get a fully credentialed teacher, if
17            needed.  And my coworkers, if you'll stand up if
18            you're fully qualified in mathematics?  And we will
19            make that happen if Ms. McIntire does not pass that
20            exam.  Those students need that and I would agree
21            with you.
22                 MS. TATUM: But she only had two years of
23            teaching in elementary and she's been in secondary
24            education since.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: She was at the Youth
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 1            Challenge is what you're saying?
 2                 MS. TATUM: Yes, sir.  Yeah, and it's the same
 3            group of kids we're dealing with.
 4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Yeah.  It's the same
 5            students.  You're right.
 6                 MS. TATUM: Yes, sir.
 7                 MS. PIANKO: Hi, I'm Laurie Pianka, Director of
 8            Education.  I just wanted to add that Ms. McIntire's
 9            contract, when she was hired, stated that she must
10            make progress toward proficiency and licensure with
11            the State of Arkansas.  So was aware of that from
12            day-one.  And we have notified her as well, so --
13            with the ongoing progress that it is our expectation
14            that before the end of the school year that she will
15            pass the Praxis exam.  And if she doesn't, her
16            contract will not be renewed.  But I would like to
17            say or point out that our math scores under Ms.
18            McIntire have improved this year.  She instituted a
19            boot camp for the students to prepare them for the
20            end-of-course exams and she has a dynamic way of
21            managing her classroom, builds professional, caring
22            relationships with students, and has made a huge
23            difference in our program in regards to how our
24            classroom environment is in math.  So we commend her
25            for that, while we still have the expectation that
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 1            she will make progress and be highly qualified by the
 2            end of the school year.  Thank you.
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.  Mr. Hoy?
 4                 MR. HOY: My question is for ADE staff; I
 5            believe Mr. Johnie Walters would be the appropriate
 6            person to answer this.  Mr. Walters, on your onsite
 7            review your findings on SIATech, did you -- those
 8            findings, are they probationary findings or are they
 9            cited findings?
10                 MR. WALTERS: Probationary.
11                 MR. HOY: And what are the next steps on
12            probationary findings if they hold true for SIATech?
13                 MR. WALTERS: SIATech received an annual
14            accreditation report, annual final accreditation
15            report.  We mailed those out last week, in April.  I
16            don't know exactly what date they received theirs but
17            they were all sent out certified mail.  At that time
18            on their annual accreditation report it noted that
19            they were placed on probationary status for
20            curriculum, as well as transcript irregularities.
21            And at that time -- when a school district is placed
22            on probation we send them forms as to how to appeal
23            if they are in disagreement with their recommended
24            status.  We recommend the status to the State Board
25            of Education and the State Board of Education will
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 1            hear our recommendations at the June board meeting,
 2            and that's when we recommend all final end-of-the-
 3            year accreditation statuses for all schools in the
 4            state of Arkansas to the State Board for
 5            certification.  And if the State Board certifies that
 6            recommendation, then they would be placed on
 7            probationary status for the 2013-14 school year.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Do you have a follow-up?


 9                 MR. HOY: I do have a follow-up.  Did SIATech
10            file an appeal?
11                 MR. WALTERS: They have not.  As to this date I
12            have not received one.
13                 MS. TATUM: We never received the form.
14                 MR. BERRY: This is Mitch Berry, attorney for
15            SIATech.  The deadline for filing an appeal has not
16            yet expired.
17                 MR. WALTERS: It's not till the 15th of May,
18            tomorrow.  Tomorrow is the deadline.
19                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Right.  I did hear in the
20            audience someone say they -- Ms. Dawson, have you
21            received that letter?
22                 DR. DAWSON: We received the letter but there
23            were no forms or --
24                 MR. WALTERS: It was a letter with the
25            instructions on how to appeal the finding.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.
 2                 MS. TATUM: No, we never received that.  I got
 3            this but no -- because I was going to have to call
 4            somebody at ADE to ask how.
 5                 MS. PIANKA: We did not receive the
 6            instructions.
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Do we have a copy of the


 8            letter?
 9                 MR. WALTERS: I can have one in just a few
10            minutes.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Let's get a copy of


12            the letter.
13                 MR. WALTERS: Anything else before I --
14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I've got a couple of
15            questions but go ahead and get that done --
16                 MR. WALTERS: Okay.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: -- so we'll have a copy of


18            that letter that was sent and make sure that
19            everybody is on the same page.  Ms. Coffman, do you
20            have a question of someone besides Mr. Walters?
21                 MS. COFFMAN: I do have a question for Dr.
22            Dawson.  Dr. Dawson, I don't know if you're familiar
23            with the term "consciously competent," but it is a
24            term that basically means that "I know what I'm
25            doing, I do it well enough to know when I do it well
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 1            or when I'm not doing it well."  So as I think about
 2            your organization, and I would consider they are
 3            probably consciously competent, there were items that
 4            have been highlighted today and were highlighted in
 5            the report -- transcripts, curriculum, the policy,
 6            teachers that are HQT.  What procedures are being
 7            changed in your organization to insure that those
 8            things don't linger, that they're solved in an
 9            earlier weight of time?  How are those being reported
10            instead of someone from the outside having to come in
11            and tell you that these things are not being done
12            properly?
13                 DR. DAWSON: Well, most certainly we have
14            noticed very specific things that needed to be
15            corrected and we've already taken the steps in terms
16            of the curriculum to make sure that the alignments
17            are correctly reflected and the teachers are aware of
18            that.  We will increase our contact with content area
19            teachers to make sure on a regular basis that they
20            are aware of any changes to the curriculum, to
21            further update and align and move with the changing
22            requirements of Common Core implementation.  The
23            other thing that we're going to do -- and this is not
24            just here; it's across our network -- is we have
25            beefed up, to use a colloquial, the hiring process
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 1            and are questioning at a much deeper level, asking
 2            teachers that are applying for positions with us to
 3            perform different types of tasks that show us that
 4            they're really capable of moving the students that
 5            are incredibly behind quickly or more quickly than a
 6            traditional setting would allow.  That's not always
 7            evident in an interview process, so the consciously
 8            competent -- I have written that term -- and that's
 9            -- it was an important starting point.  It certainly
10            isn't enough.  Specifics have to be put in place and
11            teachers must do specific things in order to be
12            effective.  They must be competent in their subject
13            areas.  They must meet the qualifications in the
14            state of being highly qualified.  But they also have
15            to have that belief that our students have promise to
16            succeed.  So blending those two things together is
17            important.  So we've changed some procedures in our
18            hiring, not just here but across the board.  As a
19            charter school we have the ability to assess teachers
20            to help them to try to engage with our program.  But
21            if it's not the right fit we want to make a change as
22            quickly as we possibly can.  We can't have that
23            churning where we're constantly replacing teachers,
24            and we've seen a bit of that here and some of our
25            other sites.  But when we have a stable staff we see


Page 70


 1            the improvement and growth to standard increase
 2            exponentially over time; we would expect that to
 3            happen here and we're committed to make that happen.
 4                 MS. COFFMAN: Can I have just a follow-up?
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Yes.
 6                 MS. COFFMAN: Dr. Dawson, how long has your
 7            organization been an organization?
 8                 DR. DAWSON: We've been in operation with this
 9            population for 15 years.  We started in California,
10            and then in partnership with Job Corp.  In the last
11            couple of years we've seen a change in our -- in the
12            expectations of our Job Corp.  Job Corp is
13            concentrating on an older population.  We have moved
14            our schools -- we have begun to move over the last
15            couple of years into the communities.  As a public
16            school we're very committed to open access and to
17            enrolling every student that is eligible for school
18            that wants to be in our school.  We couldn't do that
19            with Job Corp with their changing roles, which is why
20            we moved off the center.  And so we are morphing and
21            changing as we go; we're reinventing ourselves, so-
22            to-speak, as a community-based school.  We've done
23            that effectively and we're stable in Florida; we're
24            doing that in California, as well.
25                 MS. COFFMAN: And to finish my question, I
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 1            wanted to know when did you align your curriculum to
 2            Common Core and when did you note that it was not
 3            fully aligned?
 4                 DR. DAWSON: Well, I'm not saying that it wasn't
 5            fully aligned.  I think it wasn't -- the
 6            documentation was not evident.  But I believe that
 7            we've shown in our follow-up that the curriculum was
 8            fully aligned to Common Core.  And we started this
 9            process several years ago.
10                 MS. COFFMAN: That answers my question.
11                 DR. DAWSON: That does?
12                 MS. COFFMAN: Yes.
13                 DR. DAWSON: We've been committed to this as it
14            happened because it is a much better way to get at
15            what kids know and it aligns with our teaching
16            philosophy and our strategies with this particular
17            popular.
18                 MS. COFFMAN: Thank you.
19                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Mr. Decker?
20                 MR. DECKER: No questions.
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Mr. Hernandez?
22                 MR. HERNANDEZ: Just one clarification.  This
23            question is for Carmen Jordan.
24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Ms. Jordan.  Ms. Jordan, you


25            were sworn in, weren't you?
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 1                 MS. JORDAN: Yes, sir, I was.
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.
 3                 MR. HERNANDEZ: I just wanted to make sure I
 4            understood.  Since S-I-A-Tech or SIATech -- since
 5            they're not on a semester basis and they had -- was
 6            that the main issue why there wasn't that pulled from
 7            the transcript?  The transcript issue, was that
 8            basically because they're not necessarily designed
 9            like every other school?
10                 MS. JORDAN: Yes, sir.  Initially, when the
11            database was set up when they first started, based on
12            the information that we received from the school
13            during the set-up process, they said that they did
14            not issue semester grades, that they issued final
15            grades.  So that's the way that we set them up.  Once
16            they started doing state reporting was when we found
17            out that they did not have semester grades and Ms.
18            Reynolds was informed that she needed to start
19            entering semester grades.  So once they opened up the
20            semester grade slots, she has to manually key those
21            grades in along with the final grade so that the
22            semester grade pulls to state reported and also to
23            Triand for the official electronic transcript.
24                 MR. HERNANDEZ: Thank you.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: When did that happen?  What
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 1            you just talked about, when -- you said that when
 2            they gave you the set-up they informed you that it
 3            would only be year-end grades?
 4                 MS. JORDAN: Uh-huh.  That was --
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: And so --
 6                 MS. JORDAN: -- the initial set-up when they
 7            started in the 11-12 school year.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  So in the 11-12
 9            school year we set them up as just year-end grades?
10                 MS. JORDAN: Uh-huh.  Yes, sir.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: And then when did they
12            decide that they had to put in semester grades and
13            who informed them that they'd have to put in semester
14            grades?
15                 MS. JORDAN: That was cycle seven, June of 2013
16            --
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.
18                 MS. JORDAN: -- was when we were -- when I
19            notified Ms. Reynolds that she needed to start
20            entering semester grades.
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  And that was because


22            -- I mean, why would we set them up with year-end
23            grades if we knew they had to have semester grades?
24                 MS. JORDAN: Well, because initially we set up
25            the district based on what they tell us that they
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 1            need for their district.  So that's what we did.  We
 2            did not realize that they really needed semester
 3            grades until she attempted to do her cycle seven and
 4            pulled an error that she did not have any student
 5            grades with four-semester grades.
 6                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  So when we began


 7            looking at these transcripts where did that problem
 8            get generated?
 9                 MS. JORDAN: I don't know.  I didn't know that
10            they weren't pulling the transcript for Triand.
11            Nobody notified me of that.  How I got involved was
12            when she had issues with her cycle seven.  And then
13            when I started looking and let her know that because
14            there were no semester grades that there would be no
15            data pulled to Triand for her students and that her
16            students would not be able to qualify for a
17            scholarship because there were no grades in Triand.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Thank you.
19                 MS. JORDAN: All right.
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Any other questions for Ms.


21            Jordan while she's up there?
22                 MR. HOY: I do.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay, Mr. Hoy.
24                 MR. HOY: So are the transcript irregularities
25            related to programming more so than anything else?
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 1                 MS. JORDAN: No, sir.  It was basically related
 2            to set-up --
 3                 MR. HOY: Set-up.
 4                 MS. JORDAN: -- initially.  Uh-huh.  And then
 5            once we got this set-up corrected, which was opening
 6            the semester grade slot so that she could enter the
 7            semester grades, now since she's able to do that the
 8            transcripts in Triand will now be correct.
 9                 MR. HOY: Okay.  So when did the fix happen?
10                 MS. JORDAN: This year.  I think in October I
11            had conversation via email with Ms. Reynolds about
12            making sure that she got her semester grade slot
13            opened and to start entering the semester grades.
14            I'm not sure at what point that she actually got that
15            done.  I think I heard her say in her testimony that
16            she's been working on getting her seniors' grades
17            updated so that they are correct in Triand.
18                 MR. HOY: So the set-up was fixed in October?
19                 MS. JORDAN: In October.
20                 MR. HOY: Okay.  And, Mr. Walters, when was the
21            visit?
22                 MS. REYNOLDS: April 2nd.
23                 MR. HOY: Okay.  Thank you.
24                 MS. TATUM: Can we speak about the transcript?
25            And Carmen is correct in what she said.  But Ms.
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 1            Reynolds had to solicit help.  They suggested that we
 2            bring in Sarah Cox to help and I don't remember
 3            Vanessa's last name.  So they worked closely with Ms.
 4            Reynolds, you know, to get this updated.  So, you
 5            know, Carmen did help us with the semester but it
 6            wasn't until Sarah Cox emailed her and I think the
 7            email is maybe in your paperwork.
 8                 MS. REYNOLDS: There's just a little bit of
 9            confusion here.  There were actually two screens
10            open.  So last spring, 2013, when Carmen first
11            identified this problem for us I think before that
12            when we were set-up I think no one ever thought about
13            our grades having to pull into Triand.  And I think
14            that's -- you were asking why we were set up on the
15            finals.  I think e-school was brand-new.  We were one
16            of the first of two schools to start an e-school and
17            I think just no one really realized the impact that
18            setting us up on final grades would have.  So I think
19            that's why that initial decision was made.  So then
20            last spring Carmen told me I needed semester grades
21            and I sat -- when I did year-end rollover my field
22            rep opened one screen that allowed me to enter
23            semester grades.  However -- and so I started
24            entering semester grades.  However, it would not
25            allow me to enter -- our students enter and leave
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 1            throughout the year, so which means a student might
 2            enter with us in August and they complete English I
 3            in October.  They immediately enroll in English II.
 4            Well, I could not put in a semester final grade for
 5            English I and reschedule through e-school, which has
 6            to be done for state reporting.  We schedule that
 7            student into English II.  So there was no way for us
 8            to keep a rolling kind of total of our students'
 9            grades that would pull into Triand.  I had to go back
10            in, in January, at semester's end and manually go
11            back and try to re-enter all the grades that our
12            students had earned during that previous term.  So
13            they still -- even with my doing that, they still
14            were not pulling reliably into Triand.  Sometimes we
15            would get the correct credit and the correct course
16            but more often than not, we'd either -- it would
17            either skip a course or give double credits,
18            sometimes it would only give a half-credit.  It
19            wasn't reliable and it was -- and so I did start
20            working with my field rep and then we had all of the
21            evaluations and everything in that.  It was not until
22            May 5th that my field rep actually opened yet another
23            semester grade screen, different from the one.  So
24            I'm actually on my second semester grade screen now.
25            And it is at this point that now our grades will pull
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 1            correctly and all of our 2013-14 grades will now pull
 2            correctly.  APSCN is working on the fix for the
 3            previous years.  So maybe that clears that up.
 4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.  And I remember


 5            this conversation and I think you may have been the
 6            only one that was in the meeting, Dr. Walters, when
 7            we had our internal review with this.  And we talked
 8            specifically about the difficulty we were going to
 9            have with APSCN with this particular school with
10            students entering and exiting classes throughout the
11            year and wouldn't be in the traditional period, and
12            how that was going to happen.  And sorry about this,
13            Carmen, and sorry about this, Mr. Hernandez and Mr.
14            Decker but the assistant commissioners at that time
15            said, "We'll work it out.  We'll find a way to make
16            APSCN work."  So I think that's been part of the
17            problem, is that it was a very unique situation with
18            a system that we weren't changing at the time.  So
19            I've got a better understanding now of what happened
20            there because I remember that conversation about how
21            difficult that was going to be and the decision was
22            we would just have to find ways to work around it.
23            So that helps me remember that conversation.
24                 Okay.  Mr. Walters, if you would help us with
25            communication about standards violations with
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 1            SIATech.
 2                 MR. WALTERS: Whenever we mail we send Certified


 3            mail, the final -- not the preliminary but the final
 4            report.  And in those we include -- we have a stack
 5            of memos and the specialist puts the Commissioner's
 6            memo for the final report, a copy of that, in the
 7            packet with the final report.  As well as if a school
 8            district has been identified as a probationary --
 9            with a probationary violation we have another memo
10            that we put in the file, in the folder, and mail and
11            it is the instructions on how to file a appeal if the
12            district so chooses.  I want to give those to Ms.
13            Tatum.  And while I was up there, the Certified mail
14            receipt states that it was -- the packet was signed
15            -- the final accreditation packet was signed for on
16            May 1, so that's --
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Ms. Tatum, may I ask you a


18            question?
19                 MR. WALTERS: And Ms. Tatum said that they
20            weren't in her packet --
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I'll ask Ms. Tatum.  Ms.
22            Tatum, did you receive the letter?
23                 MS. TATUM: Yes, sir.  My security guard signed
24            for it; it's on the receipt.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.
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 1                 MS. TATUM: But these two documents were not in
 2            the envelope and I should've brought the original
 3            instead of making a copy.  Because Dr. Dawson and Ms.
 4            Pianka wanted to know how to file an appeal and I
 5            told her, you know, we were working on the
 6            presentation, that I would find it before -- I knew
 7            May 15th was the deadline, so that's what I explained
 8            to Mr. Walters.  We did receive the report from all
 9            the schools that was listed on there but this memo
10            was not in there.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.  Okay.  Mr.
12            Walters, while you're close to the stand can I ask a
13            couple of questions?
14                 MR. WALTERS: Yes, sir.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: In the report that was --
16            the preliminary report that was provided -- and I
17            think it was the on-site report -- when it comes to
18            the curriculum issue, in that there was a statement
19            that there's no alignment to a fourth credit course
20            for Smart Core students.  So there was no course or
21            there was no alignment to a course that would meet
22            that requirement?
23                 MR. WALTERS: I'll let Mr. Owen address that.
24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.
25                 MR. OWEN: Dr. Kimbrell, whenever I was present
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 1            and looked through the different modules that they
 2            offer, the alignment that they gave as far as to our
 3            courses that we have within our system were to
 4            algebra I, geometry, algebra II.  And at that point
 5            they were still indicating that one of their -- or a
 6            combination of the sections out of the modules were
 7            aligned to an algebraic connections course which was
 8            no longer a valid course.  They have since realigned
 9            the document, their internal system, to bridge the
10            algebra II which is not a fourth year course.  It
11            does count as one full credit toward graduation but
12            there was no indication that there were any alignment
13            -- there was any alignment to a course beyond the
14            algebra II.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Still no evidence of that?


16                 MR. OWEN: No, sir.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Also -- and, Mr.
18            Walters, this will be for you 'cause I see the notes
19            that we have on algebra -- Mr. Anthony, your report
20            says 96% algebra I.  This was on-site algebra II,
21            76%; geometry, 83%.  But you've now received but
22            haven't had an opportunity to completely review that.
23            Is that correct?
24                 MR. OWEN: Yes, sir.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Now, as far as
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 1            English Language Arts, did we have an English
 2            Language Arts specialist --
 3                 MR. WALTERS: Maggie Herrick.
 4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Is she here?
 5                 MR. WALTERS: No, sir.  She is in -- at a
 6            conference with Dr. Tucker --
 7                 MS. FRENO: Dr. Witonski.
 8                 MR. WALTERS: -- and Dr. Witonski.  Where?
 9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Then I'm not -- oh,


10            she's not here?
11                 MR. WALTERS: Not here.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: So has -- have they
13            submitted -- I mean, all it tells me is that it does
14            not appear to align to the current Common Core State
15            Standards.
16                 MR. WALTERS: When we were there Randall
17            Lawrence and Ms. Herrick -- Randall went with Ms.
18            Lawrence [sic] -- I mean, Ms. Herrick and they
19            observed the curriculum.  And from the information we
20            were given by Ms. Herrick that is the data that we
21            have and the information we have.  The information
22            that was received from SIATech was forwarded to Dr.
23            Tucker for Ms. Herrick to look at.  Now I don't know
24            where it's gone from there.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: That was done yesterday?
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 1                 MR. WALTERS: Yesterday.
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Fine.  So to your


 3            knowledge there's not been any review of that?
 4                 MR. WALTERS: No, sir.
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Thank you.  Mr.
 6            Walters, before you sit down let me ask one other
 7            question and I don't mean to -- I just wanted to go
 8            around and let y'all ask questions and --
 9                 MR. WALTERS: That's okay.
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: -- y'all may have some
11            follow-up questions.  So in terms of the transcripts
12            themselves -- and I think we've heard some
13            conversation about those transcripts, but was there
14            any evidence that the transcripts were wrong, that
15            students were given credit for courses that they
16            hadn't completed?  I don't --
17                 MR. WALTERS: No.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.
19                 MR. WALTERS: As far as were there manufactured
20            courses and manufactured grades, no.  The problem was
21            you have e-school here, you have Triand over here;
22            ne'er the two ever met.  And they attempted when we
23            were there -- they came to the office the next day;
24            there was genuine frustration on the part of the
25            school that they couldn't get it to match, and I had
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 1            suggested that they work with Carmen's group.  But
 2            the fact was what you could see in APSCN and what you
 3            could see in Triand were completely different and
 4            there was not the indication that courses were being
 5            manufactured and put on here.  The issue was the
 6            accuracy with which a school district is required to
 7            report student data, student grades, and reports in
 8            general.  So if a student were to list its -- to
 9            qualify for a Challenge Scholarship or something
10            along that line, apply for a position, for a job,
11            that transcript -- the accuracy of that transcript
12            was so in question that you couldn't tell exactly
13            what was what.  But we do not believe that there were
14            manufactured courses for grades applied to either
15            side of the transcript.
16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Ms. Jordan, a
17            question for you please.  Do you feel like we've got
18            that problem resolved now or on our way to a
19            resolution of that problem?
20                 MS. JORDAN: Yes, sir, we are.
21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  Thank you.  Questions


22            of the Panel?  Okay.  We'll start with Dr. Walters.
23            She's got her hand up first.
24                 DR. WALTERS: I have a question for Dr. Dawson.
25            And if you answered this while I was out, my
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 1            apologies.  But can you tell me how many times this
 2            current school year has staff from the national
 3            organization been on campus, on the Little Rock
 4            campus?
 5                 DR. DAWSON: At individual times, multiple -- I
 6            can't give you an exact number.
 7                 DR. WALTERS: Less than 10, more than 10?
 8                 DR. DAWSON: More than 10.  We have -- our
 9            director was there almost every month, if not more
10            than once a month.  Chris Mallory is there every
11            month for a board meeting.  Our Learning Support are
12            available and have come out periodically on request
13            to train teachers when we've been able to do that, so
14            --
15                 MS. PIANKA: Yeah.  And I can add to that.
16                 DR. WALTERS: Sure.
17                 MS. PIANKA: I'm here so often I don't need a
18            map anymore of Little Rock.  I can find my way around
19            or drive the rest of the team around.  We identified
20            -- I think Ms. Tatum and I identified early, probably
21            in November and December, that since we had some new
22            staff we wanted some refresher courses and support
23            with classroom management.  And so we had our
24            Learning Support Team out for a week in February for
25            training.  As has already been stated by the Learning


Page 86


 1            Support Team, they provide monthly ilincs in every
 2            subject area.  And along with being on campus to
 3            train individual teachers as they are hired and
 4            anyone that's in need of additional support they'll
 5            work for us.  It's been my privilege to work with Ms.
 6            Tatum for the past three years and we kind of got
 7            baptized together in APSCN by attending, starting in
 8            2011, probably five weeks of training.  And we were
 9            part of the team that said, "We don't do semester
10            grades," and we were assured that somehow it would
11            work out; "We'll just do the final grade."  So we
12            were very upfront with how our system works and
13            what's to be expected.  But we probably I would say
14            at least every month, sometimes twice a month
15            depending -- Ms. Mallory and I kind of tag-team and
16            both provide oversight and support to the site to
17            make sure that they have what they need.  We do
18            classroom observations, we do audits, we do whatever
19            is needed or support the principal in any way with
20            something that she identifies that is needed for her
21            site.  So, yes, we are here frequently.
22                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Mr. Hernandez?
23                 MR. HERNANDEZ: My question is for Jeremy or
24            Kendra, either one.  As far as there being
25            probationary notification given to them for
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 1            standards, they have a way to appeal that --
 2                 MR. LASITER: Yes.
 3                 MR. HERNANDEZ: -- and there will be a hearing
 4            and that's in front of the State Board.  Is that
 5            correct?
 6                 MR. LASITER: That's correct.
 7                 MR. HERNANDEZ: Okay.  That was one question.
 8            The second question, if we decide to take no action
 9            does that require a motion or how does that work as
10            far as what we're able to do?
11                 MR. LASITER: Certainly, I would ask that
12            anything that you do, do it in a motion so it's
13            formalized and we can put it in the minutes.  So if
14            you decide to take no action it would be better and
15            cleaner if you did it just through a motion.
16                 MR. HERNANDEZ: Thank you.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Other questions?  Mr. Owen?


18                 MR. OWEN: Yes, Dr. Kimbrell.  I have a point of
19            clarification for my previous answer, if it can be
20            allowed.  I pulled back up the email that I received
21            yesterday and looked back through it and not only has
22            SIATech presented within this documentation an
23            updated curriculum for algebra two, they have also
24            aligned to an algebra III curriculum document of
25            ours.  That would count as a "beyond algebra II"
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 1            credit under Smart Core, if it is properly aligned.
 2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you, sir.  Thanks for


 3            that clarification.
 4                 MS. HOCKER: Can I just add to that?  There are
 5            two different digital math curriculums in our math
 6            teachers' folder.  The one from 2012-2013 is our
 7            teacher (inaudible); she showed him that when you
 8            were in there.  We haven't filed one for 2013-2014
 9            that has those courses.  And if you go in and look,
10            it's on their -- on her teacher log-in, so -- for
11            both.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.  Other questions


13            by the Panel?  I do have one question and, Ms.
14            Dawson, it may be you to answer this or whomever.
15            But you use the ANGEL Learning Management System?
16                 DR. DAWSON: Yes, that's correct.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Everybody keeps referring to


18            it in this document that's been provided, talk about
19            -- it talks about the curriculum delivery model and
20            its ability to be real fluid and updated throughout
21            the year.  What curriculum model is this?  Is it
22            something that your organization or the organization
23            you run has created or is it a digital piece that is
24            a third-party vendor?
25                 DR. DAWSON: I think the answer to that would be
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 1            it's a combination of both of those.  There are
 2            certain things within our curriculum that we've
 3            developed and we know that they're successful.  We've
 4            also added additional programs.  For instance, a lot
 5            of our math curriculum is based with PLATO content,
 6            which is customizable; therefore, we add to that.
 7            And we've created a hybrid type of system that's a
 8            combination of both off the shelf, which doesn't work
 9            for our population by itself, and what we've created
10            internally.
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: And so the states that
12            you're in that I've looked at I believe are also
13            Common Core states?
14                 DR. DAWSON: Correct.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I saw --
16                 DR. DAWSON: Well, Florida isn't but --
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Well, yeah.  Up until --
18            well --
19                 DR. DAWSON: They may be soon.  We don't know.
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Yeah.  I also saw that three


21            of the course states -- well, all the states besides
22            Arkansas your schools are accredited by a third-party
23            accreditation system?
24                 DR. DAWSON: That's correct.  We have -- in
25            California, we have two accreditations.  We have the
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 1            WASC, the Western Association accreditation, plus the
 2            Advanced Ed. Trans Regional Accreditation for both
 3            our schools as well as our corporate office.  In
 4            Florida, we have the AdvancED with SACS and in New
 5            Mexico also we have both the AdvancED and the North
 6            Central accreditation.
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Any -- and this is not on
 8            the subject and I apologize -- any --
 9                 DR. WALTER: Can I get onto you?
10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: And you can get onto me.


11            Any plans for looking at the -- an accreditation for
12            your school here?
13                 DR. DAWSON: Well, we are accredited under
14            AdvancED.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Here?
16                 DR. DAWSON: Here, in Arkansas.  Absolutely.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Your school has an AdvancED


18            --
19                 DR. DAWSON: Accreditation.  Absolutely.
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.  I just didn't
21            see it listed on a website.
22                 DR. DAWSON: I'll have to check that.  It should
23            be.  It must be.  I can't imagine it not being.  But
24            I'll check that.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Arizona, California,
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 1            Florida, New Mexico are the only ones listed as
 2            having accreditation from a separate accrediting --
 3            right there on your home page.
 4                 DR. DAWSON: We have the certificate.
 5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: You might want to update


 6            that.
 7                 MS. REYNOLDS: We'll update the website.
 8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Any other questions?
 9                 MS. COFFMAN: Do you know when that
10            accreditation review occurred?
11                 DR. DAWSON: 11-12, I believe.
12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.
13                 DR. DAWSON: Excuse me.  Next year we'll be
14            having the follow-up accreditation.
15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I do want to make one
16            statement to -- is it Dr. Dawson?
17                 DR. DAWSON: Yes.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Dr. Dawson, to you and your


19            staff.  These are not uncommon reviews.  There are
20            times and we've done a couple this year where I've
21            asked Mr. Hoy to go into traditional public schools
22            and to do very similar, unannounced reviews when
23            there are things that are brought to our attention
24            that we believe need to be reviewed and maybe need to
25            be reviewed in a way in which we need to just show
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 1            up.  And I apologize, and if it put people at unease
 2            and made them feel uncomfortable that's not our
 3            intention whatsoever.  It's not our intention to,
 4            quote, "catch people" but it's our intention to go
 5            into a school to see a school operate as a school and
 6            we don't want to go in with everybody prepared for
 7            someone to come in, you know.  And if you're -- and
 8            I've run schools and run organizations for 30-
 9            something years in this business; if you're doing
10            what you're supposed to be doing, you don't have to
11            worry about those things.  But I also know that when
12            the Department of Ed. or an accrediting agency or
13            anything comes in there's those concerns.  So I do
14            want to say it was never our intention to put people
15            on edge or to make them feel uneasy.  And we've done
16            these before and most, if not all -- this is the
17            first time I remember getting a report back that
18            anyone felt that the questioning was -- and I think
19            the report says -- maybe it was the degree at which
20            the questions were -- or the manner in which
21            questions were asked.  And I've not heard that about
22            our staff and I hope that maybe it was just an unease
23            and not our staff being in any way derogatory or
24            accusatory in their questioning.  I don't think the
25            staff would do that, so I hope that that's not what
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 1            happened and maybe it was just some unease that was
 2            experienced by the staff.
 3                 DR. DAWSON: I appreciate that and I'm sure that
 4            that's it.  I think Dr. Cox brought up a very
 5            important point, is that -- especially when you have
 6            a school like ours that's not a traditional school
 7            and has a different way of approaching, we expect and
 8            we get a lot of scrutiny; we're used to that.  So
 9            we're able and we're willing and wanting to talk
10            about that.  I think we can do a better job, both in
11            the corporate office and we'll work with our site
12            staff, in communicating as players change within the
13            office what exactly we do.  It doesn't -- telling it
14            once doesn't make it transferable as people change or
15            as our program changes.  So I think all of us
16            included in our partnership can work on our
17            communication and we'll definitely make that a
18            priority.
19                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you.  Panel, I would


20            suggest since we really don't have a full review of
21            the math yet -- I know that Anthony has that
22            information and I have all confidence that he can do
23            that for us.  I know that our English Language Arts
24            staff that were there haven't had an opportunity to
25            review that.  It does seem to me that the Triand
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 1            issue and the transcript issues, if not completely
 2            resolved, are being resolved and are resolvable.  We
 3            may still run into some problems.  A mind is a
 4            terrible thing to lose and over the last five years
 5            mine is slowly but surely being -- it's about gone.
 6            But I remember that conversation well with the
 7            internal group and having that conversation about
 8            "this is going to be hard, this is not going to work
 9            with our current system, and we're just going to have
10            to make it work."  So I don't know about your
11            feelings but I just think with what is going to come
12            before the State Board I would rather us have answers
13            for them about those curriculum issues.  I think we
14            can answer the questions for ourselves about the
15            Triand and the transcripts.  But for the curriculum
16            issues I think there's time for our staff to work
17            with their staff to see if those things are actually
18            in place before we make some kind of decision.  And
19            I'd welcome any discussion, comment you may have.
20            Mr. Hoy?
21                 MR. HOY: Motion at the proper time.
22                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I'll accept a motion.
23                 MR. HOY: A motion that we take no action at
24            this time, Dr. Kimbrell.
25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I have a motion from Mr. Hoy
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 1            to take no action at this time.
 2                 MR. HERNANDEZ: Second.
 3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I have a second from Mr.


 4            Hernandez.  Any discussion?  If not, all those in
 5            favor of the motion say "aye."
 6                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: All those opposed?  Motion


 8            passes.  Thank y'all.  Thank you, Panel.  Thank you,
 9            SIATech and we'll be back in touch and we'll continue
10            to work on insuring that that is aligned.  Mr.
11            Walters, I hope you will work with Ms. Tatum to make
12            sure that everything is lined up for their appeal, if
13            they choose.
14                 MR. WALTERS: We will hold a slot open for the
15            State Board meeting in the event that they choose to
16            appeal.
17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Thank you very much.
18  A-2: CONSIDERATION OF 2014 DISTRICT CONVERSION PUBLIC CHARTER


19  SCHOOL APPLICATION
20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  So we'll move to


21            Action Item A-2, Consideration of the 2014 District
22            Conversion Public Charter School Application.  Ms.
23            Perry.  And if you'd like, Ms. Perry, we can let the
24            room kind of clear, if you want to.
25                 MS. PERRY: I'm good.  You are --
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Except Tripp is bothering


 2            everybody.
 3                 MS. PERRY: This document should look fairly
 4            familiar to you.  Last meeting we brought you the
 5            Open-Enrollment Charter Application for your review.
 6            The Board, as you know, allowed it to release last
 7            week.  So this week we're bringing to you the
 8            District Conversion Application.  You will note that
 9            we made the appropriate changes to the District
10            Conversion Application that we made to the Open-
11            Enrollment where that made sense.  You'll notice
12            things like we pulled the budget piece out, as when
13            we had our meeting back in January you directed us
14            and you felt that was appropriate for District
15            Conversion Applications.  So it looks very similar.
16            We did completely drop "limited charter" from it.
17            Again, we talked about it that day.  We've had no one
18            ever ask to submit an application for a limited
19            charter school.  If we get that request, we'll see
20            about putting in a couple of questions because that's
21            all it would take to revise this and let someone do
22            that.
23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Any questions from the
24            Panel?  Ms. Coffman, you don't have a question?
25                 MS. COFFMAN: No.  It looks good.
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 1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Okay.  All right.  If not,
 2            I'll entertain a motion.  If the crowd out there will
 3            hold it down, we'll get this done.
 4                 MS. COFFMAN: I make a motion we approve these
 5            documents.
 6                 MR. HERNANDEZ: Second.
 7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Ms. Coffman makes a motion


 8            and Mr. Hernandez quickly makes a second.  All those
 9            in favor say "aye."
10                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: All those opposed like sign.


12            Motion passes.  Thank you, Ms. Perry, for your work
13            and the rest of the staff and attorneys for their
14            work.  I'll entertain a motion to adjourn.
15                 DR. WALTERS: Motion.
16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: I have a motion to adjourn.


17                 MS. COFFMAN: Second.
18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL: Second from Ms. Coffman.


19            And we are adjourned.
20 
21      (The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:35 a.m.)
22 
23 
24 
25 
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 1                        P R O C E E D I N G S
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  It's a little bit past 8:30.
  


 3             If we can get Tripp to sit down --
  


 4                  MS. PERRY:  That was my fault.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I'm just teasing Tripp.  I
  


 6             always have to give Tripp a hard time.  So we'll
  


 7             begin with our first item and I do not have a report
  


 8             from the chair, so I'll take up the Consent Agenda,
  


 9             the minutes of the April 16, 2014 board meeting.  Do
  


10             you have any questions or adjustments on that?
  


11             There's only one item on the consent.  If not, I'll
  


12             entertain a motion.
  


13                  MR. HOY:  Motion to approve.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a motion to approve
  


15             by Mister --
  


16                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  Second.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hoy, and second by Mr.
  


18             Hernandez.  All those in favor?
  


19                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


20                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All those opposed like sign.
  


21             Motion passes, so the Consent Agenda passes.
  


22   A-1:  HEARING FOR OPEN-ENROLLMENT PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL: SCHOOL
  


23   FOR INTEGRATED ACADEMICS & TECHNOLOGIES LITTLE ROCK (SIATech)
  


24                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  So we'll move to Action Item
  


25             A-1, Hearing for the Open-Enrollment Public Charter
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 1             School: School for Integrated Academics and
  


 2             Technologies Little Rock (SIATech).  Mr. Lasiter.
  


 3                  MR. LASITER:  Thank you, Commissioner Kimbrell,
  


 4             Members of the Panel.  I want to walk you through the
  


 5             hearing procedures that apply for the purposes of
  


 6             this agenda item and take you through some of the
  


 7             legal considerations.  I know that we have people
  


 8             from both the Department of Education and from the
  


 9             charter school who will want to address you on this
  


10             issue.  But A-1 is a hearing for the open-enrollment
  


11             public charter school, School for Integrated
  


12             Academics and Technologies in Little Rock, or S-I-A-
  


13             Tech.  Your procedures are found in Section 6.24 of
  


14             the ADE rules governing charter schools and I'll
  


15             briefly take you through those procedures.
  


16                  The hearing procedures require 20 days prior
  


17             notice.  The ADE provided a notice letter concerning
  


18             this hearing to the charter school on April 24, 2014.
  


19             That notice letter is in your materials.  In a moment
  


20             I will walk through that notice letter as well
  


21             because it contains some important things that you'll
  


22             need to consider for the purposes of this hearing.
  


23             But in a moment all persons, with exception of the
  


24             attorneys representing the parties, who plan to give
  


25             testimony must be sworn by a certified court
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 1             reporter.  At that point Arkansas Department of
  


 2             Education staff will have up to 20 minutes to present
  


 3             their findings to the Panel.  Mr. Commissioner, you
  


 4             can agree to allow them longer if that time is
  


 5             needed.  After the 20 minutes is over, the open-
  


 6             enrollment public charter school shall have 20
  


 7             minutes to present its case to the authorizer.  And
  


 8             as with the ADE presentation, Mr. Commissioner, you
  


 9             can certainly allow more time if that time is needed.
  


10             After the presentation by both the ADE and the
  


11             Charter Authorizing Panel [sic], that's when you go
  


12             into your discussion of the issues and your
  


13             questions, if any, to any of the representatives from
  


14             either the Department of Education or the charter
  


15             school.  And then at the conclusion of the hearing
  


16             you may issue a final decision or take the matter
  


17             under advisement until a future scheduled meeting.
  


18                  I now want to refer you to Arkansas Code 6-23-
  


19             105 because that statute gives you your options for
  


20             the hearing today.  Certainly, your first option is
  


21             not to take any action.  You always have that.  There
  


22             are not mandatory actions that need to be taken
  


23             today.  So you can decide, first of all, to do
  


24             nothing at all.  But you may also place the public
  


25             charter school on probation or you may modify or
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 1             revoke the charter if you determine that the persons
  


 2             operating the public charter school, one, committed a
  


 3             material violation of the charter, including failure
  


 4             to satisfy accountability provisions prescribed by
  


 5             the charter; two, failed to satisfy generally-
  


 6             accepted accounting standards of fiscal management;
  


 7             three, failed to comply with this chapter, meaning in
  


 8             the Arkansas code or other applicable law or
  


 9             regulation; or, four, failed to meet academic or
  


10             fiscal performance criteria deemed appropriate and
  


11             relevant for the public charter school by the
  


12             authorizer.  The law does also set forth the criteria
  


13             for how do you arrive at these decisions.  It says
  


14             that any action the authorizer may take shall be
  


15             based on the best interest of the public charter
  


16             school students, the severity of the violation, and
  


17             any previous violation the public charter school may
  


18             have committed.  So, again, on the spectrum of things
  


19             that you can do in this hearing is on one side take
  


20             no action, all the way up to revocation of the
  


21             charter.
  


22                  Now I want to refer you, before I sit down, to
  


23             the notice letter that went out to the charter school
  


24             on April 24, 2014.  And that notice letter put the
  


25             charter school on notice of two potential findings in
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 1             this case.  The first is the allegation that the
  


 2             curriculum was not aligned to the Common Core State
  


 3             Standards, and the second was inconsistencies in
  


 4             student records that impact official transcripts.
  


 5             Those are the two items that the charter school has
  


 6             notice of and that's why they're here today.
  


 7             Certainly, during the course of your questions and
  


 8             discussions other questions may arise that you want
  


 9             to pose to the charter.  But any action that you take
  


10             today as a panel needs to be focused on those two
  


11             items that the charter school received notice of.
  


12             So, again, those were curriculum that's not aligned
  


13             to the Common Core State Standards and, two,
  


14             inconsistencies in student records that impact
  


15             official transcripts.  Ms. Clay and I will both be
  


16             here for the duration of this hearing, if you have
  


17             further questions.
  


18                  If there aren't any questions at this time, then
  


19             we'll need to swear everyone in and then we'll
  


20             proceed with the Department of Education's 20
  


21             minutes.
  


22                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Panel Members, any questions
  


23             of Mr. Lasiter?  If not, I would ask that all those
  


24             that will be giving testimony, with the exception of
  


25             those attorneys that may be representing either the
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 1             Department or the charter, please rise.  Raise your
  


 2             right hand, please.  Do you swear or affirm to tell
  


 3             the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?
  


 4                (ALL WITNESSES ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY)
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
  


 6                  MR. LASITER:  Mr. Commissioner, I believe Ms.
  


 7             Perry will begin the Department's 20 minutes.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Ms. Perry.
  


 9                  MS. PERRY:  Good morning.  I'm just going to
  


10             give you a little bit of background that led to the
  


11             standards visit and review.  After receiving
  


12             information in November that all teachers at SIATech
  


13             were not highly qualified, I looked at the state
  


14             performance data from the two years that the charter
  


15             had been in operation and noted a few students who
  


16             had demonstrated proficiency on and the low
  


17             percentage of students who actually took the state
  


18             assessments.  So on December 3rd, Lisa Crook and I
  


19             held a scheduled meeting with SIATech leaders.  In
  


20             the meeting I asked questions about student
  


21             performance and was told about the ability levels of
  


22             students.  I also asked questions about the number of
  


23             SIATech graduates, the curriculum being used at the
  


24             charter, and the qualifications of the teachers.  I
  


25             requested a list of the 2011-2012 and 2012-2013
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 1             graduates with their ID numbers and clarification
  


 2             about teacher qualifications.  I first received a
  


 3             list of graduates and later a list of graduates with
  


 4             ID numbers.  I then reviewed transcripts,
  


 5             information, and Triand for SIATech graduates and
  


 6             identified many transcript issues.  I shared the
  


 7             information with my supervisor, who requested that I
  


 8             share the information with the Commissioner.  The
  


 9             Commissioner directed the Standards Unit to conduct a
  


10             review.  The review report is in the Panel packet, as
  


11             well as the signed visit form that was completed at
  


12             the review on April 2nd.  Mr. Johnie Walters, who led
  


13             the Standards Review Team, will discuss the report.
  


14             Anthony Owen, a Standards Review Team member, is also
  


15             present this morning should you have questions for
  


16             him.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you, Ms. Perry.  Mr.
  


18             Walters, I guess you're up next.
  


19                  MR. WALTERS:  On March 27th, we received a
  


20             letter -- I received a letter from Dr. Kimbrell
  


21             authorizing our unit to do an on-site review visit to
  


22             SIATech charter school.  We made that visit on April
  


23             2nd of 2014.  We had my self as a facilitator and we
  


24             had team members Roy Causbie, who's a Standards
  


25             Assurance Specialist; Mari Beth Nokes, a Standards
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 1             Assurance Specialist; Randall Lawrence, a Standards
  


 2             Assurance Specialist; Maggie Herrick, who is a Social
  


 3             Studies Language Arts Specialist from Curriculum
  


 4             Instruction; and Mr. Anthony Owen from Curriculum
  


 5             Instruction, who is a Math Specialist.  At that time
  


 6             the team reviewed numerous documents, handbooks.  We
  


 7             reviewed transcripts; we reviewed curriculum
  


 8             documents.  Different team members had different
  


 9             assignments at a time.  Upon completion of the review
  


10             the team determined, in talking with Ms. Tatum, that
  


11             the transcripts were not in alignment with e-school
  


12             and Triand transcripts.  There were discrepancies
  


13             between credits, number of credits, types of credits,
  


14             things of that nature.  And Ms. Tatum had at the time
  


15             asked if they could attempt to make some corrections
  


16             and bring us updated copies the following day, which
  


17             they did.  But the corrections were not accurate; the
  


18             transcripts still were not in alignment.
  


19                  With regard to curriculum, we had several team
  


20             members visit classrooms and look at various parts of
  


21             the curriculum and it was determined that the
  


22             Language Arts curriculum, Social Studies curriculum
  


23             portions, Science were not at the time aligned with
  


24             the current Common Core State Standards.  And there
  


25             were percentages of alignment with some math courses.
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 1             And Mr. Owen is here and he has -- can speak more
  


 2             correctly to that.  At the time of exit we wrote our
  


 3             findings up and I believe you have copies of that in
  


 4             your folder where we had three pages of findings from
  


 5             different individuals.  And we noted on there that
  


 6             the curriculum did not meet the standards and we were
  


 7             notified that currently that was accurate but that in
  


 8             the 14-15 school year the curriculum should be
  


 9             aligned with the Common Core curriculum that the
  


10             State has approved.  At this time we've not seen any
  


11             evidence to the contrary.  We did receive some
  


12             documents from SIATech that was forwarded to me by
  


13             Ms. Perry.  I've not had an opportunity to completely
  


14             review those, so -- but at the time of the visit they
  


15             basically told us that it would be aligned in the 14-
  


16             15 school year.  And math was the one content area
  


17             that was most closely aligned with the current Common
  


18             Core State Standards.  And, again, the transcripts
  


19             were not consistent with each other when they were
  


20             run, and these were on the day of the visit nor when
  


21             they were brought -- they were attempted to be
  


22             corrected and brought to us on the 3rd.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And that's all you have?
  


24                  MR. WALTERS:  Yes, sir.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Is there anything
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 1             else from the Department to be presented?  Mr.
  


 2             Lasiter, do you have something else?
  


 3                  MR. LASITER:  No, sir.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Okay.  So
  


 5             representatives from SIATech -- who would like to
  


 6             begin that?  Again, we'll have 20 minutes and I know
  


 7             that we've sworn in a lot of people, so have y'all
  


 8             got this organized how you want to do this?
  


 9                  DR. DAWSON:  We hope so.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  I'll try to keep you
  


11             kind of abreast of how much time you have.  If you
  


12             want to know, you can just ask me and I'll try to
  


13             keep you up-to-date.
  


14                  DR. DAWSON:  Thank you.  Good morning, Dr.
  


15             Kimbrell, Members of the Panel.  My name is Linda
  


16             Dawson.  I'm the superintendent and CEO of SIATech,
  


17             Incorporated.  I'm very pleased to be here this
  


18             morning to talk to you a little bit about SIATech.
  


19             And with me I have members of our team, strong
  


20             members of our Learning Support Team responsible for
  


21             curriculum alignment and the transition that we all
  


22             have to make in public education to the Common Core
  


23             over the last several years.  And you will be meeting
  


24             each of those members as we explain our curriculum.
  


25             I want to just let the board and panel know a little
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 1             bit about us.  Breaking the cycle of poverty is the
  


 2             number one goal of our organization.  We do dropout
  


 3             recovery.  We take students that are the most at-risk
  


 4             of not being successful in life and try to get them
  


 5             re-engaged with education and back into the
  


 6             mainstream and give them the hope that they can have
  


 7             a fulfilling life with the academic skills necessary
  


 8             to compete in a very competitive work world.  Our
  


 9             network of charter schools has been in existence for
  


10             15 years.  We have over 14,000 graduates that are now
  


11             participating in life with a college -- or a high
  


12             school diploma.  Well, 38% of our students are in
  


13             college within the first two years of graduating.
  


14             We've been recognized by the National Dropout
  


15             Recovery network, as well as in California, as a
  


16             California Distinguished School, the first dropout
  


17             recovery school to get that designation.  What we
  


18             know is that dropout recovery isn't easy and that by
  


19             no means is an excuse.  We absolutely understand what
  


20             we do.  We also know that with a concentrated student
  


21             population, predominantly students in poverty, that
  


22             those students take longer to get back into the
  


23             mainstream.  Research shows that we have students
  


24             that are presenting symptoms of post-traumatic stress
  


25             syndrome because of their situation.  It's not an
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 1             excuse, and we believe we have methods, we have the
  


 2             people, and we have the program that can get these
  


 3             students back on track.  We are certainly not trying
  


 4             to shirk any duties or say that we are perfect in any
  


 5             way; we are not.  We are absolutely willing and able
  


 6             and committed to fixing any type of concerns that the
  


 7             board would have.  We believe strongly in
  


 8             accountability.  We believe in a broader range of
  


 9             accountability.  But we were certainly making every
  


10             effort -- our expectation is that our school leaders
  


11             will make that effort to meet the accountability
  


12             standards of the states that we're operating in, most
  


13             certainly here in Arkansas.  So I would like to say
  


14             that from a corporate standpoint we believe that we
  


15             have the leader in place that can make these changes
  


16             that you are requiring, that we can move forward in a
  


17             very positive way as a partner in education, and that
  


18             our program is our kids' best hope to participate
  


19             fully in the life of the community.  So with that,
  


20             I'd like to introduce our next speaker.
  


21                  MS. BELZMAN:  Good morning.  My name is Lori
  


22             Belzman.  I'm a curriculum coordinator for SIATech
  


23             and I will be speaking about the curriculum for both
  


24             ELA and Social Studies.  We wanted to start off
  


25             though by saying that all SIATech curriculum has a
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 1             comprehensive alignment with the Common Core
  


 2             Standards; it always has, it always will, because
  


 3             it's a requirement.  And one of the ways it allows us
  


 4             to do this so easily is our curriculum delivery model
  


 5             and our Learning Management System.  It allows for
  


 6             continuous updates and revisions.  And as a result of
  


 7             that, our alignments are done at a minimum once a
  


 8             year but more realistically periodically to reflect
  


 9             these continuous updates and revisions of our
  


10             curriculum on the spot.  My clicker is not working.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Freeman, can you help?
  


12                  MS. BELZMAN:  That's okay.  So as far as ELA
  


13             goes, looking at our digital curriculum as well as
  


14             our English resources, we are one-hundred percent
  


15             compliant with the ADE Common Core State Standards
  


16             and our current crosswalk for 2013-2014 reflects this
  


17             and that has been submitted to you.  As far as the
  


18             ELA reading passages not being at high school level,
  


19             we had every reading passage through Readability
  


20             Score-dot-com and as expected we found that the
  


21             results varied.  All reading passages were anywhere
  


22             from middle school to college level.  But we do want
  


23             to point out one key concept when you're looking at
  


24             task complexity, especially in terms of the Common
  


25             Core.  Reading level is definitely one component of
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 1             text complexity but you also have to look at the
  


 2             complexity of the task that is associated with the
  


 3             test.  For example, in 11th grade American Lit
  


 4             students typically read short stories by Edgar Allen
  


 5             Poe or O. Henry.  These are actually middle school
  


 6             reading passages but the task that they have to
  


 7             complete with the reading passage is typically
  


 8             higher.  Students are analyzing, they're evaluating,
  


 9             so they're answering questions on the higher end of
  


10             knowledge as well as Webb's Cognitive Rigor Matrix.
  


11             So we would urge that you look at both components,
  


12             not just the reading level itself but the task which
  


13             students have to complete associated with that piece
  


14             of task.
  


15                  As far as the writing assignments, we have
  


16             several measures of criteria to show that they are at
  


17             high school level.  They were created using, of
  


18             course, the Common Core Standards as a guideline but
  


19             we also looked at all the questions we ask of our
  


20             students the part question types in order to prepare
  


21             them for the upcoming assessment for next year.  We
  


22             also use Webb's Depth of Knowledge, as well as Hess's
  


23             Cognitive Rigor Matrix to make sure that we were not
  


24             asking all lower-end questions but that we were
  


25             asking our students to answer questions and complete
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 1             writing assignments at those higher levels of Webb's
  


 2             Depth of Knowledge, as well as the cognitive rigor
  


 3             matrix.
  


 4                  As far as the Oral Communications framework not
  


 5             being updated, we simply updated that to show that we
  


 6             are currently meeting the framework.  And that
  


 7             current bit of alignment was submitted to you as
  


 8             well.
  


 9                  For Social Studies, again, if you look at our --
  


10             both of our digital curriculum online in our Learning
  


11             Management System and our Social Studies resources,
  


12             we are one-hundred percent compliant with the Common
  


13             Core State Standards in both literacy and writing for
  


14             History and Social Studies.  And, again, that
  


15             document was submitted for you.  And all of our
  


16             current crosswalk showed this current alignment with
  


17             those standards.
  


18                  As far as the depth and rigor issue that was
  


19             brought up for our Social Studies, I think World
  


20             History was specifically mentioned.  The current
  


21             units have been revised to meet that required depth
  


22             and rigor.  We also have additional plans to develop
  


23             more units so that we have a more comprehensive World
  


24             History curriculum and that will be in the 2014-2015
  


25             school year.  Another good example of our depth and
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 1             rigor is in our Economics and our Government courses.
  


 2             Both were recently approved as college and career
  


 3             ready courses for our students.  And, finally, U.S.
  


 4             History has had significant revisions just in the
  


 5             digital curriculum.  It doesn't appear in our paper
  


 6             framework; it's all online since August of 2013.
  


 7             Again, just examples to show you that our curriculum
  


 8             is constantly being updated and revised.
  


 9                  MS. HOCKER:  Hello.  My name is Tami Hocker.
  


10             I'm the Curriculum Coordinator/Math Specialist for
  


11             SIATech.  I've been in secondary education for 30
  


12             years.  I've taught the whole gamut of mathematics
  


13             from foundational math, algebra I, geometry, algebra
  


14             II, pre-calculus, trigonometry, and AP calculus.  The
  


15             year before I joined SIATech my AP calculus pass rate
  


16             for students was 89%.  So I'm very aware of what
  


17             students need to be college and career ready for the
  


18             21st century.
  


19                  So some of the documents and items that I wanted
  


20             to share with you that if someone walked into the
  


21             classroom and they're only looking at paper-based
  


22             documents, we have, as Lori mentioned, an online
  


23             program.  We have the ANGEL Learning Management
  


24             System.  And the courses that we deliver, as well as
  


25             the additional resources, are housed through our
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 1             ANGEL management system, very similar to Blackboard.
  


 2             So you have been sent the updated crosswalks to
  


 3             reflect what's currently in the classroom.  As with
  


 4             any lesson plan or any good teaching practice, we
  


 5             look at student data and outcomes and teacher input
  


 6             and we are constantly making revisions.  So what is
  


 7             available for these courses we did send to you what's
  


 8             in the digital and it's fully aligned to the Arkansas
  


 9             Department of Education Common Core State Standards
  


10             for those courses.
  


11                  Up on the screen -- I know it's very small but
  


12             there's a screen shot of the algebra III.  There are
  


13             six different units; inside each of those units there
  


14             are several assignments.  On each of them it does
  


15             tell which of the Common Core State Standards is
  


16             addressed, and I'll show you a sample lesson in just
  


17             a minute.  Additional resources that we have
  


18             available, we do individual learning plans for
  


19             students, not just their traditional curriculum.
  


20             Some of our students need scaffolding, they need
  


21             review, and some of them need enrichment.  So through
  


22             the PLATO Learning Management System, in addition to
  


23             our curriculum, we have everything from foundational
  


24             math up through calculus.  Up on the screen this is a
  


25             sample lesson for our algebra III that we did use
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 1             that came from the NROC Developmental Math
  


 2             Curriculum, which was designed for adult learners to
  


 3             take any individual that needs basic math up through
  


 4             college readiness.  And you can see this is a
  


 5             mathematics modeling with exponential functions; it's
  


 6             in the first unit of the algebra III.  We also have
  


 7             additional online resources available to all students
  


 8             in one click.  We can add anything on there very
  


 9             quickly.  There are two different graphing
  


10             calculators; there's PARCC practice tests and
  


11             resources; algebra EOC specific to Arkansas; there's
  


12             virtual manipulatives.  But up on the top right-hand
  


13             corner I would like to draw your attention -- we have
  


14             a help button where we have credentialed teachers
  


15             available to our students outside of the classroom
  


16             and during class hours where we have credentialed
  


17             math teachers that are highly qualified.  We have
  


18             auto-cad specialists available, as well as other
  


19             credentialed teachers.   We have 20-plus different
  


20             math lessons that students are doing in our
  


21             curriculum where they apply mathematics through
  


22             technology.  This is an example of a lesson that a
  


23             student would complete if they do our geometry
  


24             curriculum.  They're doing linear measurement,
  


25             they're doing ANGEL measurement, and they are
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 1             converting it into polar coordinates and then they
  


 2             are going onto an auto-cad program and recreating the
  


 3             star that you see there and you can see a sample of
  


 4             the screen shot.  So those are additional resources
  


 5             that we use and some examples of things we have in
  


 6             our curriculum.  Thank you.
  


 7                  MS. MALLORY:  I'd like to share with you a
  


 8             little bit about some of our accountability methods
  


 9             to evaluate -- have students not only --
  


10                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Would you go ahead and tell
  


11             us your name?
  


12                  MS. MALLORY:  Oh.  Kris Mallory, I'm sorry, from
  


13             SIATech and I'm the Chief Instructional Officer and I
  


14             have the privilege of working with the ladies that
  


15             are sitting here today.  One of the things we do at
  


16             SIATech is we do -- we use a computer adapted
  


17             assessment that's nationally normed and we assess the
  


18             students -- it's not a test, they don't pass or fail;
  


19             it's an assessment of progress.  And the students
  


20             take this assessment in math and reading when they
  


21             first come in and then they're given it again six to
  


22             ten weeks later and again six to ten weeks later so
  


23             they can evaluate their growth.  And what I've given
  


24             you is these little tiny things.  The dots are
  


25             children and their growth.  And I have the results
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 1             here for reading from the first year we were open and
  


 2             at the end of the year we have an external evaluation
  


 3             that looks -- and see did the students actually meet
  


 4             or exceed growth.  You think of grade level.  If the
  


 5             student is in 11.1, that would be the first month of
  


 6             the 11th grade year.  The evaluation is much more
  


 7             technical and uses a scale score so the kids can
  


 8             understand that.  We have students come in anywhere
  


 9             from 2nd grade reading level and math level up to
  


10             12.9, so we have a wide range of ability.  And it's a
  


11             little lower in math -- I mean, in reading; they
  


12             average about 6th grade and up to about 6.9 for math.
  


13             So on this first screen is reading and it shows only
  


14             28% of the students were exceeding expected growth.
  


15             And if you go to the next slide, that's the next
  


16             year; that's a year ago, and it increased from 28% to
  


17             44% of the students being proficient.  We go to math,
  


18             the next slide.  The first year we were open it
  


19             showed 45% of the students exceeding growth and then
  


20             a year ago it showed 62%.  So those were gains of 16%
  


21             and 17% in kids exceeding expected growth.  And if
  


22             you go to the next slide, you can see the comparison
  


23             between the two years.  On one -- on the left side is
  


24             the reading, on the right side is math and that
  


25             horizontal line shows what is expected.  And you can
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 1             see that on the math the majority of our kids are now
  


 2             exceeding what's expected and that's because the
  


 3             teachers learned how to use the reports with the
  


 4             students so they can engage and use that information
  


 5             to help them drive their own instruction.  They have
  


 6             to take control, and we're getting better at it and I
  


 7             know we're going to continue to get better at it.
  


 8                  The slide on your paper has an error, that was
  


 9             my error, but those are the percentages that shift
  


10             from the first year to the second year, and you can
  


11             see that the students exceeding expected growth went
  


12             from 28 to 44 in reading and then in math they went
  


13             from 45 to 62.  So we're very happy with that and we
  


14             predict and we know that our growth will continue to
  


15             move forward in that direction.
  


16                  MS. GILBERT:  Well, hi.  My name is Beverly
  


17             Gilbert; I'm the Professional Development Director
  


18             for SIATech.  I have the privilege of working
  


19             actually with two teams along with all our members
  


20             here in Arkansas at your site.  We have a
  


21             professional development team and we also have a
  


22             Learning Support Team who work with the content.  I
  


23             deal specifically with the teachers and so does my
  


24             team.
  


25                  Our goal in professional development is to make
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 1             sure that our teachers receive relevant training.  It
  


 2             is research-based and we really, really incorporate
  


 3             best practices.  We think it's very important for us
  


 4             to learn from our own experiences, as well as the
  


 5             research that's out there by professionals.  Also, we
  


 6             want to make sure that especially working with our
  


 7             population that we customize our professional
  


 8             development for our schools, our type of schools, and
  


 9             with students.  It's very relevant to our students to
  


10             be taught by teachers who understand their learning
  


11             needs and their predicaments in life.
  


12                  Next, it's very important for us to make sure
  


13             that we bring research-based knowledge in here.  Some
  


14             examples of what we teach our teachers and work with
  


15             our teachers on: transformative learning and also
  


16             multiple intelligence.  Those two forms the basis of
  


17             some of the training that we do with our students.
  


18             We really want to make sure that our students receive
  


19             transforming opportunities and learn about how they
  


20             can become people who can go out in the -- use their
  


21             academics and go out and be very worthy of the
  


22             workforce.  Also, our multiple intelligence students
  


23             learn different ways and we want to make sure our
  


24             teachers understand that.  Getting to Got It!, that
  


25             is mediated learning.  Mediated learning is where we
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 1             teach our teachers how to mediate the learning, the
  


 2             needs at the moment.  Whatever they may not
  


 3             understand, especially we have a lot of learning
  


 4             needs with our students, we want to make sure our
  


 5             teachers are able to access and understand those.
  


 6             Visible learning is something we're very excited
  


 7             about.  John Heady's recent research on this is very
  


 8             important but he has learned about doing better
  


 9             cognitive studies to understand exactly the type of
  


10             things that are needed in schools.  And so we've
  


11             ordered that and we teach our teachers about that
  


12             research.
  


13                  Next, also we provide training -- what types of
  


14             trainings do we do?  Before we open a site we do a
  


15             New Staff Academy.  We meet 45 days with our teachers
  


16             and our staff.  They learn about curriculum, about
  


17             pedagogy, about the culture that they're going to be
  


18             working with and the students specifically.  We also
  


19             provide monthly ilincs.  Our Learning Support Team
  


20             that you've already heard from, they provide ilincs
  


21             which is the digital professional development we
  


22             provide monthly.  We share every single month Common
  


23             Core strategies -- and, again, monthly means every
  


24             week.  So math is one week, ELA is the next week, et
  


25             cetera.  We also go over best practices and we also
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 1             do updates on content that may have been made during
  


 2             that time.  Because as you heard, our curriculum is
  


 3             constantly updated, especially with the Common Core
  


 4             and especially with the strategies that we need to
  


 5             implement.  We also do onsite professional
  


 6             development.  I personally was here and just did a
  


 7             professional development -- a two-day seminar with
  


 8             the teachers.  We worked specifically on things that
  


 9             they had asked for with the needs of their students,
  


10             also instructional strategies very specific to the
  


11             Common Core and also classroom environment, which is
  


12             also necessary.
  


13                  Finally, next in the Common Core focus you can
  


14             see that we work with the content standards,
  


15             specifically college and career standards.  We also
  


16             do a lot of work in the visible and observable
  


17             application of the types of strategies needed to
  


18             implement Common Core.  And the three practices
  


19             specifically that we have just worked with our
  


20             teachers on, opening activities to help them do in-
  


21             depth critical thinking with our students; more
  


22             opportunities to really have them speaking and
  


23             listening and learning, which the Common Core really,
  


24             really emphasizes; and also having our teachers learn
  


25             how to question more, critical, deep thinking so
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 1             they're not just giving answers in their
  


 2             facilitation; they're pulling from the students what
  


 3             they know already.
  


 4                  And, finally, the trainings that we do -- and
  


 5             that's it.  Sorry.  Thank you.  Next.
  


 6                  MS. REYNOLDS:  My name is Debra Reynolds; I'm
  


 7             Registrar for SIATech Charter High School.  In the
  


 8             spring 2013, the APSCN program first made me aware
  


 9             that our original e-school set-up would not allow
  


10             Triand to pull our grades into -- from e-school into
  


11             Triand.  And so at the year-end rollover, which was
  


12             shortly thereafter, I worked with our APSCN rep and
  


13             we revised our set-up and it was my understanding
  


14             that we had everything set so our grades would pull
  


15             correctly as we started this past school year.  But
  


16             it turned out that our grades did not pull
  


17             reliability into Triand.  And just over a week ago
  


18             they opened up another screen for me and our grades
  


19             are now pulling reliably into Triand, so at this
  


20             point all of our 2013 to 14 grades for our graduates
  


21             have pulled reliably into Triand.  All of our current
  


22             students' grades are pulling correctly into Triand
  


23             and APSN programming is working to correct our
  


24             previous two years where our set-up wouldn't allow
  


25             Triand to pull the grades in.  Thank you.
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 1                  MS. TATUM:  Good morning, Dr. Kimbrell and Board
  


 2             Members.  I'm Katie Tatum, the principal, and I would
  


 3             just like to summarize the findings of fact.  As Mr.
  


 4             Walters stated, the handbook is now updated to
  


 5             reflect our homework policy.  An appeal for parents
  


 6             -- I was unable to find a local handbook, so I relied
  


 7             on an ally who told me -- and that was Andrew Tolbert
  


 8             who told me what I was -- what you were specifically
  


 9             looking for with regard to appeal for parents.  So
  


10             that was updated and everything that deals with the
  


11             handbook issues were updated.  And as stated by the
  


12             Learning Support Team, our curriculum is fully
  


13             aligned at this time.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Dawson, anyone else?
  


15                  DR. DAWSON:  I think that's it.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  All right.  Well, we
  


17             did go over a few minutes but that's okay.  I saw
  


18             that you were trying to do the best that you could to
  


19             get all that in.  So, Mr. Lasiter, there was no
  


20             additional time for either one after that; it was
  


21             just 20 minutes per side.  Correct?
  


22                  MR. LASITER:  That's correct.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
  


24                  MR. LASITER:  It's just discussion and
  


25             questions.
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 1                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  I'll turn it over to
  


 2             the Panel now for discussion and questions.  Please,
  


 3             if you would, ask specifically who you'd like to
  


 4             answer the question, if you know who would answer the
  


 5             question, or direct your question to the Department
  


 6             of Education, probably Ms. Perry, or to Ms. Dawson
  


 7             and they can choose who they would like to answer
  


 8             your particular question.  So we can go around the
  


 9             table or we can just pop up as we go.  Who's ready?
  


10             Cody, are you ready?
  


11                  MR. DECKER:  Yes, sir.
  


12                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All right, Mr. Decker,
  


13             Thank you.
  


14                  MR. DECKER:  I'm not sure who would be most
  


15             appropriate to answer this, but I'd like more insight
  


16             -- we've heard, I guess, from the state leadership
  


17             team or the national leadership team about some of
  


18             the corrected actions and/or resources available.
  


19             I'd like to learn more about how this is going to
  


20             continuously occur and hopefully address the issue of
  


21             how do we keep this from happening in the future
  


22             where there's an extended period of time and then
  


23             there's a visit and then it appears that corrective
  


24             actions were made.  I'd just like to learn more about
  


25             that process.
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 1                  MS. BELZMAN:  Are you asking specifically in
  


 2             terms of the curriculum or all of the issues that
  


 3             were brought up?
  


 4                  MR. DECKER:  Well, I think all of the issues,
  


 5             but specifically with the curriculum and professional
  


 6             development pieces.
  


 7                  MS. TATUM:  Can I say one thing?  I just want to
  


 8             let the board members know when the review team came
  


 9             my teachers were very afraid and I don't think they
  


10             provided the team with all of our curriculum docs.
  


11             And as you can see, I think math was the only team
  


12             that actually looked through all the models.  I don't
  


13             think they did for English or Social Studies or
  


14             Science, so -- and that's why I wanted to make sure
  


15             the curriculum team provided all the online resources
  


16             and curriculum alignment that was already in place,
  


17             and that they can look and tell they updated.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Tatum, did they -- did
  


19             any of the teams talk to you about curriculum?
  


20                  MS. TATUM:  Oh, no, sir.
  


21                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So none of the --
  


22                  MS. TATUM:  Only at the end at the exit
  


23             interview.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So did you have those
  


25             documents and be able to provide the evidence?
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 1                  MS. TATUM:  No.  The teachers did.  So I wasn't
  


 2             sure what they had provided because I didn't look
  


 3             through all the documents.  They left with a box.
  


 4             The English teacher, who's the lead teacher, and the
  


 5             math teacher -- and I guess both English teachers
  


 6             came from Social Studies and English.
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
  


 8                  MS. TATUM:  But I have taken steps to have those
  


 9             documents in my office in binders, readily
  


10             accessible.
  


11                  MS. HOCKER:  I'll address some of the curriculum
  


12             concerns.  So as you saw in our presentation, a great
  


13             deal of our curriculum lives in the Learning
  


14             Management System, which is an online version of the
  


15             curriculum.  There are some supporting documentation
  


16             that are paper and pencil.  The PARCC exam that the
  


17             students are going to be basing is going to be a
  


18             digital exam.  We're very aware of that.  To be a
  


19             21st Century learner they need to be able to access
  


20             things through the computer.  In order for us to
  


21             deliver the individual learning plans, we need to
  


22             have the students one-on-one.  Each student has a
  


23             computer.  When they came onto our campus they did go
  


24             into the math classroom and spend a little bit of
  


25             time and they were aware that we did have a digital







Sharon Hill Court Reporting
(501) 847-0510


- May 14, 2014


32


  
 1             curriculum.  It's my understanding they did not have
  


 2             a chance to look at very much of that, except over
  


 3             some of the students' shoulders, so they did get to
  


 4             see just a small snapshot.  So they did look at some
  


 5             of the paper documents.  To give you an example, for
  


 6             one of our modules which has 22 different lessons
  


 7             that have multiple components to it, there is two
  


 8             pages of written documents that go with that and
  


 9             that's just a student's learning plan that the
  


10             teacher documents and marks when the student shows
  


11             80% mastery of a certain standard.  So you would not
  


12             get a very big picture, other than just titles of
  


13             what some of those lessons are doing.  They would not
  


14             get to see that things with the auto-cad and Excel
  


15             and different things that are going on -- wouldn't
  


16             get to see what Common Core State Standards
  


17             activities are available for the student, but there
  


18             is a line that says Common Core State Standards
  


19             Activity that the teacher signs off on.  So we meet
  


20             on a regular basis, to give you an example, as a math
  


21             team.  So we meet on a regular basis the first
  


22             Wednesday of every month.  The teachers also have my
  


23             cell phone; they're able to call me at any time.
  


24             They call me in the evening; they call me during
  


25             class if they have a question.  I also do individual
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 1             ilincs with those teachers.  We have the ability for
  


 2             me to see their screen, them to see my screen, and
  


 3             with the Arkansas teacher, which is Ms. McIntire, I
  


 4             have done that on several occasions and we went
  


 5             through that.  We've done some individual things on
  


 6             learning auto-cad because I think there aren't very
  


 7             many teachers that could walk in and be able to teach
  


 8             not only all the gamut of the mathematics, but also
  


 9             auto-cad.  And we have tutorials for the staff that
  


10             are available for them to learn that on their own
  


11             time, in addition to what's available to the
  


12             students.  So we have a variety of resources.  We are
  


13             as-needed; we're on-call 24/7.  We have our science
  


14             specialist here who you have not heard from.  She has
  


15             been working with the science teacher here in
  


16             Arkansas on an ongoing basis too.  We -- they know
  


17             our home numbers, they know us, and we're available
  


18             24/7.  So -- and I'll let Lori pick up from there on
  


19             the additional things that maybe I didn't address.
  


20             The one thing that you did notice, we also have the
  


21             virtual teachers that are available to students
  


22             during school hours as well as after hours.  So
  


23             whatever it takes we are -- we're professionals that
  


24             have been in the curriculum for a long time.  I've
  


25             already told you my background.  We know what it
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 1             takes to be successful and we know when our students
  


 2             are coming in they are behind in credits or they're
  


 3             former dropouts and the system was not working with
  


 4             them for whatever reason.  And it doesn't always get
  


 5             fixed with the first thing we try, so we are working
  


 6             with this.  I've been with the organization now for
  


 7             nine years and so I'm still learning.  I learn with
  


 8             every site that I come to and every teacher I work
  


 9             with and every student that I go in and work with.
  


10             And it's an ongoing thing.  But we are trying our
  


11             best to meet their needs.
  


12                  MS. BELZMAN:  We have two additional issues.
  


13             One is that because we house our curriculum in our
  


14             Learning Management System that allows us to pretty
  


15             much instantaneously update or make any revisions
  


16             right there on the spot.  We can add things, we can
  


17             change things, we can revise things as needed in our
  


18             Learning Management System, and we often do that,
  


19             whether it be lesson plans or additional resources,
  


20             additional standards that we want to address.  It
  


21             allows instantaneous access.
  


22                  The second thing is that I know many of the
  


23             documents that were primarily taken on the site visit
  


24             were outdated documents.  All of our current
  


25             documents are also housed in our Learning Management
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 1             System so at any time we can pull up any of the
  


 2             current curriculum alignments.  In our Learning
  


 3             Management System we can print them off and have
  


 4             instant access to that.  I think Tami covered
  


 5             everything else.
  


 6                  MS. GILBERT:  And I'd like just to say as far as
  


 7             professional development, we want to be able to
  


 8             respond that the problems are here and we recognize
  


 9             what they are and hear what they.  And one thing that
  


10             we'll make sure to do as a department and working
  


11             with the Learning Support Team is make sure that the
  


12             teachers understand what they need to do.  Updated
  


13             documents right at their fingertips, making sure they
  


14             have the most recent and that they understand the
  


15             most recent information curriculum that they're
  


16             delivering for the teachers -- to the students.  And
  


17             we also know how important it is, not only the
  


18             curriculum itself that it's aligned to the Common
  


19             Core but they under -- that the teachers understand
  


20             how to teach with Common Core strategies, having the
  


21             students think deeply, do questioning and thinking
  


22             and listening in a whole different way, going across
  


23             the nation, of course.  So we intend to make sure
  


24             that's happening and to make sure our teachers are
  


25             prepared.  It will happen in the ilincs, as they said
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 1             -- the monthly ilincs, which are actually weekly with
  


 2             the different content but also through my programs
  


 3             when I go out and speak with the teachers and provide
  


 4             professional development.  I can make sure that they
  


 5             understand and that they have these things at their
  


 6             fingertips and they understand that as well.  Thank
  


 7             you.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Decker, does that answer
  


 9             your question?
  


10                  MR. DECKER:  I was going to follow-up but I'll
  


11             save it for later.
  


12                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Be sure you use your
  


13             microphone, Cody.
  


14                  MR. DECKER:  Yes, sir.
  


15                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez?
  


16                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  This is maybe to -- maybe it
  


17             will help with your follow-up question, Mr. Decker.
  


18             But I guess from my understanding we had this on-site
  


19             review.  When questions were asked maybe not very
  


20             clear and understandable answers were given and
  


21             materials presented in being able to show what needed
  


22             to be there.  So we have this hearing and we have a
  


23             group that came in -- and I assume this is a national
  


24             organization group that are speaking here -- that
  


25             come in and give us all the bells and whistles.  And
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 1             I think for Mr. Decker's point is how is there --
  


 2             there's this great curriculum and resources that are
  


 3             available but as far as how that's being implemented
  


 4             at the local level -- you know -- how can we insure
  


 5             that we're getting quality instruction?  And what
  


 6             gives me a little bit of concern is that, you know,
  


 7             looking at last year's literacy scores, you know, we
  


 8             had -- you know -- last year there was about three-
  


 9             and-a-half percent kids that were proficient on our
  


10             end-of-course testing.  And then over a three-year
  


11             average there's roughly a little over one percent.
  


12             And so how that -- you know -- it's great that all
  


13             these things are available and there and, you know,
  


14             come and answer these questions and show us all the
  


15             stuff.  But how are we insuring that on a local level
  


16             that there is, you know, continuous improvement and
  


17             growth and those things are being implemented?  And
  


18             so if somebody -- one of those people can -- whether
  


19             that would be Ms. Tatum or Ms. Dawson or whoever can
  


20             kind of answer that?
  


21                  MS. TATUM:  Speaking for the national charter
  


22             office from California that came, Mr. Hernandez, when
  


23             we were made aware of the issues I asked for help
  


24             locally.  So APSRC was working closely with them to
  


25             identify some concerns and those are -- and some of
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 1             the concerns were with testing because our ESA report
  


 2             was not corrected.  Well, math, I'm going to just be
  


 3             honest, I didn't know what the numbers were saying,
  


 4             so I asked Dr. Cox and Ms. Campbell for help.  They
  


 5             provided a report that showed where we tested more --
  


 6             they came on-site and did a desk audit.  And so we
  


 7             tested four more students than the report reflected.
  


 8             And I have a -- you said we were only 1% on growth in
  


 9             -- was it algebra?  I didn't hear you.
  


10                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  In literacy.
  


11                  MS. TATUM:  Literacy.  Mr. Smith was talking to
  


12             me.  But I'd like to share this with the board, if
  


13             you don't mind, and go through our testing data.  If
  


14             we could start at the top with algebra, you can see
  


15             our school average -- our first two years in
  


16             existence we were on the Little Rock Job Corp campus,
  


17             so we were just given free office space and
  


18             classrooms in hope to have these students get a high
  


19             school diploma.  We were not involved with
  


20             scheduling.  They were on an A/B schedule, so we
  


21             didn't have a chance to -- we went through EOC boot
  


22             camp test prep in preparation for the test and there
  


23             we could -- this past year we were able to implement
  


24             that and our test scores looked significantly better.
  


25             But in literacy it's basically kind of remained the
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 1             same but you can look at our school average; it was
  


 2             up in '12, went down in '13, but then back up again
  


 3             in March '14.  And also in literacy we had a student,
  


 4             you know, score advanced.  Biology, we had a couple
  


 5             of proficient, and I know biology is tough across the
  


 6             state.  And algebra and geometry this year we've had
  


 7             students scoring proficient.  So if you can look at
  


 8             the numbers students tested and look at the school
  


 9             average that can kind of give some insight on
  


10             assessment.  And I did make a copy of this that I
  


11             gave each board member.  But when students enroll
  


12             with us a lot of our students have already tested.
  


13             So we keep this tracking document and it's ongoing
  


14             and it shows students' names -- you know -- the ones
  


15             who tested are highlighted in all yellow so we don't
  


16             have to worry about testing them.  We pull that off
  


17             Triand transcript information.  But if it's not on
  


18             there then we, you know, we test once they're
  


19             enrolled in classes.  So that's another reason why it
  


20             looks like we're not testing all the students, which
  


21             we're not because most have tested, but we're just
  


22             filling in the gaps with assessments.  Some schools
  


23             have tested them because they were probably enrolled
  


24             a semester, so they had the test but then dropped
  


25             out.  So they come to us and they're needing a
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 1             semester credit or they may have failed, you know.
  


 2                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  I don't know if there's somebody
  


 3             from the national group that was going to kind of
  


 4             maybe answer about the checking in on the local
  


 5             group?
  


 6                  MS. MALLORY:  I just want to share that one of
  


 7             the reasons we use the other assessment is because we
  


 8             have new kids enrolled.  I said to Ms. Tatum, "Is it
  


 9             fair to say that we have new kids enrolled every
  


10             week?"  And she said, "Every day."  So a lot of the
  


11             kids that take these once-a-year tests, time and
  


12             place, it's only offered at this time on this date,
  


13             it doesn't really present a good picture of what is
  


14             happening in the school when you have a constant
  


15             change in enrollment.  So, but the students that take
  


16             the assessment maybe haven't been there since the
  


17             fall or even the previous three months ago.
  


18                  MS. DAYTON:  Good morning, Ladies and Gentlemen.
  


19             My name is Marti Dayton.  I'm the Science Specialist,
  


20             and I want to address your question with respect to
  


21             what are we doing at the national level and try to
  


22             support our teachers and make sure they're
  


23             implementing critical thinking skills.  As was
  


24             mentioned, we have monthly ilincs and it goes math,
  


25             English, science, social studies, and then the
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 1             elective courses.  So like, for instance, in science,
  


 2             they meet every month and I know they do this at each
  


 3             of the ilincs.  The teachers are supposed to come
  


 4             with a best practice, something that they've
  


 5             implemented to try and show the integration of Common
  


 6             Core or the Next Generation science standards for
  


 7             their specific state standards.  They come, they talk
  


 8             about -- they have a choice; they can either talk
  


 9             about something that they actual tried or something
  


10             that they're going to try.  And then what is really
  


11             awesome about that is as a team we talk about it.
  


12             They talk about the weaknesses, what went wrong, what
  


13             could've been done better, if they've already tried
  


14             it.  If they haven't tried it yet, we talk as a team,
  


15             "Okay, you want to make sure" -- you know -- "What
  


16             are the takeaways?  What is it that you want the
  


17             students to master?  How are they going to
  


18             demonstrate mastery?"  So as a team we give them the
  


19             guidance that they need and so-forth, and the
  


20             teachers come back and give us feedback on how those
  


21             lessons went.  And that's one of the main reasons for
  


22             the ilincs.  Does that answer that question?
  


23                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes.
  


24                  MS. DAYTON:  Thank you.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  On this document that was
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 1             handed out, if you don't mind -- and, Mr. Hoy, this
  


 2             may be a question for you -- if these students are
  


 3             highly mobile, then they don't count towards your
  


 4             percentage proficient anyway?
  


 5                  MR. HOY:  Dr. Kimbrell, on this document I have
  


 6             to assume that this is not the benchmark assessment
  


 7             and, therefore, highly mobile would not be a part of
  


 8             it.  This is --
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So this isn't -- what
  


10             assessment is this?
  


11                  MS. TATUM:  This is end-of-course assessment.
  


12                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  These are end-of-course?
  


13                  MS. TATUM:  Yes.
  


14                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
  


15                  MS. TATUM:  Yeah.  But it's highly mobile; it's
  


16             just a school average.  You know, that doesn't count
  


17             against us but we include them in the school average.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So this is your
  


19             school average.  But when we look at the actual
  


20             report of the number of students who are proficient I
  


21             think is what --
  


22                  MS. TATUM:  Oh, yes.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- is part of --
  


24                  MS. TATUM:  Yes.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- part of the concern, I
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 1             think, brought -- when we look at report cards.
  


 2                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  You know, the EOC report
  


 4             cards and the AMO statuses, when we look at those the
  


 5             number of students who are actually showing growth
  


 6             and proficiency help generate these curiosities that
  


 7             we have about success.
  


 8                  MS. TATUM:  Oh, yes, sir.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Okay.  Who -- where
  


10             did we get to?  Then we'll skip and let Ms. -- Dr.
  


11             Walters catch up.  Mr. Hoy.
  


12                  MR. HOY:  Then I do have a question.  And I'm
  


13             not certain who this question would be directed to
  


14             but it would be something to help clear up my initial
  


15             confusion on SIATech.  Being in Accountability, one
  


16             of the things that I noticed was that over the past
  


17             couple of years the percent of students proficient or
  


18             advanced on SIATech has been very, very low and that
  


19             caused me to have some concerns.  But I also had some
  


20             concerns in terms of my initial assessment of the low
  


21             scores because it is an alternative school.  And I
  


22             know that that can be an issue because the population
  


23             is concentrated.  So I was seeking some answers --
  


24             and I know that the National Charter School
  


25             Authorizers put out this document called Anecdotes
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 1             Are Not Enough.  I don't know if you've seen this,
  


 2             but specifically in the document it mentioned SIATech
  


 3             in terms of what they have put in place to measure
  


 4             growth.  And in looking at it what I notice is that
  


 5             they said that all SIATech schools would do an annual
  


 6             summary that would be provided to each respective
  


 7             charter authorizer.  Now I don't know how long ago it
  


 8             was but sometime ago I asked Ms. Perry to see if she
  


 9             could collect that for me 'cause I wanted to see if
  


10             that would be helpful for us.  Now I know this is
  


11             long but there is eventually a question.  The thing
  


12             is I'm assuming that based on that, when I went back
  


13             to actually read the approved charter authorization,
  


14             you guys never did set a goal -- benchmark exams,
  


15             anyway.  You set I believe your Renaissance Learn.
  


16             The specific wording is, "For this reason,
  


17             assessments are not available throughout the year and
  


18             are not included in the school's performance-based
  


19             measurable goals.  Instead, SIATech has chosen to
  


20             focus on distance, travel, point-in-time assessments
  


21             results."  So you are using this growth model from
  


22             Renaissance Learn, I believe, and I suspect that
  


23             that's what your data summary is but I have not seen
  


24             it to this point.  If you guys have it, I would love
  


25             to see it.  The thing is, there's still a concern --
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 1             and here's the concern, and I would like for some of
  


 2             you to address it: even if at some point when we
  


 3             authorize this charter we allowed you to not have the
  


 4             benchmark results and end-of-course results as a goal
  


 5             in your charter, it is what the state of Arkansas
  


 6             uses to measure how effective schools are in terms of
  


 7             educating children.  And if you're showing 65%
  


 8             proficient which was your target for year-two -- and
  


 9             you're pretty close at 60% and 62% in reading and
  


10             match -- I didn't see your writing percentage.  But
  


11             if you're showing that, and we're showing proficiency
  


12             rates around 2%, 3%, 4%, 5%, there seems to be a
  


13             disconnect between what's in your curriculum that you
  


14             measure and what's in the state's curriculum.  So the
  


15             question is: is there that disconnect between
  


16             curriculum?  And that's specifically one of the
  


17             things that Standards Assurance Unit seemed to have
  


18             found when they visited.  Now I know you're saying,
  


19             "Well, they gave us [sic] the old documents and not
  


20             the online version; we gave them that."  But even if
  


21             you consider -- you take out the whole what written
  


22             documents were handed out, not the written curriculum
  


23             but the taught and learned curriculum, there still
  


24             seems to be a significant gap between your 65% and
  


25             the State's less than 10% proficiency in literacy and
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 1             math.  So I was wondering if you could address that?
  


 2                  DR. DAWSON:  Well, there are definitely some
  


 3             discrepancies there.  And what we know and what we've
  


 4             learned over the last 15 years is that establishing a
  


 5             new school, especially for this population, it takes
  


 6             three years to start seeing growth, in the best of
  


 7             situations.  And I by no means want this to sound as
  


 8             if -- as an excuse, because it's not.  It's not meant
  


 9             that way.  But we had a significant change; in year-
  


10             two we moved from the Job Corp Center to a location
  


11             off of the Job Corp Center.  It creates tremendous
  


12             disruptions.  The other thing that we found is that
  


13             one of the things that we hoped to do over the term
  


14             of the charter is to stabilize the teaching staff a
  


15             lot quicker than we have been able to.  Teaching in
  


16             this environment with this population is not easy and
  


17             it doesn't portend some of these highly qualified
  


18             that they're going to be able to teach in this
  


19             environment.  There are so many more factors that
  


20             have to be addressed, in addition -- not instead of,
  


21             but in addition to the academic standards and that
  


22             has to do with the re-engagement of students who have
  


23             previously dropped out of school.  It's important for
  


24             us to do things simultaneously.  It's not like one,
  


25             then the other.  So we have to re-engage students,
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 1             show them that there's a way to get to where they
  


 2             need to be; at the same time to bring their academic
  


 3             abilities up.  That's why we concentrate on a growth
  


 4             toward standard -- a growth to standard, and we see
  


 5             improvements.  Are the improvements that we've seen
  


 6             and we've alluded to fast enough?  Are we satisfied?
  


 7             Absolutely not.  Absolutely not.  But we believe
  


 8             we've done our stabilization.  We're off of the
  


 9             center.  We're working on making sure that our
  


10             teachers are engaged, that we can stabilize our
  


11             teaching staff.  We have teachers that are
  


12             comfortable in working with our population, that are
  


13             happy working with our population in addition to
  


14             being competent and caring teachers.  So we're
  


15             working on that.  But we believe the growth towards
  


16             standard will increase exponentially as we move
  


17             forward.  We are committed from the national office,
  


18             whatever it takes.  If we have a turnover in teachers
  


19             and we don't have a math teacher, we will put a math
  


20             teacher from our national office here until we can
  


21             get the appropriate teacher that's helpful for
  


22             Arkansas, and we are committed to doing that.  But we
  


23             believe that this school and what we're doing has
  


24             tremendous potential here to help change kids' lives,
  


25             not just their lives but their families' lives as
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 1             well, and we are committed to doing that.
  


 2                  MR. HOY:  Follow-up?
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yes.  But I would caution
  


 4             the Panel to remember we're really concerned about
  


 5             their curriculum and their transcripts.  Those are
  


 6             the reasons -- that's why we're here.
  


 7                  MR. HOY:  Right.  And this is akin to curriculum
  


 8             in terms of we assess the curriculum with our
  


 9             benchmark exams.  So I guess a couple of questions,
  


10             and this may be a question for the Panel.  In terms
  


11             of their charter they don't seem to have benchmark
  


12             results as a target of their curriculum assessment,
  


13             and I suspect that at some point we were comfortable
  


14             with that.  So the question is: are we still
  


15             comfortable with that?  And I guess the question for
  


16             the charter is if they reach a hundred-percent
  


17             proficiency on their assessment, but there is no
  


18             similar growth in terms of the Arkansas benchmark or
  


19             the PARCC assessments is that going to be
  


20             satisfactory with the charter?
  


21                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Before someone tries to
  


22             answer that from them, again, I think the concern
  


23             that we have here is: their charter doesn't call for
  


24             any kind of expectation on that.  That may be
  


25             something in their renewal we'll have to look at, but
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 1             at some point the State Board approved their charter
  


 2             because it was the authorizer at that time and they
  


 3             were comfortable.  And the internal group -- and I
  


 4             don't remember specifics -- either recommended
  


 5             approval or not; I can't remember how specific it
  


 6             was.  But that issue is not before us today.
  


 7                  MS. TATUM:  Dr. Kimbrell, may I ask Dr. Cox to
  


 8             address -- sorry.  May I ask Dr. Cox to address the
  


 9             Panel?
  


10                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  If you so choose.
  


11                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.
  


12                  DR. COX:  And I was not sworn in.
  


13                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Well, if you'll raise your
  


14             right hand I'll swear you in.  Do you swear to -- or
  


15             affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing
  


16             but the truth?
  


17                  DR. COX:  I do.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
  


19                  DR. COX:  Thank you.  Barbara Hunter Cox,
  


20             Director of Teaching and Learning at the Arkansas
  


21             Public School Resource Center.  I think that the
  


22             essence of Dr. Hoy's initial question about the
  


23             accountability, and in particular the national report
  


24             that he referred to, currently in our state we just
  


25             had 32 schools put on an academic distress list.  And
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 1             when you examine the schools on that list I think
  


 2             many of the findings in the national report could be
  


 3             highlighted by doing an analysis of those schools.
  


 4             There are a large number of high schools; there were
  


 5             also a large number of schools that are doing
  


 6             alternative learning or dropout prevention.  And so
  


 7             as we were pulled in to give some assistance to
  


 8             SIATech and we looked at their assessment across the
  


 9             board, we looked at their assessment and how they
  


10             were performing on state assessment.  We looked at
  


11             their alignment to Common Core.  I think that
  


12             SIATech, like many high schools in our state, are
  


13             assessing on end-of-course when they're trying to
  


14             prepare for PARCC.  And this has been a concern not
  


15             just at high schools, but schools that are heavily
  


16             trying to transition aren't doing as well on the
  


17             benchmark and I think that's a fact that we need to
  


18             put on the table.  I also saw in my assessment of
  


19             what was going on the level of entry of the students
  


20             at SIATech and how that growth to a standard was
  


21             something that they were focusing on.  On the
  


22             academic distress list, which you can pull up, you'll
  


23             notice that some of the recovery schools, the
  


24             alternative schools, their percent of proficient was
  


25             as low as less than 3%.  Again, those are unique
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 1             settings where students come with significant delays.
  


 2             I think that there should be some discussion about
  


 3             how the assessment and accountability program takes
  


 4             into consideration maybe these individual concerns
  


 5             that you've expressed on behalf of SIATech.
  


 6                  The other thing I would like to say is that when
  


 7             we went in and reviewed with the desk audit what we
  


 8             found was that SIATech wasn't aware of the process to
  


 9             get the extra assistance that they needed.  And we do
  


10             want to compliment Dr. Barnes, Christopher Barnes,
  


11             who helped us figure out what was happening and why
  


12             APSCN was not even pulling the correct testing list.
  


13             And so there have been some anomalies within the
  


14             system that, you know, different people with ADE have
  


15             assisted in SIATech handling.  But they're a unique
  


16             environment.  They're a unique environment because of
  


17             the students they serve, because of their mission,
  


18             and because they're attempting to meet all of the
  


19             requirements and expectations.
  


20                  And the last thing I would like to say is I
  


21             think they have a dedication to this particular
  


22             student population.  And I think their commitment is
  


23             backed up with a lot of resources.  Some of those
  


24             resources don't mesh totally with our accountability
  


25             or our data systems.  So in my mind much of the
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 1             problems have been communication issues between
  


 2             what's happening within the system and how their
  


 3             reports are pulled.  I appreciate this time.  Thank
  


 4             you.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Coffman?
  


 6                  MS. COFFMAN:  My question is for the ADE staff.
  


 7             Do you believe -- and, Mary, you can direct to the
  


 8             appropriate person -- after review of the documents
  


 9             that have been submitted, does the ADE curriculum
  


10             instruction staff believe now that the curriculum
  


11             issues have been resolved?
  


12                  MS. PERRY:  I'm not sure that the curriculum
  


13             staff has had the time to go through every issue
  


14             there.  You do have Anthony Owen here; he can speak
  


15             to some of the curriculum pieces.  But I'm not sure
  


16             he looked at every one of those documents.  I think
  


17             we were focused on what was going on at the time of
  


18             the visit.  Would you like Anthony to --
  


19                  MS. COFFMAN:  Yes.
  


20                  MR. OWEN:  Commissioner Kimbrell, Panel -- Ms.
  


21             Coffman, regarding your question Ms. Perry is
  


22             correct.  I did not receive those documents until
  


23             late yesterday afternoon.  I have looked through the
  


24             math documents on a cursory basis.  Whenever we went
  


25             in -- I want to, if I may, give the Panel some
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 1             information of exactly how I reviewed the curriculum
  


 2             whenever I went in to SIATech.  I reviewed with the
  


 3             same protocol with which we approach any course that
  


 4             is submitted to Curriculum Instruction for review of
  


 5             a tested subject, which means that we don't look
  


 6             necessarily at what the in-class instruction is; we
  


 7             can't, obviously.  We look at what the school has
  


 8             assured us that they are teaching on paper.  We look
  


 9             at the standards that they have aligned to the
  


10             courses and how those standards match up to what our
  


11             standards are.  I did take a chance -- I did actually
  


12             go beyond what we typically do by looking at the
  


13             online computer system and simply seeing was what
  


14             they had on paper aligned to a couple of the random
  


15             modules that the teacher in the classroom chose to
  


16             demonstrate for me.  And I found that they were.
  


17             What they said on paper was what was -- was what I
  


18             encountered on the online system.  At no time -- I do
  


19             want to say, at no time did I say that I do not like
  


20             electronically-based instructional materials.  I
  


21             think that they have their place and I think they're
  


22             wonderful materials.  I simply stated that day that I
  


23             have to evaluate based on paper.  So the teacher who
  


24             was in the classroom -- the math teacher who was in
  


25             the classroom at that point pulled up our system, the
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 1             curriculum that was in her electronic ANGEL system at
  


 2             that point, and printed out a listing of the high
  


 3             school CCSS mathematics frameworks and which modules
  


 4             that their ANGEL system had aligned to it.  I took
  


 5             that printout that she had, compared it to our
  


 6             algebra I, geometry and algebra II documents and came
  


 7             up with the percentages of those alignments which
  


 8             were what was submitted through Mr. Walters' report
  


 9             or within Mr. Walters' report.  At no time was my
  


10             percentages indicative of the quality of
  


11             instructional materials, because that is not our job
  


12             within Curriculum Instruction to evaluate
  


13             instructional materials.  Regarding the curriculum
  


14             that was amended and submitted within this report, I
  


15             have not had a chance to verify that the document
  


16             contained all of the standards within each of those
  


17             courses, that none were removed.  However, as a
  


18             cursory glance through it they do have a module
  


19             aligned to every standard that is within that
  


20             document.  So if they have every standard that we
  


21             require within those documents, if those are true
  


22             documents or true representations of our documents,
  


23             then I would assign a hundred-percent alignment at
  


24             this point.
  


25                  MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you.
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 1                  MR. OWEN:  Regarding social studies and science
  


 2             -- social studies and ELA, I have no idea.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Decker?
  


 4                  MR. DECKER:  Thank you, Dr. Kimbrell.  I have a
  


 5             question concerning the transcripts.  I looked up on
  


 6             the ADE data center and noticed there are 44 12th
  


 7             graders enrolled.  And simple question is: have the
  


 8             transcripts, the electronic transcripts been reviewed
  


 9             for each of these?  And are they now correct?
  


10                  MS. REYNOLDS:  Is your question 44 currently
  


11             enrolled or 44 graduates?  I'm sorry, I didn't hear.
  


12                  MR. DECKER:  I noticed there are 44 12th graders
  


13             as of October 1.
  


14                  MS. REYNOLDS:  Okay.  Of those 12th graders who
  


15             have graduated their credits are absolutely correct
  


16             in Triand for the 13-14 year.  If those students are
  


17             currently enrolled with us -- I only got this system
  


18             corrected on May 5th and I focused on getting all of
  


19             our graduates corrected.  So our current students, I
  


20             am still going back and double-checking to be sure
  


21             those credits are in there.  The system is now in
  


22             place that they will be in there correctly, but I
  


23             have to manually enter those grades.
  


24                  MR. DECKER:  Thank you.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez?
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 1                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  No.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Dr. Walters?
  


 3                  DR. WALTERS:  Thank you, Dr. Kimbrell.  I want
  


 4             to apologize to the SIATech group.  I had to go to
  


 5             another meeting, so I apologize for having to leave
  


 6             for a moment.  I have a question for Ms. Tatum.  And
  


 7             I understand the reasons that we're here today.  I
  


 8             have a related issue to what I believe may be related
  


 9             to the curriculum issue in math.  And I did speak
  


10             with Ms. Tatum about this on the phone and some
  


11             documentation that my office has just received in the
  


12             last couple of weeks, and that involves highly
  


13             qualified.  As we spoke, Ms. Tatum, you know, you
  


14             have a waiver for licensure, however, teachers are to
  


15             be highly qualified.  And my understanding is that
  


16             your only secondary math teacher that's been employed
  


17             with you since November has not taken the Praxis
  


18             exam.  They cannot meet highly qualified status if
  


19             they have not attempted the exam.  I'm not talking
  


20             about passed; they have not even attempted to take
  


21             the Praxis exam; they had an elementary degree.  In
  


22             looking at their transcript they've had college
  


23             algebra as their only math course in college.  Am I
  


24             correct in that?
  


25                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.
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 1                  DR. WALTERS:  I guess from what Dr. Dawson --
  


 2             I'm sorry, is that correct, the superintendent's
  


 3             name?
  


 4                  MS. TATUM:  Correct.
  


 5                  DR. WALTERS:  From she said earlier, she had
  


 6             said that if you were having trouble getting a math
  


 7             teacher that they would send one from the national
  


 8             office.  So I guess my question is: why did that not
  


 9             happen?
  


10                  MS. TATUM:  To be honest -- let me go back, Dr.
  


11             Walters, to -- I know math is a critical shortage
  


12             area for Arkansas, and the teacher that we had in
  


13             place was a retired school teacher who taught math 33
  


14             years, Ms. Floyd.  She let me know in January she's
  


15             going to finish out the semester to go ahead and
  


16             start trying to actively recruit a math teacher.  So
  


17             I spoke with some people at Henderson State, where I
  


18             graduated.  I have emails from Dr. Fetterly who gave
  


19             me the name of Dawn Jackson who wanted the job and
  


20             start in the fall.  So January 14th she emailed me,
  


21             "I want to come interview, I want the job."  You
  


22             know, I have copies if the board would like to see.
  


23             And so as I was setting up the interview, January
  


24             24th she emailed back and turned down the job for
  


25             some personal reasons.  So from that time, from
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 1             January on, we'd advertised.  Now with regards to a
  


 2             math specialist coming from California, because they
  


 3             come when we open, we had teacher shortages.  Once we
  


 4             realized that a teacher only had to be highly
  


 5             qualified -- like I explained to you on the phone, if
  


 6             you don't ask the right questions you don't really
  


 7             get the right answers.  And I should have listed the
  


 8             current math teacher as a sub since we have HQ
  


 9             teachers virtually online all day that she referred
  


10             to.  And so I just filled out a form to let her take
  


11             the Praxis in the spring.  And I stated she would
  


12             take it in February but like I said, she had an
  


13             immediate death.  And, you know, I don't have an
  


14             excuse for her not even attempting to take it.  I do
  


15             know she was trying to study, brush up on calculus
  


16             and trigonometry, and she was set to take it.  But
  


17             she was made well aware that her contract would not
  


18             be renewed if she had not attempted to take the test
  


19             and pass.  I should've asked Dr. Dawson or Ms.
  


20             Mallory to send a teacher from one of our other
  


21             schools.  And I try not to do that because it causes
  


22             the school that the teacher has left problems with a
  


23             teacher missing.  But the teacher that I hired, I
  


24             hired her because she had demonstrated proficiency in
  


25             secondary math.  Like I stated, I worked with her two
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 1             years at the Little Rock Job Corp Center.  She had
  


 2             the highest score with the population that we're
  


 3             dealing with.  And she was on Camp Robinson at -- it
  


 4             was like a boot camp for kids that get in trouble and
  


 5             they go and graduate, and she had the highest scores
  


 6             there, after speaking to some of the instructors
  


 7             there.  And so I felt that with Ms. Hocker's help,
  


 8             and the virtual team, that if she had any issues she
  


 9             had immediate assistance.  If I had known I could've
  


10             listed her as a long-term sub for math, that's what I
  


11             would've done.  But she did register to take the test
  


12             on June 16th, which is not helpful now, and I'm
  


13             hoping she passes it by June 30th or she doesn't get
  


14             renewed.  Oh, yeah -- and the math position is posted
  


15             once again with hopes of getting somebody.  I
  


16             contacted Marie Harness [ps] to get -- you know --
  


17             even last year to try to get a list of teachers who
  


18             were going through the Pathwise program to see if we
  


19             had any close math applicants.  There are some down
  


20             in the Arkadelphia area that was at Dawson but, you
  


21             know, nobody wants to commute that far, you know, to
  


22             teach.  And I had a couple of people walk through the
  


23             school and then once I explain our population -- and
  


24             matter of fact, our population the day of the team's
  


25             visit I was at 10th District juvenile court with
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 1             Judge Warren because she had sent about seven people
  


 2             to our school from her court, so I had to sit in on
  


 3             court hearings and I was a few minutes late -- and I
  


 4             apologize to Mr. Walters and the team.  I wasn't at
  


 5             Starbucks; I was actually at the court, you know,
  


 6             dealing with our juveniles.  But even when teachers
  


 7             come in just to walk through the school and, you
  


 8             know, they see kids -- you know -- they have on ankle
  


 9             monitors, you know, that's kind of scary for them,
  


10             you know, especially a brand-new teacher.  When I
  


11             took this job I was at Warren with Mr. Tolbert for
  


12             seven years as assistant principal and when I looked
  


13             at the model and I looked at the waivers then I told
  


14             Mr. Tolbert, I said, "I'm not going to take that job
  


15             because it's so hard," as in the population, but we
  


16             are just a large ALE.  Having metal detectors set up,
  


17             armed guards and all with the population is not easy.
  


18             But that's the story on the math teacher.
  


19                  DR. WALTERS:  And I understand, as we said --
  


20             when we talked on the phone.
  


21                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.
  


22                  DR. WALTERS:  I know in November it would be
  


23             very difficult to find, you know, a highly qualified
  


24             math teacher in November.
  


25                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.
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 1                  DR. WALTERS:  But I guess my concern is once you
  


 2             hired her and you didn't hire her as a long-term sub
  


 3             -- you know -- you could've hire her as a long-term
  


 4             sub, and said, "Okay, we've got to know that you know
  


 5             math if you're going to be teaching math to our
  


 6             students."  And as you've said, you have a very
  


 7             unique population; they need different instruction;
  


 8             they don't all have the same needs.  And so I guess
  


 9             my concern is that this is an elementary person
  


10             coming in that probably didn't know the math
  


11             curriculum.  That may be some of the issues why we've
  


12             seen what we've seen.  But also, you know, to say to
  


13             her, "If you want to be hired long-term, you're going
  


14             to have to -- you're going to have to, you know, sign
  


15             up.  And if you don't have it passed by the end of
  


16             January, then we're going to have to let you go," and
  


17             to continue to look for someone.  Like I said, you
  


18             have a waiver from license so you're not having to
  


19             worry about the license.
  


20                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.
  


21                  DR. WALTERS:  But it's someone that you know --
  


22             'cause you really at this point have no idea that she
  


23             really knows the math content.  She's your only math
  


24             teacher.
  


25                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am.







Sharon Hill Court Reporting
(501) 847-0510


- May 14, 2014


62


  
 1                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Dr. Walters, let me --
  


 2                  MS. TATUM:  But the --
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- let me get us back on
  


 4             track.  Again, we're here because of curriculum
  


 5             alignment and we're here for the issue of
  


 6             transcripts.  So let's keep our questions focused on
  


 7             those areas.
  


 8                  DR. WALTERS:  I understand.
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
  


10                  DR. WALTERS:  I just think that the teacher goes
  


11             back to the alignment, so --
  


12                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I understand.  Thank you,
  


13             ma'am.  Okay.
  


14                  MS. TATUM:  And, Doctor [sic], can I say one
  


15             thing -- Mr. Kimbrell -- Dr. Kimbrell?
  


16                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  If you want to, but --
  


17                  MS. TATUM:  To Dr. Walters, what she --
  


18                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Sure.
  


19                  MS. TATUM:  With teaching, she's teaching a
  


20             small group; the model is different.  But Ms. Hocker
  


21             trained her when she was first hired and the training
  


22             that she provided let her know that she knew, you
  


23             know, all of her math, except --
  


24                  MS. HOCKER:  She's very strong in mathematics
  


25             through algebra II, no questions asked, and she's
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 1             transitioning into that trigonometry/calculus,
  


 2             there's no doubt.  And that's something that I have
  


 3             offered to work with her for her to practice for the
  


 4             test because she has not taught that level and she
  


 5             would not be ready to teach that.  We don't have
  


 6             students that are at the pre-calculus/calculus level
  


 7             at this time that she's instructing.  The math
  


 8             teacher that is on the virtual link is very capable
  


 9             of assisting those students on an individual basis,
  


10             as well as myself.  And I have actually -- I've
  


11             worked with a few students in situations where we
  


12             needed to.  So it's an ongoing situation.  We have
  


13             four individuals in this room today that are highly
  


14             qualified math teachers.  I am more than willing to
  


15             get my credentials in Arkansas and come here and help
  


16             support until we get a fully credentialed teacher, if
  


17             needed.  And my coworkers, if you'll stand up if
  


18             you're fully qualified in mathematics?  And we will
  


19             make that happen if Ms. McIntire does not pass that
  


20             exam.  Those students need that and I would agree
  


21             with you.
  


22                  MS. TATUM:  But she only had two years of
  


23             teaching in elementary and she's been in secondary
  


24             education since.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  She was at the Youth
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 1             Challenge is what you're saying?
  


 2                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.  Yeah, and it's the same
  


 3             group of kids we're dealing with.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yeah.  It's the same
  


 5             students.  You're right.
  


 6                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.
  


 7                  MS. PIANKO:  Hi, I'm Laurie Pianka, Director of
  


 8             Education.  I just wanted to add that Ms. McIntire's
  


 9             contract, when she was hired, stated that she must
  


10             make progress toward proficiency and licensure with
  


11             the State of Arkansas.  So was aware of that from
  


12             day-one.  And we have notified her as well, so --
  


13             with the ongoing progress that it is our expectation
  


14             that before the end of the school year that she will
  


15             pass the Praxis exam.  And if she doesn't, her
  


16             contract will not be renewed.  But I would like to
  


17             say or point out that our math scores under Ms.
  


18             McIntire have improved this year.  She instituted a
  


19             boot camp for the students to prepare them for the
  


20             end-of-course exams and she has a dynamic way of
  


21             managing her classroom, builds professional, caring
  


22             relationships with students, and has made a huge
  


23             difference in our program in regards to how our
  


24             classroom environment is in math.  So we commend her
  


25             for that, while we still have the expectation that
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 1             she will make progress and be highly qualified by the
  


 2             end of the school year.  Thank you.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Mr. Hoy?
  


 4                  MR. HOY:  My question is for ADE staff; I
  


 5             believe Mr. Johnie Walters would be the appropriate
  


 6             person to answer this.  Mr. Walters, on your onsite
  


 7             review your findings on SIATech, did you -- those
  


 8             findings, are they probationary findings or are they
  


 9             cited findings?
  


10                  MR. WALTERS:  Probationary.
  


11                  MR. HOY:  And what are the next steps on
  


12             probationary findings if they hold true for SIATech?
  


13                  MR. WALTERS:  SIATech received an annual
  


14             accreditation report, annual final accreditation
  


15             report.  We mailed those out last week, in April.  I
  


16             don't know exactly what date they received theirs but
  


17             they were all sent out certified mail.  At that time
  


18             on their annual accreditation report it noted that
  


19             they were placed on probationary status for
  


20             curriculum, as well as transcript irregularities.
  


21             And at that time -- when a school district is placed
  


22             on probation we send them forms as to how to appeal
  


23             if they are in disagreement with their recommended
  


24             status.  We recommend the status to the State Board
  


25             of Education and the State Board of Education will
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 1             hear our recommendations at the June board meeting,
  


 2             and that's when we recommend all final end-of-the-
  


 3             year accreditation statuses for all schools in the
  


 4             state of Arkansas to the State Board for
  


 5             certification.  And if the State Board certifies that
  


 6             recommendation, then they would be placed on
  


 7             probationary status for the 2013-14 school year.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Do you have a follow-up?
  


 9                  MR. HOY:  I do have a follow-up.  Did SIATech
  


10             file an appeal?
  


11                  MR. WALTERS:  They have not.  As to this date I
  


12             have not received one.
  


13                  MS. TATUM:  We never received the form.
  


14                  MR. BERRY:  This is Mitch Berry, attorney for
  


15             SIATech.  The deadline for filing an appeal has not
  


16             yet expired.
  


17                  MR. WALTERS:  It's not till the 15th of May,
  


18             tomorrow.  Tomorrow is the deadline.
  


19                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Right.  I did hear in the
  


20             audience someone say they -- Ms. Dawson, have you
  


21             received that letter?
  


22                  DR. DAWSON:  We received the letter but there
  


23             were no forms or --
  


24                  MR. WALTERS:  It was a letter with the
  


25             instructions on how to appeal the finding.







Sharon Hill Court Reporting
(501) 847-0510


- May 14, 2014


67


  
 1                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
  


 2                  MS. TATUM:  No, we never received that.  I got
  


 3             this but no -- because I was going to have to call
  


 4             somebody at ADE to ask how.
  


 5                  MS. PIANKA:  We did not receive the
  


 6             instructions.
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Do we have a copy of the
  


 8             letter?
  


 9                  MR. WALTERS:  I can have one in just a few
  


10             minutes.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Let's get a copy of
  


12             the letter.
  


13                  MR. WALTERS:  Anything else before I --
  


14                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I've got a couple of
  


15             questions but go ahead and get that done --
  


16                  MR. WALTERS:  Okay.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- so we'll have a copy of
  


18             that letter that was sent and make sure that
  


19             everybody is on the same page.  Ms. Coffman, do you
  


20             have a question of someone besides Mr. Walters?
  


21                  MS. COFFMAN:  I do have a question for Dr.
  


22             Dawson.  Dr. Dawson, I don't know if you're familiar
  


23             with the term "consciously competent," but it is a
  


24             term that basically means that "I know what I'm
  


25             doing, I do it well enough to know when I do it well
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 1             or when I'm not doing it well."  So as I think about
  


 2             your organization, and I would consider they are
  


 3             probably consciously competent, there were items that
  


 4             have been highlighted today and were highlighted in
  


 5             the report -- transcripts, curriculum, the policy,
  


 6             teachers that are HQT.  What procedures are being
  


 7             changed in your organization to insure that those
  


 8             things don't linger, that they're solved in an
  


 9             earlier weight of time?  How are those being reported
  


10             instead of someone from the outside having to come in
  


11             and tell you that these things are not being done
  


12             properly?
  


13                  DR. DAWSON:  Well, most certainly we have
  


14             noticed very specific things that needed to be
  


15             corrected and we've already taken the steps in terms
  


16             of the curriculum to make sure that the alignments
  


17             are correctly reflected and the teachers are aware of
  


18             that.  We will increase our contact with content area
  


19             teachers to make sure on a regular basis that they
  


20             are aware of any changes to the curriculum, to
  


21             further update and align and move with the changing
  


22             requirements of Common Core implementation.  The
  


23             other thing that we're going to do -- and this is not
  


24             just here; it's across our network -- is we have
  


25             beefed up, to use a colloquial, the hiring process
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 1             and are questioning at a much deeper level, asking
  


 2             teachers that are applying for positions with us to
  


 3             perform different types of tasks that show us that
  


 4             they're really capable of moving the students that
  


 5             are incredibly behind quickly or more quickly than a
  


 6             traditional setting would allow.  That's not always
  


 7             evident in an interview process, so the consciously
  


 8             competent -- I have written that term -- and that's
  


 9             -- it was an important starting point.  It certainly
  


10             isn't enough.  Specifics have to be put in place and
  


11             teachers must do specific things in order to be
  


12             effective.  They must be competent in their subject
  


13             areas.  They must meet the qualifications in the
  


14             state of being highly qualified.  But they also have
  


15             to have that belief that our students have promise to
  


16             succeed.  So blending those two things together is
  


17             important.  So we've changed some procedures in our
  


18             hiring, not just here but across the board.  As a
  


19             charter school we have the ability to assess teachers
  


20             to help them to try to engage with our program.  But
  


21             if it's not the right fit we want to make a change as
  


22             quickly as we possibly can.  We can't have that
  


23             churning where we're constantly replacing teachers,
  


24             and we've seen a bit of that here and some of our
  


25             other sites.  But when we have a stable staff we see
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 1             the improvement and growth to standard increase
  


 2             exponentially over time; we would expect that to
  


 3             happen here and we're committed to make that happen.
  


 4                  MS. COFFMAN:  Can I have just a follow-up?
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yes.
  


 6                  MS. COFFMAN:  Dr. Dawson, how long has your
  


 7             organization been an organization?
  


 8                  DR. DAWSON:  We've been in operation with this
  


 9             population for 15 years.  We started in California,
  


10             and then in partnership with Job Corp.  In the last
  


11             couple of years we've seen a change in our -- in the
  


12             expectations of our Job Corp.  Job Corp is
  


13             concentrating on an older population.  We have moved
  


14             our schools -- we have begun to move over the last
  


15             couple of years into the communities.  As a public
  


16             school we're very committed to open access and to
  


17             enrolling every student that is eligible for school
  


18             that wants to be in our school.  We couldn't do that
  


19             with Job Corp with their changing roles, which is why
  


20             we moved off the center.  And so we are morphing and
  


21             changing as we go; we're reinventing ourselves, so-
  


22             to-speak, as a community-based school.  We've done
  


23             that effectively and we're stable in Florida; we're
  


24             doing that in California, as well.
  


25                  MS. COFFMAN:  And to finish my question, I
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 1             wanted to know when did you align your curriculum to
  


 2             Common Core and when did you note that it was not
  


 3             fully aligned?
  


 4                  DR. DAWSON:  Well, I'm not saying that it wasn't
  


 5             fully aligned.  I think it wasn't -- the
  


 6             documentation was not evident.  But I believe that
  


 7             we've shown in our follow-up that the curriculum was
  


 8             fully aligned to Common Core.  And we started this
  


 9             process several years ago.
  


10                  MS. COFFMAN:  That answers my question.
  


11                  DR. DAWSON:  That does?
  


12                  MS. COFFMAN:  Yes.
  


13                  DR. DAWSON:  We've been committed to this as it
  


14             happened because it is a much better way to get at
  


15             what kids know and it aligns with our teaching
  


16             philosophy and our strategies with this particular
  


17             popular.
  


18                  MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you.
  


19                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Decker?
  


20                  MR. DECKER:  No questions.
  


21                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez?
  


22                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  Just one clarification.  This
  


23             question is for Carmen Jordan.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Jordan.  Ms. Jordan, you
  


25             were sworn in, weren't you?
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 1                  MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir, I was.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
  


 3                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  I just wanted to make sure I
  


 4             understood.  Since S-I-A-Tech or SIATech -- since
  


 5             they're not on a semester basis and they had -- was
  


 6             that the main issue why there wasn't that pulled from
  


 7             the transcript?  The transcript issue, was that
  


 8             basically because they're not necessarily designed
  


 9             like every other school?
  


10                  MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir.  Initially, when the
  


11             database was set up when they first started, based on
  


12             the information that we received from the school
  


13             during the set-up process, they said that they did
  


14             not issue semester grades, that they issued final
  


15             grades.  So that's the way that we set them up.  Once
  


16             they started doing state reporting was when we found
  


17             out that they did not have semester grades and Ms.
  


18             Reynolds was informed that she needed to start
  


19             entering semester grades.  So once they opened up the
  


20             semester grade slots, she has to manually key those
  


21             grades in along with the final grade so that the
  


22             semester grade pulls to state reported and also to
  


23             Triand for the official electronic transcript.
  


24                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  When did that happen?  What







Sharon Hill Court Reporting
(501) 847-0510


- May 14, 2014


73


  
 1             you just talked about, when -- you said that when
  


 2             they gave you the set-up they informed you that it
  


 3             would only be year-end grades?
  


 4                  MS. JORDAN:  Uh-huh.  That was --
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And so --
  


 6                  MS. JORDAN:  -- the initial set-up when they
  


 7             started in the 11-12 school year.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So in the 11-12
  


 9             school year we set them up as just year-end grades?
  


10                  MS. JORDAN:  Uh-huh.  Yes, sir.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And then when did they
  


12             decide that they had to put in semester grades and
  


13             who informed them that they'd have to put in semester
  


14             grades?
  


15                  MS. JORDAN:  That was cycle seven, June of 2013
  


16             --
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
  


18                  MS. JORDAN:  -- was when we were -- when I
  


19             notified Ms. Reynolds that she needed to start
  


20             entering semester grades.
  


21                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  And that was because
  


22             -- I mean, why would we set them up with year-end
  


23             grades if we knew they had to have semester grades?
  


24                  MS. JORDAN:  Well, because initially we set up
  


25             the district based on what they tell us that they
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 1             need for their district.  So that's what we did.  We
  


 2             did not realize that they really needed semester
  


 3             grades until she attempted to do her cycle seven and
  


 4             pulled an error that she did not have any student
  


 5             grades with four-semester grades.
  


 6                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So when we began
  


 7             looking at these transcripts where did that problem
  


 8             get generated?
  


 9                  MS. JORDAN:  I don't know.  I didn't know that
  


10             they weren't pulling the transcript for Triand.
  


11             Nobody notified me of that.  How I got involved was
  


12             when she had issues with her cycle seven.  And then
  


13             when I started looking and let her know that because
  


14             there were no semester grades that there would be no
  


15             data pulled to Triand for her students and that her
  


16             students would not be able to qualify for a
  


17             scholarship because there were no grades in Triand.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


19                  MS. JORDAN:  All right.
  


20                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any other questions for Ms.
  


21             Jordan while she's up there?
  


22                  MR. HOY:  I do.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay, Mr. Hoy.
  


24                  MR. HOY:  So are the transcript irregularities
  


25             related to programming more so than anything else?
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 1                  MS. JORDAN:  No, sir.  It was basically related
  


 2             to set-up --
  


 3                  MR. HOY:  Set-up.
  


 4                  MS. JORDAN:  -- initially.  Uh-huh.  And then
  


 5             once we got this set-up corrected, which was opening
  


 6             the semester grade slot so that she could enter the
  


 7             semester grades, now since she's able to do that the
  


 8             transcripts in Triand will now be correct.
  


 9                  MR. HOY:  Okay.  So when did the fix happen?
  


10                  MS. JORDAN:  This year.  I think in October I
  


11             had conversation via email with Ms. Reynolds about
  


12             making sure that she got her semester grade slot
  


13             opened and to start entering the semester grades.
  


14             I'm not sure at what point that she actually got that
  


15             done.  I think I heard her say in her testimony that
  


16             she's been working on getting her seniors' grades
  


17             updated so that they are correct in Triand.
  


18                  MR. HOY:  So the set-up was fixed in October?
  


19                  MS. JORDAN:  In October.
  


20                  MR. HOY:  Okay.  And, Mr. Walters, when was the
  


21             visit?
  


22                  MS. REYNOLDS:  April 2nd.
  


23                  MR. HOY:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


24                  MS. TATUM:  Can we speak about the transcript?
  


25             And Carmen is correct in what she said.  But Ms.
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 1             Reynolds had to solicit help.  They suggested that we
  


 2             bring in Sarah Cox to help and I don't remember
  


 3             Vanessa's last name.  So they worked closely with Ms.
  


 4             Reynolds, you know, to get this updated.  So, you
  


 5             know, Carmen did help us with the semester but it
  


 6             wasn't until Sarah Cox emailed her and I think the
  


 7             email is maybe in your paperwork.
  


 8                  MS. REYNOLDS:  There's just a little bit of
  


 9             confusion here.  There were actually two screens
  


10             open.  So last spring, 2013, when Carmen first
  


11             identified this problem for us I think before that
  


12             when we were set-up I think no one ever thought about
  


13             our grades having to pull into Triand.  And I think
  


14             that's -- you were asking why we were set up on the
  


15             finals.  I think e-school was brand-new.  We were one
  


16             of the first of two schools to start an e-school and
  


17             I think just no one really realized the impact that
  


18             setting us up on final grades would have.  So I think
  


19             that's why that initial decision was made.  So then
  


20             last spring Carmen told me I needed semester grades
  


21             and I sat -- when I did year-end rollover my field
  


22             rep opened one screen that allowed me to enter
  


23             semester grades.  However -- and so I started
  


24             entering semester grades.  However, it would not
  


25             allow me to enter -- our students enter and leave
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 1             throughout the year, so which means a student might
  


 2             enter with us in August and they complete English I
  


 3             in October.  They immediately enroll in English II.
  


 4             Well, I could not put in a semester final grade for
  


 5             English I and reschedule through e-school, which has
  


 6             to be done for state reporting.  We schedule that
  


 7             student into English II.  So there was no way for us
  


 8             to keep a rolling kind of total of our students'
  


 9             grades that would pull into Triand.  I had to go back
  


10             in, in January, at semester's end and manually go
  


11             back and try to re-enter all the grades that our
  


12             students had earned during that previous term.  So
  


13             they still -- even with my doing that, they still
  


14             were not pulling reliably into Triand.  Sometimes we
  


15             would get the correct credit and the correct course
  


16             but more often than not, we'd either -- it would
  


17             either skip a course or give double credits,
  


18             sometimes it would only give a half-credit.  It
  


19             wasn't reliable and it was -- and so I did start
  


20             working with my field rep and then we had all of the
  


21             evaluations and everything in that.  It was not until
  


22             May 5th that my field rep actually opened yet another
  


23             semester grade screen, different from the one.  So
  


24             I'm actually on my second semester grade screen now.
  


25             And it is at this point that now our grades will pull
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 1             correctly and all of our 2013-14 grades will now pull
  


 2             correctly.  APSCN is working on the fix for the
  


 3             previous years.  So maybe that clears that up.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  And I remember
  


 5             this conversation and I think you may have been the
  


 6             only one that was in the meeting, Dr. Walters, when
  


 7             we had our internal review with this.  And we talked
  


 8             specifically about the difficulty we were going to
  


 9             have with APSCN with this particular school with
  


10             students entering and exiting classes throughout the
  


11             year and wouldn't be in the traditional period, and
  


12             how that was going to happen.  And sorry about this,
  


13             Carmen, and sorry about this, Mr. Hernandez and Mr.
  


14             Decker but the assistant commissioners at that time
  


15             said, "We'll work it out.  We'll find a way to make
  


16             APSCN work."  So I think that's been part of the
  


17             problem, is that it was a very unique situation with
  


18             a system that we weren't changing at the time.  So
  


19             I've got a better understanding now of what happened
  


20             there because I remember that conversation about how
  


21             difficult that was going to be and the decision was
  


22             we would just have to find ways to work around it.
  


23             So that helps me remember that conversation.
  


24                  Okay.  Mr. Walters, if you would help us with
  


25             communication about standards violations with
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 1             SIATech.
  


 2                  MR. WALTERS:  Whenever we mail we send Certified
  


 3             mail, the final -- not the preliminary but the final
  


 4             report.  And in those we include -- we have a stack
  


 5             of memos and the specialist puts the Commissioner's
  


 6             memo for the final report, a copy of that, in the
  


 7             packet with the final report.  As well as if a school
  


 8             district has been identified as a probationary --
  


 9             with a probationary violation we have another memo
  


10             that we put in the file, in the folder, and mail and
  


11             it is the instructions on how to file a appeal if the
  


12             district so chooses.  I want to give those to Ms.
  


13             Tatum.  And while I was up there, the Certified mail
  


14             receipt states that it was -- the packet was signed
  


15             -- the final accreditation packet was signed for on
  


16             May 1, so that's --
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Tatum, may I ask you a
  


18             question?
  


19                  MR. WALTERS:  And Ms. Tatum said that they
  


20             weren't in her packet --
  


21                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I'll ask Ms. Tatum.  Ms.
  


22             Tatum, did you receive the letter?
  


23                  MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.  My security guard signed
  


24             for it; it's on the receipt.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
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 1                  MS. TATUM:  But these two documents were not in
  


 2             the envelope and I should've brought the original
  


 3             instead of making a copy.  Because Dr. Dawson and Ms.
  


 4             Pianka wanted to know how to file an appeal and I
  


 5             told her, you know, we were working on the
  


 6             presentation, that I would find it before -- I knew
  


 7             May 15th was the deadline, so that's what I explained
  


 8             to Mr. Walters.  We did receive the report from all
  


 9             the schools that was listed on there but this memo
  


10             was not in there.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Okay.  Mr.
  


12             Walters, while you're close to the stand can I ask a
  


13             couple of questions?
  


14                  MR. WALTERS:  Yes, sir.
  


15                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  In the report that was --
  


16             the preliminary report that was provided -- and I
  


17             think it was the on-site report -- when it comes to
  


18             the curriculum issue, in that there was a statement
  


19             that there's no alignment to a fourth credit course
  


20             for Smart Core students.  So there was no course or
  


21             there was no alignment to a course that would meet
  


22             that requirement?
  


23                  MR. WALTERS:  I'll let Mr. Owen address that.
  


24                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
  


25                  MR. OWEN:  Dr. Kimbrell, whenever I was present
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 1             and looked through the different modules that they
  


 2             offer, the alignment that they gave as far as to our
  


 3             courses that we have within our system were to
  


 4             algebra I, geometry, algebra II.  And at that point
  


 5             they were still indicating that one of their -- or a
  


 6             combination of the sections out of the modules were
  


 7             aligned to an algebraic connections course which was
  


 8             no longer a valid course.  They have since realigned
  


 9             the document, their internal system, to bridge the
  


10             algebra II which is not a fourth year course.  It
  


11             does count as one full credit toward graduation but
  


12             there was no indication that there were any alignment
  


13             -- there was any alignment to a course beyond the
  


14             algebra II.
  


15                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Still no evidence of that?
  


16                  MR. OWEN:  No, sir.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Also -- and, Mr.
  


18             Walters, this will be for you 'cause I see the notes
  


19             that we have on algebra -- Mr. Anthony, your report
  


20             says 96% algebra I.  This was on-site algebra II,
  


21             76%; geometry, 83%.  But you've now received but
  


22             haven't had an opportunity to completely review that.
  


23             Is that correct?
  


24                  MR. OWEN:  Yes, sir.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Now, as far as
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 1             English Language Arts, did we have an English
  


 2             Language Arts specialist --
  


 3                  MR. WALTERS:  Maggie Herrick.
  


 4                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Is she here?
  


 5                  MR. WALTERS:  No, sir.  She is in -- at a
  


 6             conference with Dr. Tucker --
  


 7                  MS. FRENO:  Dr. Witonski.
  


 8                  MR. WALTERS:  -- and Dr. Witonski.  Where?
  


 9                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Then I'm not -- oh,
  


10             she's not here?
  


11                  MR. WALTERS:  Not here.
  


12                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  So has -- have they
  


13             submitted -- I mean, all it tells me is that it does
  


14             not appear to align to the current Common Core State
  


15             Standards.
  


16                  MR. WALTERS:  When we were there Randall
  


17             Lawrence and Ms. Herrick -- Randall went with Ms.
  


18             Lawrence [sic] -- I mean, Ms. Herrick and they
  


19             observed the curriculum.  And from the information we
  


20             were given by Ms. Herrick that is the data that we
  


21             have and the information we have.  The information
  


22             that was received from SIATech was forwarded to Dr.
  


23             Tucker for Ms. Herrick to look at.  Now I don't know
  


24             where it's gone from there.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  That was done yesterday?
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 1                  MR. WALTERS:  Yesterday.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Fine.  So to your
  


 3             knowledge there's not been any review of that?
  


 4                  MR. WALTERS:  No, sir.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  Mr.
  


 6             Walters, before you sit down let me ask one other
  


 7             question and I don't mean to -- I just wanted to go
  


 8             around and let y'all ask questions and --
  


 9                  MR. WALTERS:  That's okay.
  


10                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- y'all may have some
  


11             follow-up questions.  So in terms of the transcripts
  


12             themselves -- and I think we've heard some
  


13             conversation about those transcripts, but was there
  


14             any evidence that the transcripts were wrong, that
  


15             students were given credit for courses that they
  


16             hadn't completed?  I don't --
  


17                  MR. WALTERS:  No.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.
  


19                  MR. WALTERS:  As far as were there manufactured
  


20             courses and manufactured grades, no.  The problem was
  


21             you have e-school here, you have Triand over here;
  


22             ne'er the two ever met.  And they attempted when we
  


23             were there -- they came to the office the next day;
  


24             there was genuine frustration on the part of the
  


25             school that they couldn't get it to match, and I had
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 1             suggested that they work with Carmen's group.  But
  


 2             the fact was what you could see in APSCN and what you
  


 3             could see in Triand were completely different and
  


 4             there was not the indication that courses were being
  


 5             manufactured and put on here.  The issue was the
  


 6             accuracy with which a school district is required to
  


 7             report student data, student grades, and reports in
  


 8             general.  So if a student were to list its -- to
  


 9             qualify for a Challenge Scholarship or something
  


10             along that line, apply for a position, for a job,
  


11             that transcript -- the accuracy of that transcript
  


12             was so in question that you couldn't tell exactly
  


13             what was what.  But we do not believe that there were
  


14             manufactured courses for grades applied to either
  


15             side of the transcript.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Ms. Jordan, a
  


17             question for you please.  Do you feel like we've got
  


18             that problem resolved now or on our way to a
  


19             resolution of that problem?
  


20                  MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir, we are.
  


21                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  Questions
  


22             of the Panel?  Okay.  We'll start with Dr. Walters.
  


23             She's got her hand up first.
  


24                  DR. WALTERS:  I have a question for Dr. Dawson.
  


25             And if you answered this while I was out, my
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 1             apologies.  But can you tell me how many times this
  


 2             current school year has staff from the national
  


 3             organization been on campus, on the Little Rock
  


 4             campus?
  


 5                  DR. DAWSON:  At individual times, multiple -- I
  


 6             can't give you an exact number.
  


 7                  DR. WALTERS:  Less than 10, more than 10?
  


 8                  DR. DAWSON:  More than 10.  We have -- our
  


 9             director was there almost every month, if not more
  


10             than once a month.  Chris Mallory is there every
  


11             month for a board meeting.  Our Learning Support are
  


12             available and have come out periodically on request
  


13             to train teachers when we've been able to do that, so
  


14             --
  


15                  MS. PIANKA:  Yeah.  And I can add to that.
  


16                  DR. WALTERS:  Sure.
  


17                  MS. PIANKA:  I'm here so often I don't need a
  


18             map anymore of Little Rock.  I can find my way around
  


19             or drive the rest of the team around.  We identified
  


20             -- I think Ms. Tatum and I identified early, probably
  


21             in November and December, that since we had some new
  


22             staff we wanted some refresher courses and support
  


23             with classroom management.  And so we had our
  


24             Learning Support Team out for a week in February for
  


25             training.  As has already been stated by the Learning
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 1             Support Team, they provide monthly ilincs in every
  


 2             subject area.  And along with being on campus to
  


 3             train individual teachers as they are hired and
  


 4             anyone that's in need of additional support they'll
  


 5             work for us.  It's been my privilege to work with Ms.
  


 6             Tatum for the past three years and we kind of got
  


 7             baptized together in APSCN by attending, starting in
  


 8             2011, probably five weeks of training.  And we were
  


 9             part of the team that said, "We don't do semester
  


10             grades," and we were assured that somehow it would
  


11             work out; "We'll just do the final grade."  So we
  


12             were very upfront with how our system works and
  


13             what's to be expected.  But we probably I would say
  


14             at least every month, sometimes twice a month
  


15             depending -- Ms. Mallory and I kind of tag-team and
  


16             both provide oversight and support to the site to
  


17             make sure that they have what they need.  We do
  


18             classroom observations, we do audits, we do whatever
  


19             is needed or support the principal in any way with
  


20             something that she identifies that is needed for her
  


21             site.  So, yes, we are here frequently.
  


22                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez?
  


23                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  My question is for Jeremy or
  


24             Kendra, either one.  As far as there being
  


25             probationary notification given to them for
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 1             standards, they have a way to appeal that --
  


 2                  MR. LASITER:  Yes.
  


 3                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  -- and there will be a hearing
  


 4             and that's in front of the State Board.  Is that
  


 5             correct?
  


 6                  MR. LASITER:  That's correct.
  


 7                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  That was one question.
  


 8             The second question, if we decide to take no action
  


 9             does that require a motion or how does that work as
  


10             far as what we're able to do?
  


11                  MR. LASITER:  Certainly, I would ask that
  


12             anything that you do, do it in a motion so it's
  


13             formalized and we can put it in the minutes.  So if
  


14             you decide to take no action it would be better and
  


15             cleaner if you did it just through a motion.
  


16                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Other questions?  Mr. Owen?
  


18                  MR. OWEN:  Yes, Dr. Kimbrell.  I have a point of
  


19             clarification for my previous answer, if it can be
  


20             allowed.  I pulled back up the email that I received
  


21             yesterday and looked back through it and not only has
  


22             SIATech presented within this documentation an
  


23             updated curriculum for algebra two, they have also
  


24             aligned to an algebra III curriculum document of
  


25             ours.  That would count as a "beyond algebra II"
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 1             credit under Smart Core, if it is properly aligned.
  


 2                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you, sir.  Thanks for
  


 3             that clarification.
  


 4                  MS. HOCKER:  Can I just add to that?  There are
  


 5             two different digital math curriculums in our math
  


 6             teachers' folder.  The one from 2012-2013 is our
  


 7             teacher (inaudible); she showed him that when you
  


 8             were in there.  We haven't filed one for 2013-2014
  


 9             that has those courses.  And if you go in and look,
  


10             it's on their -- on her teacher log-in, so -- for
  


11             both.
  


12                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Other questions
  


13             by the Panel?  I do have one question and, Ms.
  


14             Dawson, it may be you to answer this or whomever.
  


15             But you use the ANGEL Learning Management System?
  


16                  DR. DAWSON:  Yes, that's correct.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Everybody keeps referring to
  


18             it in this document that's been provided, talk about
  


19             -- it talks about the curriculum delivery model and
  


20             its ability to be real fluid and updated throughout
  


21             the year.  What curriculum model is this?  Is it
  


22             something that your organization or the organization
  


23             you run has created or is it a digital piece that is
  


24             a third-party vendor?
  


25                  DR. DAWSON:  I think the answer to that would be
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 1             it's a combination of both of those.  There are
  


 2             certain things within our curriculum that we've
  


 3             developed and we know that they're successful.  We've
  


 4             also added additional programs.  For instance, a lot
  


 5             of our math curriculum is based with PLATO content,
  


 6             which is customizable; therefore, we add to that.
  


 7             And we've created a hybrid type of system that's a
  


 8             combination of both off the shelf, which doesn't work
  


 9             for our population by itself, and what we've created
  


10             internally.
  


11                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And so the states that
  


12             you're in that I've looked at I believe are also
  


13             Common Core states?
  


14                  DR. DAWSON:  Correct.
  


15                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I saw --
  


16                  DR. DAWSON:  Well, Florida isn't but --
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Well, yeah.  Up until --
  


18             well --
  


19                  DR. DAWSON:  They may be soon.  We don't know.
  


20                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yeah.  I also saw that three
  


21             of the course states -- well, all the states besides
  


22             Arkansas your schools are accredited by a third-party
  


23             accreditation system?
  


24                  DR. DAWSON:  That's correct.  We have -- in
  


25             California, we have two accreditations.  We have the
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 1             WASC, the Western Association accreditation, plus the
  


 2             Advanced Ed. Trans Regional Accreditation for both
  


 3             our schools as well as our corporate office.  In
  


 4             Florida, we have the AdvancED with SACS and in New
  


 5             Mexico also we have both the AdvancED and the North
  


 6             Central accreditation.
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any -- and this is not on
  


 8             the subject and I apologize -- any --
  


 9                  DR. WALTER:  Can I get onto you?
  


10                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And you can get onto me.
  


11             Any plans for looking at the -- an accreditation for
  


12             your school here?
  


13                  DR. DAWSON:  Well, we are accredited under
  


14             AdvancED.
  


15                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Here?
  


16                  DR. DAWSON:  Here, in Arkansas.  Absolutely.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Your school has an AdvancED
  


18             --
  


19                  DR. DAWSON:  Accreditation.  Absolutely.
  


20                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  I just didn't
  


21             see it listed on a website.
  


22                  DR. DAWSON:  I'll have to check that.  It should
  


23             be.  It must be.  I can't imagine it not being.  But
  


24             I'll check that.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Arizona, California,
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 1             Florida, New Mexico are the only ones listed as
  


 2             having accreditation from a separate accrediting --
  


 3             right there on your home page.
  


 4                  DR. DAWSON:  We have the certificate.
  


 5                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  You might want to update
  


 6             that.
  


 7                  MS. REYNOLDS:  We'll update the website.
  


 8                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any other questions?
  


 9                  MS. COFFMAN:  Do you know when that
  


10             accreditation review occurred?
  


11                  DR. DAWSON:  11-12, I believe.
  


12                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.
  


13                  DR. DAWSON:  Excuse me.  Next year we'll be
  


14             having the follow-up accreditation.
  


15                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I do want to make one
  


16             statement to -- is it Dr. Dawson?
  


17                  DR. DAWSON:  Yes.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Dr. Dawson, to you and your
  


19             staff.  These are not uncommon reviews.  There are
  


20             times and we've done a couple this year where I've
  


21             asked Mr. Hoy to go into traditional public schools
  


22             and to do very similar, unannounced reviews when
  


23             there are things that are brought to our attention
  


24             that we believe need to be reviewed and maybe need to
  


25             be reviewed in a way in which we need to just show
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 1             up.  And I apologize, and if it put people at unease
  


 2             and made them feel uncomfortable that's not our
  


 3             intention whatsoever.  It's not our intention to,
  


 4             quote, "catch people" but it's our intention to go
  


 5             into a school to see a school operate as a school and
  


 6             we don't want to go in with everybody prepared for
  


 7             someone to come in, you know.  And if you're -- and
  


 8             I've run schools and run organizations for 30-
  


 9             something years in this business; if you're doing
  


10             what you're supposed to be doing, you don't have to
  


11             worry about those things.  But I also know that when
  


12             the Department of Ed. or an accrediting agency or
  


13             anything comes in there's those concerns.  So I do
  


14             want to say it was never our intention to put people
  


15             on edge or to make them feel uneasy.  And we've done
  


16             these before and most, if not all -- this is the
  


17             first time I remember getting a report back that
  


18             anyone felt that the questioning was -- and I think
  


19             the report says -- maybe it was the degree at which
  


20             the questions were -- or the manner in which
  


21             questions were asked.  And I've not heard that about
  


22             our staff and I hope that maybe it was just an unease
  


23             and not our staff being in any way derogatory or
  


24             accusatory in their questioning.  I don't think the
  


25             staff would do that, so I hope that that's not what







Sharon Hill Court Reporting
(501) 847-0510


- May 14, 2014


93


  
 1             happened and maybe it was just some unease that was
  


 2             experienced by the staff.
  


 3                  DR. DAWSON:  I appreciate that and I'm sure that
  


 4             that's it.  I think Dr. Cox brought up a very
  


 5             important point, is that -- especially when you have
  


 6             a school like ours that's not a traditional school
  


 7             and has a different way of approaching, we expect and
  


 8             we get a lot of scrutiny; we're used to that.  So
  


 9             we're able and we're willing and wanting to talk
  


10             about that.  I think we can do a better job, both in
  


11             the corporate office and we'll work with our site
  


12             staff, in communicating as players change within the
  


13             office what exactly we do.  It doesn't -- telling it
  


14             once doesn't make it transferable as people change or
  


15             as our program changes.  So I think all of us
  


16             included in our partnership can work on our
  


17             communication and we'll definitely make that a
  


18             priority.
  


19                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Panel, I would
  


20             suggest since we really don't have a full review of
  


21             the math yet -- I know that Anthony has that
  


22             information and I have all confidence that he can do
  


23             that for us.  I know that our English Language Arts
  


24             staff that were there haven't had an opportunity to
  


25             review that.  It does seem to me that the Triand
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 1             issue and the transcript issues, if not completely
  


 2             resolved, are being resolved and are resolvable.  We
  


 3             may still run into some problems.  A mind is a
  


 4             terrible thing to lose and over the last five years
  


 5             mine is slowly but surely being -- it's about gone.
  


 6             But I remember that conversation well with the
  


 7             internal group and having that conversation about
  


 8             "this is going to be hard, this is not going to work
  


 9             with our current system, and we're just going to have
  


10             to make it work."  So I don't know about your
  


11             feelings but I just think with what is going to come
  


12             before the State Board I would rather us have answers
  


13             for them about those curriculum issues.  I think we
  


14             can answer the questions for ourselves about the
  


15             Triand and the transcripts.  But for the curriculum
  


16             issues I think there's time for our staff to work
  


17             with their staff to see if those things are actually
  


18             in place before we make some kind of decision.  And
  


19             I'd welcome any discussion, comment you may have.
  


20             Mr. Hoy?
  


21                  MR. HOY:  Motion at the proper time.
  


22                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I'll accept a motion.
  


23                  MR. HOY:  A motion that we take no action at
  


24             this time, Dr. Kimbrell.
  


25                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a motion from Mr. Hoy
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 1             to take no action at this time.
  


 2                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  Second.
  


 3                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a second from Mr.
  


 4             Hernandez.  Any discussion?  If not, all those in
  


 5             favor of the motion say "aye."
  


 6                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All those opposed?  Motion
  


 8             passes.  Thank y'all.  Thank you, Panel.  Thank you,
  


 9             SIATech and we'll be back in touch and we'll continue
  


10             to work on insuring that that is aligned.  Mr.
  


11             Walters, I hope you will work with Ms. Tatum to make
  


12             sure that everything is lined up for their appeal, if
  


13             they choose.
  


14                  MR. WALTERS:  We will hold a slot open for the
  


15             State Board meeting in the event that they choose to
  


16             appeal.
  


17                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you very much.
  


18   A-2:  CONSIDERATION OF 2014 DISTRICT CONVERSION PUBLIC CHARTER
  


19   SCHOOL APPLICATION
  


20                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So we'll move to
  


21             Action Item A-2, Consideration of the 2014 District
  


22             Conversion Public Charter School Application.  Ms.
  


23             Perry.  And if you'd like, Ms. Perry, we can let the
  


24             room kind of clear, if you want to.
  


25                  MS. PERRY:  I'm good.  You are --
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 1                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Except Tripp is bothering
  


 2             everybody.
  


 3                  MS. PERRY:  This document should look fairly
  


 4             familiar to you.  Last meeting we brought you the
  


 5             Open-Enrollment Charter Application for your review.
  


 6             The Board, as you know, allowed it to release last
  


 7             week.  So this week we're bringing to you the
  


 8             District Conversion Application.  You will note that
  


 9             we made the appropriate changes to the District
  


10             Conversion Application that we made to the Open-
  


11             Enrollment where that made sense.  You'll notice
  


12             things like we pulled the budget piece out, as when
  


13             we had our meeting back in January you directed us
  


14             and you felt that was appropriate for District
  


15             Conversion Applications.  So it looks very similar.
  


16             We did completely drop "limited charter" from it.
  


17             Again, we talked about it that day.  We've had no one
  


18             ever ask to submit an application for a limited
  


19             charter school.  If we get that request, we'll see
  


20             about putting in a couple of questions because that's
  


21             all it would take to revise this and let someone do
  


22             that.
  


23                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any questions from the
  


24             Panel?  Ms. Coffman, you don't have a question?
  


25                  MS. COFFMAN:  No.  It looks good.
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 1                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  All right.  If not,
  


 2             I'll entertain a motion.  If the crowd out there will
  


 3             hold it down, we'll get this done.
  


 4                  MS. COFFMAN:  I make a motion we approve these
  


 5             documents.
  


 6                  MR. HERNANDEZ:  Second.
  


 7                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Coffman makes a motion
  


 8             and Mr. Hernandez quickly makes a second.  All those
  


 9             in favor say "aye."
  


10                      (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
  


11                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All those opposed like sign.
  


12             Motion passes.  Thank you, Ms. Perry, for your work
  


13             and the rest of the staff and attorneys for their
  


14             work.  I'll entertain a motion to adjourn.
  


15                  DR. WALTERS:  Motion.
  


16                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a motion to adjourn.
  


17                  MS. COFFMAN:  Second.
  


18                  CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Second from Ms. Coffman.
  


19             And we are adjourned.
  


20
  


21       (The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:35 a.m.)
  


22
  


23
  


24
  


25
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              1                       P R O C E E D I N G S 


              2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  It's a little bit past 8:30.  


              3            If we can get Tripp to sit down -- 


              4                 MS. PERRY:  That was my fault. 


              5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I'm just teasing Tripp.  I 


              6            always have to give Tripp a hard time.  So we'll 


              7            begin with our first item and I do not have a report 


              8            from the chair, so I'll take up the Consent Agenda, 


              9            the minutes of the April 16, 2014 board meeting.  Do 


             10            you have any questions or adjustments on that?  


             11            There's only one item on the consent.  If not, I'll 


             12            entertain a motion. 


             13                 MR. HOY:  Motion to approve. 


             14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a motion to approve 


             15            by Mister -- 


             16                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Second. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hoy, and second by Mr. 


             18            Hernandez.  All those in favor? 


             19                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 


             20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All those opposed like sign.  


             21            Motion passes, so the Consent Agenda passes. 


             22  A-1:  HEARING FOR OPEN-ENROLLMENT PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL: SCHOOL 


             23  FOR INTEGRATED ACADEMICS & TECHNOLOGIES LITTLE ROCK (SIATech) 


             24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  So we'll move to Action Item 


             25            A-1, Hearing for the Open-Enrollment Public Charter 
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              1            School: School for Integrated Academics and 


              2            Technologies Little Rock (SIATech).  Mr. Lasiter. 


              3                 MR. LASITER:  Thank you, Commissioner Kimbrell, 


              4            Members of the Panel.  I want to walk you through the 


              5            hearing procedures that apply for the purposes of 


              6            this agenda item and take you through some of the 


              7            legal considerations.  I know that we have people 


              8            from both the Department of Education and from the 


              9            charter school who will want to address you on this 


             10            issue.  But A-1 is a hearing for the open-enrollment 


             11            public charter school, School for Integrated 


             12            Academics and Technologies in Little Rock, or S-I-A-


             13            Tech.  Your procedures are found in Section 6.24 of 


             14            the ADE rules governing charter schools and I'll 


             15            briefly take you through those procedures.   


             16                 The hearing procedures require 20 days prior 


             17            notice.  The ADE provided a notice letter concerning 


             18            this hearing to the charter school on April 24, 2014.  


             19            That notice letter is in your materials.  In a moment 


             20            I will walk through that notice letter as well 


             21            because it contains some important things that you'll 


             22            need to consider for the purposes of this hearing.  


             23            But in a moment all persons, with exception of the 


             24            attorneys representing the parties, who plan to give 


             25            testimony must be sworn by a certified court 
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              1            reporter.  At that point Arkansas Department of 


              2            Education staff will have up to 20 minutes to present 


              3            their findings to the Panel.  Mr. Commissioner, you 


              4            can agree to allow them longer if that time is 


              5            needed.  After the 20 minutes is over, the open-


              6            enrollment public charter school shall have 20 


              7            minutes to present its case to the authorizer.  And 


              8            as with the ADE presentation, Mr. Commissioner, you 


              9            can certainly allow more time if that time is needed.  


             10            After the presentation by both the ADE and the 


             11            Charter Authorizing Panel [sic], that's when you go 


             12            into your discussion of the issues and your 


             13            questions, if any, to any of the representatives from 


             14            either the Department of Education or the charter 


             15            school.  And then at the conclusion of the hearing 


             16            you may issue a final decision or take the matter 


             17            under advisement until a future scheduled meeting. 


             18                 I now want to refer you to Arkansas Code 6-23-


             19            105 because that statute gives you your options for 


             20            the hearing today.  Certainly, your first option is 


             21            not to take any action.  You always have that.  There 


             22            are not mandatory actions that need to be taken 


             23            today.  So you can decide, first of all, to do 


             24            nothing at all.  But you may also place the public 


             25            charter school on probation or you may modify or 
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              1            revoke the charter if you determine that the persons 


              2            operating the public charter school, one, committed a 


              3            material violation of the charter, including failure 


              4            to satisfy accountability provisions prescribed by 


              5            the charter; two, failed to satisfy generally-


              6            accepted accounting standards of fiscal management; 


              7            three, failed to comply with this chapter, meaning in 


              8            the Arkansas code or other applicable law or 


              9            regulation; or, four, failed to meet academic or 


             10            fiscal performance criteria deemed appropriate and 


             11            relevant for the public charter school by the 


             12            authorizer.  The law does also set forth the criteria 


             13            for how do you arrive at these decisions.  It says 


             14            that any action the authorizer may take shall be 


             15            based on the best interest of the public charter 


             16            school students, the severity of the violation, and 


             17            any previous violation the public charter school may 


             18            have committed.  So, again, on the spectrum of things 


             19            that you can do in this hearing is on one side take 


             20            no action, all the way up to revocation of the 


             21            charter. 


             22                 Now I want to refer you, before I sit down, to 


             23            the notice letter that went out to the charter school 


             24            on April 24, 2014.  And that notice letter put the 


             25            charter school on notice of two potential findings in 
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              1            this case.  The first is the allegation that the 


              2            curriculum was not aligned to the Common Core State 


              3            Standards, and the second was inconsistencies in 


              4            student records that impact official transcripts.  


              5            Those are the two items that the charter school has 


              6            notice of and that's why they're here today.  


              7            Certainly, during the course of your questions and 


              8            discussions other questions may arise that you want 


              9            to pose to the charter.  But any action that you take 


             10            today as a panel needs to be focused on those two 


             11            items that the charter school received notice of.  


             12            So, again, those were curriculum that's not aligned 


             13            to the Common Core State Standards and, two, 


             14            inconsistencies in student records that impact 


             15            official transcripts.  Ms. Clay and I will both be 


             16            here for the duration of this hearing, if you have 


             17            further questions. 


             18                 If there aren't any questions at this time, then 


             19            we'll need to swear everyone in and then we'll 


             20            proceed with the Department of Education's 20 


             21            minutes. 


             22                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Panel Members, any questions 


             23            of Mr. Lasiter?  If not, I would ask that all those 


             24            that will be giving testimony, with the exception of 


             25            those attorneys that may be representing either the 
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              1            Department or the charter, please rise.  Raise your 


              2            right hand, please.  Do you swear or affirm to tell 


              3            the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth? 


              4               (ALL WITNESSES ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY) 


              5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.   


              6                 MR. LASITER:  Mr. Commissioner, I believe Ms. 


              7            Perry will begin the Department's 20 minutes. 


              8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Ms. Perry. 


              9                 MS. PERRY:  Good morning.  I'm just going to 


             10            give you a little bit of background that led to the 


             11            standards visit and review.  After receiving 


             12            information in November that all teachers at SIATech 


             13            were not highly qualified, I looked at the state 


             14            performance data from the two years that the charter 


             15            had been in operation and noted a few students who 


             16            had demonstrated proficiency on and the low 


             17            percentage of students who actually took the state 


             18            assessments.  So on December 3rd, Lisa Crook and I 


             19            held a scheduled meeting with SIATech leaders.  In 


             20            the meeting I asked questions about student 


             21            performance and was told about the ability levels of 


             22            students.  I also asked questions about the number of 


             23            SIATech graduates, the curriculum being used at the 


             24            charter, and the qualifications of the teachers.  I 


             25            requested a list of the 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 
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              1            graduates with their ID numbers and clarification 


              2            about teacher qualifications.  I first received a 


              3            list of graduates and later a list of graduates with 


              4            ID numbers.  I then reviewed transcripts, 


              5            information, and Triand for SIATech graduates and 


              6            identified many transcript issues.  I shared the 


              7            information with my supervisor, who requested that I 


              8            share the information with the Commissioner.  The 


              9            Commissioner directed the Standards Unit to conduct a 


             10            review.  The review report is in the Panel packet, as 


             11            well as the signed visit form that was completed at 


             12            the review on April 2nd.  Mr. Johnie Walters, who led 


             13            the Standards Review Team, will discuss the report.  


             14            Anthony Owen, a Standards Review Team member, is also 


             15            present this morning should you have questions for 


             16            him. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you, Ms. Perry.  Mr. 


             18            Walters, I guess you're up next. 


             19                 MR. WALTERS:  On March 27th, we received a 


             20            letter -- I received a letter from Dr. Kimbrell 


             21            authorizing our unit to do an on-site review visit to 


             22            SIATech charter school.  We made that visit on April 


             23            2nd of 2014.  We had my self as a facilitator and we 


             24            had team members Roy Causbie, who's a Standards 


             25            Assurance Specialist; Mari Beth Nokes, a Standards 
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              1            Assurance Specialist; Randall Lawrence, a Standards 


              2            Assurance Specialist; Maggie Herrick, who is a Social 


              3            Studies Language Arts Specialist from Curriculum 


              4            Instruction; and Mr. Anthony Owen from Curriculum 


              5            Instruction, who is a Math Specialist.  At that time 


              6            the team reviewed numerous documents, handbooks.  We 


              7            reviewed transcripts; we reviewed curriculum 


              8            documents.  Different team members had different 


              9            assignments at a time.  Upon completion of the review 


             10            the team determined, in talking with Ms. Tatum, that 


             11            the transcripts were not in alignment with e-school 


             12            and Triand transcripts.  There were discrepancies 


             13            between credits, number of credits, types of credits, 


             14            things of that nature.  And Ms. Tatum had at the time 


             15            asked if they could attempt to make some corrections 


             16            and bring us updated copies the following day, which 


             17            they did.  But the corrections were not accurate; the 


             18            transcripts still were not in alignment. 


             19                 With regard to curriculum, we had several team 


             20            members visit classrooms and look at various parts of 


             21            the curriculum and it was determined that the 


             22            Language Arts curriculum, Social Studies curriculum 


             23            portions, Science were not at the time aligned with 


             24            the current Common Core State Standards.  And there 


             25            were percentages of alignment with some math courses.  
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              1            And Mr. Owen is here and he has -- can speak more 


              2            correctly to that.  At the time of exit we wrote our 


              3            findings up and I believe you have copies of that in 


              4            your folder where we had three pages of findings from 


              5            different individuals.  And we noted on there that 


              6            the curriculum did not meet the standards and we were 


              7            notified that currently that was accurate but that in 


              8            the 14-15 school year the curriculum should be 


              9            aligned with the Common Core curriculum that the 


             10            State has approved.  At this time we've not seen any 


             11            evidence to the contrary.  We did receive some 


             12            documents from SIATech that was forwarded to me by 


             13            Ms. Perry.  I've not had an opportunity to completely 


             14            review those, so -- but at the time of the visit they 


             15            basically told us that it would be aligned in the 14-


             16            15 school year.  And math was the one content area 


             17            that was most closely aligned with the current Common 


             18            Core State Standards.  And, again, the transcripts 


             19            were not consistent with each other when they were 


             20            run, and these were on the day of the visit nor when 


             21            they were brought -- they were attempted to be 


             22            corrected and brought to us on the 3rd. 


             23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And that's all you have? 


             24                 MR. WALTERS:  Yes, sir. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Is there anything 
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              1            else from the Department to be presented?  Mr. 


              2            Lasiter, do you have something else? 


              3                 MR. LASITER:  No, sir. 


              4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Okay.  So 


              5            representatives from SIATech -- who would like to 


              6            begin that?  Again, we'll have 20 minutes and I know 


              7            that we've sworn in a lot of people, so have y'all 


              8            got this organized how you want to do this? 


              9                 DR. DAWSON:  We hope so. 


             10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  I'll try to keep you 


             11            kind of abreast of how much time you have.  If you 


             12            want to know, you can just ask me and I'll try to 


             13            keep you up-to-date. 


             14                 DR. DAWSON:  Thank you.  Good morning, Dr. 


             15            Kimbrell, Members of the Panel.  My name is Linda 


             16            Dawson.  I'm the superintendent and CEO of SIATech, 


             17            Incorporated.  I'm very pleased to be here this 


             18            morning to talk to you a little bit about SIATech.  


             19            And with me I have members of our team, strong 


             20            members of our Learning Support Team responsible for 


             21            curriculum alignment and the transition that we all 


             22            have to make in public education to the Common Core 


             23            over the last several years.  And you will be meeting 


             24            each of those members as we explain our curriculum.  


             25            I want to just let the board and panel know a little 
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              1            bit about us.  Breaking the cycle of poverty is the 


              2            number one goal of our organization.  We do dropout 


              3            recovery.  We take students that are the most at-risk 


              4            of not being successful in life and try to get them 


              5            re-engaged with education and back into the 


              6            mainstream and give them the hope that they can have 


              7            a fulfilling life with the academic skills necessary 


              8            to compete in a very competitive work world.  Our 


              9            network of charter schools has been in existence for 


             10            15 years.  We have over 14,000 graduates that are now 


             11            participating in life with a college -- or a high 


             12            school diploma.  Well, 38% of our students are in 


             13            college within the first two years of graduating.  


             14            We've been recognized by the National Dropout 


             15            Recovery network, as well as in California, as a 


             16            California Distinguished School, the first dropout 


             17            recovery school to get that designation.  What we 


             18            know is that dropout recovery isn't easy and that by 


             19            no means is an excuse.  We absolutely understand what 


             20            we do.  We also know that with a concentrated student 


             21            population, predominantly students in poverty, that 


             22            those students take longer to get back into the 


             23            mainstream.  Research shows that we have students 


             24            that are presenting symptoms of post-traumatic stress 


             25            syndrome because of their situation.  It's not an 
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              1            excuse, and we believe we have methods, we have the 


              2            people, and we have the program that can get these 


              3            students back on track.  We are certainly not trying 


              4            to shirk any duties or say that we are perfect in any 


              5            way; we are not.  We are absolutely willing and able 


              6            and committed to fixing any type of concerns that the 


              7            board would have.  We believe strongly in 


              8            accountability.  We believe in a broader range of 


              9            accountability.  But we were certainly making every 


             10            effort -- our expectation is that our school leaders 


             11            will make that effort to meet the accountability 


             12            standards of the states that we're operating in, most 


             13            certainly here in Arkansas.  So I would like to say 


             14            that from a corporate standpoint we believe that we 


             15            have the leader in place that can make these changes 


             16            that you are requiring, that we can move forward in a 


             17            very positive way as a partner in education, and that 


             18            our program is our kids' best hope to participate 


             19            fully in the life of the community.  So with that, 


             20            I'd like to introduce our next speaker. 


             21                 MS. BELZMAN:  Good morning.  My name is Lori 


             22            Belzman.  I'm a curriculum coordinator for SIATech 


             23            and I will be speaking about the curriculum for both 


             24            ELA and Social Studies.  We wanted to start off 


             25            though by saying that all SIATech curriculum has a 
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              1            comprehensive alignment with the Common Core 


              2            Standards; it always has, it always will, because 


              3            it's a requirement.  And one of the ways it allows us 


              4            to do this so easily is our curriculum delivery model 


              5            and our Learning Management System.  It allows for 


              6            continuous updates and revisions.  And as a result of 


              7            that, our alignments are done at a minimum once a 


              8            year but more realistically periodically to reflect 


              9            these continuous updates and revisions of our 


             10            curriculum on the spot.  My clicker is not working. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Freeman, can you help? 


             12                 MS. BELZMAN:  That's okay.  So as far as ELA 


             13            goes, looking at our digital curriculum as well as 


             14            our English resources, we are one-hundred percent 


             15            compliant with the ADE Common Core State Standards 


             16            and our current crosswalk for 2013-2014 reflects this 


             17            and that has been submitted to you.  As far as the 


             18            ELA reading passages not being at high school level, 


             19            we had every reading passage through Readability 


             20            Score-dot-com and as expected we found that the 


             21            results varied.  All reading passages were anywhere 


             22            from middle school to college level.  But we do want 


             23            to point out one key concept when you're looking at 


             24            task complexity, especially in terms of the Common 


             25            Core.  Reading level is definitely one component of 
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              1            text complexity but you also have to look at the 


              2            complexity of the task that is associated with the 


              3            test.  For example, in 11th grade American Lit 


              4            students typically read short stories by Edgar Allen 


              5            Poe or O. Henry.  These are actually middle school 


              6            reading passages but the task that they have to 


              7            complete with the reading passage is typically 


              8            higher.  Students are analyzing, they're evaluating, 


              9            so they're answering questions on the higher end of 


             10            knowledge as well as Webb's Cognitive Rigor Matrix.  


             11            So we would urge that you look at both components, 


             12            not just the reading level itself but the task which 


             13            students have to complete associated with that piece 


             14            of task.   


             15                 As far as the writing assignments, we have 


             16            several measures of criteria to show that they are at 


             17            high school level.  They were created using, of 


             18            course, the Common Core Standards as a guideline but 


             19            we also looked at all the questions we ask of our 


             20            students the part question types in order to prepare 


             21            them for the upcoming assessment for next year.  We 


             22            also use Webb's Depth of Knowledge, as well as Hess's 


             23            Cognitive Rigor Matrix to make sure that we were not 


             24            asking all lower-end questions but that we were 


             25            asking our students to answer questions and complete 
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              1            writing assignments at those higher levels of Webb's 


              2            Depth of Knowledge, as well as the cognitive rigor 


              3            matrix. 


              4                 As far as the Oral Communications framework not 


              5            being updated, we simply updated that to show that we 


              6            are currently meeting the framework.  And that 


              7            current bit of alignment was submitted to you as 


              8            well.      


              9                 For Social Studies, again, if you look at our -- 


             10            both of our digital curriculum online in our Learning 


             11            Management System and our Social Studies resources, 


             12            we are one-hundred percent compliant with the Common 


             13            Core State Standards in both literacy and writing for 


             14            History and Social Studies.  And, again, that 


             15            document was submitted for you.  And all of our 


             16            current crosswalk showed this current alignment with 


             17            those standards.   


             18                 As far as the depth and rigor issue that was 


             19            brought up for our Social Studies, I think World 


             20            History was specifically mentioned.  The current 


             21            units have been revised to meet that required depth 


             22            and rigor.  We also have additional plans to develop 


             23            more units so that we have a more comprehensive World 


             24            History curriculum and that will be in the 2014-2015 


             25            school year.  Another good example of our depth and 
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              1            rigor is in our Economics and our Government courses.  


              2            Both were recently approved as college and career 


              3            ready courses for our students.  And, finally, U.S. 


              4            History has had significant revisions just in the 


              5            digital curriculum.  It doesn't appear in our paper 


              6            framework; it's all online since August of 2013.  


              7            Again, just examples to show you that our curriculum 


              8            is constantly being updated and revised. 


              9                 MS. HOCKER:  Hello.  My name is Tami Hocker.  


             10            I'm the Curriculum Coordinator/Math Specialist for 


             11            SIATech.  I've been in secondary education for 30 


             12            years.  I've taught the whole gamut of mathematics 


             13            from foundational math, algebra I, geometry, algebra 


             14            II, pre-calculus, trigonometry, and AP calculus.  The 


             15            year before I joined SIATech my AP calculus pass rate 


             16            for students was 89%.  So I'm very aware of what 


             17            students need to be college and career ready for the 


             18            21st century. 


             19                 So some of the documents and items that I wanted 


             20            to share with you that if someone walked into the 


             21            classroom and they're only looking at paper-based 


             22            documents, we have, as Lori mentioned, an online 


             23            program.  We have the ANGEL Learning Management 


             24            System.  And the courses that we deliver, as well as 


             25            the additional resources, are housed through our 
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              1            ANGEL management system, very similar to Blackboard.  


              2            So you have been sent the updated crosswalks to 


              3            reflect what's currently in the classroom.  As with 


              4            any lesson plan or any good teaching practice, we 


              5            look at student data and outcomes and teacher input 


              6            and we are constantly making revisions.  So what is 


              7            available for these courses we did send to you what's 


              8            in the digital and it's fully aligned to the Arkansas 


              9            Department of Education Common Core State Standards 


             10            for those courses.   


             11                 Up on the screen -- I know it's very small but 


             12            there's a screen shot of the algebra III.  There are 


             13            six different units; inside each of those units there 


             14            are several assignments.  On each of them it does 


             15            tell which of the Common Core State Standards is 


             16            addressed, and I'll show you a sample lesson in just 


             17            a minute.  Additional resources that we have 


             18            available, we do individual learning plans for 


             19            students, not just their traditional curriculum.  


             20            Some of our students need scaffolding, they need 


             21            review, and some of them need enrichment.  So through 


             22            the PLATO Learning Management System, in addition to 


             23            our curriculum, we have everything from foundational 


             24            math up through calculus.  Up on the screen this is a 


             25            sample lesson for our algebra III that we did use 
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              1            that came from the NROC Developmental Math 


              2            Curriculum, which was designed for adult learners to 


              3            take any individual that needs basic math up through 


              4            college readiness.  And you can see this is a 


              5            mathematics modeling with exponential functions; it's 


              6            in the first unit of the algebra III.  We also have 


              7            additional online resources available to all students 


              8            in one click.  We can add anything on there very 


              9            quickly.  There are two different graphing 


             10            calculators; there's PARCC practice tests and 


             11            resources; algebra EOC specific to Arkansas; there's 


             12            virtual manipulatives.  But up on the top right-hand 


             13            corner I would like to draw your attention -- we have 


             14            a help button where we have credentialed teachers 


             15            available to our students outside of the classroom 


             16            and during class hours where we have credentialed 


             17            math teachers that are highly qualified.  We have 


             18            auto-cad specialists available, as well as other 


             19            credentialed teachers.   We have 20-plus different 


             20            math lessons that students are doing in our 


             21            curriculum where they apply mathematics through 


             22            technology.  This is an example of a lesson that a 


             23            student would complete if they do our geometry 


             24            curriculum.  They're doing linear measurement, 


             25            they're doing ANGEL measurement, and they are 
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              1            converting it into polar coordinates and then they 


              2            are going onto an auto-cad program and recreating the 


              3            star that you see there and you can see a sample of 


              4            the screen shot.  So those are additional resources 


              5            that we use and some examples of things we have in 


              6            our curriculum.  Thank you. 


              7                 MS. MALLORY:  I'd like to share with you a 


              8            little bit about some of our accountability methods 


              9            to evaluate -- have students not only -- 


             10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Would you go ahead and tell 


             11            us your name? 


             12                 MS. MALLORY:  Oh.  Kris Mallory, I'm sorry, from 


             13            SIATech and I'm the Chief Instructional Officer and I 


             14            have the privilege of working with the ladies that 


             15            are sitting here today.  One of the things we do at 


             16            SIATech is we do -- we use a computer adapted 


             17            assessment that's nationally normed and we assess the 


             18            students -- it's not a test, they don't pass or fail; 


             19            it's an assessment of progress.  And the students 


             20            take this assessment in math and reading when they 


             21            first come in and then they're given it again six to 


             22            ten weeks later and again six to ten weeks later so 


             23            they can evaluate their growth.  And what I've given 


             24            you is these little tiny things.  The dots are 


             25            children and their growth.  And I have the results 
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              1            here for reading from the first year we were open and 


              2            at the end of the year we have an external evaluation 


              3            that looks -- and see did the students actually meet 


              4            or exceed growth.  You think of grade level.  If the 


              5            student is in 11.1, that would be the first month of 


              6            the 11th grade year.  The evaluation is much more 


              7            technical and uses a scale score so the kids can 


              8            understand that.  We have students come in anywhere 


              9            from 2nd grade reading level and math level up to 


             10            12.9, so we have a wide range of ability.  And it's a 


             11            little lower in math -- I mean, in reading; they 


             12            average about 6th grade and up to about 6.9 for math.  


             13            So on this first screen is reading and it shows only 


             14            28% of the students were exceeding expected growth.  


             15            And if you go to the next slide, that's the next 


             16            year; that's a year ago, and it increased from 28% to 


             17            44% of the students being proficient.  We go to math, 


             18            the next slide.  The first year we were open it 


             19            showed 45% of the students exceeding growth and then 


             20            a year ago it showed 62%.  So those were gains of 16% 


             21            and 17% in kids exceeding expected growth.  And if 


             22            you go to the next slide, you can see the comparison 


             23            between the two years.  On one -- on the left side is 


             24            the reading, on the right side is math and that 


             25            horizontal line shows what is expected.  And you can 
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              1            see that on the math the majority of our kids are now 


              2            exceeding what's expected and that's because the 


              3            teachers learned how to use the reports with the 


              4            students so they can engage and use that information 


              5            to help them drive their own instruction.  They have 


              6            to take control, and we're getting better at it and I 


              7            know we're going to continue to get better at it. 


              8                 The slide on your paper has an error, that was 


              9            my error, but those are the percentages that shift 


             10            from the first year to the second year, and you can 


             11            see that the students exceeding expected growth went 


             12            from 28 to 44 in reading and then in math they went 


             13            from 45 to 62.  So we're very happy with that and we 


             14            predict and we know that our growth will continue to 


             15            move forward in that direction. 


             16                 MS. GILBERT:  Well, hi.  My name is Beverly 


             17            Gilbert; I'm the Professional Development Director 


             18            for SIATech.  I have the privilege of working 


             19            actually with two teams along with all our members 


             20            here in Arkansas at your site.  We have a 


             21            professional development team and we also have a 


             22            Learning Support Team who work with the content.  I 


             23            deal specifically with the teachers and so does my 


             24            team. 


             25                 Our goal in professional development is to make 
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              1            sure that our teachers receive relevant training.  It 


              2            is research-based and we really, really incorporate 


              3            best practices.  We think it's very important for us 


              4            to learn from our own experiences, as well as the 


              5            research that's out there by professionals.  Also, we 


              6            want to make sure that especially working with our 


              7            population that we customize our professional 


              8            development for our schools, our type of schools, and 


              9            with students.  It's very relevant to our students to 


             10            be taught by teachers who understand their learning 


             11            needs and their predicaments in life.   


             12                 Next, it's very important for us to make sure 


             13            that we bring research-based knowledge in here.  Some 


             14            examples of what we teach our teachers and work with 


             15            our teachers on: transformative learning and also 


             16            multiple intelligence.  Those two forms the basis of 


             17            some of the training that we do with our students.  


             18            We really want to make sure that our students receive 


             19            transforming opportunities and learn about how they 


             20            can become people who can go out in the -- use their 


             21            academics and go out and be very worthy of the 


             22            workforce.  Also, our multiple intelligence students 


             23            learn different ways and we want to make sure our 


             24            teachers understand that.  Getting to Got It!, that 


             25            is mediated learning.  Mediated learning is where we 
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              1            teach our teachers how to mediate the learning, the 


              2            needs at the moment.  Whatever they may not 


              3            understand, especially we have a lot of learning 


              4            needs with our students, we want to make sure our 


              5            teachers are able to access and understand those.  


              6            Visible learning is something we're very excited 


              7            about.  John Heady's recent research on this is very 


              8            important but he has learned about doing better 


              9            cognitive studies to understand exactly the type of 


             10            things that are needed in schools.  And so we've 


             11            ordered that and we teach our teachers about that 


             12            research.  


             13                 Next, also we provide training -- what types of 


             14            trainings do we do?  Before we open a site we do a 


             15            New Staff Academy.  We meet 45 days with our teachers 


             16            and our staff.  They learn about curriculum, about 


             17            pedagogy, about the culture that they're going to be 


             18            working with and the students specifically.  We also 


             19            provide monthly ilincs.  Our Learning Support Team 


             20            that you've already heard from, they provide ilincs 


             21            which is the digital professional development we 


             22            provide monthly.  We share every single month Common 


             23            Core strategies -- and, again, monthly means every 


             24            week.  So math is one week, ELA is the next week, et 


             25            cetera.  We also go over best practices and we also 
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              1            do updates on content that may have been made during 


              2            that time.  Because as you heard, our curriculum is 


              3            constantly updated, especially with the Common Core 


              4            and especially with the strategies that we need to 


              5            implement.  We also do onsite professional 


              6            development.  I personally was here and just did a 


              7            professional development -- a two-day seminar with 


              8            the teachers.  We worked specifically on things that 


              9            they had asked for with the needs of their students, 


             10            also instructional strategies very specific to the 


             11            Common Core and also classroom environment, which is 


             12            also necessary.   


             13                 Finally, next in the Common Core focus you can 


             14            see that we work with the content standards, 


             15            specifically college and career standards.  We also 


             16            do a lot of work in the visible and observable 


             17            application of the types of strategies needed to 


             18            implement Common Core.  And the three practices 


             19            specifically that we have just worked with our 


             20            teachers on, opening activities to help them do in-


             21            depth critical thinking with our students; more 


             22            opportunities to really have them speaking and 


             23            listening and learning, which the Common Core really, 


             24            really emphasizes; and also having our teachers learn 


             25            how to question more, critical, deep thinking so 
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              1            they're not just giving answers in their 


              2            facilitation; they're pulling from the students what 


              3            they know already.   


              4                 And, finally, the trainings that we do -- and 


              5            that's it.  Sorry.  Thank you.  Next. 


              6                 MS. REYNOLDS:  My name is Debra Reynolds; I'm 


              7            Registrar for SIATech Charter High School.  In the 


              8            spring 2013, the APSCN program first made me aware 


              9            that our original e-school set-up would not allow 


             10            Triand to pull our grades into -- from e-school into 


             11            Triand.  And so at the year-end rollover, which was 


             12            shortly thereafter, I worked with our APSCN rep and 


             13            we revised our set-up and it was my understanding 


             14            that we had everything set so our grades would pull 


             15            correctly as we started this past school year.  But 


             16            it turned out that our grades did not pull 


             17            reliability into Triand.  And just over a week ago 


             18            they opened up another screen for me and our grades 


             19            are now pulling reliably into Triand, so at this 


             20            point all of our 2013 to 14 grades for our graduates 


             21            have pulled reliably into Triand.  All of our current 


             22            students' grades are pulling correctly into Triand 


             23            and APSN programming is working to correct our 


             24            previous two years where our set-up wouldn't allow 


             25            Triand to pull the grades in.  Thank you. 
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              1                 MS. TATUM:  Good morning, Dr. Kimbrell and Board 


              2            Members.  I'm Katie Tatum, the principal, and I would 


              3            just like to summarize the findings of fact.  As Mr. 


              4            Walters stated, the handbook is now updated to 


              5            reflect our homework policy.  An appeal for parents  


              6            -- I was unable to find a local handbook, so I relied 


              7            on an ally who told me -- and that was Andrew Tolbert 


              8            who told me what I was -- what you were specifically 


              9            looking for with regard to appeal for parents.  So 


             10            that was updated and everything that deals with the 


             11            handbook issues were updated.  And as stated by the 


             12            Learning Support Team, our curriculum is fully 


             13            aligned at this time.   


             14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Dawson, anyone else? 


             15                 DR. DAWSON:  I think that's it. 


             16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  All right.  Well, we 


             17            did go over a few minutes but that's okay.  I saw 


             18            that you were trying to do the best that you could to 


             19            get all that in.  So, Mr. Lasiter, there was no 


             20            additional time for either one after that; it was 


             21            just 20 minutes per side.  Correct? 


             22                 MR. LASITER:  That's correct. 


             23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay. 


             24                 MR. LASITER:  It's just discussion and 


             25            questions. 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  I'll turn it over to 


              2            the Panel now for discussion and questions.  Please, 


              3            if you would, ask specifically who you'd like to 


              4            answer the question, if you know who would answer the 


              5            question, or direct your question to the Department 


              6            of Education, probably Ms. Perry, or to Ms. Dawson 


              7            and they can choose who they would like to answer 


              8            your particular question.  So we can go around the 


              9            table or we can just pop up as we go.  Who's ready?  


             10            Cody, are you ready? 


             11                 MR. DECKER:  Yes, sir. 


             12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All right, Mr. Decker,  


             13            Thank you. 


             14                 MR. DECKER:  I'm not sure who would be most 


             15            appropriate to answer this, but I'd like more insight 


             16            -- we've heard, I guess, from the state leadership 


             17            team or the national leadership team about some of 


             18            the corrected actions and/or resources available.  


             19            I'd like to learn more about how this is going to 


             20            continuously occur and hopefully address the issue of 


             21            how do we keep this from happening in the future 


             22            where there's an extended period of time and then 


             23            there's a visit and then it appears that corrective 


             24            actions were made.  I'd just like to learn more about 


             25            that process. 
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              1                 MS. BELZMAN:  Are you asking specifically in 


              2            terms of the curriculum or all of the issues that 


              3            were brought up? 


              4                 MR. DECKER:  Well, I think all of the issues, 


              5            but specifically with the curriculum and professional 


              6            development pieces. 


              7                 MS. TATUM:  Can I say one thing?  I just want to 


              8            let the board members know when the review team came 


              9            my teachers were very afraid and I don't think they 


             10            provided the team with all of our curriculum docs.  


             11            And as you can see, I think math was the only team 


             12            that actually looked through all the models.  I don't 


             13            think they did for English or Social Studies or 


             14            Science, so -- and that's why I wanted to make sure 


             15            the curriculum team provided all the online resources 


             16            and curriculum alignment that was already in place, 


             17            and that they can look and tell they updated. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Tatum, did they -- did 


             19            any of the teams talk to you about curriculum? 


             20                 MS. TATUM:  Oh, no, sir. 


             21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So none of the -- 


             22                 MS. TATUM:  Only at the end at the exit 


             23            interview. 


             24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So did you have those 


             25            documents and be able to provide the evidence? 
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              1                 MS. TATUM:  No.  The teachers did.  So I wasn't 


              2            sure what they had provided because I didn't look 


              3            through all the documents.  They left with a box.  


              4            The English teacher, who's the lead teacher, and the 


              5            math teacher -- and I guess both English teachers 


              6            came from Social Studies and English. 


              7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.   


              8                 MS. TATUM:  But I have taken steps to have those 


              9            documents in my office in binders, readily 


             10            accessible. 


             11                 MS. HOCKER:  I'll address some of the curriculum 


             12            concerns.  So as you saw in our presentation, a great 


             13            deal of our curriculum lives in the Learning 


             14            Management System, which is an online version of the 


             15            curriculum.  There are some supporting documentation 


             16            that are paper and pencil.  The PARCC exam that the 


             17            students are going to be basing is going to be a 


             18            digital exam.  We're very aware of that.  To be a 


             19            21st Century learner they need to be able to access 


             20            things through the computer.  In order for us to 


             21            deliver the individual learning plans, we need to 


             22            have the students one-on-one.  Each student has a 


             23            computer.  When they came onto our campus they did go 


             24            into the math classroom and spend a little bit of 


             25            time and they were aware that we did have a digital 
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              1            curriculum.  It's my understanding they did not have 


              2            a chance to look at very much of that, except over 


              3            some of the students' shoulders, so they did get to 


              4            see just a small snapshot.  So they did look at some 


              5            of the paper documents.  To give you an example, for 


              6            one of our modules which has 22 different lessons 


              7            that have multiple components to it, there is two 


              8            pages of written documents that go with that and 


              9            that's just a student's learning plan that the 


             10            teacher documents and marks when the student shows 


             11            80% mastery of a certain standard.  So you would not 


             12            get a very big picture, other than just titles of 


             13            what some of those lessons are doing.  They would not 


             14            get to see that things with the auto-cad and Excel 


             15            and different things that are going on -- wouldn't 


             16            get to see what Common Core State Standards 


             17            activities are available for the student, but there 


             18            is a line that says Common Core State Standards 


             19            Activity that the teacher signs off on.  So we meet 


             20            on a regular basis, to give you an example, as a math 


             21            team.  So we meet on a regular basis the first 


             22            Wednesday of every month.  The teachers also have my 


             23            cell phone; they're able to call me at any time.  


             24            They call me in the evening; they call me during 


             25            class if they have a question.  I also do individual 
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              1            ilincs with those teachers.  We have the ability for 


              2            me to see their screen, them to see my screen, and 


              3            with the Arkansas teacher, which is Ms. McIntire, I 


              4            have done that on several occasions and we went 


              5            through that.  We've done some individual things on 


              6            learning auto-cad because I think there aren't very 


              7            many teachers that could walk in and be able to teach 


              8            not only all the gamut of the mathematics, but also 


              9            auto-cad.  And we have tutorials for the staff that 


             10            are available for them to learn that on their own 


             11            time, in addition to what's available to the 


             12            students.  So we have a variety of resources.  We are 


             13            as-needed; we're on-call 24/7.  We have our science 


             14            specialist here who you have not heard from.  She has 


             15            been working with the science teacher here in 


             16            Arkansas on an ongoing basis too.  We -- they know 


             17            our home numbers, they know us, and we're available 


             18            24/7.  So -- and I'll let Lori pick up from there on 


             19            the additional things that maybe I didn't address.  


             20            The one thing that you did notice, we also have the 


             21            virtual teachers that are available to students 


             22            during school hours as well as after hours.  So 


             23            whatever it takes we are -- we're professionals that 


             24            have been in the curriculum for a long time.  I've 


             25            already told you my background.  We know what it 
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              1            takes to be successful and we know when our students 


              2            are coming in they are behind in credits or they're 


              3            former dropouts and the system was not working with 


              4            them for whatever reason.  And it doesn't always get 


              5            fixed with the first thing we try, so we are working 


              6            with this.  I've been with the organization now for 


              7            nine years and so I'm still learning.  I learn with 


              8            every site that I come to and every teacher I work 


              9            with and every student that I go in and work with.  


             10            And it's an ongoing thing.  But we are trying our 


             11            best to meet their needs. 


             12                 MS. BELZMAN:  We have two additional issues.  


             13            One is that because we house our curriculum in our 


             14            Learning Management System that allows us to pretty 


             15            much instantaneously update or make any revisions 


             16            right there on the spot.  We can add things, we can 


             17            change things, we can revise things as needed in our 


             18            Learning Management System, and we often do that, 


             19            whether it be lesson plans or additional resources, 


             20            additional standards that we want to address.  It 


             21            allows instantaneous access.   


             22                 The second thing is that I know many of the 


             23            documents that were primarily taken on the site visit 


             24            were outdated documents.  All of our current 


             25            documents are also housed in our Learning Management 
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              1            System so at any time we can pull up any of the 


              2            current curriculum alignments.  In our Learning 


              3            Management System we can print them off and have 


              4            instant access to that.  I think Tami covered 


              5            everything else. 


              6                 MS. GILBERT:  And I'd like just to say as far as 


              7            professional development, we want to be able to 


              8            respond that the problems are here and we recognize 


              9            what they are and hear what they.  And one thing that 


             10            we'll make sure to do as a department and working 


             11            with the Learning Support Team is make sure that the 


             12            teachers understand what they need to do.  Updated 


             13            documents right at their fingertips, making sure they 


             14            have the most recent and that they understand the 


             15            most recent information curriculum that they're 


             16            delivering for the teachers -- to the students.  And 


             17            we also know how important it is, not only the 


             18            curriculum itself that it's aligned to the Common 


             19            Core but they under -- that the teachers understand 


             20            how to teach with Common Core strategies, having the 


             21            students think deeply, do questioning and thinking 


             22            and listening in a whole different way, going across 


             23            the nation, of course.  So we intend to make sure 


             24            that's happening and to make sure our teachers are 


             25            prepared.  It will happen in the ilincs, as they said 
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              1            -- the monthly ilincs, which are actually weekly with 


              2            the different content but also through my programs 


              3            when I go out and speak with the teachers and provide 


              4            professional development.  I can make sure that they 


              5            understand and that they have these things at their 


              6            fingertips and they understand that as well.  Thank 


              7            you. 


              8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Decker, does that answer 


              9            your question? 


             10                 MR. DECKER:  I was going to follow-up but I'll 


             11            save it for later. 


             12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Be sure you use your 


             13            microphone, Cody. 


             14                 MR. DECKER:  Yes, sir. 


             15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez? 


             16                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  This is maybe to -- maybe it 


             17            will help with your follow-up question, Mr. Decker.  


             18            But I guess from my understanding we had this on-site 


             19            review.  When questions were asked maybe not very 


             20            clear and understandable answers were given and 


             21            materials presented in being able to show what needed 


             22            to be there.  So we have this hearing and we have a 


             23            group that came in -- and I assume this is a national 


             24            organization group that are speaking here -- that 


             25            come in and give us all the bells and whistles.  And 
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              1            I think for Mr. Decker's point is how is there -- 


              2            there's this great curriculum and resources that are 


              3            available but as far as how that's being implemented 


              4            at the local level -- you know -- how can we insure 


              5            that we're getting quality instruction?  And what 


              6            gives me a little bit of concern is that, you know, 


              7            looking at last year's literacy scores, you know, we 


              8            had -- you know -- last year there was about three-


              9            and-a-half percent kids that were proficient on our 


             10            end-of-course testing.  And then over a three-year 


             11            average there's roughly a little over one percent.  


             12            And so how that -- you know -- it's great that all 


             13            these things are available and there and, you know, 


             14            come and answer these questions and show us all the 


             15            stuff.  But how are we insuring that on a local level 


             16            that there is, you know, continuous improvement and 


             17            growth and those things are being implemented?  And 


             18            so if somebody -- one of those people can -- whether 


             19            that would be Ms. Tatum or Ms. Dawson or whoever can 


             20            kind of answer that? 


             21                 MS. TATUM:  Speaking for the national charter 


             22            office from California that came, Mr. Hernandez, when 


             23            we were made aware of the issues I asked for help 


             24            locally.  So APSRC was working closely with them to 


             25            identify some concerns and those are -- and some of 
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              1            the concerns were with testing because our ESA report 


              2            was not corrected.  Well, math, I'm going to just be 


              3            honest, I didn't know what the numbers were saying, 


              4            so I asked Dr. Cox and Ms. Campbell for help.  They 


              5            provided a report that showed where we tested more -- 


              6            they came on-site and did a desk audit.  And so we 


              7            tested four more students than the report reflected.  


              8            And I have a -- you said we were only 1% on growth in 


              9            -- was it algebra?  I didn't hear you.  


             10                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  In literacy. 


             11                 MS. TATUM:  Literacy.  Mr. Smith was talking to 


             12            me.  But I'd like to share this with the board, if 


             13            you don't mind, and go through our testing data.  If 


             14            we could start at the top with algebra, you can see 


             15            our school average -- our first two years in 


             16            existence we were on the Little Rock Job Corp campus, 


             17            so we were just given free office space and 


             18            classrooms in hope to have these students get a high 


             19            school diploma.  We were not involved with 


             20            scheduling.  They were on an A/B schedule, so we 


             21            didn't have a chance to -- we went through EOC boot 


             22            camp test prep in preparation for the test and there 


             23            we could -- this past year we were able to implement 


             24            that and our test scores looked significantly better.  


             25            But in literacy it's basically kind of remained the 
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              1            same but you can look at our school average; it was 


              2            up in '12, went down in '13, but then back up again 


              3            in March '14.  And also in literacy we had a student, 


              4            you know, score advanced.  Biology, we had a couple 


              5            of proficient, and I know biology is tough across the 


              6            state.  And algebra and geometry this year we've had 


              7            students scoring proficient.  So if you can look at 


              8            the numbers students tested and look at the school 


              9            average that can kind of give some insight on 


             10            assessment.  And I did make a copy of this that I 


             11            gave each board member.  But when students enroll 


             12            with us a lot of our students have already tested.  


             13            So we keep this tracking document and it's ongoing 


             14            and it shows students' names -- you know -- the ones 


             15            who tested are highlighted in all yellow so we don't 


             16            have to worry about testing them.  We pull that off 


             17            Triand transcript information.  But if it's not on 


             18            there then we, you know, we test once they're 


             19            enrolled in classes.  So that's another reason why it 


             20            looks like we're not testing all the students, which 


             21            we're not because most have tested, but we're just 


             22            filling in the gaps with assessments.  Some schools 


             23            have tested them because they were probably enrolled 


             24            a semester, so they had the test but then dropped 


             25            out.  So they come to us and they're needing a 
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              1            semester credit or they may have failed, you know.   


              2                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  I don't know if there's somebody 


              3            from the national group that was going to kind of 


              4            maybe answer about the checking in on the local 


              5            group? 


              6                 MS. MALLORY:  I just want to share that one of 


              7            the reasons we use the other assessment is because we 


              8            have new kids enrolled.  I said to Ms. Tatum, "Is it 


              9            fair to say that we have new kids enrolled every 


             10            week?"  And she said, "Every day."  So a lot of the 


             11            kids that take these once-a-year tests, time and 


             12            place, it's only offered at this time on this date, 


             13            it doesn't really present a good picture of what is 


             14            happening in the school when you have a constant 


             15            change in enrollment.  So, but the students that take 


             16            the assessment maybe haven't been there since the 


             17            fall or even the previous three months ago. 


             18                 MS. DAYTON:  Good morning, Ladies and Gentlemen.  


             19            My name is Marti Dayton.  I'm the Science Specialist, 


             20            and I want to address your question with respect to 


             21            what are we doing at the national level and try to 


             22            support our teachers and make sure they're 


             23            implementing critical thinking skills.  As was 


             24            mentioned, we have monthly ilincs and it goes math, 


             25            English, science, social studies, and then the 
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              1            elective courses.  So like, for instance, in science,     


              2            they meet every month and I know they do this at each 


              3            of the ilincs.  The teachers are supposed to come 


              4            with a best practice, something that they've 


              5            implemented to try and show the integration of Common 


              6            Core or the Next Generation science standards for 


              7            their specific state standards.  They come, they talk 


              8            about -- they have a choice; they can either talk 


              9            about something that they actual tried or something 


             10            that they're going to try.  And then what is really 


             11            awesome about that is as a team we talk about it.  


             12            They talk about the weaknesses, what went wrong, what 


             13            could've been done better, if they've already tried 


             14            it.  If they haven't tried it yet, we talk as a team, 


             15            "Okay, you want to make sure" -- you know -- "What 


             16            are the takeaways?  What is it that you want the 


             17            students to master?  How are they going to 


             18            demonstrate mastery?"  So as a team we give them the 


             19            guidance that they need and so-forth, and the 


             20            teachers come back and give us feedback on how those 


             21            lessons went.  And that's one of the main reasons for 


             22            the ilincs.  Does that answer that question? 


             23                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Yes. 


             24                 MS. DAYTON:  Thank you. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  On this document that was 
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              1            handed out, if you don't mind -- and, Mr. Hoy, this 


              2            may be a question for you -- if these students are 


              3            highly mobile, then they don't count towards your 


              4            percentage proficient anyway? 


              5                 MR. HOY:  Dr. Kimbrell, on this document I have 


              6            to assume that this is not the benchmark assessment 


              7            and, therefore, highly mobile would not be a part of 


              8            it.  This is -- 


              9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So this isn't -- what 


             10            assessment is this? 


             11                 MS. TATUM:  This is end-of-course assessment. 


             12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  These are end-of-course? 


             13                 MS. TATUM:  Yes. 


             14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay. 


             15                 MS. TATUM:  Yeah.  But it's highly mobile; it's 


             16            just a school average.  You know, that doesn't count 


             17            against us but we include them in the school average. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So this is your 


             19            school average.  But when we look at the actual 


             20            report of the number of students who are proficient I 


             21            think is what -- 


             22                 MS. TATUM:  Oh, yes. 


             23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- is part of -- 


             24                 MS. TATUM:  Yes. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- part of the concern, I 
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              1            think, brought -- when we look at report cards. 


              2                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir. 


              3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  You know, the EOC report 


              4            cards and the AMO statuses, when we look at those the 


              5            number of students who are actually showing growth 


              6            and proficiency help generate these curiosities that 


              7            we have about success. 


              8                 MS. TATUM:  Oh, yes, sir. 


              9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Okay.  Who -- where 


             10            did we get to?  Then we'll skip and let Ms. -- Dr. 


             11            Walters catch up.  Mr. Hoy. 


             12                 MR. HOY:  Then I do have a question.  And I'm 


             13            not certain who this question would be directed to 


             14            but it would be something to help clear up my initial 


             15            confusion on SIATech.  Being in Accountability, one 


             16            of the things that I noticed was that over the past 


             17            couple of years the percent of students proficient or 


             18            advanced on SIATech has been very, very low and that 


             19            caused me to have some concerns.  But I also had some 


             20            concerns in terms of my initial assessment of the low 


             21            scores because it is an alternative school.  And I 


             22            know that that can be an issue because the population 


             23            is concentrated.  So I was seeking some answers -- 


             24            and I know that the National Charter School 


             25            Authorizers put out this document called Anecdotes 
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              1            Are Not Enough.  I don't know if you've seen this, 


              2            but specifically in the document it mentioned SIATech 


              3            in terms of what they have put in place to measure 


              4            growth.  And in looking at it what I notice is that 


              5            they said that all SIATech schools would do an annual 


              6            summary that would be provided to each respective 


              7            charter authorizer.  Now I don't know how long ago it 


              8            was but sometime ago I asked Ms. Perry to see if she 


              9            could collect that for me 'cause I wanted to see if 


             10            that would be helpful for us.  Now I know this is 


             11            long but there is eventually a question.  The thing 


             12            is I'm assuming that based on that, when I went back 


             13            to actually read the approved charter authorization, 


             14            you guys never did set a goal -- benchmark exams, 


             15            anyway.  You set I believe your Renaissance Learn.  


             16            The specific wording is, "For this reason, 


             17            assessments are not available throughout the year and 


             18            are not included in the school's performance-based 


             19            measurable goals.  Instead, SIATech has chosen to 


             20            focus on distance, travel, point-in-time assessments 


             21            results."  So you are using this growth model from 


             22            Renaissance Learn, I believe, and I suspect that 


             23            that's what your data summary is but I have not seen 


             24            it to this point.  If you guys have it, I would love 


             25            to see it.  The thing is, there's still a concern -- 
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              1            and here's the concern, and I would like for some of 


              2            you to address it: even if at some point when we 


              3            authorize this charter we allowed you to not have the 


              4            benchmark results and end-of-course results as a goal 


              5            in your charter, it is what the state of Arkansas 


              6            uses to measure how effective schools are in terms of 


              7            educating children.  And if you're showing 65% 


              8            proficient which was your target for year-two -- and 


              9            you're pretty close at 60% and 62% in reading and 


             10            match -- I didn't see your writing percentage.  But 


             11            if you're showing that, and we're showing proficiency 


             12            rates around 2%, 3%, 4%, 5%, there seems to be a 


             13            disconnect between what's in your curriculum that you 


             14            measure and what's in the state's curriculum.  So the 


             15            question is: is there that disconnect between 


             16            curriculum?  And that's specifically one of the 


             17            things that Standards Assurance Unit seemed to have 


             18            found when they visited.  Now I know you're saying, 


             19            "Well, they gave us [sic] the old documents and not 


             20            the online version; we gave them that."  But even if 


             21            you consider -- you take out the whole what written 


             22            documents were handed out, not the written curriculum 


             23            but the taught and learned curriculum, there still 


             24            seems to be a significant gap between your 65% and 


             25            the State's less than 10% proficiency in literacy and 
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              1            math.  So I was wondering if you could address that? 


              2                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, there are definitely some 


              3            discrepancies there.  And what we know and what we've 


              4            learned over the last 15 years is that establishing a 


              5            new school, especially for this population, it takes 


              6            three years to start seeing growth, in the best of 


              7            situations.  And I by no means want this to sound as 


              8            if -- as an excuse, because it's not.  It's not meant 


              9            that way.  But we had a significant change; in year-


             10            two we moved from the Job Corp Center to a location 


             11            off of the Job Corp Center.  It creates tremendous 


             12            disruptions.  The other thing that we found is that 


             13            one of the things that we hoped to do over the term 


             14            of the charter is to stabilize the teaching staff a 


             15            lot quicker than we have been able to.  Teaching in 


             16            this environment with this population is not easy and 


             17            it doesn't portend some of these highly qualified 


             18            that they're going to be able to teach in this 


             19            environment.  There are so many more factors that 


             20            have to be addressed, in addition -- not instead of, 


             21            but in addition to the academic standards and that 


             22            has to do with the re-engagement of students who have 


             23            previously dropped out of school.  It's important for 


             24            us to do things simultaneously.  It's not like one, 


             25            then the other.  So we have to re-engage students, 
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              1            show them that there's a way to get to where they 


              2            need to be; at the same time to bring their academic 


              3            abilities up.  That's why we concentrate on a growth 


              4            toward standard -- a growth to standard, and we see 


              5            improvements.  Are the improvements that we've seen 


              6            and we've alluded to fast enough?  Are we satisfied?  


              7            Absolutely not.  Absolutely not.  But we believe 


              8            we've done our stabilization.  We're off of the 


              9            center.  We're working on making sure that our 


             10            teachers are engaged, that we can stabilize our 


             11            teaching staff.  We have teachers that are 


             12            comfortable in working with our population, that are 


             13            happy working with our population in addition to 


             14            being competent and caring teachers.  So we're 


             15            working on that.  But we believe the growth towards 


             16            standard will increase exponentially as we move 


             17            forward.  We are committed from the national office, 


             18            whatever it takes.  If we have a turnover in teachers 


             19            and we don't have a math teacher, we will put a math 


             20            teacher from our national office here until we can 


             21            get the appropriate teacher that's helpful for 


             22            Arkansas, and we are committed to doing that.  But we 


             23            believe that this school and what we're doing has 


             24            tremendous potential here to help change kids' lives, 


             25            not just their lives but their families' lives as 
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              1            well, and we are committed to doing that. 


              2                 MR. HOY:  Follow-up? 


              3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yes.  But I would caution 


              4            the Panel to remember we're really concerned about 


              5            their curriculum and their transcripts.  Those are 


              6            the reasons -- that's why we're here. 


              7                 MR. HOY:  Right.  And this is akin to curriculum 


              8            in terms of we assess the curriculum with our 


              9            benchmark exams.  So I guess a couple of questions, 


             10            and this may be a question for the Panel.  In terms 


             11            of their charter they don't seem to have benchmark 


             12            results as a target of their curriculum assessment, 


             13            and I suspect that at some point we were comfortable 


             14            with that.  So the question is: are we still 


             15            comfortable with that?  And I guess the question for 


             16            the charter is if they reach a hundred-percent 


             17            proficiency on their assessment, but there is no 


             18            similar growth in terms of the Arkansas benchmark or 


             19            the PARCC assessments is that going to be 


             20            satisfactory with the charter? 


             21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Before someone tries to 


             22            answer that from them, again, I think the concern 


             23            that we have here is: their charter doesn't call for 


             24            any kind of expectation on that.  That may be 


             25            something in their renewal we'll have to look at, but 
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              1            at some point the State Board approved their charter 


              2            because it was the authorizer at that time and they 


              3            were comfortable.  And the internal group -- and I 


              4            don't remember specifics -- either recommended 


              5            approval or not; I can't remember how specific it 


              6            was.  But that issue is not before us today. 


              7                 MS. TATUM:  Dr. Kimbrell, may I ask Dr. Cox to 


              8            address -- sorry.  May I ask Dr. Cox to address the 


              9            Panel? 


             10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  If you so choose. 


             11                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir. 


             12                 DR. COX:  And I was not sworn in. 


             13                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Well, if you'll raise your 


             14            right hand I'll swear you in.  Do you swear to -- or 


             15            affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing 


             16            but the truth? 


             17                 DR. COX:  I do. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you. 


             19                 DR. COX:  Thank you.  Barbara Hunter Cox, 


             20            Director of Teaching and Learning at the Arkansas 


             21            Public School Resource Center.  I think that the 


             22            essence of Dr. Hoy's initial question about the 


             23            accountability, and in particular the national report 


             24            that he referred to, currently in our state we just 


             25            had 32 schools put on an academic distress list.  And 
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              1            when you examine the schools on that list I think 


              2            many of the findings in the national report could be 


              3            highlighted by doing an analysis of those schools.  


              4            There are a large number of high schools; there were 


              5            also a large number of schools that are doing 


              6            alternative learning or dropout prevention.  And so 


              7            as we were pulled in to give some assistance to 


              8            SIATech and we looked at their assessment across the 


              9            board, we looked at their assessment and how they 


             10            were performing on state assessment.  We looked at 


             11            their alignment to Common Core.  I think that 


             12            SIATech, like many high schools in our state, are 


             13            assessing on end-of-course when they're trying to 


             14            prepare for PARCC.  And this has been a concern not 


             15            just at high schools, but schools that are heavily 


             16            trying to transition aren't doing as well on the 


             17            benchmark and I think that's a fact that we need to 


             18            put on the table.  I also saw in my assessment of 


             19            what was going on the level of entry of the students 


             20            at SIATech and how that growth to a standard was 


             21            something that they were focusing on.  On the 


             22            academic distress list, which you can pull up, you'll 


             23            notice that some of the recovery schools, the 


             24            alternative schools, their percent of proficient was 


             25            as low as less than 3%.  Again, those are unique 
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              1            settings where students come with significant delays.  


              2            I think that there should be some discussion about 


              3            how the assessment and accountability program takes 


              4            into consideration maybe these individual concerns 


              5            that you've expressed on behalf of SIATech.  


              6                 The other thing I would like to say is that when 


              7            we went in and reviewed with the desk audit what we 


              8            found was that SIATech wasn't aware of the process to 


              9            get the extra assistance that they needed.  And we do 


             10            want to compliment Dr. Barnes, Christopher Barnes, 


             11            who helped us figure out what was happening and why 


             12            APSCN was not even pulling the correct testing list.  


             13            And so there have been some anomalies within the 


             14            system that, you know, different people with ADE have 


             15            assisted in SIATech handling.  But they're a unique 


             16            environment.  They're a unique environment because of 


             17            the students they serve, because of their mission, 


             18            and because they're attempting to meet all of the 


             19            requirements and expectations.   


             20                 And the last thing I would like to say is I 


             21            think they have a dedication to this particular 


             22            student population.  And I think their commitment is 


             23            backed up with a lot of resources.  Some of those 


             24            resources don't mesh totally with our accountability 


             25            or our data systems.  So in my mind much of the 
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              1            problems have been communication issues between 


              2            what's happening within the system and how their 


              3            reports are pulled.  I appreciate this time.  Thank 


              4            you. 


              5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Coffman? 


              6                 MS. COFFMAN:  My question is for the ADE staff.  


              7            Do you believe -- and, Mary, you can direct to the 


              8            appropriate person -- after review of the documents 


              9            that have been submitted, does the ADE curriculum 


             10            instruction staff believe now that the curriculum 


             11            issues have been resolved? 


             12                 MS. PERRY:  I'm not sure that the curriculum 


             13            staff has had the time to go through every issue 


             14            there.  You do have Anthony Owen here; he can speak 


             15            to some of the curriculum pieces.  But I'm not sure 


             16            he looked at every one of those documents.  I think 


             17            we were focused on what was going on at the time of 


             18            the visit.  Would you like Anthony to -- 


             19                 MS. COFFMAN:  Yes. 


             20                 MR. OWEN:  Commissioner Kimbrell, Panel -- Ms. 


             21            Coffman, regarding your question Ms. Perry is 


             22            correct.  I did not receive those documents until 


             23            late yesterday afternoon.  I have looked through the 


             24            math documents on a cursory basis.  Whenever we went 


             25            in -- I want to, if I may, give the Panel some 
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              1            information of exactly how I reviewed the curriculum 


              2            whenever I went in to SIATech.  I reviewed with the 


              3            same protocol with which we approach any course that 


              4            is submitted to Curriculum Instruction for review of 


              5            a tested subject, which means that we don't look 


              6            necessarily at what the in-class instruction is; we 


              7            can't, obviously.  We look at what the school has 


              8            assured us that they are teaching on paper.  We look 


              9            at the standards that they have aligned to the 


             10            courses and how those standards match up to what our 


             11            standards are.  I did take a chance -- I did actually 


             12            go beyond what we typically do by looking at the 


             13            online computer system and simply seeing was what 


             14            they had on paper aligned to a couple of the random 


             15            modules that the teacher in the classroom chose to 


             16            demonstrate for me.  And I found that they were.  


             17            What they said on paper was what was -- was what I 


             18            encountered on the online system.  At no time -- I do 


             19            want to say, at no time did I say that I do not like 


             20            electronically-based instructional materials.  I 


             21            think that they have their place and I think they're 


             22            wonderful materials.  I simply stated that day that I 


             23            have to evaluate based on paper.  So the teacher who 


             24            was in the classroom -- the math teacher who was in 


             25            the classroom at that point pulled up our system, the 
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              1            curriculum that was in her electronic ANGEL system at 


              2            that point, and printed out a listing of the high 


              3            school CCSS mathematics frameworks and which modules 


              4            that their ANGEL system had aligned to it.  I took 


              5            that printout that she had, compared it to our 


              6            algebra I, geometry and algebra II documents and came 


              7            up with the percentages of those alignments which 


              8            were what was submitted through Mr. Walters' report 


              9            or within Mr. Walters' report.  At no time was my 


             10            percentages indicative of the quality of 


             11            instructional materials, because that is not our job 


             12            within Curriculum Instruction to evaluate 


             13            instructional materials.  Regarding the curriculum 


             14            that was amended and submitted within this report, I 


             15            have not had a chance to verify that the document 


             16            contained all of the standards within each of those 


             17            courses, that none were removed.  However, as a 


             18            cursory glance through it they do have a module 


             19            aligned to every standard that is within that 


             20            document.  So if they have every standard that we 


             21            require within those documents, if those are true 


             22            documents or true representations of our documents, 


             23            then I would assign a hundred-percent alignment at 


             24            this point. 


             25                 MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you. 
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              1                 MR. OWEN:  Regarding social studies and science 


              2            -- social studies and ELA, I have no idea. 


              3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Decker? 


              4                 MR. DECKER:  Thank you, Dr. Kimbrell.  I have a 


              5            question concerning the transcripts.  I looked up on 


              6            the ADE data center and noticed there are 44 12th 


              7            graders enrolled.  And simple question is: have the 


              8            transcripts, the electronic transcripts been reviewed 


              9            for each of these?  And are they now correct? 


             10                 MS. REYNOLDS:  Is your question 44 currently 


             11            enrolled or 44 graduates?  I'm sorry, I didn't hear. 


             12                 MR. DECKER:  I noticed there are 44 12th graders 


             13            as of October 1. 


             14                 MS. REYNOLDS:  Okay.  Of those 12th graders who 


             15            have graduated their credits are absolutely correct 


             16            in Triand for the 13-14 year.  If those students are 


             17            currently enrolled with us -- I only got this system 


             18            corrected on May 5th and I focused on getting all of 


             19            our graduates corrected.  So our current students, I 


             20            am still going back and double-checking to be sure 


             21            those credits are in there.  The system is now in 


             22            place that they will be in there correctly, but I 


             23            have to manually enter those grades. 


             24                 MR. DECKER:  Thank you. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez? 
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              1                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  No. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Dr. Walters? 


              3                 DR. WALTERS:  Thank you, Dr. Kimbrell.  I want 


              4            to apologize to the SIATech group.  I had to go to 


              5            another meeting, so I apologize for having to leave 


              6            for a moment.  I have a question for Ms. Tatum.  And 


              7            I understand the reasons that we're here today.  I 


              8            have a related issue to what I believe may be related 


              9            to the curriculum issue in math.  And I did speak 


             10            with Ms. Tatum about this on the phone and some 


             11            documentation that my office has just received in the 


             12            last couple of weeks, and that involves highly 


             13            qualified.  As we spoke, Ms. Tatum, you know, you 


             14            have a waiver for licensure, however, teachers are to 


             15            be highly qualified.  And my understanding is that 


             16            your only secondary math teacher that's been employed 


             17            with you since November has not taken the Praxis 


             18            exam.  They cannot meet highly qualified status if 


             19            they have not attempted the exam.  I'm not talking 


             20            about passed; they have not even attempted to take 


             21            the Praxis exam; they had an elementary degree.  In 


             22            looking at their transcript they've had college 


             23            algebra as their only math course in college.  Am I 


             24            correct in that? 


             25                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am. 
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              1                 DR. WALTERS:  I guess from what Dr. Dawson -- 


              2            I'm sorry, is that correct, the superintendent's 


              3            name? 


              4                 MS. TATUM:  Correct. 


              5                 DR. WALTERS:  From she said earlier, she had 


              6            said that if you were having trouble getting a math 


              7            teacher that they would send one from the national 


              8            office.  So I guess my question is: why did that not 


              9            happen? 


             10                 MS. TATUM:  To be honest -- let me go back, Dr. 


             11            Walters, to -- I know math is a critical shortage 


             12            area for Arkansas, and the teacher that we had in 


             13            place was a retired school teacher who taught math 33 


             14            years, Ms. Floyd.  She let me know in January she's 


             15            going to finish out the semester to go ahead and 


             16            start trying to actively recruit a math teacher.  So 


             17            I spoke with some people at Henderson State, where I 


             18            graduated.  I have emails from Dr. Fetterly who gave 


             19            me the name of Dawn Jackson who wanted the job and 


             20            start in the fall.  So January 14th she emailed me, 


             21            "I want to come interview, I want the job."  You 


             22            know, I have copies if the board would like to see.  


             23            And so as I was setting up the interview, January 


             24            24th she emailed back and turned down the job for 


             25            some personal reasons.  So from that time, from 
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              1            January on, we'd advertised.  Now with regards to a 


              2            math specialist coming from California, because they 


              3            come when we open, we had teacher shortages.  Once we 


              4            realized that a teacher only had to be highly 


              5            qualified -- like I explained to you on the phone, if 


              6            you don't ask the right questions you don't really 


              7            get the right answers.  And I should have listed the 


              8            current math teacher as a sub since we have HQ 


              9            teachers virtually online all day that she referred 


             10            to.  And so I just filled out a form to let her take 


             11            the Praxis in the spring.  And I stated she would 


             12            take it in February but like I said, she had an 


             13            immediate death.  And, you know, I don't have an 


             14            excuse for her not even attempting to take it.  I do 


             15            know she was trying to study, brush up on calculus 


             16            and trigonometry, and she was set to take it.  But 


             17            she was made well aware that her contract would not 


             18            be renewed if she had not attempted to take the test 


             19            and pass.  I should've asked Dr. Dawson or Ms. 


             20            Mallory to send a teacher from one of our other 


             21            schools.  And I try not to do that because it causes 


             22            the school that the teacher has left problems with a 


             23            teacher missing.  But the teacher that I hired, I 


             24            hired her because she had demonstrated proficiency in 


             25            secondary math.  Like I stated, I worked with her two 
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              1            years at the Little Rock Job Corp Center.  She had 


              2            the highest score with the population that we're 


              3            dealing with.  And she was on Camp Robinson at -- it 


              4            was like a boot camp for kids that get in trouble and 


              5            they go and graduate, and she had the highest scores 


              6            there, after speaking to some of the instructors 


              7            there.  And so I felt that with Ms. Hocker's help, 


              8            and the virtual team, that if she had any issues she 


              9            had immediate assistance.  If I had known I could've 


             10            listed her as a long-term sub for math, that's what I 


             11            would've done.  But she did register to take the test 


             12            on June 16th, which is not helpful now, and I'm 


             13            hoping she passes it by June 30th or she doesn't get 


             14            renewed.  Oh, yeah -- and the math position is posted 


             15            once again with hopes of getting somebody.  I 


             16            contacted Marie Harness [ps] to get -- you know -- 


             17            even last year to try to get a list of teachers who 


             18            were going through the Pathwise program to see if we 


             19            had any close math applicants.  There are some down 


             20            in the Arkadelphia area that was at Dawson but, you 


             21            know, nobody wants to commute that far, you know, to 


             22            teach.  And I had a couple of people walk through the 


             23            school and then once I explain our population -- and 


             24            matter of fact, our population the day of the team's 


             25            visit I was at 10th District juvenile court with 
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              1            Judge Warren because she had sent about seven people 


              2            to our school from her court, so I had to sit in on 


              3            court hearings and I was a few minutes late -- and I 


              4            apologize to Mr. Walters and the team.  I wasn't at 


              5            Starbucks; I was actually at the court, you know, 


              6            dealing with our juveniles.  But even when teachers 


              7            come in just to walk through the school and, you 


              8            know, they see kids -- you know -- they have on ankle 


              9            monitors, you know, that's kind of scary for them, 


             10            you know, especially a brand-new teacher.  When I 


             11            took this job I was at Warren with Mr. Tolbert for 


             12            seven years as assistant principal and when I looked 


             13            at the model and I looked at the waivers then I told 


             14            Mr. Tolbert, I said, "I'm not going to take that job 


             15            because it's so hard," as in the population, but we 


             16            are just a large ALE.  Having metal detectors set up, 


             17            armed guards and all with the population is not easy.  


             18            But that's the story on the math teacher. 


             19                 DR. WALTERS:  And I understand, as we said -- 


             20            when we talked on the phone. 


             21                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am. 


             22                 DR. WALTERS:  I know in November it would be 


             23            very difficult to find, you know, a highly qualified 


             24            math teacher in November. 


             25                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am. 
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              1                 DR. WALTERS:  But I guess my concern is once you 


              2            hired her and you didn't hire her as a long-term sub 


              3            -- you know -- you could've hire her as a long-term 


              4            sub, and said, "Okay, we've got to know that you know 


              5            math if you're going to be teaching math to our 


              6            students."  And as you've said, you have a very 


              7            unique population; they need different instruction; 


              8            they don't all have the same needs.  And so I guess 


              9            my concern is that this is an elementary person 


             10            coming in that probably didn't know the math 


             11            curriculum.  That may be some of the issues why we've 


             12            seen what we've seen.  But also, you know, to say to 


             13            her, "If you want to be hired long-term, you're going 


             14            to have to -- you're going to have to, you know, sign 


             15            up.  And if you don't have it passed by the end of 


             16            January, then we're going to have to let you go," and 


             17            to continue to look for someone.  Like I said, you 


             18            have a waiver from license so you're not having to 


             19            worry about the license. 


             20                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am. 


             21                 DR. WALTERS:  But it's someone that you know -- 


             22            'cause you really at this point have no idea that she 


             23            really knows the math content.  She's your only math 


             24            teacher. 


             25                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, ma'am. 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Dr. Walters, let me -- 


              2                 MS. TATUM:  But the -- 


              3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- let me get us back on 


              4            track.  Again, we're here because of curriculum 


              5            alignment and we're here for the issue of 


              6            transcripts.  So let's keep our questions focused on 


              7            those areas. 


              8                 DR. WALTERS:  I understand. 


              9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you. 


             10                 DR. WALTERS:  I just think that the teacher goes 


             11            back to the alignment, so -- 


             12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I understand.  Thank you, 


             13            ma'am.  Okay. 


             14                 MS. TATUM:  And, Doctor [sic], can I say one 


             15            thing -- Mr. Kimbrell -- Dr. Kimbrell? 


             16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  If you want to, but -- 


             17                 MS. TATUM:  To Dr. Walters, what she -- 


             18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Sure. 


             19                 MS. TATUM:  With teaching, she's teaching a 


             20            small group; the model is different.  But Ms. Hocker 


             21            trained her when she was first hired and the training 


             22            that she provided let her know that she knew, you 


             23            know, all of her math, except -- 


             24                 MS. HOCKER:  She's very strong in mathematics 


             25            through algebra II, no questions asked, and she's 
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              1            transitioning into that trigonometry/calculus, 


              2            there's no doubt.  And that's something that I have 


              3            offered to work with her for her to practice for the 


              4            test because she has not taught that level and she 


              5            would not be ready to teach that.  We don't have 


              6            students that are at the pre-calculus/calculus level 


              7            at this time that she's instructing.  The math 


              8            teacher that is on the virtual link is very capable 


              9            of assisting those students on an individual basis, 


             10            as well as myself.  And I have actually -- I've 


             11            worked with a few students in situations where we 


             12            needed to.  So it's an ongoing situation.  We have 


             13            four individuals in this room today that are highly 


             14            qualified math teachers.  I am more than willing to 


             15            get my credentials in Arkansas and come here and help 


             16            support until we get a fully credentialed teacher, if 


             17            needed.  And my coworkers, if you'll stand up if 


             18            you're fully qualified in mathematics?  And we will 


             19            make that happen if Ms. McIntire does not pass that 


             20            exam.  Those students need that and I would agree 


             21            with you. 


             22                 MS. TATUM:  But she only had two years of 


             23            teaching in elementary and she's been in secondary 


             24            education since. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  She was at the Youth 
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              1            Challenge is what you're saying? 


              2                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.  Yeah, and it's the same 


              3            group of kids we're dealing with. 


              4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yeah.  It's the same 


              5            students.  You're right. 


              6                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir. 


              7                 MS. PIANKO:  Hi, I'm Laurie Pianka, Director of 


              8            Education.  I just wanted to add that Ms. McIntire's 


              9            contract, when she was hired, stated that she must 


             10            make progress toward proficiency and licensure with 


             11            the State of Arkansas.  So was aware of that from 


             12            day-one.  And we have notified her as well, so -- 


             13            with the ongoing progress that it is our expectation 


             14            that before the end of the school year that she will 


             15            pass the Praxis exam.  And if she doesn't, her 


             16            contract will not be renewed.  But I would like to 


             17            say or point out that our math scores under Ms. 


             18            McIntire have improved this year.  She instituted a 


             19            boot camp for the students to prepare them for the 


             20            end-of-course exams and she has a dynamic way of 


             21            managing her classroom, builds professional, caring 


             22            relationships with students, and has made a huge 


             23            difference in our program in regards to how our 


             24            classroom environment is in math.  So we commend her 


             25            for that, while we still have the expectation that 
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              1            she will make progress and be highly qualified by the 


              2            end of the school year.  Thank you. 


              3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Mr. Hoy? 


              4                 MR. HOY:  My question is for ADE staff; I 


              5            believe Mr. Johnie Walters would be the appropriate 


              6            person to answer this.  Mr. Walters, on your onsite 


              7            review your findings on SIATech, did you -- those 


              8            findings, are they probationary findings or are they 


              9            cited findings? 


             10                 MR. WALTERS:  Probationary. 


             11                 MR. HOY:  And what are the next steps on 


             12            probationary findings if they hold true for SIATech? 


             13                 MR. WALTERS:  SIATech received an annual 


             14            accreditation report, annual final accreditation 


             15            report.  We mailed those out last week, in April.  I 


             16            don't know exactly what date they received theirs but 


             17            they were all sent out certified mail.  At that time 


             18            on their annual accreditation report it noted that 


             19            they were placed on probationary status for 


             20            curriculum, as well as transcript irregularities.  


             21            And at that time -- when a school district is placed 


             22            on probation we send them forms as to how to appeal 


             23            if they are in disagreement with their recommended 


             24            status.  We recommend the status to the State Board 


             25            of Education and the State Board of Education will 
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              1            hear our recommendations at the June board meeting, 


              2            and that's when we recommend all final end-of-the-


              3            year accreditation statuses for all schools in the 


              4            state of Arkansas to the State Board for 


              5            certification.  And if the State Board certifies that 


              6            recommendation, then they would be placed on 


              7            probationary status for the 2013-14 school year. 


              8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Do you have a follow-up? 


              9                 MR. HOY:  I do have a follow-up.  Did SIATech 


             10            file an appeal? 


             11                 MR. WALTERS:  They have not.  As to this date I 


             12            have not received one. 


             13                 MS. TATUM:  We never received the form. 


             14                 MR. BERRY:  This is Mitch Berry, attorney for 


             15            SIATech.  The deadline for filing an appeal has not 


             16            yet expired. 


             17                 MR. WALTERS:  It's not till the 15th of May, 


             18            tomorrow.  Tomorrow is the deadline. 


             19                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Right.  I did hear in the 


             20            audience someone say they -- Ms. Dawson, have you 


             21            received that letter? 


             22                 DR. DAWSON:  We received the letter but there 


             23            were no forms or -- 


             24                 MR. WALTERS:  It was a letter with the 


             25            instructions on how to appeal the finding. 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay. 


              2                 MS. TATUM:  No, we never received that.  I got 


              3            this but no -- because I was going to have to call 


              4            somebody at ADE to ask how. 


              5                 MS. PIANKA:  We did not receive the 


              6            instructions. 


              7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Do we have a copy of the 


              8            letter? 


              9                 MR. WALTERS:  I can have one in just a few 


             10            minutes. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Let's get a copy of 


             12            the letter. 


             13                 MR. WALTERS:  Anything else before I -- 


             14                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I've got a couple of 


             15            questions but go ahead and get that done -- 


             16                 MR. WALTERS:  Okay. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- so we'll have a copy of 


             18            that letter that was sent and make sure that 


             19            everybody is on the same page.  Ms. Coffman, do you 


             20            have a question of someone besides Mr. Walters? 


             21                 MS. COFFMAN:  I do have a question for Dr. 


             22            Dawson.  Dr. Dawson, I don't know if you're familiar 


             23            with the term "consciously competent," but it is a 


             24            term that basically means that "I know what I'm 


             25            doing, I do it well enough to know when I do it well 
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              1            or when I'm not doing it well."  So as I think about 


              2            your organization, and I would consider they are 


              3            probably consciously competent, there were items that 


              4            have been highlighted today and were highlighted in 


              5            the report -- transcripts, curriculum, the policy, 


              6            teachers that are HQT.  What procedures are being 


              7            changed in your organization to insure that those 


              8            things don't linger, that they're solved in an 


              9            earlier weight of time?  How are those being reported 


             10            instead of someone from the outside having to come in 


             11            and tell you that these things are not being done 


             12            properly? 


             13                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, most certainly we have 


             14            noticed very specific things that needed to be 


             15            corrected and we've already taken the steps in terms 


             16            of the curriculum to make sure that the alignments 


             17            are correctly reflected and the teachers are aware of 


             18            that.  We will increase our contact with content area 


             19            teachers to make sure on a regular basis that they 


             20            are aware of any changes to the curriculum, to 


             21            further update and align and move with the changing 


             22            requirements of Common Core implementation.  The 


             23            other thing that we're going to do -- and this is not 


             24            just here; it's across our network -- is we have 


             25            beefed up, to use a colloquial, the hiring process 
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              1            and are questioning at a much deeper level, asking 


              2            teachers that are applying for positions with us to 


              3            perform different types of tasks that show us that 


              4            they're really capable of moving the students that 


              5            are incredibly behind quickly or more quickly than a 


              6            traditional setting would allow.  That's not always 


              7            evident in an interview process, so the consciously 


              8            competent -- I have written that term -- and that's  


              9            -- it was an important starting point.  It certainly 


             10            isn't enough.  Specifics have to be put in place and 


             11            teachers must do specific things in order to be 


             12            effective.  They must be competent in their subject 


             13            areas.  They must meet the qualifications in the 


             14            state of being highly qualified.  But they also have 


             15            to have that belief that our students have promise to 


             16            succeed.  So blending those two things together is 


             17            important.  So we've changed some procedures in our 


             18            hiring, not just here but across the board.  As a 


             19            charter school we have the ability to assess teachers 


             20            to help them to try to engage with our program.  But 


             21            if it's not the right fit we want to make a change as 


             22            quickly as we possibly can.  We can't have that 


             23            churning where we're constantly replacing teachers, 


             24            and we've seen a bit of that here and some of our 


             25            other sites.  But when we have a stable staff we see 
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              1            the improvement and growth to standard increase 


              2            exponentially over time; we would expect that to 


              3            happen here and we're committed to make that happen. 


              4                 MS. COFFMAN:  Can I have just a follow-up? 


              5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yes. 


              6                 MS. COFFMAN:  Dr. Dawson, how long has your 


              7            organization been an organization? 


              8                 DR. DAWSON:  We've been in operation with this 


              9            population for 15 years.  We started in California, 


             10            and then in partnership with Job Corp.  In the last 


             11            couple of years we've seen a change in our -- in the 


             12            expectations of our Job Corp.  Job Corp is 


             13            concentrating on an older population.  We have moved 


             14            our schools -- we have begun to move over the last 


             15            couple of years into the communities.  As a public 


             16            school we're very committed to open access and to 


             17            enrolling every student that is eligible for school 


             18            that wants to be in our school.  We couldn't do that 


             19            with Job Corp with their changing roles, which is why 


             20            we moved off the center.  And so we are morphing and 


             21            changing as we go; we're reinventing ourselves, so-


             22            to-speak, as a community-based school.  We've done 


             23            that effectively and we're stable in Florida; we're 


             24            doing that in California, as well. 


             25                 MS. COFFMAN:  And to finish my question, I 
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              1            wanted to know when did you align your curriculum to 


              2            Common Core and when did you note that it was not 


              3            fully aligned? 


              4                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, I'm not saying that it wasn't 


              5            fully aligned.  I think it wasn't -- the 


              6            documentation was not evident.  But I believe that 


              7            we've shown in our follow-up that the curriculum was 


              8            fully aligned to Common Core.  And we started this 


              9            process several years ago. 


             10                 MS. COFFMAN:  That answers my question. 


             11                 DR. DAWSON:  That does? 


             12                 MS. COFFMAN:  Yes. 


             13                 DR. DAWSON:  We've been committed to this as it 


             14            happened because it is a much better way to get at 


             15            what kids know and it aligns with our teaching 


             16            philosophy and our strategies with this particular 


             17            popular. 


             18                 MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you. 


             19                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Decker? 


             20                 MR. DECKER:  No questions. 


             21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez? 


             22                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Just one clarification.  This 


             23            question is for Carmen Jordan. 


             24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Jordan.  Ms. Jordan, you 


             25            were sworn in, weren't you? 
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              1                 MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir, I was. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you. 


              3                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  I just wanted to make sure I 


              4            understood.  Since S-I-A-Tech or SIATech -- since 


              5            they're not on a semester basis and they had -- was 


              6            that the main issue why there wasn't that pulled from 


              7            the transcript?  The transcript issue, was that 


              8            basically because they're not necessarily designed 


              9            like every other school? 


             10                 MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir.  Initially, when the 


             11            database was set up when they first started, based on 


             12            the information that we received from the school 


             13            during the set-up process, they said that they did 


             14            not issue semester grades, that they issued final 


             15            grades.  So that's the way that we set them up.  Once 


             16            they started doing state reporting was when we found 


             17            out that they did not have semester grades and Ms. 


             18            Reynolds was informed that she needed to start 


             19            entering semester grades.  So once they opened up the 


             20            semester grade slots, she has to manually key those 


             21            grades in along with the final grade so that the 


             22            semester grade pulls to state reported and also to 


             23            Triand for the official electronic transcript. 


             24                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thank you. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  When did that happen?  What 
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              1            you just talked about, when -- you said that when 


              2            they gave you the set-up they informed you that it 


              3            would only be year-end grades? 


              4                 MS. JORDAN:  Uh-huh.  That was -- 


              5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And so -- 


              6                 MS. JORDAN:  -- the initial set-up when they 


              7            started in the 11-12 school year. 


              8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So in the 11-12 


              9            school year we set them up as just year-end grades? 


             10                 MS. JORDAN:  Uh-huh.  Yes, sir. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And then when did they 


             12            decide that they had to put in semester grades and 


             13            who informed them that they'd have to put in semester 


             14            grades? 


             15                 MS. JORDAN:  That was cycle seven, June of 2013 


             16            -- 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay. 


             18                 MS. JORDAN:  -- was when we were -- when I 


             19            notified Ms. Reynolds that she needed to start 


             20            entering semester grades. 


             21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  And that was because 


             22            -- I mean, why would we set them up with year-end 


             23            grades if we knew they had to have semester grades? 


             24                 MS. JORDAN:  Well, because initially we set up 


             25            the district based on what they tell us that they 
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              1            need for their district.  So that's what we did.  We 


              2            did not realize that they really needed semester 


              3            grades until she attempted to do her cycle seven and 


              4            pulled an error that she did not have any student 


              5            grades with four-semester grades. 


              6                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So when we began 


              7            looking at these transcripts where did that problem 


              8            get generated? 


              9                 MS. JORDAN:  I don't know.  I didn't know that 


             10            they weren't pulling the transcript for Triand.  


             11            Nobody notified me of that.  How I got involved was 


             12            when she had issues with her cycle seven.  And then 


             13            when I started looking and let her know that because 


             14            there were no semester grades that there would be no 


             15            data pulled to Triand for her students and that her 


             16            students would not be able to qualify for a 


             17            scholarship because there were no grades in Triand. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Thank you. 


             19                 MS. JORDAN:  All right. 


             20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any other questions for Ms. 


             21            Jordan while she's up there?   


             22                 MR. HOY:  I do. 


             23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay, Mr. Hoy. 


             24                 MR. HOY:  So are the transcript irregularities 


             25            related to programming more so than anything else? 




                                                  �


                                                                               75




              1                 MS. JORDAN:  No, sir.  It was basically related 


              2            to set-up -- 


              3                 MR. HOY:  Set-up. 


              4                 MS. JORDAN:  -- initially.  Uh-huh.  And then 


              5            once we got this set-up corrected, which was opening 


              6            the semester grade slot so that she could enter the 


              7            semester grades, now since she's able to do that the 


              8            transcripts in Triand will now be correct. 


              9                 MR. HOY:  Okay.  So when did the fix happen? 


             10                 MS. JORDAN:  This year.  I think in October I 


             11            had conversation via email with Ms. Reynolds about 


             12            making sure that she got her semester grade slot 


             13            opened and to start entering the semester grades.  


             14            I'm not sure at what point that she actually got that 


             15            done.  I think I heard her say in her testimony that 


             16            she's been working on getting her seniors' grades 


             17            updated so that they are correct in Triand. 


             18                 MR. HOY:  So the set-up was fixed in October? 


             19                 MS. JORDAN:  In October. 


             20                 MR. HOY:  Okay.  And, Mr. Walters, when was the 


             21            visit? 


             22                 MS. REYNOLDS:  April 2nd. 


             23                 MR. HOY:  Okay.  Thank you. 


             24                 MS. TATUM:  Can we speak about the transcript?  


             25            And Carmen is correct in what she said.  But Ms. 
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              1            Reynolds had to solicit help.  They suggested that we 


              2            bring in Sarah Cox to help and I don't remember 


              3            Vanessa's last name.  So they worked closely with Ms. 


              4            Reynolds, you know, to get this updated.  So, you 


              5            know, Carmen did help us with the semester but it 


              6            wasn't until Sarah Cox emailed her and I think the 


              7            email is maybe in your paperwork. 


              8                 MS. REYNOLDS:  There's just a little bit of 


              9            confusion here.  There were actually two screens 


             10            open.  So last spring, 2013, when Carmen first 


             11            identified this problem for us I think before that 


             12            when we were set-up I think no one ever thought about 


             13            our grades having to pull into Triand.  And I think 


             14            that's -- you were asking why we were set up on the 


             15            finals.  I think e-school was brand-new.  We were one 


             16            of the first of two schools to start an e-school and 


             17            I think just no one really realized the impact that 


             18            setting us up on final grades would have.  So I think 


             19            that's why that initial decision was made.  So then 


             20            last spring Carmen told me I needed semester grades 


             21            and I sat -- when I did year-end rollover my field 


             22            rep opened one screen that allowed me to enter 


             23            semester grades.  However -- and so I started 


             24            entering semester grades.  However, it would not 


             25            allow me to enter -- our students enter and leave 
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              1            throughout the year, so which means a student might 


              2            enter with us in August and they complete English I 


              3            in October.  They immediately enroll in English II.  


              4            Well, I could not put in a semester final grade for 


              5            English I and reschedule through e-school, which has 


              6            to be done for state reporting.  We schedule that 


              7            student into English II.  So there was no way for us 


              8            to keep a rolling kind of total of our students' 


              9            grades that would pull into Triand.  I had to go back 


             10            in, in January, at semester's end and manually go 


             11            back and try to re-enter all the grades that our 


             12            students had earned during that previous term.  So 


             13            they still -- even with my doing that, they still 


             14            were not pulling reliably into Triand.  Sometimes we 


             15            would get the correct credit and the correct course 


             16            but more often than not, we'd either -- it would 


             17            either skip a course or give double credits, 


             18            sometimes it would only give a half-credit.  It 


             19            wasn't reliable and it was -- and so I did start 


             20            working with my field rep and then we had all of the 


             21            evaluations and everything in that.  It was not until 


             22            May 5th that my field rep actually opened yet another 


             23            semester grade screen, different from the one.  So 


             24            I'm actually on my second semester grade screen now.  


             25            And it is at this point that now our grades will pull 
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              1            correctly and all of our 2013-14 grades will now pull 


              2            correctly.  APSCN is working on the fix for the 


              3            previous years.  So maybe that clears that up. 


              4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  And I remember 


              5            this conversation and I think you may have been the 


              6            only one that was in the meeting, Dr. Walters, when 


              7            we had our internal review with this.  And we talked 


              8            specifically about the difficulty we were going to 


              9            have with APSCN with this particular school with 


             10            students entering and exiting classes throughout the 


             11            year and wouldn't be in the traditional period, and 


             12            how that was going to happen.  And sorry about this, 


             13            Carmen, and sorry about this, Mr. Hernandez and Mr. 


             14            Decker but the assistant commissioners at that time 


             15            said, "We'll work it out.  We'll find a way to make 


             16            APSCN work."  So I think that's been part of the 


             17            problem, is that it was a very unique situation with 


             18            a system that we weren't changing at the time.  So 


             19            I've got a better understanding now of what happened 


             20            there because I remember that conversation about how 


             21            difficult that was going to be and the decision was 


             22            we would just have to find ways to work around it.  


             23            So that helps me remember that conversation. 


             24                 Okay.  Mr. Walters, if you would help us with 


             25            communication about standards violations with 
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              1            SIATech. 


              2                 MR. WALTERS:  Whenever we mail we send Certified 


              3            mail, the final -- not the preliminary but the final 


              4            report.  And in those we include -- we have a stack 


              5            of memos and the specialist puts the Commissioner's 


              6            memo for the final report, a copy of that, in the 


              7            packet with the final report.  As well as if a school 


              8            district has been identified as a probationary -- 


              9            with a probationary violation we have another memo 


             10            that we put in the file, in the folder, and mail and 


             11            it is the instructions on how to file a appeal if the 


             12            district so chooses.  I want to give those to Ms. 


             13            Tatum.  And while I was up there, the Certified mail 


             14            receipt states that it was -- the packet was signed  


             15            -- the final accreditation packet was signed for on 


             16            May 1, so that's -- 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Tatum, may I ask you a 


             18            question? 


             19                 MR. WALTERS:  And Ms. Tatum said that they 


             20            weren't in her packet -- 


             21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I'll ask Ms. Tatum.  Ms. 


             22            Tatum, did you receive the letter? 


             23                 MS. TATUM:  Yes, sir.  My security guard signed 


             24            for it; it's on the receipt.   


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay. 
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              1                 MS. TATUM:  But these two documents were not in 


              2            the envelope and I should've brought the original 


              3            instead of making a copy.  Because Dr. Dawson and Ms. 


              4            Pianka wanted to know how to file an appeal and I 


              5            told her, you know, we were working on the 


              6            presentation, that I would find it before -- I knew 


              7            May 15th was the deadline, so that's what I explained 


              8            to Mr. Walters.  We did receive the report from all 


              9            the schools that was listed on there but this memo 


             10            was not in there. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Okay.  Mr. 


             12            Walters, while you're close to the stand can I ask a 


             13            couple of questions?   


             14                 MR. WALTERS:  Yes, sir. 


             15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  In the report that was -- 


             16            the preliminary report that was provided -- and I 


             17            think it was the on-site report -- when it comes to 


             18            the curriculum issue, in that there was a statement 


             19            that there's no alignment to a fourth credit course 


             20            for Smart Core students.  So there was no course or 


             21            there was no alignment to a course that would meet 


             22            that requirement? 


             23                 MR. WALTERS:  I'll let Mr. Owen address that. 


             24                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay. 


             25                 MR. OWEN:  Dr. Kimbrell, whenever I was present 
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              1            and looked through the different modules that they 


              2            offer, the alignment that they gave as far as to our 


              3            courses that we have within our system were to 


              4            algebra I, geometry, algebra II.  And at that point 


              5            they were still indicating that one of their -- or a 


              6            combination of the sections out of the modules were 


              7            aligned to an algebraic connections course which was 


              8            no longer a valid course.  They have since realigned 


              9            the document, their internal system, to bridge the 


             10            algebra II which is not a fourth year course.  It 


             11            does count as one full credit toward graduation but 


             12            there was no indication that there were any alignment 


             13            -- there was any alignment to a course beyond the 


             14            algebra II. 


             15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Still no evidence of that? 


             16                 MR. OWEN:  No, sir. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Also -- and, Mr. 


             18            Walters, this will be for you 'cause I see the notes 


             19            that we have on algebra -- Mr. Anthony, your report 


             20            says 96% algebra I.  This was on-site algebra II, 


             21            76%; geometry, 83%.  But you've now received but 


             22            haven't had an opportunity to completely review that.  


             23            Is that correct? 


             24                 MR. OWEN:  Yes, sir. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Now, as far as 
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              1            English Language Arts, did we have an English 


              2            Language Arts specialist -- 


              3                 MR. WALTERS:  Maggie Herrick. 


              4                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Is she here? 


              5                 MR. WALTERS:  No, sir.  She is in -- at a 


              6            conference with Dr. Tucker -- 


              7                 MS. FRENO:  Dr. Witonski. 


              8                 MR. WALTERS:  -- and Dr. Witonski.  Where? 


              9                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Then I'm not -- oh, 


             10            she's not here? 


             11                 MR. WALTERS:  Not here. 


             12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  So has -- have they 


             13            submitted -- I mean, all it tells me is that it does 


             14            not appear to align to the current Common Core State 


             15            Standards. 


             16                 MR. WALTERS:  When we were there Randall 


             17            Lawrence and Ms. Herrick -- Randall went with Ms. 


             18            Lawrence [sic] -- I mean, Ms. Herrick and they 


             19            observed the curriculum.  And from the information we 


             20            were given by Ms. Herrick that is the data that we 


             21            have and the information we have.  The information 


             22            that was received from SIATech was forwarded to Dr. 


             23            Tucker for Ms. Herrick to look at.  Now I don't know 


             24            where it's gone from there. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  That was done yesterday? 
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              1                 MR. WALTERS:  Yesterday. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Fine.  So to your 


              3            knowledge there's not been any review of that? 


              4                 MR. WALTERS:  No, sir. 


              5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  Mr. 


              6            Walters, before you sit down let me ask one other 


              7            question and I don't mean to -- I just wanted to go 


              8            around and let y'all ask questions and -- 


              9                 MR. WALTERS:  That's okay. 


             10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  -- y'all may have some 


             11            follow-up questions.  So in terms of the transcripts 


             12            themselves -- and I think we've heard some 


             13            conversation about those transcripts, but was there 


             14            any evidence that the transcripts were wrong, that 


             15            students were given credit for courses that they 


             16            hadn't completed?  I don't -- 


             17                 MR. WALTERS:  No. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay. 


             19                 MR. WALTERS:  As far as were there manufactured 


             20            courses and manufactured grades, no.  The problem was 


             21            you have e-school here, you have Triand over here; 


             22            ne'er the two ever met.  And they attempted when we 


             23            were there -- they came to the office the next day; 


             24            there was genuine frustration on the part of the 


             25            school that they couldn't get it to match, and I had 
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              1            suggested that they work with Carmen's group.  But 


              2            the fact was what you could see in APSCN and what you 


              3            could see in Triand were completely different and 


              4            there was not the indication that courses were being 


              5            manufactured and put on here.  The issue was the 


              6            accuracy with which a school district is required to 


              7            report student data, student grades, and reports in 


              8            general.  So if a student were to list its -- to 


              9            qualify for a Challenge Scholarship or something 


             10            along that line, apply for a position, for a job, 


             11            that transcript -- the accuracy of that transcript 


             12            was so in question that you couldn't tell exactly 


             13            what was what.  But we do not believe that there were 


             14            manufactured courses for grades applied to either 


             15            side of the transcript. 


             16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Ms. Jordan, a 


             17            question for you please.  Do you feel like we've got 


             18            that problem resolved now or on our way to a 


             19            resolution of that problem? 


             20                 MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir, we are. 


             21                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  Questions 


             22            of the Panel?  Okay.  We'll start with Dr. Walters.  


             23            She's got her hand up first. 


             24                 DR. WALTERS:  I have a question for Dr. Dawson.  


             25            And if you answered this while I was out, my 
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              1            apologies.  But can you tell me how many times this 


              2            current school year has staff from the national 


              3            organization been on campus, on the Little Rock 


              4            campus? 


              5                 DR. DAWSON:  At individual times, multiple -- I 


              6            can't give you an exact number.   


              7                 DR. WALTERS:  Less than 10, more than 10? 


              8                 DR. DAWSON:  More than 10.  We have -- our 


              9            director was there almost every month, if not more 


             10            than once a month.  Chris Mallory is there every 


             11            month for a board meeting.  Our Learning Support are 


             12            available and have come out periodically on request 


             13            to train teachers when we've been able to do that, so 


             14            -- 


             15                 MS. PIANKA:  Yeah.  And I can add to that. 


             16                 DR. WALTERS:  Sure. 


             17                 MS. PIANKA:  I'm here so often I don't need a 


             18            map anymore of Little Rock.  I can find my way around 


             19            or drive the rest of the team around.  We identified 


             20            -- I think Ms. Tatum and I identified early, probably 


             21            in November and December, that since we had some new 


             22            staff we wanted some refresher courses and support 


             23            with classroom management.  And so we had our 


             24            Learning Support Team out for a week in February for 


             25            training.  As has already been stated by the Learning 




                                                  �


                                                                               86




              1            Support Team, they provide monthly ilincs in every 


              2            subject area.  And along with being on campus to 


              3            train individual teachers as they are hired and 


              4            anyone that's in need of additional support they'll 


              5            work for us.  It's been my privilege to work with Ms. 


              6            Tatum for the past three years and we kind of got 


              7            baptized together in APSCN by attending, starting in 


              8            2011, probably five weeks of training.  And we were 


              9            part of the team that said, "We don't do semester 


             10            grades," and we were assured that somehow it would 


             11            work out; "We'll just do the final grade."  So we 


             12            were very upfront with how our system works and 


             13            what's to be expected.  But we probably I would say 


             14            at least every month, sometimes twice a month 


             15            depending -- Ms. Mallory and I kind of tag-team and 


             16            both provide oversight and support to the site to 


             17            make sure that they have what they need.  We do 


             18            classroom observations, we do audits, we do whatever 


             19            is needed or support the principal in any way with 


             20            something that she identifies that is needed for her 


             21            site.  So, yes, we are here frequently. 


             22                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Mr. Hernandez? 


             23                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  My question is for Jeremy or 


             24            Kendra, either one.  As far as there being 


             25            probationary notification given to them for 
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              1            standards, they have a way to appeal that -- 


              2                 MR. LASITER:  Yes. 


              3                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  -- and there will be a hearing 


              4            and that's in front of the State Board.  Is that 


              5            correct? 


              6                 MR. LASITER:  That's correct. 


              7                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  That was one question.  


              8            The second question, if we decide to take no action 


              9            does that require a motion or how does that work as 


             10            far as what we're able to do? 


             11                 MR. LASITER:  Certainly, I would ask that 


             12            anything that you do, do it in a motion so it's 


             13            formalized and we can put it in the minutes.  So if 


             14            you decide to take no action it would be better and 


             15            cleaner if you did it just through a motion. 


             16                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thank you. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Other questions?  Mr. Owen? 


             18                 MR. OWEN:  Yes, Dr. Kimbrell.  I have a point of 


             19            clarification for my previous answer, if it can be 


             20            allowed.  I pulled back up the email that I received 


             21            yesterday and looked back through it and not only has 


             22            SIATech presented within this documentation an 


             23            updated curriculum for algebra two, they have also 


             24            aligned to an algebra III curriculum document of 


             25            ours.  That would count as a "beyond algebra II" 
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              1            credit under Smart Core, if it is properly aligned. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you, sir.  Thanks for 


              3            that clarification. 


              4                 MS. HOCKER:  Can I just add to that?  There are 


              5            two different digital math curriculums in our math 


              6            teachers' folder.  The one from 2012-2013 is our 


              7            teacher (inaudible); she showed him that when you 


              8            were in there.  We haven't filed one for 2013-2014 


              9            that has those courses.  And if you go in and look, 


             10            it's on their -- on her teacher log-in, so -- for 


             11            both. 


             12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Other questions 


             13            by the Panel?  I do have one question and, Ms. 


             14            Dawson, it may be you to answer this or whomever.  


             15            But you use the ANGEL Learning Management System? 


             16                 DR. DAWSON:  Yes, that's correct. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Everybody keeps referring to 


             18            it in this document that's been provided, talk about 


             19            -- it talks about the curriculum delivery model and 


             20            its ability to be real fluid and updated throughout 


             21            the year.  What curriculum model is this?  Is it 


             22            something that your organization or the organization 


             23            you run has created or is it a digital piece that is 


             24            a third-party vendor? 


             25                 DR. DAWSON:  I think the answer to that would be 
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              1            it's a combination of both of those.  There are 


              2            certain things within our curriculum that we've 


              3            developed and we know that they're successful.  We've 


              4            also added additional programs.  For instance, a lot 


              5            of our math curriculum is based with PLATO content, 


              6            which is customizable; therefore, we add to that.  


              7            And we've created a hybrid type of system that's a 


              8            combination of both off the shelf, which doesn't work 


              9            for our population by itself, and what we've created 


             10            internally. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And so the states that 


             12            you're in that I've looked at I believe are also 


             13            Common Core states? 


             14                 DR. DAWSON:  Correct. 


             15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I saw -- 


             16                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, Florida isn't but -- 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Well, yeah.  Up until -- 


             18            well -- 


             19                 DR. DAWSON:  They may be soon.  We don't know.  


             20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Yeah.  I also saw that three 


             21            of the course states -- well, all the states besides 


             22            Arkansas your schools are accredited by a third-party 


             23            accreditation system? 


             24                 DR. DAWSON:  That's correct.  We have -- in 


             25            California, we have two accreditations.  We have the 
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              1            WASC, the Western Association accreditation, plus the 


              2            Advanced Ed. Trans Regional Accreditation for both 


              3            our schools as well as our corporate office.  In 


              4            Florida, we have the AdvancED with SACS and in New 


              5            Mexico also we have both the AdvancED and the North 


              6            Central accreditation. 


              7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any -- and this is not on 


              8            the subject and I apologize -- any --  


              9                 DR. WALTER:  Can I get onto you? 


             10                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  And you can get onto me.  


             11            Any plans for looking at the -- an accreditation for 


             12            your school here? 


             13                 DR. DAWSON:  Well, we are accredited under 


             14            AdvancED. 


             15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Here? 


             16                 DR. DAWSON:  Here, in Arkansas.  Absolutely. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Your school has an AdvancED 


             18            -- 


             19                 DR. DAWSON:  Accreditation.  Absolutely. 


             20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  I just didn't 


             21            see it listed on a website. 


             22                 DR. DAWSON:  I'll have to check that.  It should 


             23            be.  It must be.  I can't imagine it not being.  But 


             24            I'll check that. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Arizona, California, 
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              1            Florida, New Mexico are the only ones listed as 


              2            having accreditation from a separate accrediting -- 


              3            right there on your home page. 


              4                 DR. DAWSON:  We have the certificate. 


              5                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  You might want to update 


              6            that. 


              7                 MS. REYNOLDS:  We'll update the website. 


              8                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any other questions?   


              9                 MS. COFFMAN:  Do you know when that 


             10            accreditation review occurred? 


             11                 DR. DAWSON:  11-12, I believe. 


             12                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.   


             13                 DR. DAWSON:  Excuse me.  Next year we'll be 


             14            having the follow-up accreditation. 


             15                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I do want to make one 


             16            statement to -- is it Dr. Dawson? 


             17                 DR. DAWSON:  Yes. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Dr. Dawson, to you and your 


             19            staff.  These are not uncommon reviews.  There are 


             20            times and we've done a couple this year where I've 


             21            asked Mr. Hoy to go into traditional public schools 


             22            and to do very similar, unannounced reviews when 


             23            there are things that are brought to our attention 


             24            that we believe need to be reviewed and maybe need to 


             25            be reviewed in a way in which we need to just show 
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              1            up.  And I apologize, and if it put people at unease 


              2            and made them feel uncomfortable that's not our 


              3            intention whatsoever.  It's not our intention to, 


              4            quote, "catch people" but it's our intention to go 


              5            into a school to see a school operate as a school and 


              6            we don't want to go in with everybody prepared for 


              7            someone to come in, you know.  And if you're -- and 


              8            I've run schools and run organizations for 30-


              9            something years in this business; if you're doing 


             10            what you're supposed to be doing, you don't have to 


             11            worry about those things.  But I also know that when 


             12            the Department of Ed. or an accrediting agency or 


             13            anything comes in there's those concerns.  So I do 


             14            want to say it was never our intention to put people 


             15            on edge or to make them feel uneasy.  And we've done 


             16            these before and most, if not all -- this is the 


             17            first time I remember getting a report back that 


             18            anyone felt that the questioning was -- and I think 


             19            the report says -- maybe it was the degree at which 


             20            the questions were -- or the manner in which 


             21            questions were asked.  And I've not heard that about 


             22            our staff and I hope that maybe it was just an unease 


             23            and not our staff being in any way derogatory or 


             24            accusatory in their questioning.  I don't think the 


             25            staff would do that, so I hope that that's not what 
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              1            happened and maybe it was just some unease that was 


              2            experienced by the staff. 


              3                 DR. DAWSON:  I appreciate that and I'm sure that 


              4            that's it.  I think Dr. Cox brought up a very 


              5            important point, is that -- especially when you have 


              6            a school like ours that's not a traditional school 


              7            and has a different way of approaching, we expect and 


              8            we get a lot of scrutiny; we're used to that.  So 


              9            we're able and we're willing and wanting to talk 


             10            about that.  I think we can do a better job, both in 


             11            the corporate office and we'll work with our site 


             12            staff, in communicating as players change within the 


             13            office what exactly we do.  It doesn't -- telling it 


             14            once doesn't make it transferable as people change or 


             15            as our program changes.  So I think all of us 


             16            included in our partnership can work on our 


             17            communication and we'll definitely make that a 


             18            priority. 


             19                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you.  Panel, I would 


             20            suggest since we really don't have a full review of 


             21            the math yet -- I know that Anthony has that 


             22            information and I have all confidence that he can do 


             23            that for us.  I know that our English Language Arts 


             24            staff that were there haven't had an opportunity to 


             25            review that.  It does seem to me that the Triand 
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              1            issue and the transcript issues, if not completely 


              2            resolved, are being resolved and are resolvable.  We 


              3            may still run into some problems.  A mind is a 


              4            terrible thing to lose and over the last five years 


              5            mine is slowly but surely being -- it's about gone.  


              6            But I remember that conversation well with the 


              7            internal group and having that conversation about 


              8            "this is going to be hard, this is not going to work 


              9            with our current system, and we're just going to have 


             10            to make it work."  So I don't know about your 


             11            feelings but I just think with what is going to come 


             12            before the State Board I would rather us have answers 


             13            for them about those curriculum issues.  I think we 


             14            can answer the questions for ourselves about the 


             15            Triand and the transcripts.  But for the curriculum 


             16            issues I think there's time for our staff to work 


             17            with their staff to see if those things are actually 


             18            in place before we make some kind of decision.  And 


             19            I'd welcome any discussion, comment you may have.  


             20            Mr. Hoy? 


             21                 MR. HOY:  Motion at the proper time. 


             22                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I'll accept a motion. 


             23                 MR. HOY:  A motion that we take no action at 


             24            this time, Dr. Kimbrell. 


             25                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a motion from Mr. Hoy 
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              1            to take no action at this time. 


              2                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Second. 


              3                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a second from Mr. 


              4            Hernandez.  Any discussion?  If not, all those in 


              5            favor of the motion say "aye." 


              6                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 


              7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All those opposed?  Motion 


              8            passes.  Thank y'all.  Thank you, Panel.  Thank you, 


              9            SIATech and we'll be back in touch and we'll continue 


             10            to work on insuring that that is aligned.  Mr. 


             11            Walters, I hope you will work with Ms. Tatum to make 


             12            sure that everything is lined up for their appeal, if 


             13            they choose. 


             14                 MR. WALTERS:  We will hold a slot open for the 


             15            State Board meeting in the event that they choose to 


             16            appeal. 


             17                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Thank you very much.   


             18  A-2:  CONSIDERATION OF 2014 DISTRICT CONVERSION PUBLIC CHARTER 


             19  SCHOOL APPLICATION 


             20                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  So we'll move to 


             21            Action Item A-2, Consideration of the 2014 District 


             22            Conversion Public Charter School Application.  Ms. 


             23            Perry.  And if you'd like, Ms. Perry, we can let the 


             24            room kind of clear, if you want to. 


             25                 MS. PERRY:  I'm good.  You are -- 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Except Tripp is bothering 


              2            everybody. 


              3                 MS. PERRY:  This document should look fairly 


              4            familiar to you.  Last meeting we brought you the 


              5            Open-Enrollment Charter Application for your review.  


              6            The Board, as you know, allowed it to release last 


              7            week.  So this week we're bringing to you the 


              8            District Conversion Application.  You will note that 


              9            we made the appropriate changes to the District 


             10            Conversion Application that we made to the Open-


             11            Enrollment where that made sense.  You'll notice 


             12            things like we pulled the budget piece out, as when 


             13            we had our meeting back in January you directed us 


             14            and you felt that was appropriate for District 


             15            Conversion Applications.  So it looks very similar.  


             16            We did completely drop "limited charter" from it.  


             17            Again, we talked about it that day.  We've had no one 


             18            ever ask to submit an application for a limited 


             19            charter school.  If we get that request, we'll see 


             20            about putting in a couple of questions because that's 


             21            all it would take to revise this and let someone do 


             22            that.   


             23                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Any questions from the 


             24            Panel?  Ms. Coffman, you don't have a question? 


             25                 MS. COFFMAN:  No.  It looks good. 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Okay.  All right.  If not, 


              2            I'll entertain a motion.  If the crowd out there will 


              3            hold it down, we'll get this done. 


              4                 MS. COFFMAN:  I make a motion we approve these 


              5            documents. 


              6                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Second. 


              7                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Ms. Coffman makes a motion 


              8            and Mr. Hernandez quickly makes a second.  All those 


              9            in favor say "aye." 


             10                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 


             11                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  All those opposed like sign.  


             12            Motion passes.  Thank you, Ms. Perry, for your work 


             13            and the rest of the staff and attorneys for their 


             14            work.  I'll entertain a motion to adjourn. 


             15                 DR. WALTERS:  Motion. 


             16                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  I have a motion to adjourn. 


             17                 MS. COFFMAN:  Second. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN KIMBRELL:  Second from Ms. Coffman.  


             19            And we are adjourned.   


             20                                   


             21      (The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:35 a.m.) 
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